
To Our Stockholders: 
ar pI a d to r port out tanding r ult for the 

first fi cal quarter of 1987, nd d D mb r 31, 
19 6. ompar d to lh am p riod in fi cal 1986, arn-
ings p r har mor than doubl d, to a r rd $.58 from 
$.28; r v nu increa d sharply by 40 P rc nt; and the 
pr tax margin r ach d 20 P rc nt of r venue, a strong 
improv m nt ov r 12 percent re ord day ar ago. 

In thi quart r, busine s in the Unit d State improved 
mark dly and int rnational bu ine s remain d strong. 
W r c iv d trategic commitm nts from major accounts 
in th Unit d Stat and abroad. For xampl ,a large 
p trol um company in Europe I cted Tand m systems 
for a major point-of-sale n twork; a I ading U.S. automo­
bile manufa turer s I cted our sy t m for a nationwide 
d aler network; and a major U. S. bank committed an 
int rnational banking appli ation to Tandem ystems. 

W b Ii v w ar winning trategic commitments like 
th b au e our products satisfy the full requirement 
of th high-growth, di tributed on-lin tran action pro­
c ing mark t. Succ sful products thi quarter includ-
d two n w y t m that we manufactur d and shipped 

in produ tion quantilie : the new Non top VLX system 
f r mainfram application and th NonStop EXTIO sys­
t m for di tribut d op rations. Our NonStop TXP system 
and our award-winning disk torag device also were 
u c ful. Thi quart r, the VLX y tem and the new 

EXT y t ms won th pre tigiou Hannover Fair "Good 
Indu trial D ign" award. We b li ve that these awards 
r pr nt a tr ng endorsement of our product design. 

W introduced s veral product thi quarter that 
upp rt our trat gy to extend our product offerings to 

th d partm nts of large organization . The MULTILAN 
produ t allow Tandem syst m to b conn cted to more 
local ar a n tworks (LANs) than any other system vendor. 
With th MULTI LAN solution, u ers can integrate person­
al computer with Tandem sy tems through any LAN 
that supp rt the IBM NETBIOS proto 01 and gain the 
first fault-tolerant, distributed file server in the industry. 
Thr new workstations were added to Tandem's 6AX 
line of P AT- compatible products. New WORDLINK 
oftwar allows transparent document exchange be-

tw n normally incompatible word processors con­
n ct d to a Tandem system. 

We al 0 announced Remote Duplicate Databas 
Facility (RDF) y tem oftware. With RDF software, 
Tand m u er can restore the operation of critical 
applications within minutes after a mas ive disruption 
such as an earthquake, rather than in the hours or day 
required by conventional chemes. 

We strengthened our management team with the 
appointments of two individual to newly created vice 
pre idential positions, one for International Sales Op ra­
tions, the other for New Ventures. The e appointments 
will broad n our ability to provide solutions that are 
tailored to the specialized needs of different industries 
and g ographical areas. 

Thi quarter we announced a joint venture agreement 
with VOLMAC Group, Utrecht, the Netherlands, to form a 
n w company. The new firm, Twinac, will provide project 
management and contract con ulting services to Tandem 
customers for large on-line application projects. It also 
will assi t Tandem Alliance memb rs in the distribution 
and upport of their software packages in the Netherlands. 

We attribute our success this quarter to Tandem's stra­
tegic market pOSitioning, uniqu computer architecture, 
and strong product cycle. Thes factors, combined with 
the improvements we have made in our organization, 
enabled us to achieve strong financial performance at a 
time when many in our industry are experiencing diffi­
culties. We are encouraged by our positive results this 
quarter, and we will continue to trengthen our organiza­
tion to support our growing business. 

Sincerely, 

Thomas J. Perkins 
Chairman 01 the Board 

February 18, 1987 

Jame G. Treybig 
President and 
Chiel Executive Ollicer 

Tandem. NonSlop. onSlop VLX. onSlop EXTIO. NonSlop TXP. MULTILAN. WORDLINK. 
RDF Bnd 6AX are trodemarks 01 Tandem Compulers Incorporated 
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• n em siness 
nfo at ion nter 

". n this quarter, 
business in the 

United States improved 
markedly and interna­
tional business remained 
strong. We received 
strategic commitments 
from major accounts 
in the United States and 
abroad." 

FIRST QUARTER REPORT 

DECEMBER 31, 1986 



Tand m omput r In orp rat d and Sub idiarie 

o SOllDATED I TFRIM STATEME T OF I 

( In Thou and , Except P r Shar Amounts) 

Revenue 
Pr ductr venue 
S rvi and other revenue 
Total r venue 

Costs and Expenses 
o t of product 
o t of rvice and other 

R arch and development 
Mark ting, general and administrative 
Total co ts and expenses 
Operating Income 
1nt r st income, net 
Income Before Income Taxes 
Provi ion for income taxes 
Net Income 

Earnings Per Share 

Weighted average shares outstanding 

-

For th Thr 
Decemb r 31, 19 6 

$198,725 
39,310 

23 ,035 

53,5 1 
27,837 
24 ,315 
86,761 

192,494 
45,541 
2,847 

48,388 
( 21 ,291) 

$ 27,097 
-

$ .5 

46,793 

ertain prior p riod amounts hay b en recta sified to conform with the curr nt period pre entation. 

Month Ended 

D cemb r 31, 1985 

$140,293 
29,768 

170,061 

43,310 
22,821 
19,847 
64 ,768 

150,746 
19,315 
1,673 

20,988 
( 9,340) 

$ 11 ,648 

$ .28 

42,177 

Tandem Computers Incorporated and Subsidiaries 

CO OLIDATED INTERIM BALANCE HEET (UNAUDITED) 

( In Thousands, Except Share Datal 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash investments 
Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other 
Prepaid income taxes 
Total current assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment, at cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
Net property, plant and equipment 
Other Assets 
Total Assets 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 
Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued income taxes 

December 31 , 1986 

$234,056 
243,326 

66,455 
16,819 
7.546 

568,202 

311 ,785 
( 116,347) 

195,438 
12,9 14 

$776,554 

54,348 
75,174 
33,465 

December 31. 1985 

$134,311 
178,252 
75,139 
13,774 

1,924 
403,400 
246,915 
(88,808) 
158,107 

8,591 
$570,098 

33,877 
47,773 

Current portion of long term debt and capital lease obli~atio_ns _______ --=-~~,;..... ____ --=--~~~ 
Total current liabilities 

$ 1,786 $ 7,3 10 
164,773 88,960 

Long Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 
Deferred Income Taxes 
Stockholders' Invesbnent 
Common stock, $.025 par value; authorized 200,000,000 shares; 

outstanding 44 ,314 ,310 in 1986 and 41,604 ,711 in 1985 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Total stockholders' investment ----
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Invesbnent 

8,327 11,404 
29,916 34,684 

1,108 1,040 
301,192 241,987 
271,238 192,023 
573,538 435,050 

$776,554 $570,098 



TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS: 

Tandem's revenue in the second fi cal quarter of 1986 
surpas ed that of the first quarter reversing a trend of 
sequential downturns in second quarters of previou years. 
Demand in Europe for the Company' products was very 
strong and was an important factor in Tandem' perfor­
mance thi quarter. 

Revenue for the second fiscal quarter ending March 31, 
1986 reached 176,327000, a20.4% increa e over the ame 
quarter last year. et income grew 81.4% to 12,410,000, or 
. 29 per share, versu 6, 41,000 or .16 per share, earned 

in the second quarter of fi cal 1985. 
For the si month ending larch 31, 1986, revenue 

increased 13.l0f0 to 3463 8,000, from 306,142,000 in 
the ame period of fiscal 19 5. et income advanced 15.3010 
to 2 ,058,000, or .56 per share, compared with fi cal 
1985 first-half net income of 20,869,000, or .50 per share. 

Earnings per share grew harply thi quarter, de pite 
the fact that \ e susp nded hort-term cost saving measures, 
such as a salary freeze, which were implemented last fall 
in response to \ eakening demand in the . . Conditions 
have improved somewhat ince that time. However, we are 
continuing to limit hiring. Total employment has declined 
slightly in each of the last three quarters. 

Shortly after the close of the econd quarter, Tandem 
announced a new VL I-b. ed computer system that extends 
the high end of our on top '· computer family. The on top 
VI. ,. system, which was already in production at the time 
of the announcement, makes significant contributions in 
performance and serviceability. The VL system' price/ 
performance is unequaled in the indu try. The basic con­
figuration deliver twice the throughput of a comparable 

onStop T p . system and reduces the cost per transaction 
b 30 percent. Becau,e of new, on-line remote diagno tic 
features based on expert ystem technology, service co t is 
half that of the T P system - and only one-fourth on a co t 
per tr'Jnsaction basis. 

The L system i the mo t significant outcome to 
date of our six-year inve tment in VLSI design and prod­
uct development facilities. It demonstrates our ability to 
produce large- cale gate array de igns and give us the 
knowledge base we need to leverage these design , along 

with off-the- helf microproce or technologies, much more 
rapidly into future new products. 

We al 0 introduced our PATH lAKER'" application 
generator, which reduces by half the time required to 
develop on-line application for on top y tem , and 
MEA RE'· sy tem performance monitor, which i a real­
time, on-line measurement tool that can help maximize 
performance of complex high-volume on-line transaction 
proce sing y tem . 

These three product announcements join a long li t of 
product introduction over the past year that have delivered 
new hardware and oftware technologies to every part of 
our sy tem offering. They have ub tantially reduced sy tem 
cost and service co t and have dramatically improved per­
formance and function. 

Tandem continues to build leadership in key on-line 
transaction proces ing markets throughout the world. For 
example, Tandem has made ignificant penetration of the 

nited Kingdom brokerage indu try as a result of the de­
regulation of the ecurities indu try, while expandjng a 
strong pr ence in the .K. retail banking indu try. This 
market presence enabled our .K. ub idiary to grow at 
a very rapid rate thi quarter. '\ e see imilar progr 
throughout our international operations, in uch countri 
as witzerland, France, Japan, Denmark and Canada, where 
strong performance contributed sub tantially to Tandem' 
ucces this quarter. 

'J e believe that Tandem's pro pects continue to 
improve as a result of new products, improved marketing 
program and the favorable effects of the re tructuring of 
our sales organization. The e factors lead us to feel optimi tic 
that our financial performance will continue to impro e 
during the remainder of this year. 

incerely yours, 

Thomas J. Perkin 
Chainnan 

James G. Treybig 
Pre-idem and 
Chief Executive Officer 



CONSOLIDATED INTERIM 
STATEMENT OF INCOME (UNAUDITED) TANDEM COMP TERS I CORPORATED AND B !DIARIES 

For Ihe Three MOIII/)s Bllded For Ihe SIX fOlllhs Elided 
March3J, Marcb3J, Marcb31, Marcb31, 

(III TOOllsallds, ExcePI Per hare AmOlIllIs) 1986 1985 1986 1985 
Revenue 
Product revenue $142,754 $120,088 $279,982 $254,223 
Service and other revenue 33,573 26,401 66,406 51 ,919 
Total revenue 176,327 146,489 346,388 306,142 

Costs and Expenses 
Cost of revenue 58,025 57,713 116,869 119,734 
Research and development 21,318 17,075 1,135 32,202 
Marketing, general and admini trative 76,986 61 ,998 149,071 121 ,99 

Total cost and expen es 156,329 136,786 307,075 273,930 

Operating Income 19,998 9,703 39,313 32,212 
Interest income, net 2,362 1,573 4,035 3,461 

Income Before Income Taxes 22,360 11,276 43,3 8 35,673 
Provision for income taxes (9,950) ( 4,435) (19,290) ( 14,804) 

Net Income 12,410 6,841 $ 24,058 $ 20,869 

Harnings Per Share $ 0.29 $ 0.16 $ 0.56 $ 0.50 

Weighted average hare outstanding 43,385 42,156 42,781 41 ,770 

CONSOLIDATED INTERIM 
BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDI TED) 

(in ThollStlllds, Excepi Share Data) 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash investments 
Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total current assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment, at cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net property, plant and equipment 
Other Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 

Current Liabilities 
Current portion of long term debt and capitalized lease obligations 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued income taxes 

Total current liabilities 
Capitalized Lease Obligations 
Long Term Debt 
Deferred Income Taxes 

Stockholders' Investment 
Common stock, $.025 par value; authorized 200,000,000 shares; 

outstanding 42,139,637 in 1986 and 41 ,111 ,986 in 1985 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 

Total stockholders' investment 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 

TANDEM COMPUTERS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES 

March 31, 
1986 

$160,767 
182,577 
69,872 
16,739 

429,955 
251,199 
(95,110) 

156,089 
9,373 

$595,417 

$ 7,721 
36,679 
45,888 
3,945 

94,233 
5,982 
4,445 

34,324 

1,054 
250,946 
204,433 

456,433 
$595,417 

March 31, 
1985 

$107,737 
162,927 
91,273 

7,977 

369,914 
215,773 
( 64,554) 

151,219 
4,882 

$526,015 

$ 6,537 
39,856 
42,724 

3,551 
92,668 
9,828 
2,672 

17,810 

1,028 
235,139 
166,870 

403,037 
$526,015 
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Third Quarter Report June 30, 1989 

To Our Stockholders: 

e are pleased with the strong revenue and earnings 
growth Tandem achieved in the third fiscal quarter 

of 1989. 
Revenue for the quarter grew 24 percent to $420.7 

million, compared with $339.0 million in the same quarter 
of last year. Net income for the quarter increased 78 per­
cent to $30.8 million, or $.31 per share, versus $17.3 million, 
or $.18 per share, earned in the same quarter of last year. 

For the nine-month period ending June 30, 1989, reve­
nue increased to $1.2 billion, compared with $930.7 million 
in the same period a year ago. Net income was $78.9 
million, or $.79 per share, versus $64.3 million, or $.65 
per share, earned in the first nine months of fiscal 1988. 

Computer systems revenue was very strong in the 
United States and rebounded well from the second quarter 
in Europe. Our Intercontinental division continued to 
perform well. The enterprise networking business of 
Ungermann-Bass saw good revenue growth and 
improved profitability. 

We made significant progress during the quarter in 
strategic product areas, including distributed midrange 
systems, database, networking, and security. We added the 

on top CLX 700 series to our NonStop CLX family of 
midrange online transaction processing (OLTP) systems. 
Featuring excellent price/ performance, the CLX 700 
series was very well received. 

We announced Release 2 of our NonStop SQL dis­
tributed relational database software. Release 2 harnesses 
the power of parallelism inherent in Tandem systems for 
not only OcrP but also query and batch processing. We 
took steps to make onStop SQL software easier to use 
through alliances with vendors of leading app~ication 
development tools, including Oracle Corporation, Sybase, 
Inc., and OnUne olutions Incorporated. 

everal products were announced that help custom­
ers connect Tandem systems in key network environments 
such as IBM's ystems etwork Architecture (SNft:),. 

pen ystems Interconnection (OSI), and Transmission 
Control Protocol/Internet Protocol (TCP/ IP) network~. 
We shipped new software products that let custom~rs hnk 
Apple Macintosh computers to our syste~s ~o provide a 
graphical user interface for Tande~ ~pphcatio~s. 

Ungermann-Bass announced It IS developing prod­
ucts that use a networking technology called 16 Mbps 

(megabits per second) token ring to connect work­
stations with ordinary telephone wire. In addition, Atalla 
shipped a new high-performance security module that 
can be attached to most Tandem NonStop systems to 
protect sensitive data throughout a network from un­
authorized access or alteration. 

A large number of key orders from major customers 
reflects the validity of our product strategies. We shipped 
an important order to United Parcel Service, which is 
implementing its hub and feeder system on a distributed 
network of NonStop CLX systems. The California Depart­
ment of Motor Vehicles (DMV) selected Tandem systems 
for a large database application. Ungermann-Bass also re­
ceived an order from the DMY, underscoring the success 
of the Tandem/Ungermann-Bass merger. 

Computer systems orders showed strength in the 
finance industry, especially in securities and banking. In 
health care, a potentially strong sector for Tandem, two 
important customers ordered large computer systems 
during the quarter. 

Shortly after the quarter ended, the board of directors 
approved two new programs that we believe will help us 
continue to attract and motivate outstanding employees. 
A leveraged employee stock ownership program, or ESOp, 
forms the beginning of a retirement program for U. S. 
employees; in most countries outside the United States, 
our employees already have retirement programs. An 
option loan program will help employees acquire and 
hold Tandem stock. 

This was an excellent quarter for Tandem in terms 
of product strategies, customer orders, and expense 
management. While we are cautious about the negative 
impact of a strengthening U.S. dollar, we think 1989 will 
finish as a good year for Tandem and we look forward 
to 1990. 

Sincerely, 

~~4~ 
Thomas J. Perkins James G. Treybig 
Chairman of the Board President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

july 31, 1989 



Consolidated Statements of Income Un au it d 

For Ih Thr • 10nth End d For Ih in Months End d 
Jun 30, Jun 30, 

( In thousands xcept p r har amount) 19 !) 19 
Jun 30, Jun 30, 

19 9 19 

R V nu 
276,343 

rvi 62, 50 
73, 12 759,303 

2 3,34 171,421 

'Ii tal r v nu 12 , 7 33 , 3 1,17 ,36 30,724 

2 5,435 209,593 
13 ,41 127,310 
1 ,0 119,52 
4 ,472 371,443 

372, 1 311,742 1,052,3 3 27, 74 

123, 67 102, 50 
303 6,22 

7, 77 27,251 
) 5 2 1,01 

(9,375) 

124,270 99,703 
45,35 35,3 4 

Incom b fore incom tax 1 ,43 2 ,232 
Pr vision for in om taxe 17, 0 ,9·16 

N t incom 30,75 17,2 7 , 12 64,309 

Earnings p r share .31 .1 .79 .65 

Wight d av rag har ut tanding ,5 9 ,252 100,213 , 04 

Th e income stat m 111 in Iud Ih financial re ull of ng rrnann-B< . , In '. , from 1arch I ,I ,Ih dal of a Qui III n. 

TA OEM OMPlITER I RP RATED A D UB IDIARI 

Consolidated Balance Sheets ( Unaudited) 

( In thou and ) 

A t 

'Ii tal urr nt as ts 

th r 

Prop rty, plant, and quipm nt, at cost 
A cumulat d d pr iati n and amortization 

N t prop rty, plant, and quipm nt 

of n t ass ts acquired, n t 

Total as t 

Liablliti 8 and tockhold r ' investment 

urr nt liablliti 
ot payabl 

A c unt payabl 
A ru d liabiliti s 
Inc m tax payabl 

urr nt maturiti s f I ng-t rm obligations 

'Ii tal urr nt liabiliti s 

Long-te rm obligation 
D f rr d incom tax s 

tockhold r ' inv tm nt 
omm n t k, .025 par valu ; authoriz d 400,000 shares; 

ut tanding 7,95 in 19 9 and 95,510 in 1988 
Additi nal paid-in apital 
R tain d arnings 
A umulat d tran lati n adjustm nts 

Total Iiablliti and tockholders' investment 

June 30, 1989 

$ 101 ,433 
388,604 
138,105 
78,4 17 

706,559 

703,925 
(270,082) 

433,843 

206,393 
79,284 

$1,426,079 

$ 7,738 
91,2 12 

201 ,296 
56,24 1 
26,765 

383,252 

55,082 
35,467 

2,450 
426,965 
524,764 

(1,901 ) 

952,278 

$1,426,079 

Th e balanc h I in Iud Ih financial posilion of Ungermann-Bass, Inc., which was acquired in March of 1988. 

June 30, 1988 

$ 93,507 
316,927 
140,508 
42,532 

593,474 

594,91 9 
(203,142) 

391,777 

195,689 
51,587 

$1,232,527 

$ 17,124 
73,073 

136,377 
22,126 

5,811 

254,511 

115,579 
44,106 

2,388 
394,054 
415,676 

6,213 

818,331 

$1,232,527 



California DMV Chooses Tandem 

and m NonStop VLX systems and NonStop SQL 
database managem nt software have b en chosen 

by th California 0 partrnent of Motor Vehicles (DMV) 
to manage one of the largest online databases in the world. 

Information in the database, including data on driver 
licensing, vehicle registration, and occupational licensing, 
is critical to the DMV's daily operation. The DMV's 8,000 
employes, in 170 offices statewide, must be able to access 
and update records instantly on more than 19 million 
drivers and 25 million vehicles. The data must be acces­
sibl around the clock to law enforcement officials 
throughout California. 

Th DMV is replacing its current data processing 
system with n w relational database technology to serve 
th ag ncy through the 1990s. In selecting the new system, 
the DMV's goals were to ensure DMV customers and 
lients th best service, and to choose technology that 

would b able to manage growth and change. 
Th ag ncy's decision to use Tandem systems fol­

low d a year-long evaluation of products from various 
comput r vendors. The evaluation included a "bench­
mark; or realistic test simulation. Audited by an indepen­
d nt consulting firm, the test compared systems from 
th two finalists, Tandem and IBM. 

For the benchmark, the Tandem and IBM systems 
had to implement and manage the massive database. 
They had to handle both critical online applications and 
other types of processing (called "batch" and "query" 
op rations) while meeting the DMVs performance 
requir ments. Furthermore, the systems had to be able 
to survive major component failures and undergo routine 
maintenance while remaining available 24 hours a day, 
7 days a week. 

Thndem NonStop SQL database software, NonStop 
VLX transaction processing systems, and XLBO disk 

Extending The Power 
Of Parallelism 

andem is extending the power of parallelism with 
Release 2 of its NonStop SQL database software. 

Release 2 will provide a customer using Tandem systems 
and NonStop SQL software with powerful capabilities for 
both processing critical online applications and handling 
other essential tasks. 

NonStop SQL software is the industry's first fully 
distributed relational database management system. It 
provides the high performance needed for OLTP and uses 
the widely accepted SQL language to help programmers 
be more productive. 

NonStop SQL software takes advantage of the power­
ful capabilities of Tandem systems, in which multiple, 
separate processors operating in parallel divide complex 
tasks into separate parts that are handled simultaneously. 
This design helps the systems do their jobs faster and 
more efficiently-and allows the organizations that use 
them to save time and provide better service to their 
customers. 

Release 2 of NonStop SQL software extends the 
power of parallelism beyond orrp to batch processing 
and query operations. A batch task, such as payroll proc­
essing or customer billing, runs as a single large job at a 
regularly scheduled time. Queries are smaller batch jobs 
that occur at unscheduled times, often to support manage­
ment decision making. 

Release 2 of NonStop SQL software is scheduled to 
be available by the end of 1989. -

Tandem, CLl(, NonStop, VLX, XL80, and the Tandem logo are trademarks of Tandem 
Computers Incorporated. Ungermann. Bass is a trademark of Ungermann-Bass, Inc. 
Apple and Macintosh are registered trademarks of Apple Computer, Inc. Ash ton-Tate is 
a registered trademark of Ashton-Tate Corporation. Cu llinet is a registered trademark of 
Cullinet Software, Inc. IBM is a registered trademark of International Business Machines 
Corporation. Microsoft is a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation. Oracle is a 
registered trademark of Oracle Corporation. Sybase is a registered tradema rk of 
Sybase, Inc. 

C I989 Tandem Computers Incorporated. 

Partnerships Target Easy, 
Open Data Access 

andem and three vendors of leading database 
products recently reached agreements aimed at 

speeding the development of application programs that 
use Tandem's NonStop SQL database software, and at 
facilitating data sharing between NonStop SQL software 
and personal computer database programs. 

Oracle Corporation, of Belmont, California, has 
agreed to work with Tandem to develop and market the 
Oracle database toolset, a widely used application toolset, 
for use with NonStop SQL software. Online Solutions 
Incorporated, of Newton, Massachusetts, and Tandem will 
jointly market development tools from Cullinet Software. 
These popular tools from Oracle and Cullinet can help 
application developers become productive more quickly 
on Tandem database systems. 

Sybase, Inc., of Berkeley, California, will work with 
Tandem to create an interface between Tandem's NonStop 
SQL software and SQL Server, a personal computer 
database product developed by Sybase, Ashton-Tate 
Corporation, and Microsoft Corporation. The interface will 
allow programs written for SQL Server to access data in a 
NonStop SQL database. -

New Technology From 
Ungermann-Bass 

ngermann-Bass, an independently operated 
subsidiary of Tandem, is developing a new high­

speed networking technology that uses ordinary telephone 
wire to link workstations. 

On-premises phone wire is less bulky and costs less 
than other wiring and cabling solutions, and already exists 
in many buildings worldwide. These advantages make it 
easier for customers to plan, install, and alter networks 
that are based on phone wire. The Access/ One net­
working system, an existing product from Ungermann­
Bass, already uses phone wire to support several key 
types of networking communications. 

With the new technology, the Access/ One system 
will use an emerging communications standard, called 
16 Mbps token ring, to send data at high speeds through 
local area networks. Ungermann-Bass is the only vendor 
to announce support of 16 Mbps token ring over ordinary 
telephone wire. 

Customers with networks that use Ungermann-Bass's 
Access/ One networking system will be able to take 
advantage of the new high-speed communications 
technology when it becomes available in 1990. 

Ungermann-Bass products that use the new tech­
nology will work with telecommunications systems and 

services from AT & 1; 
IUFORE Southern New England 

Telephone, and British 
i i Telecom_ These three 

companies endorsed 
the development pro­
gram in a joint press 
announcement with 
Ungermann-Bass 
in May.-

• This illustration appeared in a 
June 19, 1989, Business Week 
article on a new Ungermann-Bass 
technology for linking work­
stations with telephone wire 
instead of bulky cable. 

storage facilities made up the Tandem benchmark system. 
"Tandem demonstrated a higher degree of perform­

ance, availability, and operational ease of use," concluded 
the final DMV report. Initial and ongoing costs for hard­
ware, software, and maintenance were significantly less 
for the Tandem solution than for IBM's, the report added. 
And finally, Tandem was able to provide a more extensive 
list of customers who had similar requirements, and was 
rated better able to meet future DMV requirements. 

To begin implementing its new system, the State 
of California committed to purchase Tandem prod-
ucts valued at $5 million. The DMV is also installing 
Ungermann-Bass's Access/ One network delivery system 
at its headquarters to link terminals and workstations. 

For Tandem, its selection by the California DMV 
represents a validation of the ability of Tandem products 
to handle the largest databases with top performance at 
competitive prices. It is also an indication of the success 
of Tandem's strategy of providing a single database system 
not just for online transaction processing (OLTP), a 
traditional strength of Tandem systems, but also for other 
important processing tasks. It clearly demonstrates how a 
large organization can use a single, online Tandem data­
base as its main information bank. For a free booklet on 
the DMV performance benchmark, call 800-482-6336 in 
the United States or 800-345-8636 in Canada. -

.... The California Department of Motor Vehicles recently chose 
Tandem systems to manage its database of information on more 
than 19 million drivers and 25 million vehicles. 

Thndem To Handle 
EFT/POS In Belgium 

inety percent of all EFT/POS (electronic funds 
transfer at the point of sale) transactions in Belgium 

will now be handled by Tandem systems, as a result of the 
recent merger of two major Belgian EFT/POS networks. 

The new combined network, called Banksys, was 
formed from the merger of two networks: Bancontact, 
run by a consortium of 36 Belgian banks, and Mister Cash. 
Before the merger, Bancontact used Tandem systems to 
handle its EFT/ POS transactions, which totaled 68 million 
in 1988. 

BanksYS will control more than 900 XfMs (auto­
mated teller machines) and manage electronic payment 
and credit authorization at more than 3,000 automobile 
service stations and 16,000 retail outlets. Transaction 
volumes are projected to reach more than 125 million 
per year in 1990. To support the high volumes resulting 
from the merger, Banksys has installed a seven-processor 
Tandem NonStop VLX system. 

The Banksys network provides both national 
and international electronic credit authorization. Cards 
supported by Banksys can be used in several European 
countries, and the network is linked to other international 
EFT/ POS networks such as Eurocheque, EDCS, and Visa. 

Tandem systems are widely used for EFT/ POS 
services in most European countries and in many other 
countries around the world. -



TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS: 

We are pleased to report that Tandem's revenue and 
rarnings gr('w sharply in the third fiscal quarter of 1986. 
Tand('m's husiness has improved throughout the first 
nine months of the fiscal year, with the third quarter the 
strongest to date. International husiness remains strong, 
and business in the nited States showed significant gains. 

Rev('nue for the three-month period ending June 30, 
1986 inm"Jsed .~9 percent to 200,853,000, compared to 
r('venue of IH,165,000 in the same quarter of last year. 

N income grew 659 percent to 18,12'1,000, or .40 per 
share, versus 2,388,000, or $.06 per share, earned in the 
third quartrr of fiscal 1985. 

For the nine months ending June 30, 1986, revenue 
incr('ased 22 percent to , 5'17,2'11 ,000, from $450,307,000 
in the same period of fiscal 1985. et income advanced 81 
percent to '12 ,182,000, or .97 per share, compared with 
fiscal 1985 nine-month net income of $23,257,000, or 
$.56 per share. 

The pretax profit margin reached 16 percent this 
quarter. The major factor in this margin improvement was 
an increase in gross profit margins, which resulted from 
higher revenue levels, a shift in mi toward more profitable 
products, and improvements in the level of service profit­
ability. At the same time, we maintained our commitment 
to r('SC'arch and development and continued to invest in 
new marketing programs. 

In this quarter, we saw a meaningful change in our 
U.S. business. For the first time in several quarters, . S. 
opemtions posted strong growth. We are very proud of 
this achievement by the domestic field sales force. They 
delivered strong performance despite having fewer people, 
and despite adverse business conditions. We view especially 
positively our success in gaining important commitments 
from major accounts, including companies that are leaders 
in the areas of savings and loan, petroleum, brokerage and 
retailing. 

For example, Safeway Stores purchased two systems 
for development of pilot applications for order processing, 
warehousing and communications. Among the other im­
portant customers in the quarter were Merrill Lynch & Co., 
Kentucky Fried Chicken, Citgo Petroleum and First ation­
wide Savings. 

During the quarter, Tandem introduced the new 
onStop VLX system, which is based on VLSI technology. 

The VLX system was announced at a press conference held 
at corpol"Jte ht'adquarters early in the quarter. Customers 
have responded very positively to the capabilities, attractive 
price-performance mtio and technological leadership 
provided by this powerful new system. Shipmenl'i in the 
quarter exceeded our goals. Sales were made to companies 
in a wide variety of industrit'S, confirming a broad potential 
market. 

Other product introductions included the 6AX j 20 and 
6AX j40 workstations, which are IBM PC AT-compatible 
and can function either as stand-alone units or as fully 
integrated terminals for Tandem systems. ewly available 
software lets the user work with system information in one 
window and with local information in other windows. 

During the quarter Tandem became one of the first 
vendors to announce for immediate delivery a product 
conforming to the Layer 4 standard of the Open Systems 
Interconnection (OSI) model. OSI products provide a 
standard of interoperability that makes communication 
across multi-vendor networks more cost-effective for users. 

Tandem achieved good financial results in a weak 
business environment. Dl'Spite the fact that we must view 
the economic outlook with caution, we are optimistic that 
customers will continue to respond favomhly to Tandem's 
products and marketing programs, and that our fiscal 
year results will provide stockholders with significantly 
improved financial performance compared with last year. 

Sincerely yours, 

Thomas J. Perkins 
Chairman 

~4S;~~ 
James G. Treybig 
President and 
Chief Executive Offlcer 

Tandem, onStop, \'LX, 6AX, 6 X/ l O and (,AX I~O are trademarks or Tandem 
Computers Incorporated. IB~ and PC AT arc trademarks or Inlematlonal 
Busone" Machones Corporation. 



CONSOLIDATED INTERIM 
STATEMENT OF INCOME (UNAl/Df E ») TA DE ~ CO 1P TERS I ORPORATED BSIDIARIES 

For Ibl! 7'lJl'l!e MOlltbs Elided For Ibe ,\me 1111111b.l Elided 
jUIII!JO, jlllll! 30, jl/lleJO, jlllll! JO, 

(III 7'lJottSltttds, Excepl Pel' '!Jtll'/! AII/ottllls) 1986 1985 1986 1985 

Revenue 
Product revenue 159,237 116,868 439,219 371 ,091 

Service and other revenue 1,616 27,297 10 ,022 79,216 

Total revcnuc 200,853 144,165 547,2 I 450,307 

Costs and E pense 
Cost of revenue 61,030 56,116 177,899 175,850 

R se:lrch and development 22,299 18,027 63.43 50,229 

Marketing, general and admini trative 86,923 69, 82 235,994 191,476 

Total costs and expen e 170,252 143,625 477.327 417.555 

Operating Income 30,601 540 69,91 32,752 

Interest income, net 2,054 1,298 6,0 9 4,759 

Income Before Income Taxes 32,655 1,838 76,003 37.511 

Provi ion for income taxe ( 14,531) 550 (33,821 ) (1 ,25 ) 

Net Income 18,124 2,3 2,182 23,257 

Earnings Per Share O. 0 0.06 0.97 0.56 

~ eighted average hare out tanding 45,003 41,896 43,522 1,812 

CONSOLIDATED INTERIM 
BALANCE SHEET tUNAl/Of TED) 

(III Tbollsall(/s, Excepi bare Dolo) 

A ets 

Current A set 
Cash and cash inve tment 
Account receivable 
Inventorie 
Prepaid income taxe 
Prepaid expense and other 

Total current asset 
Property, Plant and Equipment, at cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

et property, plant and equipment 
Other Assets 

Total A ets 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Inve tment 

Current Liabilitie 
Current portion of long term debt and capitalized lease obligations 
Account payable 
Accrued liabilitie 
Accrued income taxe 

Total current liabilitie 
Capitalized Lease Obligations 
Long Term Debt 
Deferred Income Taxes 

Stockholder ' Inve tment 
Common stock, $.025 par value; authorized 200,000,000 shares; 

out tanding 43,149,995 in 1986 and 41 ,260,521 in 1985 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earning 

Total stockholder' investment 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 

em USlness 
Information Center-

TANDEM COM PUTERS INCORPORATED AND S BSIDIARI ES 

june 30, june 30, 
]986 1985 

$177,243 $109,022 
205,064 150,606 

67,7 16 94,6 11 
37 1 19,495 

20,399 9,24 1 

470,793 382,975 

27 1,545 230,817 
( 103,470) (72,572) 

168,075 158,245 
9,927 3,828 

$648,795 $545,048 

$ 5,882 $ 6,675 
40,036 36,678 
55,381 46,678 
9,893 10,889 

111 ,192 100,920 

2,689 8,817 
4,445 2,7 19 

35,198 24,988 

1,079 1,032 
271,635 237,3 14 
222,557 169,258 

495,27 1 407,604 

$648,795 $545,048 



To Our Stockholders: 

R evenue for the second fiscal quarter of 1989 was 
$363.4 million, a 17 percent increase over the same 

quarter of fiscal 1988, when revenue was $309.4 million. 
Net income in the second quarter of 1989 was $16.9 
million, or $.17 per share, compared to $23.3 million, or 
$.24 per share, in the same quarter last year. 

For the six-month period ending March 31, 1989, 
revenue was $755.7 million, an increase of 28 percent 
over $591.7 million in the same period a year ago. Net in­
come was $48.2 million, or $.48 per share, compared with 
$47.0 million, or $.47 per share, in the first six months of 
fiscal 1988. 

We were pleased by the strong sales in Pacific Rim 
countries, the continuing growth in U.S. sales, and the high 
growth and profitability of Ungermann-Bass, Inc., during 
the quarter. However, overall revenue growth was below 
our target 

Because we historically have seen some softness at 
this time of year, we anticipated that revenue would be 
below the level achieved in our first fiscal quarter. How­
ever, the softness was greater than expected in Europe. 
We believe this was due in part to competitive pricing of 
other vendors' midrange systems in Europe and to the 
anticipation of an addition to Tandem's midrange NonStop 
CLX system family, announced after the quarter's end. 

In May, we introduced the NonStop CLX 700 series. 
The four systems in this series offer a 40 percent increase 
in price/ performance over the existing CLX 600 series. 
Like the CLX 600 series, the CLX 700 series incorporates 
Tandem fundamentals such as fault tolerance, expanda­
bility, and networking capabilities. 

At the same time, we announced upgrade programs 
and pri e reductions for the CLX 600 series, which make 
these systems attractive entry points into our product line. 
We b lieve that the CLX 600 and 700 series will provide a 
competitive midrange system platform well into the 1990s. 

In March and April , we announced a number of new 
produ ts that address customer requirements for linking 
diff r nt systems throughout organizations. 

With these new offerings, it is now easier to connect 
Tand m systems in major network environments, includ­
ing IBM's yst ms Network Archite ture (NA), pen 

Systems Interconnection (OSI), and Transmission Control 
Protocol/Internet Protocol (TCP / IP) networks. 

Enhancements to Tandem's EXPAND networking 
software, which provide support for industry-standard 
local area network protocols, were announced, as was an 
agreement with Logica Data Architects Inc. for the devel­
opment of an X.400 software product for Tandem systems. 
X.400 is an important international standard for exchang­
ing information among different computer systems. 

In March, we announced an agreement with Rela­
tional Technology, Inc., to develop and market Relational's 
INGRES database tools for use with Tandem's NonStop SQL 
relational database management software. This partner­
ship is an important step in our strategy to offer customers 
easy, open access to information stored on Tandem 
databases. 

Finally, we are pleased that George P. Shultz, profes­
sor of international economics at the Graduate School of 
Business at Stanford University, honorary fellow of the 
Hoover Institution, and secretary of state under former 
President Reagan, has been elected a director of Tandem. 

Though we are more cautious than before about fiscal 
1989, we have identified actions we believe will help 
return our European operations to their historically high 
levels of performance. In addition, we are entering an 
exciting new product cycle and are managing expenses 
conservatively. We are working hard to ensure that 1989 
will be a good year for Tandem. 

Sincerely, 

~~4~ 
Thomas J. Perkins James G. Treybig 
Chairman 01 the Board President and 

Chi 1 Executive Officer 

May ,19 9 

Tandem. on top. CLX. and EXPA 0 art trademark. of Tandem Computers Incorporated 
I GR ,. a trademark of R.lational Technology. Inc. 
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Consolidated Statements of Income Unaudit d 

(111 thousands except p r share amounts) 

Revenue 
Produ t r v nu 

rvi and th r r v nu 

Total r v nu 

Co ts and expenses 
ost f produ t r venu 
ost f rvi and oth r r v nu 

R s ar hand d v lopm nt 
Mark ting, g n ral, and administrativ 

11 tal osts and xp ns s 

Operating income 
N tint r st in om xp ns 

ttl m nt of litigati n 

Incom before incom taxes 
Provisi n f r in om tax s 

N t income 

Earnings per share 

Wight d av rag shar s outstanding 

For the Thre' 1011th ' Ended 

March 31. 

1989 

$296,402 
66,9 6 

363,3 

,730 
46,241 
49, 7 

152,451 

337,300 

26,0 
45 

26,546 
9,6 

16, 5 

$ .17 

100,964 

1arch 31. 

19 8 

$253,42 
56,020 

309,449 

6 ,347 
41,555 
37,442 

11,769 

266,113 

43,336 
2,491 
9,375) 

36,452 
13,122 

23,330 

$ .24 

9 ,712 

For the ix 10nth End d 

1arch 31, 

1989 

622,122 
133,551 

755,673 

1 7,347 
92, 51 
95,963 

303,322 

679,5 3 

76, 0 
(259) 

75, 31 
27,67 

4 ,153 

$ .4 

10 ,035 

1ar h 31, 

1988 

4 2,960 
10 ,771 

591,731 

131,4 
0,670 

73,309 
230,665 

516,132 

75,599 
7,247 

(9,375) 

73,471 
26,44 

$ 47,023 

$ .47 

99,231 

The 1989 income statem nts includ th financial r su its of Ung rmann·Bass, Inc., from March 18, 1988, th dOlt of acquisition. 

TA DEM C MPUTE I ORP RATED D UB IDIARI 

Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited) 

( In th usands) 

Assets 

Current assets 
Cash and quivalents 
Accounts r c ivable 
Inventori s 
Prepaid exp ns s and other 

Total current assets 

Property, plant, and equipment, at cost 
Accumulated d pr iation and amortization 

Net prop rty, plant, and equipment 

Costs in excess of net assets acquired, net 
Other assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and stockholders' investment 

Current liabilities 
Notes payable 
Accounts payab1 
Accrued liabilities 
Income taxes payable 
Current maturities of long-term obligations 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term obligations 
Deferred income taxes 
Stockholders' investment 
Common sto k, $.025 par value; authorized 400,000 shares; 

outstanding 97,530 in 1989 and 94,850 in 1988 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated translation adjustments 

Total stockholders' investment 

Total liabilities and stockholders' investment 

March 31, 1989 

$ 89,371 
342,988 
140,352 
66,983 

639,694 

680,636 
(255,903) 

424,733 

209,348 
71,031 

$1,344,806 

$ 6,977 
82,367 

185,824 
34,486 
24,374 

334,028 

52,642 
38,971 

2,438 
420,993 
494,005 

1,729 

919,165 

$1,344,806 

Thes ba1anc sheets include th financial position of Ungermann·Bass, Inc., which was acquired in March of 1988. 

March 31, 1988 

$ 102,781 
305,247 
138,437 
28,572 

575,037 

580,274 
(191,667) 

388,607 

197,698 
46,837 

$1,208,179 

$ 6,912 
79,406 

167,166 
21,428 

5,838 

280,750 

85,896 
44,834 

2,371 
385,119 
398,390 

10,819 

796,699 

$1,208,179 



To Our Stockholders: 

Tandem revenues for the first fiscal quarter of 1990 
reached $436.5 million, compared with $392.3 million 
in the same period of 1989. Net income was $30.7 
million, or $.29 per share, compared with $31.3 million, 
or $.32 per share, in the same quarter of last year. 

We view these results positively, particularly since 
they come at a time of year when we sometimes ex­
perience softness. In addition, we were in transition 
this quarter as we introduced a powerful mainframe 
computer and prepared to launch a major UNIX® 
system offering. 

Our NonStop Cyclone mainframe system is 
off to a strong start, with shipments exceeding our 
expectations. Some current customers, including 
Union Bank of Finland, have already installed large 
Cyclone systems. Among new customers are the 
Ministry of the Solicitor General in Canada, which has 
installed a Cyclone system to serve the Ontario 
Provincial Police; and Fokker Aircraft BV, a Dutch 
aerospace company, which will use a Cyclone system 
to implement a T.I.M.E. (Tandem Integrated Manu­
facturing Environment) application. 

During the quarter, other NonStop computer 
systems also sold well. Midrange CLX systems con­
tinue to generate most of our new customer accounts. 
Shipments of VLX systems, our entry-level mainframes, 
reached the level planned. 

Our independently operated subsidiary, 
Ungermann-Bass, Inc., continued to contribute to the 
Company's revenue growth. Ungermann-Bass intro­
duced products during the quarter that further 
integrate local and wide area network applications 
into a single, open architecture, and include powerful 
new network-management functions . These offerings 
have been well received by customers, some of whom 
are already using the products to build large networks. 

We are pleased that our Tandem Telecommuni­
cations Systems, Inc. (TIS\), subsidiary recorded a stra­
tegic sale to Cable & Wire less Communications, Inc., a 
subsidiary of the United Kingdom's Cable & Wireless 
Pic. TISl's intelligent networking products give 

Tandem significant competitive strengths in the fast­
growing telecommunications sector. 

One of our most important new products this 
year is the Integrity S2 system. This offering brings 
Tandem strengths of fault tolerance, data integrity, and 
online user serviceability to the high-growth market 
for commercial UNIX systems. We have already shipped 
Integrity S2 systems to such strategic partners as Nixdorf 
Computer AG of West Germany and GEC Plessey 
Telecommunications Limited in the United Kingdom. 

We are enthusiastic about our product and 
technology advantages, organizational strengths, and 
ability to identify and pursue growth markets. While 
we remain cautious about the current business 
environment, we believe that these assets will help 
Tandem perform well during the rest of 1990 
and beyond. 

Sincerely, 

James G. Treybig 
President and Chief 
Executive Officer 

Thomas J. Perkins 
Chairman of the Board 

January 26, 1990 

Tandem. Cl . Cyclone. Integrot>, Integroty 52. ·onStop. TIM E . VlX •• nd the 
Tandem logo are trademarks ofTandem Computers Incorporated U IX 01. regOl 
cered trademark of AT&T 10 the United Stales and other countries 
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Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited) 

(In th u ands ex ept per share amounts) 

Revenues 
Product revenues 
S rvic and other rev nu 

li tal r venues 

Costs and expenses 
o t of product revenues 

st of service and other r venues 
R earch and dev lopment 
Marketing, general, and administrativ 

Total 0 ts and expenses 

Operating income 
Net interest income (expense) 

Income before income taxes 
Provision for income taxes 

Net income 

Earnings per share 

Weighted average shares outstanding 

For th three months end d 

December 31, 1989 December 31, 1988 

$362,320 $325,720 
74, 199 66,565 

436,5 19 392,285 

107,240 98,6 17 
50,997 46,7 10 
57, 195 46,085 

173,734 150,87 1 

389, 166 342,283 

47,353 50,002 
1,050 (7 17) 

48,403 49,285 
17,668 17,990 

$ 30,735 $ 3 1,295 

$ .29 $ .32 

107,033 99,105 

TANDEM COMPUTERS INCORPORATED A D SUBSIDIARIES 

(In thousands) 

Assets 

Current assets 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

D ecember 31, 1989 September 30, 1989 

(Unaudited) 

Cash and equivalents $ 55,869 $ 197,174 
Accounts receivable 447,825 419,440 
Inventories 149,218 144,176 
Prepaid income taxes 74,609 77,759 
Prepaid expenses and other 28, 107 24,602 

Total current assets 755,628 863,151 

Property, plant, and equipment, at cost 886,361 735,499 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 011 ,011) (288,117) 

Net property, plant, and equipment 575,350 447,382 

Costs in excess of net assets acquired, net 20 I ,923 203,438 
----------------------------------------------------~--

Other assets 134,792 104,817 

Total assets $1,667,693 $1 ,618,788 

Liabilities and stockholders' investment 
-------------------------------------------------------

Current liabilities 
Notes payable 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Income taxes payable 
Current maturi ties of long-term obligations 

$ 18,276 
94,892 

235,793 
53,692 
41,563 

$ 19,857 
106,263 
223,361 

53,198 
38,726 

--------------------------------------------------------
Total current liabilities 

-----
Long-term obligations 

Deferred income taxes 

Commitments and contingencies 

Stockholders' investment 
Common stock, $.025 par value; authorized 400,000 shares; 

444,216 441,405 

116,268 106,643 

66,850 81,622 

outstanding 102,957 at December 31 and 102,064 at September 30 2,574 2,552 
Additional paid-in capital 512,188 500,155 
Retained earnings 594,903 564,168 
Accumulated translation adjustments 1,076 (820) 
Treasury stock, at cost (21 ,952) (26,937) 
Deferred compensation (48,430> (50,000) 

Total stockholders' investment 1,040,359 989, I 18 
---------------------------------------------------------------

Total liabilities and stockholders' investment $ 1,667,693 $ 1,618,788 

TANDEM CO MPUTERS INCOR PORATED AND SUBSIDIAR IES 



To Our Stockholders: 

T andem achieved record revenue of $392.3 million 
for the first fiscal quarter of 1989. This represents a 

39 percent increase over the same period last year, when 
the Company reported revenue of $282.3 million. Net 
income for the quarter grew 32 percent to a record $31.3 
million, or $.32 per share, compared with $23.7 million, or 
$.24 per share, recorded in the same period last year. 

Our international business was stronger than expect­
ed during the quarter, contributing a record 54 percent of 
the Company's revenue. Both international shipments and 
new account growth were strong and revenue growth was 
aided by the weak U.S. dollar. Japan, in particular, showed 
exceptional growth, and added six new customers during 
the quarter. 

For the second consecutive quarter, our U.S. com­
puter business grew year-over-year. We maintained the 
improvement we saw in the fourth fiscal quarter of 1988, 
although domestic business followed the typical pattern 
of softness for this period of the year. 

Ungermann-Bass, Inc., performed above expecta­
tions, achieving a record quarter with substantial growth 
both year-over-year and quarter-to-quarter. Ungermann­
Bass's Access/ One product, which provides network 
services to personal computers and workstations over 
ordinary telephone wiring, saw increased sales. 

Shipments of our midrange NonStop CLX system, 
which provides a low-cost way to distribute on-line 
processing and databases throughout enterprises, ex­
ceeded forecast. The CLX system continues to draw new 
customers and applications to Tandem; it accounted for 
more than half of our new customers this quarter. We are 
proud that the CLX system was recently awarded the 
Good Design Prize for Foreign Products from the Japa­
nese Ministry of International Trade and Industry (Mm). 

We are excited about the strengthening of our 
competitive database position. During the quarter, we 
announced six new NonStop VLX system packages that 
include new technology products that increase signif­
icantly the memory and storage capacity of our largest 
systems. With NonStop SQL, our high-performance rela­
tional database management system, these packages can 
support very large on-line database applications. 

In November, Atalla Corporation announced a new 
debit/ credit card management system, CAPS 2000, repre­
senting the completion of the first joint product develop­
ment project for Tandem and Atalla since our merger. 
CAPS 2000 runs on all Tandem onStop systems and 
gives financial institutions, retailers, and telephone com­
panies an easy, fast, convenient, and secure method of 
issuing and tracking debit/ credit cards. 

Also during the quarter, former President Reagan 
appointed Jim Treybig to the newly formed ational 
Advisory Committee on Semiconductors. The Committee's 
task is to develop a national semiconductor strategy to 
assure the continued leadership of the United States in 
semiconductor technology. 

We are pleased with our performance in the first 
fiscal quarter of 1989. Historically, we have seen some 
weakness at this time of year. In keeping with this sea­
sonal pattern, we planned and maintained a conservative 
level of expense and employment growth. As we move 
forward, we will continue to watch carefully currency 
exchange rates, the domestic market and economic con­
di tions, and our expense levels. 

Our focus on important geographic markets such 
as Japan, successful mergers with Ungermann-Bass and 
Atalla, leading-edge products, and careful management of 
costs and expenses all contributed to the positive results 
attained this quarter. We believe that continuing emphasis 
on these areas should lead to a good year for Tandem 
in 1989. 

Sincerely, 

~~4~ 
Thomas J. Perkins James G. Treybig 
Chairman of the Board President and 

Chief Executive Officer 

January 31, 1989 

randem. on top. Cl.X. and Vl.X are trademarks of rand em Computers Incorporated 
Ungermann-Bass and Access ,'One are trademarks of Ungermann-Bass.lnc CAP 2000 
is. trademark of Atalla Corporation 
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Consolidated Statements of Income Unaudited 

rvi th r r v nu 

11 tal r v nu 

sts and exp nses 

Op rating income 
N tint r st in orne (exp ns ) 

Income before income taxes 
Pr vision for in orne taxes 

N t income 

Earnings per share 

Wight d ave rag shar outstanding 

For th Thr 10nth End d 

D . 31, D c. 31, 

19 19 7 

$325,720 
66,565 

392,2 5 

9 ,617 
46,710 
46,0 5 

150, 71 

342,2 3 

50,002 
(717) 

49,2 5 
17,990 

31,295 

$ .32 

99,105 

$229,531 
52,751 

2 2,2 2 

63,141 
39,115 
35, 67 

Ill, 96 

250,019 

32,263 
4,756 

37,019 
13,326 

23,693 

$ .24 

99,749 

Th 1988 income stat ment includes th financial results of Ungermann-Bas , Inc., which was a quir d in March of 19 

TANDEM COMPUTERS I ORP RATED AND UB 1DIARIES 

Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited) 

( In thousands) 

Assets 

Current assets 
Cash and equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total current assets 

Property, plant, and equipment, at cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

et property, plant, and equipment 

Costs in excess of net assets acquired, net 
Other assets 

Total assets 

Uabilities and stockholders' investment 

Current liabilities 
Notes payable 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Income taxes payable 
Current maturities of long-term obligations 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term obligations 
Deferred income taxes 
Stockholders' investment 
Common stock, $.025 par value; authorized 200,000 shares; 

outstanding 96,874 in 1988 and 94,280 in 1987 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated translation adjustments 

Total stockholders' investment 

Total liabilities and stockholders' investment 

Dec. 31, 1988 

$ 72,690 
376,207 
131,452 
62,288 

642,637 

664,647 
(240,765) 

423,882 

202,017 
60,560 

$1,329,096 

$ 8,508 
87,532 

167,707 
53,586 
10,916 

328,249 

64,742 
37,315 

2,422 
412,583 
477,147 

6,638 

898,790 

$1,329,096 

The 1988 balance sheet includes the financial position of Ungermann-Bass, Inc., which was acquired in March of 1988. 

Dec. 31, 1987 

$ 269,076 
259,781 
116,311 
25,500 

670,668 

533,725 
(176,468) 

357,257 

31,575 

$1,059,500 

$ 
74,703 

122,039 
16,025 
5,557 

218,324 

26,714 
47,146 

2,357 
377,128 
375,060 

12,771 

767,316 

$1,059,500 



To Our Stockholders: 

evenue growth for the third fiscal quarter 
of 19 , ended June 30, was 27 percent 
over the same period last year. Consoli­
dated revenue was 33 ,993,0 for this 
quarter, which compares to 267,824,000 
from the same period last year. et income 
for the quarter was 17,286,000 or $.18 
per share, versus 25, 4,000 or .26 per 

share in the third fiscal quarter of 19 7. 
For the nine months ended June 30, revenue in­

creas d 23 percent to $930,724,000, compared with 
$753,759,000 in the year-ago period. Net income was 
$64,309,000 or $.65 per share, versus $75,423,000 or 
$.77 per share in the first nine months of fiscal 1987. 

Expens s were well managed, but a shortfall in 
domestic revenue caused an earnings decline. Earnings 
also were diluted due to the mergers with Ungermann­
Bass, In . and Tandem Telecommunications ystems, Inc., 
formerly Integrated Technology, Inc. These mergers are 
key to our long-term strategies in networking and 
Integrated rvices Digital etworks, resp tively. 

Inde d, we were very pleased by the performance of 
Ungermann-Bass, whose results are now fully onsolidated 
with Tandem's. Ungermann-Bass, the leader in open en­
terpris -wide networking, met its revenue targets with 
orders for its new Access/ One product exceeding forecast. 

We b lieve one reason for the domestic revenue 
shortfall was a d lay in releasing a major revision of our 
GUARDIAN operating system software. Without this soft­
ware reI ase, we were unable to fulfill ustomer demand for 
larg r onfigurations of on top LX distributed systems 
and LX systems with the on top Ql relational data­
bas manag ment syst m. This softwar now is s heduled 
for release in th fourth fiscal quarter. ur revenue also 
was impact d b cause our ability to ship X worksta­
tions was constrain d by the suppli r during the quarter. 

al s of smaller configurations of on top LX 
systems w r strong, giving us confid n e that th e 

systems have great potential. erall, this quarter we 
closed more than 80 new accounts, which significantly 
breaks previous records. A large percentage of these 
new customers purchased on top CLX systems. 

We have not seen a significant change in the 
competitive situation and we continue to win orders from 
major corporations. For example, more than 30 financial 
institutions and over a dozen manufacturing companies 
became new Tandem customers. 

Digital Equipment Corporation's (DEC) long-awaited 
on-line transaction processing (OlTP) announcement 
further pointed out the strengths of Tandem systems. For 
example, on top CLX systems have a two-to-one price­
performance advantage over DEC's offerings, while offer­
ing additional features uniquely suited to OlTP. 

Late in the quarter, we restru tured Tandem into five 
operating groups to streamline the decision-making 
pro ess and to enable us to bring new products to the 
market more quickJy. We also have more sharply defined 
our strategies for the future. Tandem is hard at work 
implementing these plans to ensure our long-term success. 

incerely, 

~~4~ 
Thomas J. Perkins James G. Treybig 

hairman of the Board Pr sident and 
hief Executive Officer 

August ,19 

Tandem. GUARDIAN. nn~IOp. :\cm lOp SQL. (I.x and IOSX are Irademarks of Tandem 
('cunpulrrs Inforpnrated 

Ungermann-Bas and Acress One are trademarks of Ungermann·Ba ,Inc. 
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For th 

June 30, June 30, Jun 30, 

(In Thousands, Except Per har Amounts) 19 8 1987 19 

Revenue 
Produ t r venue $276,343 $222,391 $759,303 
ervic and other revenue 62,650 45,433 171,421 

33 ,993 267,824 930,724 

Costs and Expenses 
ost of product 7 ,105 58,618 209,593 
ost of service and other 46,640 36,321 127,310 

R search and development 46,219 27,700 119,528 
Mark ting, general and administrative 140,778 103,618 371,443 

Total costs and expenses 311,742 226,257 827,874 

Operating Income 27,251 41,567 \02,850 
N t interest income (1,019) 3,923 6,228 
Settl ment of litigation 0 0 (9,375) 

Income Before Income Taxes 26,232 45,490 99,703 
Provision for income taxes 8,946 19,606 35,394 

Net Income $ 17,286 $ 25,884 $ 64,309 

Earnings Per Share $ 0.18 $ 0.26 $ 0.65 

Weighted average shares outstanding 98,252 100,365 98,904 

Prior period amounts have been restated to include the financial statements of Atalla orporation acquir d through a merger in 
November 1987 and accounted for as a pooling of int rests. 

TANDEM COMPlJTER INCORP RATED AND US IDIARIES 

June 30, 

1987 

$628,179 
125,580 

753,759 

169,362 
94,510 
78,492 

2 8,908 

631,272 

122,487 
9,995 

0 

132,482 
57,059 

$ 75,423 

$ 0.77 

97,804 

(In Thousands, Except Share Data) June 30, 1988 June 30, 1987 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash investments 
Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total current assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment, at cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net property, plant and equipment 
Costs in excess of net assets acquired 
Other Assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 

Current Liabilities 
Current portion of long term debt 

and capital lease obligations 
Bank borrowings 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Income taxes payable 

Total current liabilities 

Long Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 
Deferred Income Taxes 

Stockholders' Investment 
Common stock, $.025 par value; authorized 200,000,000 shares; 

outstanding 95,510,126 in 1988 and 92,789,631 in 1987 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Cumulative translation adjustment 
Balance sheet translation adjustment 

Total stockholders' investment 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 

$ 93,507 
316,927 
140,508 
42,532 

593,474 

594,919 
(203,142) 

391,777 
195,689 
51,587 

$1,232,527 

$ 5,811 
17,124 
73,073 

136,377 
22,126 

254,511 

115,579 
44,106 

2,388 
394,054 
415,676 

10,191 
(3,978) 

818,331 

$1,232,527 

Prior period amounts have b en restated to include the financial statements of Atalla Corporation acquired through a merger in 
November 1987 and accounted for as a pooling of interests. 

$297,318 
234,193 

83,889 
21,989 

637,389 

369,121 
(137,900) 

231,221 
0 

20,347 

$888,957 

$ 1,135 
0 

66,912 
93,660 
14,735 

176,442 

7,342 
27,408 

2,320 
353,884 
321,561 

0 
0 

677,765 

$888,957 



~TANDEMCOMPUTERS 

".ompaoies worldwide 
have discovered that 

Tandems architecture for on-line 
transaction processing frees 
them to solve the more difficult 
and important computing 
problems now. This has led 
to Tandem's outstanding 
financial performance in 1986 
and represents the companys 
fundamental strength. Tandem's 
solution brings the future to 
its customers today." 

arol E. Muratore 
Vice Pre idem 
Morgan tanIey & o. Incorp rated 
December, 1986 I 

1986 ANNUAL REPORT 



Tandem Computers 
Incorporated, founded 

12 years ago, today ranks as a 
Fortune 500 company and 
employs over 5,700 people world­
wide. It is a leading supplier of 
computer systems and networks 
for on-line transaction processing. 
Tandem systems are used widely 
to run ATM and point-of-sale 
networks, stock exchanges, facto­
ries, and other enterprises where 
hundreds of business transactions 
must be processed each second 
and recorded instantly. Tandem 
provides a fully compatible family 
of systems that spans the range of 
performance requirements for 
on-line transaction processing 
applications. The systems can run 
the same applications and can be 
networked with each other and 
with equipment from many other 
vendors to provide a single com­
puting resource for an organiza­
tion. Tandem supports its 
customers from over 130 locations 
worldwide and manufactures its 
products in the United States, 
Mexico, and West Germany. 

Highlights 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30 1986 1985 1984 
Revenue 
Operating income 
Operating margin 
Net income 
Earnings per share 
Working capital 
Total assets 
Stockholders' investment 
Number of employees 

Revenue by Industry 

--- ---- ----
$767,793,000 $624,138,000 $532,620,000 
$105,978,000 $ 50,081,000 $ 51,101,000 

13.8% 8.0% 9.6% 
$ 63,766,000 $ 34,374,000 $ 42,908,000 

$1.44 $ .82 $1.04 
~--

$385,220,000 $298,611,000 $263,403,000 
$ 705,025,000 $552,344,000 $501,873,000 
S534,680,000 $420,408,000 $375,122,000 

5,719 5,494 5,223 

(Fiscal 1986; amounts may not total due to rounding. ) 

Finance 32% 

Communications 12% 

Transportation 6% 

Wholesale & Retail Government 
5% 

Distribution 
5% 
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To Our stockholders: 

1:' iscal 1986 was a good year for Tandem. Despite ~ difficult environment for the 
r I computer industry, our year-end results set records In both revenue and earnings. 
Compared to fiscal year 1985, revenue grew 23 percent to $ 768 million and earnings 

per share grew 76 percent to $1.44. We ended the year with a 
record cash balance of $240 million . • Our strong financial 
performance is the result of strengthening our marketing or­
ganization; introducing many products based on new, leading­
edge technology; and improving productivity throughout the 
company, particularly in manufacturing .• Marketing Focus: 
Early in fiscal 1986, we reorganized and strengthened our 
marketing organization, and we have begun to see positive 
results. Productivity in our U. S. sales organization has im-

Thomas J. Perkins (left),Chairman 
of the Board ; James G. Treybig, proved. Our revenue growth rate increased over fiscal 1985. 
President and Chief Executive Officer. 

We are adding customers and increasing penetration of exist-
ing accounts. In addition, many customers have begun to build strategic networks 
using Tandem products . • During 1986, we broadened our emphasis on strategic 
relationships with other companies to leverage our internal resources and bring solu­
tions to market faster. For example, to reach smaller businesses outside of our tradi­

1984 ' 1985 1986 

tional customer base,we began to develop value-added resell­
er distribution channels.We worked with independent software 
companies to increase the quantity and quality of third-party 
software. More than 200 companies now provide software 
solutions for Tandem system users .• We made equity invest­
ments in two companies that support our long- term industry 
strategies, one in telecommunications and the other in manu­
facturing. To broaden markets in specific geographic areas, we 
f d" Earnings per share 
orme a Jomt venture company in Japan and entered into ("lnciudesS24 benefit from DISC laX reversaL ) 



00 { In millions} 

600 

400 

200 

19 4 

Total revenue 

19 5 19 6 

negotiations to establish joint venture companies in the Nether­
lands and Australia. We also entered into several strategic joint 
development agreements to leverage the technologies of other 
companies. • New Products, Advanced Technology: The 
unique architecture of Tandem systems has given the com­
pany a fundamental advantage in the marketplace. During 1986, 
we significantly strengthened this advantage with the introduc­
tion of new technology. We began investing in the development 
of semi-custom bipolar and CMOS gate array technology six 

years ago. This investment not only produced important new products during 1986, but 
it also provided Tandem with the automated design tools and facilities necessary to 
reduce development time for future products. • The successful introduction of our 
new high-end NonStop VLX system in April marked the first 
of several Tandem processors that will be based on gate array 
technology. The VLX system processes more transactions per 
second than many of the industry's largest mainframe com­
puters. Its bipolar gate array technology and expert-system 
based diagnostic capability reduce service costs by two-thirds 
on a per-transaction basis for customers who select our re­
mote support option . • Management Focus: In 1986, we 
achieved substantial productivity improvements in manufac­
turing as part of our long- term strategic plan. We also initiated Tandem designs and develops gate 

array technology for use in many 

new budgeting, asset management, and review processes that new products. 

have improved revenue forecasting and expense control. These new processes, com­
bined with increased employee efforts, enabled us to achieve a 23 percent revenue gain 
with only a 4 percent increase in hiring . • We strengthened Tandem's management 
team and board of directors. Walter B. Wriston, Chairman of the President's Economic 

3 
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Policy Advisory Board, joined our board of directors. Mr. Wriston 

ISO t In thousands2 

retired in 1984 from Citicorp, where he was Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer. His experience in managing a multibillion- 100 

dollar corporation, plus his extraordinary grasp of the benefits 
that technology can bring to large organizations, will be of 50 

tremendous value to Tandem as we go forward . • Three 
senior individuals joined Tandem as vice presidents for stra­
tegic planning, management information systems, and Austin Annualized revenue 

per average employee 
Operations. In recognition of the growing importance of in-

1986 

ternational sales, third-party marketing, and new ventures, three individuals were pro­
moted to newly created vice presidential positions . • Outlook: Fiscal 1987 will be 
another year of important product introductions. We plan to announce systems with low 
entry prices to extend the Tandem network to the individual store, to the branch bank, 
to the manufacturing cell, and to the departments of large corporations. One of these 
new systems will be based on custom CMOS technology and also will feature semi­
custom CMOS gate arrays and 680XO microprocessors in input! output controllers. In 
addition to new systems, we plan to announce new storage products, communications 
products, and printers . • Fiscal 1987 will be a significant year for software. Products in 
development build on the unique capabilities of the GUARDIAN 90 operating system 

The Tandem NonStop VLX system improves 
performance and reduces service costs. 

and we believe they will establish a new standard in 
software technology for on-line transaction processing. 
Tandem believes it will advance the state of the art 
in database technology with the announcement of 
a relational database that implements the emerging 
industry-standard interface, SQL. This new product 
will be optimized for high-performance, distributed 
on-line transaction processing, and we believe it will 



be the industry's first SQL database to allow on -line updates with transaction integrity for 
data distributed across networks. We also plan to announce products for network and 
system management that are implemented within a common architecture . • Strategic 
relationships will become more important as we target new opportunities with lower 
cost, departmental systems. We will continue to develop value­
added reseller distribution channels to reach smaller businesses 
outside of our traditional customer base.Through strategic third­
party relationships, we plan to increase the quality and quantity 
of application solutions . • We will continue our efforts to im­
prove productivity throughout the company. In addition, we 
plan to strengthen our systems analyst organization, as well as 
our capabilities in management information systems, human 
resources, and project management. • We believe that the 
fundamental trends in the marketplace favor Tandem. With the 
planning and review programs that are in place, we anticipate 

Th powerful Tandem 6AX worksta· 
tlon, introduced in fIScal 19 6, can 
operate as a stand·alone workstation 
or a a fully integrated system terminal. 

another good year. 

Sincerely, 

James G. Treybig 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Thomas J. Perkins 
Chairman of the Board 

December 9, 1986 

The Tandem XL8 disk storage facility 
( right ) won the prestigious Hannover 
Faire "Good Industrial Design" award 
during 1986. The V8 disk storage faci l­
ity (left) won the "Industrial Design 
Magazine 1985 Design Review Award" 
for excellence in industrial design. 

5 
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Dynamic Marketplace 

andem's marketplace, on-line transaction 
processing ( OLTP), is one of the fastest 
growing marketplaces in commercial data 

processing. In businesses and financial institutions 
worldwide, OLTP systems and networks are being 
used as competitive weapons to deliver new cus­
tomer services electronically, to collect and process 
business transactions, and to run operations 
profitably. 

"Increasingly, the very viability of retail stores, 
banks, brokerage houses, airline reservation offices, 
and manufacturing plants - in short, vast segments 
of the U.S. economy -depends on machines that 

'T1 andem 's "fault-tolerant 
1. design is now offering a 
new pay off: a powerful role 
in distributed computing and 
networking, two o/the high­
growth markets o/the 19BOs." 

Electronics, April 14, 1986' 

conduct rapid-fire transactions as they occur, not 
overnight in a windowless back office; wrote Busi­
ness Week on July 14, 1986. "If on-line machines 
didn't exist, banks would have to hire more tellers 
the stock markets couldn't handle anywhere near ' 
their current volume, and lines at airline ticket 

counters might stretch around the corner." 5 

The market demand is for networks of on-line 
transaction processing systems that can collect and 
process transactions generated by hundreds of 
devices, and that can speed up and ensure the 
delivery of money, stocks, bonds, news, messages, 
and many other goods and services. Tandem was 
first to recognize and fulfill this market demand. 

Today, Tandem systems offer a unique blend 
of features that enable them to process growing 
numbers of transactions across networks, integrate 
devices from other vendors, provide data accuracy, 
expand modularly, minimize downtime, deliver 
up-to-the-minute reports, and allow users to interact 
with a network as easily as if it were a single, 
centralized system. 

Tandem Is an Industry Leader 

According to a Merrill Lynch investment 
research report dated May 5, 1986, Tandem "is the 
leading supplier of high availability transaction pro­
cessing systems. Tandem's onStop systems have 
met excellent user acceptance, building a substantial 
customer base in over 1,000 major enterprises world­
wide .... The company has important strengths in its 
large user base and expertise in large-scale computer 
networking. [n our view, these strengths ensure a 
continued leadership role for Tandem~ 6 

[n the view of the Gartner Group, a respected 
market research company, "Tandem Computers is 
the leading player, behind IBM, in the on-line trans­
action processing ( OLTP) market, one of the fastest 

Chances are, y ou have used a Tandem computer if you ... 

.. . read a major city 
newspaper 



growing markets in the information processing in­
dustry .... Tandem has successfully challenged IBM 
in the financial services OLTP business, which is 
an extremely dynamic business as a result of bank 
deregulation, brokerage consolidations, and [a] rash 
of mergers and acquisitions~ 7 

OLIP Is Mainstream 

Unlike traditional mainframe data processing, 
where data is stored at a central computing facility 
and is processed only at specific times, OLTP 
updates data to reflect changes as they occur. The 
power of this concept is that it matches the flow of 
business operations, transaction by transaction. 

According to Omri Serlin, a prominent computer 
industry analyst, "OLTP applications are in the main­
stream of the business they serve. Sometimes they 
are the bu iness. More often than not, they are 
the major tool the business uses to offer revenue­
generating services to customers, or to run day-to­
day operations~ 

OLIP Market Grows 

"Since 1981, when on-line transaction processing 
accounted for less than one-third of new sales, the 
market has grown in size and importance to more 
than $17 billion in worldwide revenue in 1985. As the 
effective cost per transaction continues to shrink, this 
market will grow to more than 70 percent of new 
business computer system revenue ( not necessarily 
unit replacements), or $35 billion in 1990," according 

.. . run a business 
or a factory 

to a 1986 report from Dataquest, a leading market 
research company. 

Commenting on the forces for growth, Data­
quest observed, "The service sector of the economy 
is growing much faster than the manufacturing sector, 

" 'T1andem is very focused, 
1 dedicated to providing 
high-value-added products to 
the transaction-processing 
marketplace. . . . This focus, 
plus Tandem's product breadth, 
should keep it one of the 
industry's bright spots during 
the next three to five years." 

Goldman, Sachs & Co. , October 13, 1986 9 

and on-line transaction processing lends itself to 
service businesses such as telemarketing, insurance, 
and banking. Service companies see OLTP as a way 
to gain a competitive advantage. Typical applications 
include automated teller machines, electronic funds 
transfer, credit authorization, directory assistance, 
manufacturing shop floor control, and reservation 
systems~ The report concluded, "The on-line trans­
action processing market will continue to grow as 
more applications are developed and more batch 
applications are converted to on-Iine~ 10 

9 
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Customer Highlight 

R
etailing, like many industries, is highly 
competitive and cost-conscious. It is an 
industry where on-line transaction processing 

COLTP) and point-of-sale networks are becoming 
key strategic tools for success. 

At Ross Stores, Inc., of Newark, California, OLTP 
is a key ingredient in the company's plans for future 
growth. In less than five years, Ross has become the 
third largest off-price fashion retailer in the U.S., and 
it has one of the lowest operating costs as a percent­
age of sales in the industry. 

The point-of-sale networking solution Ross uses 
is from Tandem. It links 1,400 cash registers in 147 
stores to inventory and distribution systems and to 
credit authorizers throughout the U.S. On-line access 
to the latest sales and inventory information gives 
Ross a competitive edge in controlling its business, 
says Peter C. M. Hart, Ross's Vice President of 
Management Information Systems. 

"From the beginning, we have taken a different 
view of computer technology. To us, computer tech­
nology- particularly on-line transaction processing­
is a strategic business weapon. Indeed, certain parts 
of our growth plan and corporate philosophy could 
not exist without the help of OLTP," Hart said. 

Technology Is Critical to Success 

"Our business is off-price fashion retailing. We 
provide the same quality name-brand and designer 
merchandise as the big department store chains, but 
at 20 percent to 60 percent less cost to the customer. 

"We operate on very low margins, so profit-

ability and growth in our business depend on how 
well we serve our customers and how well we man­
age merchandising. Our corporate motto, 'Dress 
for Less; attracts new customers, but to keep them 
coming back, we have to provide great service and 
continue to offer quality and value. 

'N0W that the Tandem 
network is in place, we are 

planning new ways to use it that 
will cut some of our operating 
expenses and make communica­
tions with our stores much 
more efficient and timely." 

Peter C. M. Hart 
Ross Stores, Inc. 

" ot long ago, we faced a dilemma in our 
processing that illustrates the critical role that tech­
nology plays in our success. 

"We were using six CR [Corporation] mini­
computers to provide credit authorization and to 
collect the point-of-sale information we need to drive 
our merchandising process. 

"The problem was that we had reached a point 
where we needed to add more minicomputers to 
support our growth. But that created a larger prob­
lem because the minicomputers couldn't talk to each 
other or to our inventory and distribution system. 

Chances are, you have used a Tandem computer if you ... 

... purchase gasoline with 
a credit card or bank 
ATM card 
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Instead, each minicomputer generated a tape at the 
end of each day, which we would mount onto anoth­
er computer and reformat the data. That process 
took about 45 minutes per tape, and then we still had 
to run the batch applications using the new data. 

"There simply wasn't enough time to do all that 
before the next morning, when our buyers need the 
data - especially during the Christmas season with 
extended shopping hours. 

Network Helps Ross Provide 
Convenient Shopping 

"At that point, we turned to Tandem and one 
of its independent application software vendors, 
Signorum [Inc. , Fremont, Calif.] , for a solution. 

"Without replacing any cash registers or in-store 
controllers, we now have an on-line, point-of-sale 
transaction processing network from Tandem with 
StoreLink software that supports 1,400 cash registers 
in over 140 stores. Not only does it eliminate tapes 
and feed sales data directly into our host, but it gives 
us numerous competitive advantages by helping us 
provide better customer service. 

"For instance, we are dedicated to providing 
'hassle-free' shopping. When there are three people 
in a checkout line, we open another register-we 
don't want our customers to wait. Likewise, they 
shouldn't be made to wait for credit authorization 
when they are making a purchase. 

"So one of the things our Tandem network 
allows us to do is monitor the performance of our 
check and credit card authorizers. I use a terminal 

... use an automated teller 
machine 

to get up-to-the-minute reports about how many 
authorizations they completed in under five seconds, 
two seconds, and so on. If the performance of an 
authorizer is falling below an acceptable level, I 
contact them immediately and begin fixing the 
problem. That's just one example of how we use 
technology to serve our customers better. 

"Not only that: for the first time, we can link into 
multiple credit authorizers. That means we can shop 
for the best discount rates and support as many dif­
ferent credit cards as we choose. It also means we 
can make it easy to write checks-even out-of-state 
checks. We request only a driver's license. That's 
what 'hassle-free' is all about. 

Tandem Provides a 
Foundation for the Future 

"Now that the Tandem network is in place, we 
are planning new ways to use it that will cut some of 
our operating expenses and make communications 
with our stores much more efficient and timely. For 
instance, we frequently send information via courier 
to each of our stores. We'll eliminate most of those 
courier packages in the near future by using the 
Tandem network to send that same information 
electronically on a daily basis. 

"With Tandem, we now have a strategic network 
foundation in place to support our growth and help 
us capture market share; Hart said. "With creativity 
and a clear sense of what we want our business to 
be five years from now, we can use our network as a 
very powerful tool to help us be successful~ 

13 
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Unique Parallel Architecture 

I
n the battle for a competitive edge in emerging 
markets, corporations are using computers to 
create new computer-based products and serv­

ices that will generate revenue. But they are finding 
that their traditional, centralized computers do not 
provide the distributed networking foundation they 
need. As a result, many are investing in networks for 
on-line transaction processing - networks that will 
deliver new services, move information between 
incompatible systems, and support unpredictable 
transaction volumes in the future. 

During 1986, Tandem was awarded several 
contracts to install strategic, large-scale networks for 
retailers, financial institutions, and other businesses. 
A key element of Tandem's success in applications 
such as these is its system architecture. 

Tandem's Strength: 
The System Is a Network 

"Others build networks on top of individual 
processors. Our lowest-level operating system is a 
network; explained James G. Treybig, President and 
Chief Executive Officer of Tandem, in the April 14 , 
1986, issue of Electronics. In that same article, 
Electronics described the essence of Tandem's 
uniqueness: 

"The location of a data base or a peripheral is 
immaterial in a Tandem system, which makes it well­
suited for networking. One process communicates 
with another through packet-switched messages 
without regard for physical location. The process of 
creating a network is therefore straightforward~ 12 

In a June 11, 1986 investment research report, 
Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. described the advantages of 
Tandem's architecture. Following are excerpts from 
that report. 

"[Tandem's] architecture enables users to: 
1) physically and geographically distribute processors 
and data throughout their organization, yet perceive a 
single system image; [and] 2) expand the perform­
ance of their systems in a much wider range than 
found in traditional computer designs .... 

Distributing Programs and Data 

" ... With Tandem computers, users can physi­
cally distribute data and programs throughout their 
organization. Yet, the user perceives the image of a 
single system - transparent to the user, the operating 
system fetches and stores data at remote sites if 
needed. The user perceives the data to be local .... 

"The importance of being able to physically dis­
tribute processors and data becomes apparent when 
one realizes that businesses and their employees are 
geographically dispersed, yet it is desirable to main­
tain only a single copy of important data. Consider 
the problem of allocating airline seats from any of 
20,000 travel agent locations. While it is imperative 
not to allocate the same seat at different locations, 
it is desirable to alter the data from any location. In 
older systems, each travel agent and ticket counter 
was tied into where the data resides (at the airline's 
central computer) . We think that the airline industry 
represents one of the biggest opportunities for 
Tandem over the next few years .... 

Chances are, you have used a Tandem computer if y ou . . . 

.. . send messages over 
a public electronic mail 
network 



Expandability Without Degradation 

"Unlike today's mainframes, Tandem's machines 
do not experience performance degradation when 
multiple processors are strung together .... A Tandem 
user can achieve a linear growth in performance 

-- . 

" W;hile fault tolerance is 
certainly a key feature 

of Tandem's machines, it is 
only one of many architec­
tural advantages that makes 
Tandem's systems more suitable 
than traditional mainframes 
and minicomputers in the 
commercial marketplace." 

Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. , June 11, 1986 I3 

by adding processor modules to the system. [For 
example, an 8-processor NonStop VLX system pro­
cesses 80 to 100 transactions per second (TPS), while 
a 16-processor VLX processes twice as many-160 to 
200 TPS.] .... 

" . . . In a sense, Tandem's systems are really a 
form of parallel processing for the commercial world. 

"The importance of linear performance expand­
ability is better understood by realizing that on-line 

transaction processing systems tend to grow as the 
customers' business grows. This stems from the fact 
that interactive/ transaction processing systems gen­
erally form the core of the customers' own product 
offering-the computer becomes part of the cus­
tomers' competitive repertoire. For example, major 
stock exch~ge~use Tandem systems for order 
execution and reconciliation . ... With the burgeoning 
transaction volumes of recent years, such expanda­
bility was a necessary requirement ... . 

"Finally, the President of the Tandem Users' 
Group, an independent association, informed us 
that customers are now purchasing Tandem 
systems more for their expandability than for 
fault tolerance .... 

Application 
Software Solutions 

" ... When we queried the [Tandem third-party] 
software houses as to why they chose Tandem, they 
said that Tandem's architecture allowed the software 
houses to develop an application that could not be 
conceived on a conventional mainframe. Over time 
we believe that Tandem will be able to attract more 
third-party software vendors than other computer 
companies because of this unique architecture. 
[Tandem currently works with over 200 third-party 
companies.] ... Attracting third-party software 
vendors who add value to a vendor's machine 
has become the key to success in the computer 
industry .... " 14 

... make retail purchases 
with a credit card 
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Comprehensive Support and Service 

T
andem's support and service mission has 
a single goal: to provide the highest quality, 
most comprehensive assistance available in 

the industry. At Tandem, this means supplying much 
more than traditional installation and maintenance. 

It means helping customers to design their 
applications. It means understanding customers ' 
business objectives and configuring networks that 
will support their goals. 

As a result, Tandem staffs its service and support 
organization with highly experienced people and 
provides training to keep them informed about the 
latest technologies. In addition, Tandem sponsors 
programs to assist customers with application and 
network design, capacity planning, and benchmark­
ing. Customers who participate in these programs 
can reduce system costs by fine-tuning system con­
figurations before they are installed. 

Education 

A key element of Tandem's support philosophy 
is education. Courses cover everything from daily 
system operation to application design and develop­
ment. Instruction is available worldwide through 
classes, teletraining, computer-assisted learning, 
or self-paced tutorials. 

Supporting Large Networks 

Assisting customers with large-scale network 
design is an important part of Tandem's support 
strategy. The company recently expanded its 

Performance Center in Sunnyvale, California, to in­
clude a Network Environment Studies Facility for 
testing customer applications in large networking 
environments. In addition, Tandem offers consulting 
and benchmark testing to help customers design 
applications and networks that are optimized for peak 
performance and lowest possible cost. 

Ongoing Research: 
High-Performance Systems 

Research also is a significant element in 
Tandem's support philosophy. In Frankfurt, Germany, 
Tandem operates its High-Performance Research 
Center, where architectural research is done by 
studying system requirements for very high-volume 
transaction processing applications. The knowledge 
generated is shared with customers to help maximize 
throughput of their Tandem systems. The knowledge 
also is shared with Tandem development groups, 
where it contributes to the design of future high­
performance systems. 

Support Centers 

Located in Austin, Texas; Frankfurt, Germany; 
and High Wycombe, England are support centers that 
provide a combination of remote hardware and soft­
ware support to Tandem customers. All centers are 
connected electronically via Tandem's worldwide 
network, allowing customers to calion the expertise 
of Tandem's support people located around 
the world. 

Chances are, you have used a Tandem computer if yOU ... 

... make long distance 
telephone calls 



Through Customer Information Services, 
Tandem customers worldwide can dial into a 
Tandem system for up-to-date technical information 
that is stored on-line. 

Flexible, Cost-Effective Service 

Tandem's service organization has over 130 lo­
cations worldwide to support customers. Computer/ 
Electronic Service News, in its August 1986 issue, 
wrote, "Tandem products span the full range from 
micros to large mainframes, w ith all of the associated 
peripherals. And Tandem has made a name for itself 
in servicing those products. 

A ssisting customers with 
large-scale network design 

is an important part o/Tandem's 
support strategy. 

"Tandem has been servicing its own equipment 
for more than 12 years. From disk drives to main­
frames, from power supplies to operating systems, 
Tandem has provided maintenance and repair on 
over 360 products. And now, they have moved into 
complete networks .... 

"Large installations have dedicated field service 
engineers on site. A standard service package usually 
calls for full coverage from eight a.m . to five p.m. , 
five days per week. This can be extended to include 
second and third shifts. Total on-site service ( requir-

ing seven day, 24-hour coverage) is available. Or, the 
plan may include full coverage on a specified shift 
only, with second shift and/ or third shift on-call 
service .... 

"[ A number of products are] . .. supported with 
remote diagnostics. No on-site visits are required to 
troubleshoot either the hardware or software; aCE 
[ customer engineer] goes to the site only when a 
part replacement or system adjustment is required .. .. 

Service Philosophy 

"Speaking on the subject of service, James G. 
Treybig, Tandem President and Chief Executive 
Officer, stated, 'We are dedicated to reducing system 
maintenance costs by using new technologies to 
increase product reliability and to offer the highest 
quality of service to our customers: He went on 
to say that Tandem's use of new technologies in the 
VLX mainframes, including VLSI circuits, expert 
system-based diagnostics, and remote support, 
directly led to. . . [reduced] maintenance pricing. 

"Tandem constantly initiates customer surveys 
to judge the effectiveness and efficiency of field 
service. It also regularly gauges customer satisfaction 
levels with these polls, asking their customers what 
they want and what they expect from field service . . . . 

"The newer VLSI technology used in VLX main­
frames has more than doubled system reliability 
compared to similar Tandem configurations using 
previous technologies. This has reduced service time, 
and the cost of service by more than 50 percent­
making field service better and better . .. . » 15 

. . . send money via a 
public telegraphic service 
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A Strategic Foundation 

T 
oday's business environment is undergoing 
fundamental and dramatic change. Competi­
tion is intensifying and industries are being 

restructured because deregulation and technology 
are enabling companies to enter new markets. For 
instance, insurance will be available through banks. 
Convenience stores will distribute tickets for enter­
tainment and travel. News distribution companies 
will offer home shopping. And a new class of service 
companies will emerge and create more competition. 

To be successful in this new environment, 
businesses are beginning to offer computer-based 
services and products that will change where 
and how consumers shop, and how they pay 
for merchandise. 

The Future Demands 
OLTP Networking 

New computer uses such as these demand the 
rapid response and competitive advantages of on­
line transaction processing (OLTP). Many computer 
vendors now market systems for use in OLTP. Most 
of their offerings are traditional, single-processor or 
single-memory architectures. 

But corporations that want to be competitive 
in the 1990s are planning for the long term. They are 
reviewing their technology strategies and are dis­
covering many market-driven reasons why single, 
centralized computers will not help them compete 
in the future. First, they must respond to market 
changes quickly by offering new services faster than 

the competition. They also must have a low-cost, 
wide-area distribution system to market products 
and services in many locations. In short, information 
delivery networks are becoming vital strategic tools 
in long-term business strategies. 

Tandem Delivers a Competitive Edge 

Many businesses with a long-term view are 
selecting Tandem based solutions. With Tandem, 
corporations gain easy-to-use tools for developing 
new computer-based services rapidly-services that 
are distributed, networked, and on-line. With Tandem 
systems, corporations can add new customers easily. 
Modular expansion lets them support growing 
transaction volumes without rewriting software. In 

" "T1 andem 's architecture en-
.1 abies customers to do things 
that cannot be done effectively 
on other vendors' systems." 

Bear, Steams & Co. Inc., June 11, 1986 I" 

addition, Tandem networking lets corporations open 
new markets and add users in remote locations 
quickly. The Tandem architecture lets people interact 
with data and services on the network as easily as if 
the network were a single, centralized system. 

Chances are, you have used a Tandem computer if you ... 

.. . make stock market 
transactions 



Businesses are uncertain about the future: Does 
it include changes such as mergers or acquisitions? 
What new technology will have to be integrated to 
remain competitive? Because of this uncertainty, 
corporations want flexibility to merge new tech­
nology and business operations into their existing 
systems. Tandem provides this flexibility. Tandem 
systems today process transactions generated by 
hundreds of different electronic devices: mainframes, 
cash registers, gas pumps, ATMs, facsimile devices, 
robots on the factory floor, personal computers, 
ticketing devices, and many others. 

Tandem Integrates 
and Preserves Investments 

Over 200 independent companies provide ap­
plication software and other solutions for Tandem 
systems. Software companies and Tandem customers 
can migrate their applications to the next generation 
of Tandem equipment without reprogramming 
because Tandem systems are software compatible. 

Tandem's support for a wide variety o f industry­
specific, incompatible devices preserves customers' 
existing investments in automation. 

Many Businesses Select Tandem 

Tandem is hard at work in 21 of the top 25 
U.S. banks (by assets as of June 30, 1986) and 46 of 
the top banks outside of the U.S. In Australia, 80 
percent of retail electronic funds transfer transactions 
go through Tandem systems. Over 60 percent of the 

top U.S. regional automated teller machine inter­
changes use Tandem systems to switch consumer 
electronic funds transfer transactions between 
financial institutions. Nine U.S. and 12 international 
retailers automate merchandising or distribution 
functions with Tandem equipment, or have Tandem 

" Tncreasingly, the information 
1 stored in OLTP systems is 
not only vital to the corporation 
itself, it is the corporation's 
business." 

Computerworld 
September 29, 1986 /8 

point-of-sale networks installed. Five major European 
and several major U.S. automobile manufacturers are 
using Tandem solutions. Two of the three leading 
stock exchanges in the world-and 17 others­
automate trading or other functions with Tandem 
equipment. 

Businesses are making technology decisions 
today that will influence their future market positions. 
Today's decisions will have a critical and strategic 
impact in the long term. Many businesses select 
Tandem because Tandem's system architecture meets 
today's on-line business requirements and establishes 
a strategic foundation for the future . 

... drive a car manufac­
tured by any o f several 
major automobile 
companies 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Overview 
Tandem Computers is committed to being a technological 
leader in the expanding market for on-line transaction 
processing systems and networks. The Company believes 
that its computer architecture uniquely satisfies the funda­
mental requirements for such applications. Achieving its 
goal of technological leadership involves many. factors, 
including strategic market positioning, a commitment to 
product development, and an organizational structure ~d 
philosophy that foster employee productivity and creativ­
ity. Further, Tandem believes it is essential to maintain a 
strong financial position and operating record to allow 
the Company to maximize its opportunities within this 
growing market. 

Financial Condition 
Tandem's already strong financial condition continued to 
improve throughout fiscal 1986. For the fourth consecutive 
year, the cash and cash investments balance grew. Cash 
reached an all-time high of $240 million at September 30, 
1986, up from $129 million at the end of fiscal 1985. Key 
factors contributing to the record cash levels were income 
from operations, employee purchases of stock, and im­
proved asset management. Net income increased 86 
percent over the fiscal 1985 level. 

An important part of Tandem's corporate philosophy 
is to provide all employees with the opportunity to partic­
ipate in the Company's ownership through employee stock 
purchase and option programs. As a result of employee 
participation in these programs, the Company received 
$45 million in fiscal 1986 and $10 million in fiscal 1985. 

Asset management improved as the Company re­
duced its inventory levels and improved its collection of 
receivables. Inventories declined 19 percent from the fiscal 
1985 year-end level. Inventory days improved to 86 days 
at fiscal year-end, down from 123 days at the end of fiscal 
1985. Accounts receivable days improved to 82 days at fis­
cal year-end, down from 86 days at the end of fiscal 1985. 

From left: Lawrence A. Laurich, Vice President - Engineering; Dennis 
L. McEvoy, Vice President-Software; Barry E. Young, Vice 
President - Austin Operations. 

From left: Gerald L. Peterson, Vice President - Marketing; Lawrence 
W. McGraw, Vice President- U.S. Sales Operations. 

The Company's fmancial strategy includes maintaining 
a sound ratio of current assets to current liabilities and a 
conservative capital structure. At the end of fiscal 1986, 
the current ratio was 3.9 :1 , long-term debt and capital 
lease obligations were 1.2 percent of total capital, unused 
lines of credit totaled $65 million, and the equity base was 
$535 million. Tandem believes this financial strategy pro­
vides the maximum near-term and long-term flexibility to 
utilize a full range of financing alternatives to enable the 
Company to invest for future growth. 

Results of Operations 
The following table summarizes the changes in selected 
operating indicators for the years presented. The percent­
ages on the left show the relationship of various income 
and expense items to revenue. The percentages on the 
right measure the year-to-year percentage increases or 
decreases. 

Percent of Revenue Percent Increase ( Decrease) 

1986 1985 19 4 1986 1985 1984 
100 100 100 Revenue 23 17 27 
32 38 40 Cost of revenue 3 II 23 
II 12 10 Research and development 21 36 34 

Marketing, general and 
43 42 40 administrative 25 23 39 
14 8 10 Operating income 112 (2) 3 
I I Interest income, net 36 21 610 

15 9 II Pretax income 103 II 

7 4 4 Current tax provision 131 lsi 17 
{2) DISC rever al 

et income excluding 
8 6 6 DISC reversal 86 4 8 
8 6 8 et income 86 {20) 39 

Earnings per share exclud-
ing DISC reversal 76 3 5 

Earning per share 76 C21) 37 

Amounts may not total due to rounding. 



Revenue 
The rate of revenue growth in fiscal 1986 surpassed that 
of fiscal 1985, although it was lower than that of fiscal 
1984. The rate of revenue growth in fiscal 1986 improved 
as the Company strengthened its position as a major 
supplier in the on-line transaction processing marketplace. 
Significant new products introduced during the fiscal year 
had a positive influence on revenue growth. While demand 
in the United States was relatively weak, international 
demand was strong. 

Tandem's revenue gains over the past three years 
result from increased shipments of its hardware and soft­
ware products to new and existing customers and from 
increases in the number of customers using its support 
and training services. The Company's total revenue in 
fiscal 1986 increased $144 million, or 23 percent, over 
fiscal 1985. Revenue in fiscal 1985 increased $92 million, 
or 17 percent, over fiscal 1984. International business, led 

From left: tephen C. Schmidt, Vice President - Operations; Michael 
K. Bateman, Vice President - Third-Party Marketing; Robert C. Marshall, 
enior Vice Pre ident and Chief Operating Officer. 

by Europe, continued to grow more rapidly than domestic 
business in fiscal 1986. The percentage of total revenue 
contributed from international operations reached 40 per­
cent, compared with 33 percent in fiscal 1985 and 31 
percent in fiscal 1984. 

Operating Income 
Operating income as a percentage of revenue increased 
significantly in fiscal 1986 compared with the prior two 
fiscal years. The improving trend in operating income is 
primarily attributable to higher gross profit margins. Cost 
of revenue as a percentage of total revenue declined 
sharply. Research and development expenditures as a 
percentage of total revenue declined slightly compared to 
fiscal 1985, largely because certain software development 
expenses were capitalized in fiscal 1986 ( see otes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements) . Marketing, general, 
and administrative expenditures increased modestly as 
a percentage of total revenue. 

From left: Alois 1. Strnad, Vice President- Management Information 
Systems; David 1. Rynne, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; 
Jeanne D. Wohlers, Vice President and Corporate Controller; Richard 
A. Lamb, Treasurer. 

The Company increased its research and devel­
opment expenditures to support an active product 
introduction schedule. Tandem's product development 
activities focus on meeting the needs of computer users 
who are implementing on-line systems at single sites and 
in geographically distributed information processing net­
works. The Company believes that the opportunities for 
technological innovation in this marketplace are sub­
stantial and, therefore, has increased its investment in 
research and development each year since its founding. 
The Company expects to increase expenditures on 
research and development in fiscal 1987. 

The Company's marketing strategy focuses on selling 
to large organizations that are implementing major on-line 
transaction processing applications. Providing a high level 
of service and support is essential to meeting the needs of 
this customer base. To maximize its long-term opportunities 
in this marketplace, Tandem has built a direct selling and 
support organization in industrial markets throughout the 
world. The Company's direct sales activities are comple-

From left : Thomas J. Klitgaard, Vice President, General Counsel 
and Secretary; Jan E. Jensen, Vice President-Human Resources; 
Gerald D. Held, Vice President- New Ventures; Donald E. Fowler, 
Vice President-Strategy and Corporate Development. 
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men ted by relationships established with third-party 
application software developers, equipment remarketers, 
and distributors. 

Marketing, general, and administrative expenses have 
increased as a percentage of revenue over the past three 
fiscal years as the Company has continued to ?uild its . 
marketing organization and to develop marketing relation­
ships with third parties to foster future growth. The prod­
ucts introduced during this period resulted in increased 
marketing costs to bring the products to market and to 
train new and existing sales, service, and support personnel. 

The improvement in the ratio of cost of revenue to 
total revenue is attributable to a number of factors: Tandem 
continued its successful programs to increase the efficiency 
of its manufacturing and service operations. The Company 
sold a favorable mix of products, including a high ratio of 
newer products. These products incorporate new tech­
nology that provides greater performance at lower cost. 
The weakness of the U.S. dollar against European cur­
rencies had a favorable impact on the cost of revenue ratio. 

The 23 percent increase in revenue for fiscal 1986 
was achieved with only a four percent increase in employ­
ment. Total employment at fiscal year-end was 5,719. The 
Company expects that, in order to support a higher level 
of revenue, it will be required to add a greater number of 
new employees in fiscal 1987. 

Net Income and Earnings Per Share 
The rate of change in net income has differed from that of 
operating income over the past three years because of the 
factors discussed above and because of changes in the 
Company's net interest income and effective tax rate. This 
year, net interest income was more than $2 million higher 
than in fiscal 1985 and more than $3 million higher than 
in fiscal 1984. While prevailing interest rates continued to 
decline, the effect has been offset by continuing growth 
in the amount of interest-earning cash investments. 

Net income comparisons for the three years are 
distorted by a one-time tax benefit recorded in fiscal 1984. 
In that year, $9.7 million of taxes that had been accrued 
on earnings of the Company's Domestic International 
Sales Corporation (DISC) were reversed. 

The effective tax rate in fiscal 1986 was 44 percent, 
compared with rates of 39 percent in fiscal 1985 and 24 
percent in fiscal 1984. The effective tax rate in fiscal 1986 
was higher than that in fiscal 1985 primarily because of 
higher levels of pretax income and a reduction of the 
research and development credit. The Company expects 

From left : Robert F. Hoogstraten, Vice President and Managing 
Director- European Division ; Michael C. Moore, Vice President and 
Intercontinental Division Manager; Jack W Chapman, Vice President­
International Sales Operations. 

the Tax Reform Act of 1986 to have an immaterial impact 
on the fiscal 1986 effective tax rate. 

The effective tax rate in fiscal 1984 was lower than 
that in fiscal 1985 primarily because of the $9.7 million 
DISC benefit. 

Earnings per share in fiscal 1986 were $1.44, com­
pared with earnings per share in fiscal 1985 of $.82 and in 
fiscal 1984 of $.80 ( net of the $.24 per share benefit from 
the DISC tax reversal ) . In each of the three years, the 
growth in earnings per share differed from that of net 
income because of a higher number of weighted average 
shares outstanding. 

Effect of Inflation 
Please see page 39 of this report for a discussion of the 
effect of changing prices on the Company's operations. 

From left: Thomas Lyman Chun, Vice President-Corporate Projects; 
George C. Eckert, Vice President - Major Projects Management. 



SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
For the Five Year:s Ended September 30, 1986 

( In thousands except per share amounts ) 

Revenue 
Cost of revenue 
Research and development 
Marketing, general and administrative 

Operating Income 
Interest income, net 
Provision for income taxes 

Current period 
Benefit of DISC tax reversal ----- --

Net Income 
Earnings Per Share ---
Total Assets 
Long Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 
Stockholders' Investment 

1986 1985 1984 1983 1982 
$767,793 $624,138 $532,620 $418,282 $312,143 

247,871 240,148 215,692 175,646 120,390 
86,614 71,577 52,514 39,168 33,642 

327,330 262,332 213,313 153,697 117,403 

105,978 50,081 51,101 49,771 40,708 
8,504 6,269 5,183 730 6,033 

(50,716) (21,976) (23,076) (19,696) (16,885) 
9,700 

$ 63,766 $ 34,374 $ 42,908 $ 30,805 $ 29,856 
$ 1.44 $ .82 $ 1.04 $ .76 $ .76 
$705,025 $552,344 $501,873 $415,525 $337,366 
$ 6,526 $ 12,412 $ 17,155 $ 23,957 $ 21,102 
$534,680 $420,408 $375,122 $310,993 $250,988 

Auditors' Report 

To Tandem Computers Incorporated: 

We have examined the consolidated balance sheet of 
Tandem Computers Incorporated (a Delaware corpora­
tion) and subsidiaries as of September 30, 1986 and 1985 
and the related consolidated statements of income, stock­
holders' investment and changes in financial position for 
each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 
1986. Our examinations were made in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly, 
included such tests of the accounting records and such 
other auditing procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred 
to above present fairly the financial position of Tandem 
Computers Incorporated and subsidiaries as of September 
30, 1986 and 1985, and the results of their operations and 
the changes in their financial position for each of the three 
years in the period ended September 30, 1986, in con­
formity with generally accepted accounting principles 
applied on a consistent basis. 

San Jose, California, 
October 28, 1986. 

Arthur Andersen & Co. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME 
For the Three Years Ended September 30, 1986 

( In thousands except per share amounts ) 1986 

Revenue 
Product revenue $618,357 
Service and other revenue 149,436 
Total revenue 767,793 
Costs and Expenses 
Cost of revenue 247,871 
Research and development 86,614 
Marketing, general and administrative 327,330 
Total costs and expenses 661 ,815 
Operating Income 105,978 
Interest expense ( 1,979) 
Interest income 10,483 
Income Before Income Taxes 114,482 
Provision For Income Taxes 
Current period (50,716) 
Benefit of DISC tax reversal 

Total provision for income taxes (50,716) 
Net Income $ 63,766 

Earnings Per Share $ 1.44 

Weighted average shares outstanding 44,201 

1985 

$5 15,109 
109,029 
624,138 

240,148 
71 ,577 

262,332 
574,057 
50,081 
(2,407) 
8,676 

56,350 

(21,976) 

( 21 ,976) 
$ 34 ,374 

$ .82 

41,765 

1984 

$448,611 
84,009 

532,620 

215,692 
52,514 

213,313 
481 ,519 
51,10 1 
(2,642) 
7,825 

56,284 

(23,076) 
9,700 

( 13,376) 
$ 42,908 

$ 1.04 

41 ,399 

Because of the Company's method of operation, it is not practical or meaningrul to report the cost or service and other revenue a a eparate 
line item. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part or th is statement. 

TANDEM COMPUTERS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES 



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
As of September 3D, 1986 and 1985 

(In thousands except share amounts) 

Assets 
Current Assets 
Cash and cash investments 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $7,292 in 1986 and $3,479 in 1985 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other 
Prepaid income taxes 
Total current assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment, at cost 

Land and buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Computer equipment and spares 
Leasehold improvements 
Construction in process 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
et property, plant and equipment 

Other Assets 
Total Assets 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 
Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 

Wages, payroll taxes and employee benefits 
Income taxes 
Other accrued liabilities 

- - -~- - ~---

Current portion of long term debt and capital lease obligations 
Total current liabilities 
Long Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 
Deferred Income Taxes 
Stockholders' Investment 
Common stock, $.025 par value, authorized 200,000,000 shares, 

outstanding 43,918,756 in 1986 and 41,386,572 in 1985 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Total stockholders' investment 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 

The accompanying notes are an integral part 0 1 this balance sheet. 

1986 1985 

$239,819 $128,676 
197,658 163,378 
64,229 78,962 
17,505 10,746 

3,655 
519,211 385,417 

38,652 25,398 
62,302 55,669 

137,388 119,982 
34,270 32,363 
9,5 13 7,932 

282,125 241,344 
( 107,103) (80,746) 

175,022 160,598 
10,792 6,329 

$705,025 $552,344 

$ 50,768 $ 33,377 

34,132 28,196 
21,670 
21 ,452 18,184 
5,969 7,049 

133,991 86,806 
6,526 12,412 

29,828 32,718 

1,098 1,035 
289,441 238,998 
244,141 180,375 

534 ,680 420,408 
$705,025 $552,344 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' INVESTMENT 
For the Three Years Ended September 30. ]986 

-- -
Additional 

Common Stock Paid-In Retained 
( In thousands) Shares Amount Capital Earnings Total 
Balance September 30, 1983 39,553 $ 989 $206,911 $103,093 $310,993 
Sale of common stock under stock option plans 779 19 9,983 10,002 
Sale of common stock under stock purchase plan 285 7 6,982 6,989 

34 Tax benefit from employee 
transactions in common stock 4,230 4,230 

Net income 42,908 42,908 
Balance September 30, 1984 40,617 1,015 228,106 146,001 375,122 
Sale of common stock under stock option plans 352 10 3,873 3,883 
Sale of common stock under stock purchase plan 418 10 6,184 6,194 
Tax benefit from employee 

transactions in common stock 835 835 
Net income 34,374 34 ,374 

-----
Balance September 30, 1985 41 ,387 1,035 238,998 180,375 420,408 
Sale of common stock under stock option plans 2,143 53 39,253 39,306 
Sale of common stock under stock purchase plan 389 10 5,926 5,936 
Tax benefit from employee 

transactions in common stock 5,264 5,264 
Net income 63,766 63,766 
Balance September 30, 1986 43,919 -$1 ,098 289,441 $244,141 $534,680 

-
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

TANDEM COMPUTERS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES 



CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION 
For the Three Years Ended September 30, 1986 

(In thou ands) 1986 1985 1984 
Funds ( Cash and cash investments) at beginning of period $128,676 $106,862 $ 93,501 
Funds Provided from Operations 
Net income 63,766 34,374 42,908 
Items not requiring current outlay of funds 

Depreciation and amortization 43,242 35,616 22,741 
Deferred income taxes (2,890) 12,296 (3,544) 35 
Net book value of property, plant and 

equipment sold or retired 8,742 13,810 6,614 ----
Total provided from operations 112,860 96,096 68,71 9 ----
Funds Used for Operations 
Increa e in accounts receivable 34,280 17,036 26,784 
Increase (decrease) in inventories ( 14,733) ( 13,4 13) 6,455 
Net change in prepaid expenses and non-debt 

current liabilities (45,161 ) 1,795 (25,652) 
Investment in property, plant and equipment 65,0 11 67,568 71 ,51 9 
Increase (decrease) in other assets, net 5,860 (5 11 ) 2,361 
Total used for operations 45,257 72,475 8 1,467 

et increase ( decrease) in fund from operations 67,603 23,621 (12,748) 
Provided from (Repayment of) External Financings 
Increase (decrease) in long term debt 

and capital lease obligations, net (6,966) ( 12,719) 4,888 
Sale of common stock under employee 

stock option and stock purchase plans 45,242 10,077 16,991 
Tax benefit from employee transactions in common stock 5,264 835 4,230 
Total provided from ( repayment o f) external financings 43,540 ( 1,807) 26, 109 
Funds ( Cash and cash investments) at end of period $239,8 19 $ 128,676 $106,862 

The accompanying note are an integral part 01 thi statement. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts 
of Tandem Computers Incorporated and its wholly-owned 
subsidiaries after elimination of intercompany accounts 
and transactions. 

Revenue Recognition 
The Company generally recognizes revenue from equip­
ment sales at the time of shipment. Service and other 
revenue are recognized ratably over the contractual 
period or as the services are provided. 

Translation of Non-V. S. Currency Amounts 
Assets and liabilities of the Company's subsidiaries which 
are denominated in the local currency of the subsidiary 
are translated into U. S. dollars (the functional currency) 
at year-end exchange rates, except for inventories and 
property, plant, and equipment, which are translated 
at approximate rates prevailing when the assets were 
acquired. Income and expense items are translated at 
average rates of exchange prevailing during the year, 
except that cost of goods sold and depreciation are 
translated at historical rates. Exchange gains and losses 
are included in current earnings as operating expenses 
and are immaterial in amount. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, 
first-out) or market and include materials, labor, and 
manufacturing overhead. The components of inventories 
as of September 30 were: 

(In thousands) 

Purchased parts and subassemblies 
Work-in-process 
Finished goods 

Total -----

Income Taxes 

1986 

$31 ,191 
12,138 
20,900 

$64,229 

19 5 
541 ,434 

11 ,176 
26,352 

S78,962 

The Company accounts for investment and research and 
development tax credits as a reduction of the provision 
for income taxes in the year in which the related credits 
are generated. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Systems spares (original cost of $34,785,000 and 
$35,420,000 at September 30, 1986 and 1985, respectively) 
are depreciated over a five-year period using an accelerated 
depreciation method. All other property, plant, and equipment 
are depreciated using the straight-line method. The estimated 
useful lives are: 

Buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Computer equipment and spares 
Leasehold improvements 

30 years 
5-10 years 
3-7 years 

Lease term 

Included in the Land and buildings and the Construction 
in process balances at September 30, 1986 and 1985 are 
approximately $26,575,000 and $12,789,000, respectively, 
of costs relating to land and land improvements on a 
parcel held for future development. 

Software Development Costs 
During fiscal 1986, the Company adopted the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board Statement o. 86 which 
requires the capitalization of certain software develop­
ment costs. The amount of software development costs 
included in Other Assets as of September 30, 1986 was 
$2,982,000, net of amortization of $190,000. The Company 
does not consider the capitalization of these costs to be 
material to the fiscal 1986 operating results. 

Earnings Per Share 
Earnings per common share have been computed based 
upon the weighted average number of common and com­
mon equivalent shares outstanding. Common equivalent 
shares result from the assumed exercise of outstanding 
stock options and a convertible debenture that have a 
dilutive effect when applying the treasury stock method. 
Fully diluted earnings per share are substantially the same 
as reported earnings per share. 

2. Income Taxes 
The provision for income taxes included the following 
deferred (prepaid) items: 

( In thousands) 1986 1985 1984 

Federal: 
Current 526,037 5 2,950 S13,882 
Deferred ( Prepaid ) ( 3,923) 4,610 ( 10,550) 

22,114 7,560 3,332 

State: 
Current 6,880 3,522 4,800 
Deferred ( Prepaid ) 89 423 ( 297) 

6,969 3,945 4,503 

Foreign : 
Current 21 ,686 12,005 6,197 
Deferred ( Prepaid ) ( 53 ) ( 1,534 ) ( 656) 

21 ,633 10,471 5,541 

Total Provision 550,716 521 ,976 513,376 

Sources of deferred (prepaid) taxes were as follows: 

( In thousands) 

Installment sale method 
for income tax reporting 

DISC income 
Accelerated depreciation 
Errect of intercompany profit 

eliminations 
Other ( including expenses 

recognized for financial 
statements, but not for 
income tax reporting) 

Total Deferred ( Prepaid ) 

1986 

5( 8,043 ) 

447 

2,048 

1,661 

$( 3,887) 

1985 

59,752 
( 6,117) 
2,586 

( 90) 

( 2,632) 

53,499 

1984 

5 ( 1,950) 
( 6,084 ) 
2,950 

( 2,178) 

( 4,241 ) 

5( 11 ,503 ) 



The provision for income taxes differs from the amount 
obtained by applying the federal statutory income tax rate 
to income before taxes as follows: 

1986 1985 1984 

Federal statutory tax rate 46% 46% 46% 
State taxes, net o f federal 

income tax benefit 3 4 4 
Investment tax credits ( 2) (3) (3) 
Research and development 

tax credits ( I ) (8) ( 7) 
Tax exempt DISC and FSC 

income (2) ( 4) ( I ) 

Other 4 2 
44 39 41 

Benefit o f DISC tax reversal ( 17) 

Effective Tax Rate 44 % 39% 24 % 

The 1984 benefit of DISC ( Domestic International Sales 
Corporation) tax reversal represents the benefit of 
deferred taxes previously provided on DISC earnings 
accumulated prior to the enactment of the Tax Reduction 
Act of 1984. 

The Company established a Foreign Sales Corpora­
tion ( FSC) effective January I, 1985. 

In fiscal 1986, the Company provided taxes pursuant 
to tax laws in effect on September 30, 1986. The Company 
expects the subsequent enactment of the Tax Reform Act 
of 1986 to have an immaterial impact on the fiscal 1986 
effective tax rate. 

3. Long Term Debt, Capital Lease Obligations and 
Other Commibnents 

Long term debt and capital lease obligations as of 
September 30 consist of the following: 

(In thou ands) 

5.8% and 8.2% promissory notes payable 
to a bank in Japanese yen, due October 
19 6 and March 1987, respectively 

Convertible subordinated debenture 
payable to an officer of the Company, 
bearing interest at 9.5 and due 
September 1989 

Industrial revenue bond, bearing interest 
at 12%, due June 1992 

Industrial revenue bond, bearing interest 
at 12.4 %, due July 1992 and collateral­
ized by certain equipment. 

Obligations under capital leases, in terest 
ranging from 41j,o to 17%, net of 
imputed in terest totaling 5749 and 
S2,648, in 1986 and 1985, respectively 

Other 

Less current portion 

1986 

$ 3,292 

1,667 

1,000 

1,000 

4,735 
801 

12,495 
5,969 

1985 

$ 2,573 

1,667 

1,000 

1,000 

11,775 
1,446 

19,461 
7,049 

Long Term Debt and Capital Leases 5 6,526 $12,412 

The $1,667,500 convertible subordinated debenture is 
convertible into 100,000 shares of Common Stock at a 

price of $16.675. The debenture becomes convertible as to 
25,000 shares each year beginning in September 1986 and 
is subject to conversion acceleration in the event of certain 
occurrences. 

There were no interest costs capitalized during fiscal 
1986. Interest costs of $594,000 and $1,606,000 relating to 
construction projects were capitalized during fiscal 1985 
and 1984, respectively. 

The Company has entered into unsecured credit 
agreements totaling $65,000,000 with several banks for 
working capital purposes. The agreements provide for 
revolving borrowings through March 1988, at which time 
outstanding amounts may be converted to term loans to 
be amortized through 1991. Domestic borrowings bear 
interest at or below the banks' prime rates through March 
1988 and approximately 1/4% above these rates through 
1991. The Company is required to pay a commitment fee 
of 1/4% per annum. There are no compensating balances 
required under any of these arrangements. 

Certain financial covenants and restrictions are 
included in the loan agreements. The Company was in 
compliance with all such covenants and restrictions at 
September 30, 1986. 

The Company has guaranteed payment of loans 
made to officers totaling $250,000 at September 30, 1986 
under a $2,000,000 bank line of credit. In addition, the 
Company has a $1,667,500 note receivable from an officer 
included in Other Assets which matures in September 
1989 and bears interest at an annual rate of 10%. 

The Company leases its headquarters, field offices, 
certain equipment, automobiles, and most of its operating 
facilities under operating lease agreements. The Company 
also has capital leases for certain equipment. Future min­
imum lease payments as of September 30, 1986 are as 
follows: 

( In thousands) 

Fiscal Year 

1987 
1988 
1989 
1990 
199 1 
Thereafter 

Total minimum lease payments 

Lease Obligations 

Capital Operating 

$3,2 10 $ 38,647 
1,902 33,047 

243 29,545 
63 26,739 
33 23,268 
33 83,954 

$5,484 $235,200 

The cost of assets held under capital leases totaled 
$11,981,000 and $20,504 ,000 at September 30, 1986 and 
1985, respectively, and are included in the Machinery 
and equipment and Computer equipment and spares 
classifications in the accompanying Balance Sheet. The 
accumulated depreciation associated with these assets 
totaled $8,894,000 and $11,928,000 at September 30, 1986 
and 1985, respectively. 

Rent expenses were $43,092,000 in 1986, $38,213,000 
in 1985, and $36,726,000 in 1984. 
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4. Capital Stock 

The Company's authorized capital stock consists of 
2,400,000 shares of preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares of 
Junior Common Stock, and 196,000,000 shares of Common 
Stock. At September 30, 1986, 13,258,490 shares of Com­
mon Stock were reserved for future issuance under stock 
option plans, the employee stock purchase plan, and a 
convertible subordinated debenture. There were no shares 
of preferred stock or Junior Common Stock outstanding at 
September 30, 1986. 

Preferred Stock Rights 
During 1985, the Company declared a dividend of one 
preferred share purchase right for each then outstanding 
share of Common Stock. In addition, one right will be 
issued with each share of Common Stock issued by the 
Company before the date the rights become exercisable, 
are redeemed by the Company, or expire on May 17,1990. 
The rights will not be exercisable, or transferable apart 
from the Common Stock, until 10 days after another per­
son or group of persons acquires 20% of the Common 
Stock or commences, or announces its intention to com­
mence, a tender or exchange offer for at least 30% of the 
Common Stock. Each right entitles the holder to buy one 
one-hundredth of a share of a newly created series of 
preferred stock of the Company, par value $.10 per share, 
designated as Series A Participating Preferred Stock, at an 
exercise price of $80.00. In certain circumstances, the 
right will entitle its holder to purchase a larger amount 
of preferred stock or stock in an acquiring company. 

Stock Option Plans 
The Company has employee stock option plans under 
which permanent employees may be granted options to 
purchase shares of Common Stock at 100% of fair market 
value at the time of the grant. Options generally become 
exercisable six months after the effective date and expire 
no later than seven years after the effective date. At the 
discretion of the Board of Directors, options granted 
under the stock option plans may qualify for Incentive 
Stock Option treatment under the Economic Recovery 
Tax Act of 1981. 

As of September 30, 1986 options for 6,008,986 shares 
were outstanding at prices ranging from $5.23 to $34.88, 
with an average price of $22.60. Options for 4,860,946 
shares were exercisable as of September 30, 1986. Options 
for 4,653,538 shares are available for future grant. Options 
were exercised at prices ranging from $3.96 to $34.88 in 
1986, $3.96 to $26.88 in 1985, and $3.92 to $26.88 in 1984. 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
As of September 30, 1986 the Company has reserved 
1,605,666 shares of Common Stock for future issuance 
under its employee stock purchase plan. Under the plan, 
the Company may offer shares to employees by two 

methods. Under one method, eligible employees may 
elect to purchase shares of Common Stock at 85% of fair 
market value as of the last trading day before or the last 
trading day of the participation period. Under the second 
method, the Company may grant to all employees the 
option to purchase the same number of shares of Com­
mon Stock at not less than 85% of fair market value at the 
grant date. As of September 30, 1986 options to purchase 
100,600 common shares at $15.73,225,000 common 
shares at $16.15, and 564,700 common shares at $23.91 
were outstanding under the second method. Such options 
are exercisable through February 28, 1987, February 10, 
1988, and October 10, 1988, respectively. 

5. Geographic Segment Information 

The following table sets forth information about the 
Company's operations in different geographic regions for 
the three years ended September 30, 1986. 

Geographic Area 

United Elimi· Consol· 
( In thousands) States Europe Other nations idated 

1986 
Revenue-Cu tomer 463,705 207,670 5 96,418 5 5767,793 
Revenue-

Intercompany 118,989 (118,989) 
Revenue-Total 582,694 207,670 96,418 ( 118,989) 767,793 
Pretax Income 73.716 39.821 1.007 ( 62 ) 114,482 
Identifiable Assets 541 .381 131,853 63,701 ( 31 ,910) 705,025 

19 5 
Revenue - Customer 417.460 136.3075 70,371 5 5624,138 
Revenue-

Intercompany 111 ,742 ( 111 ,742 ) 
Revenue-Total 529.202 136.307 70,371 ( 111 ,742 ) 624,138 
Pretax Income 34 ,5 6 15,496 6.555 ( 287) 56,350 
Identifiable Assets 436.835 101,836 47,386 ( 33,713) 552 ,344 

1984 
Revenue-Customer 5364 ,873 S 109,562 S 58,1855 5532,620 
Revenue-

Intercompany 
Revenue-Total 
Pretax Income 
Identifiable Assets 

90.850 
455,723 
46,977 

421 ,974 

109.562 
10,842 
79,747 

58,185 
5.261 

31,732 

( 90.850) 
( 90,850) 532,620 
( 6,796) 56,284 

( 31 ,580) 501 ,873 

Intercompany transfers are made at arm's length prices, 
which include manufacturing profits attributable to United 
States operations. Identifiable assets are those assets of 
the Company that are identified with the operations of the 
corresponding geographic area. United States customer 
revenue includes export sales of $10,048,000 in 1986, 
$7,053,000 in 1985, and $5,989,000 in 1984. 

6. Contingencies 

The Company, along with three present or former 
principal officers, was named as a defendant in a class 
action complaint filed in the United States District Court 
for the orthern District of California on October 23,1984, 
purporting to state claims for alleged violations of federal 



securities laws and pendent state claims arising out of the 
Company's December 1982 restatement of revenue and 
earnings for fiscal 1982. The court dismissed the complaint 
as to the individual defendants in March 1985 with leave 
to amend. Subsequently, the court granted the defendant's 
motion for summary judgment and dismissed the suit in 
September 1985. The plaintiff filed a Notice of Appeal in 
October 1985. No provision has been made in the accom­
panying financial statements for possible liability because, 
in the opinion of management, it is unlikely that the ulti­
mate disposition of the suit would have a material effect 
on the Company's financial position. 

In addition, there are various actions or claims which 
have been brought or asserted against the Company. Man­
agement does not consider them to be material to the 
Company's financial position. 

7. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data 

(In thousands except per share amounts) 

Quarters Ended Dec. 31 March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 

Year ended September 30, 1986: 
Revenue S 170,061 $176,32 7 $200,853 $220,552 

Costs and Expenses 
Cost of revenue 58,844 58,025 61,030 69,972 
Research and 

development 19,817 21,318 22,299 23, 180 
Marketing, general 

and administrative 72,085 76,986 86,923 91,336 

Total costs and expenses 150,746 156,329 170,252 184,488 
Operating Income 19,315 19,998 30,60 1 36,064 
Interest income, net 1.673 2.362 2,054 2,41 5 

Income Before 
Income Taxes 20,988 22,360 32 ,655 38,479 

Provision For 
Income Taxes (9,340) ( 9,950) ( 14,53 1 ) ( 16,895) 

et Income S 11 ,648 $ 12,410 $ 18,124 $ 21,584 

Earnings Per Share $ .28 $ .29 $ .40 $ .47 

Year ended September 30, 1985: 
Revenue 159,653 $146,489 $ 144 ,165 $173,83 1 

Costs and Expenses 
Cost of revenue 62,021 57,713 56,11 6 64 ,298 
Research and 

development 15,127 17,075 18,027 21,348 
Marketing, general 

and administrative 59,996 61 ,998 69,482 70,856 

Total costs and expenses 137,144 136,786 143,625 156,502 

Operating Income 22 ,509 9,703 540 17,329 
Interest income, net 1,888 1,573 1,298 1,510 
Income Before 

Income Taxes 24 ,397 11 ,276 1,838 18,839 
Provision For 

Income Taxes ( 10,369) ( 4,435) 550 ( 7.722) 
etlncome $ 14,028 $ 6,841 $ 2,388 $ 11 ,117 

Earnings Per Share S .34 S .16 S .06 $ .27 

8. Information on the Effects of Inflation ( Unaudited) 

The Company has provided an adjusted summary of opera­
tions and selected financial data in accordance with the 

Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No.33, as 
amended, concerning "Financial Reporting and Changing 
Prices." This disclosure requirement is experimental and 
involves considerably more judgment than traditional 
financial statements and, therefore, should be reviewed 
with caution. 

Inflation-adjusted information was completed using 
the "current cost" method, which requires the Company 
to adjust asset values based on specific indices and 
appraisals. 

The method does not allow for inflation adjustments 
to operating expenses, revenue, or net interest income, 
nor an adjustment to the tax provision, despite the de­
crease in pretax income which results from the inflation 
adjustments. Only the cost of revenue and depreciation 
expense related to the assets, which are restated for 
inflation effects, are adjusted. 

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis, 
rather than the accelerated basis that is used for some 
assets in the Company 's historical financial statements, 
because the accelerated method already recognizes some 
of the effects of inflation. 

Net income for fiscal 1986 was lower under the 
current cost method because of higher depreciation and 
amortization expense resulting from higher asset values. 
Companies that hold monetary assets during a period 
of inflation lose purchasing power. Tandem held net 
monetary assets during the period, and their purchasing 
power declined. 

Consolidated Statement of Income Adjusted 
for Inflation 
For the year ended September 30, 1986 

In Average 1986 Dollars 

(In thousands) 

Total Revenue 

Cost of revenue, excluding 
depreciation and amortization 

Other costs and expenses, excluding 
depreciation and amortization 

Depreciation and amortization 
Interes t (income), net 
Provision for income taxes 

Net Income 

Increase in value of inventories, 
property, plant and equ ipment 
held during the year: 

Measured in general prices 
Measured in specific price 

Excess of increase in general 
price level ( constant dollars) 
over increase in specific prices 

Historic 
Cost 

$767,793 

232,944 

385.629 
43,242 
(8,504) 

$ 50,7 16 

$ 63 ,766 

Current 
Cost 

$767,793 

232,944 

385,629 
46,311 
(8,504) 

$ 50,7 16 
$ 60,697 

$ 4,534 
(3,677) 

$ 8,211 

At September 30, 1986, current cost of inventory was 
$64 ,343,000 and current cost of property, plant and equip­
ment, net of accumulated depreciation was $183,490,000. 
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Five Year Comparison of Selected 
Financial Data Adjusted for Inflation 
(In thousands except per share amounts) 

In Average 1986 Dollars 

1986 1985 1984 1983 

Total revenue 
1982 

Constant dollars $767,793 $639,575 $565,995 $462,669 $357,21 
Current cost 

information 
et income 

Earnings 
per share 

Net assets 
at year-end 

Excess of 
increase in 
general price 
level (constant 
dollars) over 
increase in 

$ 60,647 $ 32,234 $ 44 ,761 $ 32,449 

$ 1.37 $ . 77 $ 1.08 $ .80 

$538,553 $444 ,269 $406.261 $345.5 9 

specific prices S 8,211 $ 4,531 S 831 $ 1,273 
Other information 

Decrease in 
purchasing 
power of 
net monetary 
items S 4,191 $ 5,466 S 5.814 $ 3,115 

Market price 
per share 

at end of 
period 

Average CPI 
(I967~100 ) 

$ 33.70 S 14.51 S 16.82 $ 3 .51 25.39 

327.3 319.4 308.0 295.9 2 6.0 
---

Tandem Stock. Price 

Calendar Quarter Price High Low 
1986 3rd Quarter 39 1/2 27 3 1 

2nd Quarter 34 1 '. 22 5 

1st Quarter 26 7 
" 19 2 

1985 4th Quarter 23 7 • 12 " 
3rd Quarter I 5 13 
2nd Quarter 23 7 . 14 1/2 
1st Quarter 28 5; 17 51 

1984 4th Quarter 20 I; 14 J/ 1 

3rd Quarter 24 l, 1 13 
2nd Quarter 30 5:. 16 
1st Quarter 40 1 1 30 

Tandem Computers Incorporated is traded via the 
NASDAQ National Market System under the trading 
symbol TNDM. All quotations shown represent the high 
and low sale prices. The company has not declared or 
paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock and has 
no plans to do so in the foreseeable future. 
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Fenner & mlth Incorporated. Reprinted by permi sion. 

See note 2 above; pp. 39· 10. 
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ee note 3 above; pp. 1·6. 
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For the Three Months Ended 

(In Thousands, Except Per hare Amounts) December 31, 1987 December 31,1986 
Revenue 
Product revenue 229,531 
ervice and other revenue 52,751 

Total revenue 282,282 

Costs and Expenses 
Cost of product 63,141 
Cost of service and other 39,115 
Research and development 35,867 
Marketing, general and administrative 111,896 

Total costs and expenses 250,019 

Operating Income 32,263 
Interest income, net 4,756 

Income Before Income Taxes 37,019 
Provision for income taxes 13,326 

et Income 23,693 

Earnings Per Share 0.24 

Weighted average shares outstanding 99,749 

Prior period amounts have been restated to include the financial statements of Atalla Corporation acquired through a merger in 
'ovember 19 7 and accounted for as a pooling of interests. 

TA DEM COMPlITER I CORPORATED A D UB IDIARIES 

$200,709 
39,531 

240,240 

54,387 
27,985 
24,616 
87,751 

194,739 

45,501 
2,842 

48,343 
21,269 

$ 27,074 

$ 0.29 

94,290 



I 
I 

( In Thousands. Except Share Data) December 31, 1987 December 31, 1986 

Assets I 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash investments $ 269,076 $234,705 
Accounts receivable 259,781 245,217 
Inventories 116,311 68,695 
Prepaid expenses and other 25,500 24,544 

Total current assets I 670,668 573,161 

Property, Plant and Equipment, at cost I 533,725 313,174 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (176,468) (117,261) 

et property, plant and equipment I 357,257 195,913 
Other Assets 31,575 13,139 

Total Assets $1,059,500 . $782,213 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 74,703 $ 55,563 
Accrued liabilities 

Accrued payroll and payroll related 43,148 35,282 
Accrued commissions to third parties 11,866 5,218 
Deferred income 23,965 7,692 
Income taxes 16,025 33,557 
Other 43,060 28,813 

Current portion of long term debt and capital lease obligjtions 5,557 1,851 

Total current liabilities 218,324 167,976 

Long Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 26,714 7,505 
Deferred Income Taxes 47,146 29,916 

Stockholders' Investment 
Common stock, $.025 par value; authorized 200,000,000 shares; 
outstanding 94,280,137 in 1987 and 89,317,3 6 in 1986 2,357 2,233 

Additional paid·in capital 377,128 301,371 

Retained earnings 375,060 273,212 

Cumulative translation adjustment 10,191 0 

Balance sheet translation adjustment 2,580 0 

Total stockholders' investment I 767,316 576,816 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 
~ 

$1,059,500 $782,213 

Prior period amounts have been restated to include the financial statements of Atalla Corporation acquired through a merger in 
ovember 1987 and accounted for as a pooling of interests. 

I 



andem posted revenue of 2 2,2 2,000 
for our first fiscal quarter of 19 ,ended 
December 31. This represents an 1 per­
cent increase in revenue over the 
240,240,000 from the same period of 

last year. et income was 23,693,000 or 
.24 per share, versus 27,074,000 or 
.29 per share from the first quarter a 

year ago when our pretax margins were unusually high. 
Our international business remained strong, con­

tributing 50 percent of the quarter's revenue. Japan, 
which continues to do extremely well in the retail indu -
try, furthered its strong revenue growth through signifi­
cant new account generation. We t Germany and the 
United Kingdom al 0 had particularly high gro\.vth. 

Our domestic business was moderately weaker 
than expected. Planning for our normal busines pat­
terns, we tightened expense and head ount gro\.vth in 
August 19 7. Despite close management of these 
variables, the domestic revenue shortfall led to lower 
than anticipated earnings. 

Our analysis indicates that a number of customers 
in the U .. became more cautious in their decisions 
to purchase large systems. This may have b en in 
response to the uncertainty in the economy. These 
domestic customers represented no specific geography 
or industry. 

We do not believe this quarter's results signal a 
long-term change in the Company's prospects. 

Interestingly, the banking, brokerage, and retail in­
dustries were particularly strong and new account gen­
eration during the quarter was among the most robust 
for any period in the Company's history. 

We are especially excited about the potential of our 
new distributed on top CLX systems, which we began 
shipping this quarter. We have already received orders 
for major networks of on top CLX systems. These 
low-cost systems can operate outside of a computer 
room and are user serviceable. 

In addition, we began shipping our new line of PSX 
workstations and Distributed ystems Management soft­
ware during the first quarter. The PSX workstations 
have been very well received by our customers, includ-

ing a major order from a leading telecommunications 
company. 

In December, we used a portion of our cash 
to purcha e five buildings previously leased in Cuper­
tino, California. These, plus the two buildings we pur­
cha ed a year earlier, give us greater control over our 
facilities osts and provide Tandem a headquarters 
complex. This environment helps ensure close com­
munication between Tandem groups. 

Our new venture program continues to fo us on 
making strategic investments to leverage our position 
with key technologies or within targeted industries or 
ge graphic markets. In the quarter, we acquired Atalla 
Corporation, a an Jose, California, company that spe­
cializes in secure transaction system for the financial 
and retail industries, enhancing our competitive position 
in these markets. We are plea ed to welcome the new 
Atalla division and to announce that Dr. John M. Atalla 
has joined Tandem as a vice president. 

In addition to the acquisition of Atalla, we an­
nounced a minority equity investment in Anamartic 
Limited. A research and development firm based in 
Cambridge, England, Anamartic is developing advanced 
wafer- cale technology for computer storage products. 

As we strategically pursue our markets through 
such activities, we also continue to tightly manage our 
business and monitor external variables that can impa t 
Tandem, such as changes in relative currency values. 

We believe the Company is positioned well to capi­
talize on the expanding opportunities in on-line transac­
tion processing, distributed systems, and networking. 
We have the strategies, products, financial strength, and 
motivation to make 19 a good year for Tandem. 

incerely, 

Thomas J. Perkins 
Chairman of the Board 

February 1,19 

James G. Treybig 
Pre ident and 
Chief Executive Officer 

'tandem. on. t p. (LX. and P:>X are trademarks ofTandem Computers Incorporated . 
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Tandem Computers Incorporated and Subsidiaries 

COME (CNAUDlTED) CO - OLIDATED I TERIM STATEMENT 

1 
For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended 

( In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) Ma(ch 31, 1987 March 31, 1986 March 31, 1987 March 31, 1986 

Revenue 
Product revenue $202,010 $146,109 $400,735 $286,402 
Service and other revenue 40,358 30,218 79,668 59,986 
Total revenue 242,368 176,327 480,403 346,388 
Costs and Expenses 
Cost of product 54,912 41,500 108,493 84,810 
Cost of service and other 30,061 24,754 57,898 47,575 
Research and development 25,867 21,287 50,182 41,134 
Marketing, general and administrative 96,235 68,788 182,996 133,556 
Total costs and expenses 207,075 156,329 399,569 307,075 
Operating Income 35,293 19,998 80,834 39,313 
Interest income, net 3,233 2,362 6,080 4,035 
Income Before Income Taxes 38,526 22,360 86,914 43,348 
Provision for income taxes (16,082) (9,950) (37,373) (19,290) 
Net Income S 22,444 $ 12,410 $ 49,541 $ 24,058 

Earnings Per Share .46 $ .29 $ 1.03 $ .56 

Weighted average shares outstanding 49,028 43,385 47,910 42,781 
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform wi., the current period presentation. 



Tandem Computers Incorporated and Subsidiaries 

CONSOLIDATED INTERIM BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED) 

( In Thousands, Except Share Data) 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash investments 
Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other 
Total current assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment, at cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
Net property, plant and equipment 
Other Assets 
Total Assets 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 
Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Accrued income taxes 
Current portion of long term debt and capital lease obligations 
Total current liabilities 
Long Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 
Deferred Income Taxes 
Stockholders' Investment 
Common stock, $.025 par value; authorized 200,000,000 shares; 

outstanding 45,761,598 in 1987 and 42,139,637 in 1986 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Total stockholders' investment 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 

March 31, 1987 

$285,529 
234,751 

77,248 
22,476 

620,004 
335,135 

(125,492) 
209,643 

14,942 
$844,589 

$ 65,748 
91 ,032 
13,149 
1,586 

171 ,5 15 
8,449 

30,088 

1,144 
339,711 
293,682 
634,537 

$844,589 

March 31, 1986 

$160,767 
182,577 
69,872 
16,739 

429,955 
251,199 
(95, 110) 
156,089 

9,373 
$595,417 

$ 36,679 
45,888 
3,945 
7,721 

94,233 
10,427 
34,324 

1,054 
250,946 
204,433 
456,433 

$595,417 



To Our Stockholders: 
e are pleased to report strong financial results for 
the second fiscal quarter of 1987, ended March 31. 

Revenue increased to a record $242,368,000, a 37 per­
cent gain over $176,327,000 achieved in the second quarter 
of 1986. et income grew 81 percent to $22,444,000, or 
$.46 per share, compared with $12,410,000, or $.29 per 
share, posted in the same period last year. 

For the six-month period ended March 31, 1987, rev­
enue increased 39 percent to $480,403,000, compared 
with $346,388,000 recorded in the first six months of the 
prior year. et income more than doubled to $49,541,000, 
or $1.03 per share, compared with $24,058,000, or $.56 
per share, earned in the first half of fiscal 1986. 

During the quarter, we continued to see an increas­
ing demand for geographically distributed networks of 
Tandem systems. Several customers committed new 
network applications to Tandem for the deployment of 
commercial services or for the management of multina­
tional business operations. One such customer is the 
Bank of Tokyo. In March, the bank announced plans 
to use Tandem systems to extend its international 
banking network. 

This quarter we announced a significant advance in 
database technology which will enhance our ability to 
handle the largest heart-of-the-business applications in 
commercial data processing. onStop SQL software, a 
new product that incorporates the ANSI-standard Struc­
tured Query Language ( SQL), is the industry's first SQL 
implementation of the relational model to provide both 
high performance and fully transparent data distribution. 
In a recent audited benchmark, onStop SQL software 
running on onStop VLX systems yielded more than 
200 debit/credit transactions per second. In addition, 

onStop SQL software allows data anywhere in a net­
work of Tandem systems to be read, written, or updated 
with full transaction protection, and the database will 
always reflect the current state of a business. 

Tandem's international and domestic operations 
remained strong during the quarter. All regions of the 
United States performed well and exhibited strong year­
over-year revenue growth of 31 percent. International 
business grew 48 percent over last year and represented 
43 percent of this quarter's revenue. 

To support our growth, particularly overseas, we 
increased hiring in sales and customer service during 
the quarter. We remain committed to providing the 
highest quality of service and support because this is 
critical to our long-term success. During this quarter, we 
also increased hiring in development and continued to 
invest in third-party programs that will result in new and, 
we believe, leading-edge solutions for our customers. 

In keeping with our position as an international 
company with many large multinational customers, 
Tandem recently listed its securities on the ew York 
Stock Exchange, where we are traded under the symbol 
TOM. We believe this move will afford us broader visi­
bility in international product and financial markets. 

On April 23, just prior to the publication of this letter, 
Tandem's Board of Directors approved a two-for-one 
stock split, effected in the form of a stock dividend with 
respect to the Company's outstanding common stock, 
stock options, and other commitments payable in shares 
of the company's common stock. This move demon­
strates our belief in Tandem's future. Stockholders of 
record as of May 22, 1987, will receive one share of 
stock for each share of stock held. The shares will be 
mailed on June 12, 1987. 

Our success in the first half of this year gives us 
a good start toward achieving our fiscal 1987 goals of 
high revenue growth and sustained pro fitability. We are 
concerned about potential trade barriers, and we are 
uncertain about the stability of the U. S. economy. Despite 
these concerns, our market position and product offer­
ings remain strong, and we are optimistic about the future. 

Sincerely, 

Thomas J. Perkins 
Chairman of the Board 

May II, 1987 

James G. Treybig 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Tandem. onSlOp. onSlop SQL. and onSlop V\.X are trademarks of 
Tandem Compulers Incorporaled. 
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Tandem Computers Incorporated and Subsidiaries 

CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENT OF INCOME (UNAUDITED) 
----------------------

for the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended 

( In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) June 30, 1987 June 30, 1986 June 30, 1987 June 30, 1986 

Revenue 
Product revenue 5218,838 $163,361 $619,573 $449,763 
Service and other revenue 45,140 37,492 124,808 97,478 
Total revenue 263,978 200,853 744,381 547,241 
Costs and Expenses 
Cost of product 57,028 43,431 165,521 128,241 
Cost of service and other 36,164 26,924 94,062 74,499 
Research and development 27,416 22,337 77,598 63,471 
Marketing, general and administrative 102,346 77,560 285,342 211 ,116 
Total costs and expenses 222,954 170,252 622,523 477,327 
Operating Income 41,024 30,601 121,858 69,914 
Interest income, net 3,934 2,054 10,014 6,089 
Income Before Income Taxes 44,958 32,655 131,872 76,003 
Provision for income taxes (19,341) (14,531) (56,714) (33,821 ) 
Net Income S 25,617 $ 18,124 $ 75,158 $ 42,182 

Earnings Per Share 5 0.26 $ 0.20 $ 0.77 $ 0.48 

Weighted average shares outstanding 99,652 90,006 97,098 87,044 
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform wifl the current period presentation. 



Tandem Computers Incorporated and Subsidiaries 

CONSOLIDATED INTERIM BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED) 

( In Thousands, Except Share Data) 

Assets 
June 30, 1987 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash investments 
Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other 
Total current assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment, at cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
Net property, plant and equipment 
Other Assets 
Total Assets 

----

-----...,.. 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 
Current Liabilities 
Current portion of long term debt and capitalized lease oblig tions 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Income taxes payable 
Total current liabilities 
Long Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 
Deferred Income Taxes 
Stockholders' Investment 
Common stock, $.025 par value; authorized 200,000,000 sh es; 

outstanding 92,100,865 in 1987 and 84,279,274 in 1986 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Total stockholders' investment 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with the rrent period presentation. 

$296,295 
232,675 
81,422 
21,829 

632,221 
367,627 

( 136,864) 
230,763 

20,121 
$883,105 

$ 1,099 
66,363 
92,245 
14,5 11 

174,218 
7,290 

27,408 

2,303 
352,587 
319,299 
674,189 

$883,105 

-~ 

June 30, 1986 

$177,243 
205,064 

67,716 
20,770 

470,793 
271,545 

(103,470) 
168,075 

9,927 
$648,795 

$ 5,882 
40,036 
56,159 
9,893 

111 ,970 
6,356 

35,198 

1,079 
271,635 
222,557 
495,271 

$648,795 



To Our Stockholders: 

O andem set a quarterly record for revenue in the 
third fiscal quarter, ended June 30, 1987, and recorded 

its second highest quarter ever for net income. Revenue 
grew 31 percent, to $263,978,000, up from $200,853,000 
in the comparable quarter in fiscal 1986. et income 
rose 41 percent to $25,617,000, or $.26 per share, versus 
$18,124,000, or $.20 per share, earned in the same 
quarter of fiscal 1986. 

For the nine months ended June 30, revenue increased 
36 percent to $744,381,000 compared with $547,241,000 
for the same period last year. Net income was up 78 per­
cent, to $75,158,000, from $42,182,000. Per share earnings 
increased to $.77 from $.48. Per share amounts reflect a 
two-for-one stock split in the third quarter. 

International business again was healthy and contri­
buted 44 percent of our total revenue. Domestic revenue 
grew 20 percent year-over-year. 

Our product leadership in networking and our industry 
strategies continued to bring us success. During the quar­
ter, we won six new accounts in retail, a targeted industry, 
including two of the three top retailers in Japan. Existing 
retail customers, such as the May Company and Target 
Stores, expanded their Tandem network installations. 

We also recorded strong gains in the securities and 
communications market segments and made additional 
sales in two emerging markets- healthcare and govern­
ment. The company accelerated its thrust into manufac­
turing by announcing the Tandem Integrated Manufacturing 
Environment (T.I.M.E.), a new strategic framework of 
standards and mechanisms integrating critical business 
functions to control manufacturing. 

This quarter, we reaffirmed our product leadership by 
announcing two distributed computer systems designed 
to extend Tandem's on-line transaction processing (OLTP) 
networks to departments and branch offices. onStop 
CLX systems, based on CMOS technology, are compati­
ble with our larger GUARDIAN-based systems and allow 
us to deliver new levels of cost, compactness and per­
formance in OLTP systems. The CLX system will be 
available late this calendar year. 

The LXN multiuser system, introduced during the 
quarter, is our first U lX-based system. It gives customers 
with UNIX applications access to Tandem OLTP networks 

and offers a high degree of data integrity and system re­
liability. We also introduced six new onStop VLX models 
and a new desktop laser printer. 

Shortly after the quarter closed, we made an equity 
investment in etlink, Inc., a privately-held orth Carolina 
company that produces S A interconnect prodUCts. 
Tandem and etlink jointly will develop and market prod­
ucts to enhance and extend the integration of networks 
between Tandem and IBM systems. This strategy, which 
will result in our networks operating more effectively with 
IBM systems, will create greater market opportunities. 

Agreements with new Alliance partners continue 
to bring us strategic wins in targeted industries. During 
the quarter, such partnerships contributed to a large 
brokerage sale to Euro-Clear Operations Centre, run by 
Morgan Guaranty Trust Co., in Brussels, Belgium and to 
a key heaithcare sale with St. Jo eph's Hospital and 
Medical Center in ew Jersey. 

To ensure quality for our growing customer base, and 
support our growth, we added 387 employees during the 
quarter. The new employees, added mostly in the sales, 
support and research and development areas, bring our 
total work force to 6,680. This year we are making our 
first material increase in employees in three years. Third 
fiscal quarter hiring was the largest ince the second quart­
er in fiscal 1984. Even with the increased hiring, produc­
tivity has increased significantly. During the quarter, an­
nualized revenue per employee reached a near record 
level of $162,700. 

We have made substantial improvements in budget­
ing and in our internal review processes. We expect to 
continue our growth while continuing to control expenses. 

Sincerely, 

Thomas J. Perkins 
Chairman of the Board 

July 22, 1987 

James G. Treybig 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Tandem. GUARDIAN 'onSlOP" 'onSlOP vue, . onSlOP CLX. CLX. LXN and T.IM E. are 
trademarks of Tandem Compuler. Inrorporal~ IBM a trademark of Inlemauonal 
Sus,"e MachineS 



~TANDEM 
J COMPUTERS 

December 18, 1987 

Dear Stockholder: 

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders which will be held on 
Wednesday, January 27, 1988, at 10:00 A.M. at the offices of the Company at 19333 VaHco Parkway, 
Cupertino, California. 

The formal notice of the Annual Meeting and the Proxy Statement have been made a part of this 
invitation. 

After reading the Proxy Statement, please mark, sign, and return, at an early date, the enclosed proxy 
in the prepaid envelope addressed to the Bank of America, our agent, to assure that your shares will be 
represented. YOUR SHARES CANNOT BE VOTED UNLESS YOU SIGN AND RETURN THE 
ENCLOSED PROXY OR ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING IN PERSON. 

A copy of the Company's Annual Report to Stockholders is also enclosed. 

The Board of Directors and Management look forward to seeing you at the meeting. 

Sincerely yours, 

Thomas J. Perkins 
Chairman of the Board 

James G. Treybig 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

TANDEM COMPUTERS INCORPORATEO 

19333 Valleo Parkway • Cupertino. CA 95014 • (408) 725-6000 
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TANDEM COMPUTERS INCORPORATED 

Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders 
to be held January 27, 1988 

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Tandem Computers Incorporated (the "Company") will be 
held at the offices of the Company at 19333 Vallco Parkway, Cupertino, California, on January 27, 1988, 
at 10:00 A.M. for the following purposes: 

1. To elect three Class II Directors to hold office until 1991. 

2. To consider and vote upon a proposal to amend the Tandem Computers Incorporated 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan to increase the number of shares of common stock available for 
issuance under the Plan. 

3. To consider and vote upon a proposal to amend the Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee 
Directors of Tandem Computers Incorporated to decrease, and to eliminate automatic adjustment of, 
the number of shares of Common Stock subject to annual option grants under the Plan. 

4. To ratify the selection of Arthur Andersen & Co. as the Company's independent auditors. 

5. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Meeting and any 
adjournment of the Meeting. 

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on November 30, 1987, as the record date for 
determining the stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Meeting and any adjournment of the 
Meeting. A complete list of stockholders entitled to vote will be available at the Company's headquarters, 
19333 Vallco Parkway, Cupertino, California, for ten days before the meeting. 

IF YOU DO NOT EXPECT TO A ITEND IN PERSON, PLEASE PROMPTLY MARK, SIGN, 
AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY. 

December 18, 1987 

THOMAS J. KLrrGAARD 

Secretary 



TANDEM COMPUTERS INCORPORATED 

PROXY STATEMENT 

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of 
Tandem Computers Incorporated, a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), with principal executive 
offices at 19333 Vallco Parkway, Cupertino, California 95014, of proxies in the accompanying form to be 
used at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on January 27, 1988, and any adjournment of the 
Annual Meeting. The shares represented by the proxies received in response to this solicitation and not 
revoked will be voted at the Annual Meeting. A proxy may be revoked at any time before it is exercised by 
submitting a later-dated proxy or by voting in person at the Annual Meeting. On the matters coming 
before the Meeting for which a choice has been specified by a stockholder by means of the ballot on the 
proxy, the shares will be voted accordingly. If no choice is specified, the shares will be voted FOR the 
election of the three nominees for director listed in this Proxy Statement and FOR approval of proposals 2, 
3, and 4 described in the Notice of Annual Meeting and in this Proxy Statement. 

Stockholders of record at the close of business on November 30, 1987, are entitled to notice of and to 
vote at the Annual Meeting. On November 30, 1987, the Company had 93,473,912 shares of Common 
Stock outstanding. Each holder of Common Stock is entitled to one vote for each share held as of the 
record date, except that in voting for directors each stockholder is entitled to cumulate votes for the 
election of directors whose names have been placed in nomination; that is, a stockholder may cast as many 
votes as there are directors to be elected multiplied by the number of shares which the stockholder holds. 
All such votes may be cast for one candidate or distributed among the nominees for director as the 
stockholder sees fit. The persons authorized to vote shares represented by executed proxies in the enclosed 
form (if authority to vote for the election of directors is not withheld) will have full discretion and 
authority to vote cumulatively and to allocate votes among any or all of the nominees for election to the 
Board of Directors as they may determine or, if authority to vote for a specified candidate or candidates 
has been withheld, among those nominees for whom authority to vote has not been withheld. 

The expense of printing and mailing proxy materials will be borne by the Company. In addition to 
the solicitation of proxies by mail, solicitation may be made by certain directors, officers, and other 
employees of the Company by personal interview, telephone, or telegraph. No additional compensation 
will be paid to such persons for such solicitation. The Company has also engaged Corporate Investor 
Communications, Inc. to assist in the solicitation of proxies and will pay this firm a fee of approximately 
$5,500 plus expenses. The Company will reimburse brokerage firms and others for their reasonable 
expenses in forwarding solicitation materials to beneficial owners of the Company's Common Stock. 

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying form of proxy are being mailed to stockholders on or 
about December 18, 1987. 

IMPORTANT 

Please mark, date, and sign the enclosed proxy and return it at your earliest convenience in the 
enclosed postage-prepaid return envelope so that, if you are unable to attend the Annual Meeting, 
your shares may be voted. 
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ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 

The Company has three classes of directors serving staggered three-year terms. Clas e I and II 
consist of three directors and Class ill consists of four directors. Three Class II directors are to be elected 
at the Annual Meeting for three-year terms expiring on the date of the Annual Meeting in 1991 or until 
each such director's successor shall have been duly elected or appointed. 

Unless authority to vote for directors is withheld, it is intended that the share repre ented by the 
enclosed proxy will be voted for the election of Messrs. Franklin P. Johnson, Jr., Thomas J. Perkins, and 
Thomas I. Unterberg as Class n directors, each of whom is currently a member of the Board of Directors 
of the Company. In the event any of such nominees becomes unable or unwilling to erve, the hares 
represented by the enclosed proxy will be voted for the election of the balance of tho e named and uch 
other person as the Board of Directors may select. The Board of Directors has no rea on to believe that 
any such nominee will be unable or unwilling to serve. 

Set forth below are the names and ages of the nominees and directors, the cla to which each has 
been elected or nominated for election, their principal occupations at present and for the pa t five years, 
certain directorships held by each, and the year in which each became a director of the Company. 
Information with respect to the Company includes the Company's predecessor California corporation. 

Name and Principal Occupation at Present and Director 
for the Past Five Years; Director hip ince Aile 

Class I 
Morton Collins (1)(2) ........ ........ ...................... ...... .. .................................... 1975 51 

General Partner of DSV Partners, DSV Partners Ill, and DSV 
Partners IV, Princeton, New Jersey, private investment partnerships, 
since 1974, 1981, and 1985, respectively; Director of The Liposome 
Company. 

Andrew Knight (3) ...................................................................................... 1984 47 
Chief Executive, The Daily Telegraph pIc, since February 1986; 

Editor, The Economist, Economist Newspaper Ltd., from 1974 to 
1986; Chairman, Ballet Rambert; Governor of Imperial College of 
Science and Technology, University of London; Member of the 
Advisory Board of the Center for Economic Policy Research, 
Stanford University. 

Robert C. Marshall ( 4) ................................................................................ 1980 56 
Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the Company 

since July 1980. 
Class n 
Franklin P. Johnson, Jr. ( 1)( 3) .................................................................. 1975 59 

General Partner since 1982 of Asset Management Partners, a Palo 
Alto, California, private investment partnership; Owner since 1967 
of Asset Management Company, a Palo Alto, California, investment 
management proprietorship; Director of Amgen, Boole & Babbage, 
Coherent, Inc., Ross Stores, Inc., SBE, Inc., and Teradyne, Inc.; 
Member of the Advisory Board of the Center for Economic Policy 
Research, Stanford University. 
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Name and Principal Occupation at Present and 
for the Past Five Years; Directorships 

Director 
Since Age 

ThomasJ. Perkins (2)(3) ....... ....... ............................ .. ................................ 1974 55 
Chairman of the Board of the Company since 1974; General Partner 

since 1972, 1978, 1980, 1982, and 1986 of Kleiner & Perkins, 
Kleiner, Perkins, Caufield & Byers, Kleiner, Perkins, Caufield & 
Byers II, Kleiner, Perkins, Caufield & Byers III, and Kleiner, 
Perkins, Caufield & Byers IV, respectively, San Francisco, Califor­
nia, private investment partnerships; Chairman of the Board of 
Acuson Corporation and Genentech, Inc.; Director of Alliant Com­
puter Systems Corporation and LSI Logic Corporation. 

Thomas I. Unterberg (1 )(5) .. ....................... ... ............ .. ............................. 1985 56 
Managing Director since January 1987 of Shearson Lehman Brothers 

Inc., an investment banking and securities brokerage firm; Chair­
man from January 1986 to December 1986 and Chief Executive 
Officer from March 1986 to December 1986 of L.F. Rothschild, 
Unterberg, Towbin Holdings, Inc., and Chairman and Senior 
Managing Director of its predecessor partnership, an investment 
banking and securities brokerage firm, from 1983 to 1985; Manag­
ing Partner of such firm from 1981 to 1982; General Partner of such 
firm from 1977 to 1980; Director of Applied Energy Services, Inc., 
ASK Computer Systems, Inc., LIN Broadcasting Corporation, and 
Systems & Computer Technology Corporation. 

Class III 
Thomas J. Davis, Jr. ..................................................................................... 1976 75 

General Partner since 1973, 1979, 1981, and 1983 of Mayfield II, 
Mayfield III, Mayfield IV, and Mayfield V, respectively, Menlo 
Park, California, private investment partnerships; Director of Equa­
torial Communications Co. 

Robert G. Stone, Jr. (3) ........ ..................... .. ................................................ 1978 64 
Chairman of the Board of Kirby Exploration Company, Inc., an oil 

and gas exploration company, and its predecessor, General Energy 
Corporation, since 1971; Chairman of the Board of West India 
Shipping Company, Inc. from 1974 to 1983; Director of The Chubb 
Corporation, Combustion Engineering, Inc., Core Industries, Inc., 
Corning Glass Works, Great Northern Nekoosa Corporation, Ham­
ilton Oil Corporation, The Japan Fund, Inc., The Pittston Company, 
Scudder International Fund, Inc., and Scudder New Asia Fund, Inc. 

JamesG.Treybig(2)(4) ................ ............................................................ 1974 47 
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1974. 

Walter B. Wriston(3) ................................................................................... 1986 68 
Chairman and Member, President's Economic Policy Advisory Board 

since 1982 and 1981, respectively; Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer of Citicorp and Citibank, N.A., from 1970 to 1984; President 
and Chief Executive Officer of Citicorp from 1968 to 1970; President 
and Chief Executive Officer of Citibank, N.A., from 1967 to 1970; 
Director of Bechtel Investments, Inc., BRIntec Corporation, The 
Chubb Corporation, General Electric Company, J. C. Penney 
Company, Inc., Pan Am Corporation, Pfizer Inc., Reuters Holdings 
PLC, Sequoia Ventures, Inc., and United Meridian Corporation. 

( See footnotes on following page) 
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(I) Member of Audit Committee. 
(2) Member of Compensation/Option Committee. 
(3) Member of Nominating Committee. 
(4) On October 2, 1984, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") filed a civil action 

for injunctive and other equitable reliefin the United States District Court for the Northern District of 
California against the Company, Messrs. Treybig and Marshall and a former officer of the Company. 
The Commission's complaint alleged that during fiscal 1982, the Company, aided and abetted by the 
named persons, engaged in certain conduct which resulted in improper recognition of revenue. This 
conduct was alleged to have resulted in the violation by the Company of certain provisions of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") through the filing with the Commission of 
reports which overstated the Company's revenue and net income for the second and third fiscal 
quarters of 1982 and the issuance of a press release which overstated the Company's revenue and net 
income for the fourth fiscal quarter of 1982 and fiscal 1982 as a whole. The complaint further alleged 
that during fiscal 1982, the Company, aided and abetted by the named persons, violated certain 
accounting provisions of the Exchange Act relating to record keeping and internal accounting controls. 
The Company had restated its fiscal 1982 financial statements in December 1982 and the Commission 
did not seek a further restatement. 

In order to avoid the time and expense of protracted litigation, without admitting or denying the 
allegations in the complaint, on October 2, 1984, the Company and the named persons consented to 
the entry of a final judgment permanently enjoining them from violating various provisions of the 
Exchange Act and requiring certain ancillary relief, including an annual review and report for three 
years by the Company's independent accountants of the Company's system of accounting and internal 
controls in specified areas, including revenue recognition. 

(5) From time to time, Shearson Lehman Brothers Inc. advises the Company with respect to investment 
banking matters. 
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STOCK OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS 

The following table sets forth information as of October 30, 1987, as to shares of Common Stock 
beneficially owned by the directors and nominees named under "Election of Directors" and the directors 
and officers of the Company as a group. Except as otherwise indicated, each person has sole investment 
and voting power with respect to the shares shown. Ownership information is based upon information 
furnished by the respective individuals. 

Beneficial 
Ownership of Common Stock 

Number of Percent 
Shares(l) of Class 

Thomas J. Perkins .................................................................................. .. 1,010,936 l.l 

James G. Treybig (2) ............................................................................. . 774,266 0.9 

Franklin P. Johnson, Jr. (3) .................................................................. .. 410,000 0.5 

Robert C. Marshall .................................................................................. . 380,490 0.4 

Robert G. Stone, Jr. (4) ......................................................................... .. 157,200 0.2 

Thomas I. Unterberg .............................................................................. . 54,000 (5) 

Thomas J. Davis, Jr. .............................................................................. .. 37,144 (5) 

Andrew Knight ....................................................................................... . 34,000 (5) 

Morton Collins (6) ................................................................................. .. 30,608 (5) 

Walter B. Wriston .................................................................................. .. 30,000 (5) 

All officers and directors as a group (31 persons including the ten 
directors named above) ...................................................................... .. 4,410,005 4.7 

( 1) Includes shares which may be acquired within 60 days pursuant to the exercise of options or 
convertible securities as follows: Mr. Perkins, 10,000 shares; Mr. Treybig, 296,000 shares; Mr. 
Johnson, 10,000 shares; Mr. Marshall, 151,000 shares; Mr. Stone, 10,000 shares; Mr. Unterberg, 
34,000 shares; Mr. Davis, 10,000 shares; Mr. Knight, 34,000 shares; Mr. Collins, 10,000 shares; Mr. 
Wriston, 28,000 shares; and all officers and directors as a group, 1,538,265 shares. 

(2) Includes 3,600 shares held by trusts, of which Mr. Treybig is the trustee. 
(3) Includes 400,000 shares held by Asset Management Partners, a partnership of which Mr. Johnson is 

general partner. 
(4) Includes 14,400 shares held by trusts, of which Mr. Stone is a trustee, and 69,200 shares beneficially 

owned by Mr. Stone's wife and children, as to all but 1,200 of which shares Mr. Stone disclaims any 
beneficial interest. 

(5) Less than one-tenth of one percent. 
(6) Includes 2,800 shares held in a trust for the benefit of Mr. Collins' children, and as to which Mr. 

Collins disclaims any beneficial interest. 

5 



COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTOR 

Information is set forth below as to the cash compensation paid or accrued during the 1987 fi cal year 
by the Company and its subsidiaries to each of the five most highly compen ated executive officers of the 
Company individually, to all executive officers as a group, and to directors. Information i given only for 
the period each served as an executive officer or director of the Company. Information for the past three 
fiscal years as to stock options granted and amounts allocated to such person, to all current executive 
officers as a group, to all directors as a group, and to all employees under the Company' employee benefit 
plans is set forth under "Stock Options" on page 7, "Approval of Amendment to the Tandem Computers 
Incorporated Employee Stock Purchase Plan" on page 8, "Approval of Amendment to the Stock Option 
Plan for Non-Employee Directors of Tandem Computers Incorporated" on page 12, and the description of 
each other plan under "Description of Other Plans" which commences on page 15 of this Proxy Statement. 

Cash Compensation of Executive Officer 
for Fiscal 1987 

Name of Individual or Number in 
Group and Capacities in Which Served 

James G. Treybig ..................................................... . 
President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director 

Robert C. Marshall ................................................. .. 
Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, 

and Director 
David J. Rynne ........................................................ . 

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
Gerald L. Peterson .................................................. . 

Vice President-Marketing 
Lawrence A. Laurich ............................................... . 

Vice President-Transaction Systems Division 
All executive officers as a group (24 persons 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

513,405 

385,743 

356,630 

314,908 

313,502 

including the five named above) ....................... .. $5,867,644 

For the 1987 fiscal year, directors who were not officers of the Company were paid an annual retainer 
of$20,000, plus expenses, payable quarterly. For the same period, the Chairman of the Board was paid an 
additional annual retainer of $5,000. For the 1988 fiscal year, directors who are not officers of the 
Company will be paid an annual retainer of $25,000, plus expenses, payable quarterly, and the Chairman 
of the Board will be paid an additional retainer of $2,500. 

During the 1985 fiscal year, the Company guaranteed a bank loan under a $2,000,000 bank line of 
credit to Lawrence A. Laurich in the principal amount of $430,000, plus interest. The largest aggregate 
principal amount outstanding in fiscal 1987 was $150,000, plus interest. Mr. Laurich paid his loan in full 
during the 1987 fiscal year. During the 1987 fiscal year, the Company guaranteed bank loans under the 
line of credit to Jan E. Jensen (Vice President-Human Resources), Thomas J. Klitgaard (Vice President, 
General Counsel and Secretary), and Gerald L. Peterson in the principal amounts of $747,000, $75,256, 
and $100,000, respectively, plus interest, which were the largest aggregate amounts outstanding under such 
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guarantees in fiscal 1987. At September 30, 1987, the outstanding balances of the loans of Messrs. Jensen 
and Klitgaard were $747,000 and $75,256, respectively. Mr. Peterson paid his loan in full in fiscal 1987. 
The Company has not had to perform under the guarantees. 

In addition to the guarantee discussed above, since May 9, 1983, the Company has made loans to Jan 
E. Jensen. These loans have been consolidated into a single loan bearing interest at the fixed rate of 9.5% 
accrued monthly. The principal of and interest on the loan are due in full on June 30, 1988. The largest 
aggregate principal amount outstanding under the loan during fiscal 1987 was $205,406, all of which is 
currently outstanding. 

On September 26, 1985, the Company loaned Mr. Treybig $1,667,500 in consideration of his 
promissory note in that amount. The principal amount of the note is due September 26, 1989, and bears 
interest at 10% per annum payable quarterly. The note is fully secured. See "Description of Other 
Plans- Convertible Debenture Issuance" on page 18 of this Proxy Statement. 

STOCK OPTIONS 

With respect to options to purchase shares of the Company's Common Stock granted to certain 
executive officers, all current executive officers as a group, and all directors as a group during the period 
October 1, 1984, to September 30, 1987, the following table sets forth (i) the aggregate amount of 
Common Stock subject to options granted (net of cancellations) during the specified period, (ii) the 
weighted average per share option exercise price of such options, and (iii) the net value of shares (market 
value less any exercise price) realized during the specified period upon the exercise of such options during 
the period. The information set forth below includes the options granted to current executive officers and 
directors, as the case may be, discussed under "Approval of Amendment to the Tandem Computers 
Incorporated Employee Stock Purchase Plan," "Approval of Amendment to the Stock Option Plan for 
Non-Employee Directors of Tandem Computers Incorporated," and "Other Plans," as well as options 
granted under the Company's 1981 and 1979 Stock Option Plans. Information is given only for the period 
each served as an executive officer or director of the Company. 

JamesG. Robert C. 
Common tock{ 1) Treybig Marshall 

Granted- October I , 1984, to 
September 30, 1987: 
Number of shares ............... ......... 224,000 85,000 

Weighted average per share ex-
$8.348 $15.137 ercise price ....... ... .. ................. .. 

Exercised - October I , 1984, to 
September 30, 1987: 
Net value realized in shares 

(market value less exercise 
price )( 4) ....... ............ ............ .. $1,180,642 $888,850 

( 1) Adjusted for stock splits. 

All 
Current 

Executive All 
Gerald L. Officers Directors 

DavidJ. Peterson Lawrence A. as a as a 
Rynne(l) (1) Laurich(l) Group(l) Group(3) 

56,600 59,600 56,600 975,950 148,000 

$16.63 $17.29 $16.631 $15.34 $21.12 

$5,627 $1 ,170,551 $318,333 $9,649,651 $26,120 
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(2) Includes options granted under the Stock Option Grant Program of the Company' Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan, all of which have an exercise price of 85% of the market alue of the hare on the date 
of grant. The numbers of options granted under s~ch Plan t~ Me rs. Rynne. Peterson, and 
Laurich and all current executive officers as a group dunng the penod Octob r I. 19 4. to eptember 
30, 1987, are 600, 600, 600, and 7,800, respectively, and the weighted a erage per hare exerci e price 
of such options and the per share market price of the Common Stock on the date of grant are 9.403 
and $11.063, respectively. 

(3) Excludes directors who are also executive officers. 
(4) Represents the difference between the exercise price and the fair market value of the Company's 

Common Stock on the date or dates of exercise of stock options for the pecified tndl idual or group. 
These amounts do not reflect, and mayor may not bear any relation hlP to. the net realized value 
when or if the shares are sold. Pursuant to rules of the Securitie and Exchange omml ion. no 
executive officer or director of the Company may sell shares of the Company' ommon tock within 
six months prior to or after exercising an option without the pos ible impo ition of a evere penalty. 

During the period October 1, 1984 to September 30, 1987, employee other than the current executive 
officers and directors included in the above table were granted (net of cancellation) optlon to purcha e 
9,372,050 shares of Common Stock at an average per share option price of 15. 3. A of eptember 30, 
1987, there were outstanding options under the Company's stock option plan to purcha e 13.132.064 
shares held by approximately 5,886 participants, and there were approximately 7.143 employee eligible to 

participate in such plans. The expiration dates of all such option range from ovember 30, 1987. to 
December 25, 1997, and the weighted average exercise price per share is $15. 10. Of uch option • options 
to purchase 21,800 shares were granted to employees of a foreign sub idiary of the ompany pursuant to 
the Tandem Computers Incorporated Stock Option Plan for Employee of Affiliated ompante at an 
exercise price of70% of the market value of the shares on the date of grant. The average per hare exerci e 
price of such options and the per share market price of the Common Stock on the date of grant are 11 .955 
and $17.00, respectively. As of September 30, 1987, approximately 16.436.520 hare had been i ued 
upon the exercise of options under the Company's stock option plans. 

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO THE TANDEM COMP T R 
INCORPORATED EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHA E PLAN 

On November 10, 1987, the Board of Directors adopted an amendment to the Tandem Computers 
Incorporated Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the " Purchase Plan") to increa e the number of hare of 
Common Stock available for purchase under the Purchase Plan from 12,200.000 to 22,200.000 hare, 
subject to approval of the Company's stockholders. As of September 30, 1987, 3,981,448 hare remai ned 
available for purchase under the Purchase Plan, before giving effect to the amendment. and a total of 
8,218,552 shares had been purchased under the Purchase Plan. Of the hare remaining available for 
purchase, ?97,000 have been reserved for issuance upon the future exercise of option granted under the 
Stock OptIon Grant Program of the Purchase Plan described below. 

Th~ purpose of the ~urchase Pl~n is to attract, retain, and motivate qualified employee by providing 
them WIth ~he opporturuty to subs:nbe for and purchase Common Stock from the Company at a price 
lower than Its m~rket value .at the tlme of purchase and to pay for such stock through payroll deductions. 
The Board of Directors believes that employee stock ownership is an effective mean of ecuring to the 
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Company and its stockhol~ers the ad~a~~ag.es of the incentive inherent in stock ownership by participating 
employees, upon who~e Jud~ment, Ulluauve, and efforts the Company is largely dependent for the 
successful conduct of Its busmess. Consequently, the Board of Directors believes that the use of the 
purchase Plan as a supplement to other forms of compensation paid by the Company is desirable. 

An explanation of the Purchase Plan and a summary of its significant provisions is set forth below. A 
copy of the full plan may be reviewed by stockholders upon request to Patricia E. Hart at the offices of the 
Company at 19333 Vallco Parkway, Cupertino, California 95014, during normal business hours. The 
following ummary i qualified in its entirety by reference to the plan document itself. 

Adminis tra t ion 

The Purcha e Plan is administered by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may interpret 
the Purcha e Plan, adopt rules and regulations for its administration, prescribe additional terms and 
limitations on the options, and delegate administration of the Purchase Plan to a committee consisting of 
not Ie than three members of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has delegated 
admini tralion of the Purchase Plan to the Compensation/Option Committee (the "Committee") . 

Eligibility 

All employee of the Company and its 50% or more owned subsidiaries, including officers, who 
customarily work more than five months in a calendar year are eligible to purchase shares under the 
Purcha e Plan. Directors of the Company are not eligible to participate in the Purchase Plan. As of 
September 30, 1987, approximately 7,143 employees were eligible to participate in the Purchase Plan. No 
employee may be granted a right or an option to purchase Common Stock under the Purchase Plan which 
ifexerci ed would re ult in (i) his or her owning stock possessing 5% or more of the total combined voting 
power or value of all cia es of stock of the Company or any subsidiary or (ii) his or her ability to purchase 
stock under the Purcha e Plan or similar plans of the Company in anyone calendar year with a fair market 
value in exce of $25,000 (determined as of the time such right or option is granted). 

Purcha e Price and Term 

The Purcha e Plan has two segments, a Payroll Withholding Accumulation Program and a Stock 

Option Grant Program. 

Under the Payroll Withholding Accumulation Program, an eligible employee may authorize the 
Company to withhold any whole percentage from 1% to 10% of his or her compensation. "Compensation" 
means, for thi purpo e, a participant's total quarterly compensation including bonuses and commissions 
but excluding pecial payments (such as moving expenses) and income with res~ect to stock options or 
other stock purcha e . A participant is deemed to have elected to purch~se the maXImum ~umber of,:hole 
shares of the Company's Common Stock which can be purchased With the amount Withheld dunn~ a 
participation period (calendar quarters commencing on each July 1, October I, January 1, a~d April 1 
While the Purcha e Plan is in effect). A pa~c~pan.t may ~ot purchas: ~ore,than 1,500 shares ~n anyone 
participation period. At the end of each partlclpauon peno~ the pa~lCl?ant s accumu1a~ed penod payro~l 
withholding are divided by the purchase price for that penod, which IS the lesser of (I) 85% of the fair 
market value of hare of Common Stock on the last trading day before the participation period 
commences or (ii) a 8;% of the fair market value of a share of Common Stock on the last trading day during 

the participation period. 
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If a participant's employment terminates for any reason (.inclu~g de~th), his or her pa"!cipation in 
the Payroll Withholding Accumulation Program will ternunate unme~l.ately .and the ~nure .amount 
credited to his or her Purchase Plan account will be refunded to the participant In cash, Without Interest. 

During the period from October 1, 1984 to September 30, 1987, the aggregate differenc:e between the 
purchase price and the fair market value on the dates of purcha~e of shares acqUIred pursuant 
to the Payroll Withholding Accumulation Program by all current execunve officers as a. group and by all 
employees (excluding current executive officers) was $118,350 and $8,518,409, respecnvely. 

Under the Stock Option Grant Program, options for an identical number of share of Common Stock 
are granted periodically at the discretion of the Committee to every participant who is eligible on the date 
of grant. The exercise price must not be less than 85% of the fair market value of a share of Common 
Stock on the date of grant. Options expire no later than 27 months after the date of grant. Shares 
purchased upon the exercise of an option must be paid for in full at the time of exerci e. Payment may be 
by personal check or by delivery of an irrevocable direction to a securitie broker, approved by the 
Company, to sell shares and deliver all or a portion of the proceeds to the Company in payment for the 
shares. In addition, with the Committee's approval given at the time the option is granted, payment may 
be by delivery of a full recourse, interest-bearing promissory note. 

Upon termination of employment, an optionee may exercise an outstanding option granted under the 
Stock Option Grant Program (to the extent it was exercisable on the date of termination) within 30 days 
following the date of termination (but in no event later than the expiration date of uch option) , unless 
termination of employment is because of permanent disability, in which case the option may be exercised 
within three months following the date of termination. In the case of the death of an optionee while an 
eligible employee, the optionee's heirs or legal representative may exercise the option within one year after 
the date of death. 

As of September 30, 1987, there were outstanding stock options under the Stock Option Grant 
Program to purchase 400, 2,800, and 994,200 shares held by Mr. Rynne, by all current executive officers as 
a group, and by all employees (excluding current executive officers) , respectively. The e options have a 
weighted average exercise price of $22.50 and have expiration dates which range from February 10, 1988 
to October 18, 1988. As of September 30,1987, the aggregate market value of the share subject to such 
options was $33,150,250, based upon a closing price of $33.25 per share for the Company's Common 
Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on that date. 

Adjustment Upon Recapitalization 

The Purchase Plan provides for appropriate adjustment by the Board of Directors of the number and 
pri~ of shar~s and option price of any outstanding options and of the aggregate number of shares 
available for Is~u.ance under the Purchase Plan in the event of a reorganization, stock split, combination of 
shares, stock diVidend, or other recapitalization of the Company. 

Term of the Plan, Amendment, and Termination 

The Board of Directors may at any time amend, modify, or terminate the Purcha e Plan. Any 
increase in the aggregate number of shares to be issued under the Purchase Plan will not be effective until 
approved by the ~tockh?Iders of the Company. Unless earlier terminated by the Board of Directors, the 
Purchase Plan will be In effect until June 30, 1998, pursuant to an amendment to the Purchase Plan 
adopted by the Board of Directors on November 10, 1987, extending the term of the Purchase Plan for 10 
years. 
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Transferability 

A participant may not as~ign his or her rights or interest in the Purchase Plan, in any option granted 
under the Purchase Plan, or ~ any Common Stock or moneys to which he or she may become entitled 
under the Pu~chase Plan dunng a present or future participation period to any other person. Any such 
attempted assignment other than by will shall be treated as an election by the participant to withdraw from 
the Purchase Plan. 

Federal Income Tax Information 

The following tax discussion is only a brief summary of current United States federal income tax 
consequence of participation in the Purchase Plan. The federal income tax laws have frequently been 
revised and may be changed again any time in the future. Beginning in 1988, net capital gain is taxed at 
the same rate as ordinary income. In addition, capital gain ceases to be an item of tax preference. Capital 
losses continue to be allowed up to $3,000 of ordinary income, but now on a favorable one-for-one basis. 

The Purcha e Plan is intended to qualify as an "employee stock purchase plan" under the provisions 
of Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended. No taxable income is recognized by a 
participant either at the time a right or an option is granted to purchase Common Stock under the Purchase 
Plan or at the time the hares are purchased thereunder. 

If a participant doe not dispose of shares acquired under the Purchase Plan before two years after the 
date of grant (which under the Payroll Withholding Accumulation Program is the first day of each 
participation period and under the Stock Option Grant Program is the date an option is granted) or, in the 
case of share acquired under the Stock Option Grant Program, before six months after the date the shares 
are tran ferred to him or her, then upon such disposition the United States federal income tax 
consequence will be a follows: ( I) the lesser of (a) the excess of the fair market value of the Common 
Stock on the date of disposition over the purchase price or (b) 15% of the fair market value of the shares 
on the date of grant will be taxed to the participant as ordinary income, but the Company will not be 
entitled to any deduction with respect thereto, and (2) the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the 
shares on the date of dispo ition over the sum of the purchase price and the amount of ordinary income 
recognized upon di po ilion will be taxed as capital gain. If such taxable disposition produces a loss (i.e., 
the value of the hare on the date of disposition is less than the purchase price) and the disposition 
involves certain unrelated parties, the loss will be a capital loss. 

If a participant disposes of the shares earlier than two years after the date of grant, or in the case of 
shares acquired under the Stock Option Grant Program, earlier than six months after the date the shares 
are transferred to him or her, then upon such disposition the United States federal income tax 
consequence will be a follows: ( I) the difference between the purchase price and the fair market value of 
the Common Stock on the date of purchase will be taxed to the participant .as ordinary in~me in the year 
of dis po ition and will be deductible by the Company, and (2) the excess, If any, of the falr.market value 
of the share on the date of disposition over their fair m~rket. ~alu~ on the date of purchase will be taxed.as 
capital gain. If the value of the shares on the date of dls!,?SltlO.n. IS less than the s~m of the ~urchase ~nce 
and the amount of ordinary income recognized upon dIspOSItiOn, t~en such difference :will result In a 
capitallo , provided the disposition is between certain unrelated partIes. Any such loss will not affect the 

ordinary income realized upon the disposition. 
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Generally, a transfer of shares to a decedent's estate or to an heir by bequest or inheritance or to any 
transferee pursuant to certain tax-free exchanges is not considered a disposition by the participant for 
purposes of the foregoing rules. Also, a pledge of the shares is not considered a disposition unless the 
shares are actually disposed of pursuant to the pledge. 

If a participant dies after purchasing shares under the Purchase Plan, then upon the participant's 
death he or she will realize ordinary income equal to the amount he or she would have recognized as 
ordinary income if he or she had made a qualifying disposition of the shares on the date of his or her 
death. The basis of the shares in the hands of the estate or legatee will be determined without regard to 
the realization of such ordinary income, and the Company will receive no deduction with respect thereto. 

Because the capital gain deduction was repealed by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, it is no longer 
classified as an item of tax preference, and the entire capital gain upon the disposition of stock is included 
in "alternative minimum taxable income." Alternative minimum taxable income is defined as regular 
taxable income plus items of tax preference plus an add-back of certain itemized deductions which are not 
allowable for minimum-tax purposes. 

If a taxpayer's alternative minimum taxable income exceeds $40,000 in the case of a married 
individual filing a joint return ($30,000 in the case ofa single taxpayer), then the minimum tax equals 21% 
of the excess. The exemption amounts, e.g., $40,000 and $30,000, are reduced $.25 for each dollar by 
which alternative minimum taxable income exceeds $150,000 for joint returns ($112,500 for single 
taxpayers and $75,000 for married taxpayers tiling separately). The minimum tax is payable if it exceeds 
the amount of the taxpayer's regular federal income tax for the same taxable year. The portion of a 
taxpayer's minimum tax attributable to certain items of tax preference (including the spread upon the 
exercise of an incentive stock option) can be credited against the taxpayer's reguJar tax liability in later 
years to the extent that liability exceeds the alternative minimum tax. 

Required Vote 

Adoption of the amendment to increase the number of shares of Common Stock available under the 
Purchase Plan requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. 

The Board of Directors recommends a vote For the amendment to the Tandem Computers 
Incorporated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. 

APPRO V AL OF AMENDMENT TO THE STOCK OPTION PLAN FOR 
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS OF TANDEM COMPUTERS INCORPORATED 

The Company believes it is important to encourage the Company's non-employee directors to acquire 
a proprietary interest in the Company and to continue their association with the Company or its 
subsidiaries. The Board of Directors therefore adopted the Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee 
Directors of Tandem Computers Incorporated (the "Directors' Plan") on November 3, 1986, which was 
effective February 20, 1987, upon being approved by the Company's stockholders. As of September 30, 
1987, options to purchase 80,000 shares had been granted under the Directors' Plan pursuant to its terms 
which provided for an initial grant on February 20, 1987, to each of the eight non-employee directors of an 
option to purchase 10,000 shares (as adjusted for the two-for-one stock split effected in the form of a stock 
dividend on May 22, 1987). As of September 30, 1987, 420,000 shares remained available for option 
grants. 
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Under the terms of the Directors' Plan as approved by the stockholders at the 1987 Annual Meeting, 
each non-employee director would automatically receive on the date of each subsequent annual meeting of 
stockholders an option grant for 3,000 shares, subject to adjustment for a stock split, combination of 
shares, stock dividend, or similar event. Accordingly, to reflect the two-for-one stock split effected in the 
form of a stock dividend on May 22, 1987, annual grants to each non-employee director would be 
increased to 6,000 shares and would be subject to future adjustments. The Board of Directors has 
determined that, in order to be consistent with the procedures followed for option grants to new 
employees, the number of shares to be subject to the annual grants should remain at 3,000 shares. 
Therefore, on November 10, 1987, the Board amended the Directors' Plan, subject to approval of the 
stockholders at the Meeting, to provide that no adjustment in the number of shares subject to the annual 
option grant would be made for a stock split, combination of shares, stock dividend, or similar event. The 
number of shares and option price of shares subject to outstanding options and the aggregate number of 
shares to be issued under the Directors' Plan will remain subject to such adjustment. 

An explanation of the Directors' Plan and a summary of its significant provisions is set forth below. A 
copy of the full plan may be reviewed by stockholders upon request to Patricia E. Hart at the offices of the 
Company at 19333 Vallco Parkway, Cupertino, California 95014, during normal business hours. The 
following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the plan document itself. 

Admini tration 

The Directors' Plan is administered by the Compensation/Option Committee of the Board of 
Director . The Committee has the responsibility for carrying out all terms of the Directors' Plan. 
However, it has no discretion either to determine which directors shall receive option awards or to set the 
number of shares subject to such option awards. 

Eligibility 

The Directors' Plan provides for automatic annual option grants to each director who is not also an 
employee of the Company or a subsidiary. 

Exerci e Price and Terms 

The exercise price for shares subject to options granted under the Directors' Plan is the fair market 
value of the shares at the date of the option grant. Payment of the exercise price must be made in cash or 
by the surrender of previously held shares of Common Stock, which shares will be valued for this purpose 
at their fair market value on the date of exercise, or a combination thereof. 

Except as provided below, options granted under the Directors' Plan are not exercisable for a period 
of six months after grant. Thereafter, the option becomes exercisable as to an increasing amount on a daily 
basis with the full amount exercisable 48 months after the date of grant. In the event that an optionee 
ceas;s to be a director within six months of the date on which the option was granted, the portion of the 
outstanding option which is not then exercisable will be forfeited. An optionee who ceases to be a director 
for any reason after six months from the grant date is entitled to exercise the portion of his or her option 
which is then exercisable within 12 months following such termination to the extent not previously 
exercised. All options granted under the Directors' Plan will lapse on the date 10 years following the date 

of grant of the option. 
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Following the Annual Meeting held on February 20, 1987, pursuant to the terms of the Directors' 
Plan each of the Company's eight non-employee directors received an option to purchase 10,000 shares at 
an exercise price of $29.00 per share, the fair market value of the shares on such date (adjusted to reflect 
the two-for-one stock split effected in the form of a stock dividend on May 22, 1987), all of which are 
currently outstanding. These options expire on February 20, 1997. As of September 30, 1987, the 
aggregate market value of the shares subject to such options was $2,660,000, based upon a closing price of 
$33.25 per share for the Company's Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on that date. 

Amendment and Termination 

The Directors' Plan may be amended or terminated by the Board, except that stockholder approval is 
required for any amendment which would increase the number of shares subject to option under the plan, 
change the number of shares subject to option that may be granted each year, or decrease the price at 
which options may be granted. 

Transferability 

Options are not transferable, other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution, and are 
exercisable during the lifetime of an optionee only by the optionee. 

Federal Income Tax Information 

The options granted under the Directors' Plan are nonstatutory options (i.e. , they do not have any 
special status under the tax laws) . 

The grant of a nonstatutory option is not taxable to the Director and the Company cannot claim a 
deduction on account of the grant. When a nonstatutory option is exercised, the Director is taxable at 
ordinary-income rates on the difference between (a) the exercise price and (b) the fair market value of the 
shares on the date six months after the date of exercise. However, the Director may file a section 83( b) 
election within 30 days after the date of exercise, in which case the amount of ordinary income to be 
recognized with respect to the exercise would be determined on the date of exercise. The Director's basis 
in shares acquired by exercising a nonstatutory option is equal to their fair market value on the date six 
months after the exercise date (or on the date of exercise, if a section 83( b) election is made). In the year 
in which the Director recognizes income, the Company is entitled to a deduction equal to the amount of 
ordinary income so recognized. Special tax rules apply to the exercise of an option upon the surrender of 
previously held shares of Common Stock. 

Required Vote 

Adoption of the amendment to decrease, and to eliminate automatic adjustment of, the number of 
shares of Common Stock to be subject to annual option grants under the Directors' Plan requires the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. 

The Board of Directors recommends a vote For the amendment to the Stock Option Plan for Non­
Employee Directors of Tandem Computers Incorporated. 
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DESCRIPTION OF OTHER PLANS 

Other Stock Option Plans 

Tandem Computers Incorporated 1981 Stock Option Plan. The Tandem Computers Incorporated 
1981 Stock Option Plan (the" 1981 Plan") was approved by the stockholders at the Company's 1982 
Annual Meetings of Stockholders and, as amended, at the 1985 and 1987 Annual Meetings of 
Stockholders. The 1981 Plan was subsequently amended by the Board of Directors on (i) February 20, 
1987, to delegate administration on certain routine matters to the Non-Insider Option Committee 
(consisting of a person designated by the Board of Directors) and (ii) September 22, 1987, to provide for 
administration as to officers and directors by a committee of three disinterested members of the Board of 
Directors or the Board of Directors and to provide that an optionee may satisfy all withholding tax 
requirements incident to the exercise of a nonstatutory stock option with shares of the Company's Common 
Stock. Except as indicated above, the 1981 Plan is administered by the Compensation/Option Committee. 
All employees of the Company and its 50% or more owned subsidiaries, including officers and directors 
who are also employees, are eligible to receive options. Options may be either nonstatutory stock options 
or incentive stock options ("ISOs"). The maximum value of ISOs granted before 1987 is limited to 
$100,000 per year for each employee, subject to certain carryover provisions. ISOs may be granted for any 
value after 1986; however, options first exercisable in a calendar year that exceed $100,000 will be 
nonstatutory options. Options granted must have an option price of not less than 100% of the fair market 
value of the Company's Common Stock on the date of grant. Options may be made exercisable at such 
times as determined by the administering committee, provided that an ISO granted before 1987 may not 
be exercised while there is outstanding any ISO previously granted to the same employee. ISOs granted 
after 1986 need not be exercised sequentially and may be exercised prior to the exercise of ISOs granted 
before 1987. Except when an optionee's employment terminates because of death or permanent disability, 
an option may not be exercised for six months following the date of grant. Shares purchased upon the 
exercise of an option must be paid for in full at the time of exercise in cash or, with the consent of the 
Company, by (i) the surrender of previously-held shares of the Company's Common Stock, which shares 
will be valued for such purpose at their fair market value on the date of exercise, (ii) the surrender of 
shares and cash, (iii) delivery of a full recourse, interest-bearing promissory note to the Company, calling 
for periodic repayments over a period not to exceed 10 years from the date of exercise, or (iv) delivery of 
an irrevocable direction to a securities broker to sell shares and deliver all or a portion of the proceeds to 
the Company in payment for the stock. An optionee may satisfy all withholding tax requirements incident 
to the exercise of a nonstatutory stock option with shares of the Company's Common Stock. An option 
may not be exercised after 10 years from its effective date and is not transferable except by will or the laws 
of descent and distribution. In the event of a reorganization, stock split, combination of shares, stock 
dividend, or other recapitalization, the Compensation/Option Committee may make appropriate adjust­
ments in the number and kind of shares available for issuance under the 1981 Plan, in the number and 
kind of shares as to which outstanding options will be exercisable, and in the exercise price specified in any 
agreement with respect to any unpurchased shares. The Compensation/Option Committee may determine 
that an option will provide that the shares to be issued upon exercise of the option shall be subject to 
certain rights of repurchase by the Company at the option price. In such case, the option agreement will 
provide that if the optionee's employment terminates, the Company may repurchase a specified percentage 
of the shares. 
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Tandem Computers Incorporated 1979 Stock Option Plan. The Tandem Computers Incorporated 
1979 Stock Option Plan (the" 1979 Plan") was approved by the stockholders at the Company's 1980 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and, as amended, at the 1987 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The 1979 
Plan has been subsequently amended in the same manner as the 1981 Plan. The 1979 Plan is 
administered in the same manner as the 1981 Plan. The provisions of the 1979 Plan and the terms of the 
options granted under the 1979 Plan are substantially similar to those of the 1981 Plan, except as follows. 
Only employees of the Company, including officers and directors who are also employees, and employees 
and directors of its 80% or more owned subsidiaries, are eligible to receive options. Certain options 
outstanding on January 1, 1981, could not be designated as incentive stock options. 

Tandem Computers Incorporated Stock Option Plan for Employees of Affiliated Companies. The 
Tandem Computers Incorporated Stock Option Plan for Employees of Affiliated Companies (the 
"Affiliated Companies Plan") was adopted by the Board of Directors on August 1, 1986. The Affiliated 
Companies Plan is administered by the Compensation/Option Committee. Employees, including officers 
and directors, of certain designated subsidiaries of the Company are eligible to receive options. As of 
September 30, 1987, the only such designated subsidiary was Tandem Computers de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. 
In addition, options may be granted to employees of companies in which the Company owns voting 
securities but which are not deemed to be subsidiaries and to employees of companies with which the 
Company has established a business or commercial relationship. Only nonstatutory options may be 
granted under the Affiliated Companies Plan. Options granted may have an option price of 100%, or any 
percentage thereof as determined by the Compensation/Option Committee, of the fair market value of the 
Company's Common Stock on the date of grant. Options may be made exercisable at such times as 
determined by the Compensation/Option Committee, provided that an option may not be exercised after 
seven years from its date of grant. Payment may be made in cash or, with the consent of the Company, 
delivery of a promissory note or irrevocable sell direction to a securities broker as described above. The 
remaining provisions of the Affiliated Companies Plan are substantially similar to those of the 1981 Plan. 

Tandem Computers Incorporated Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan. The Tandem Computers 
Incorporated Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan was approved by the stockholders at the Company's 1978 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders and, as amended, at the 1979 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and was 
administered in the same manner as the 1981 Plan. The Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan expired on 
November 12, 1985, and no options granted under this plan are outstanding. The terms of the options 
granted under this plan were substantially similar to those of the 1981 Plan, except as follows. Only 
employees of the Company, including officers and directors, and employees and directors of its wholly­
owned subsidiaries, were eligible to receive options. Payment for shares purchased upon the exercise of an 
option could be by personal check or, with the consent of the Company, by delivery of a full recourse, 
interest-bearing promissory note. 

Tandem Computers Incorporated Qualified Stock Option Plan. The Tandem Computers Incorporated 
Qualified Stock Option Plan was approved by the stockholders in 1976 and was administered in the same 
manner as the 1981 Plan. The Qualified Stock Option Plan expired on November 12, 1985, and no 
options granted under this plan are outstanding. The terms of the options granted under this plan were 
substantially similar to those of the 1981 Plan, except as follows. Only key employees of the Company, 
including officers and directors, and its subsidiaries could be granted options. Options could not be 
exercised after five years from the date of grant. Under certain circumstances, options could not be 
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exercised while the optionee held another option previously granted at a higher option price. Payment for 
shares purchased upon the exercise of an option was by personal check. 

Individual Stock Option Agreements. The Company has entered into Non-Qualified Stock Option 
Plans and Agreements with Messrs. Andrew Knight, Thomas I. Unterberg, and Walter B. Wriston, 
directors of the Company. Under the Plans, Messrs. Knight and Unterberg were each granted a five-year 
option to purchase 24,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock, and Mr. Wriston was granted a five­
year option to purchase 20,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock. The per share exercise price of 
the options for Messrs. Knight, Unterberg, and Wriston are $9.50, $12.375, and $14.063, respectively, 
which equal 100% of the market value of the Company's Common Stock on the dates of grant (as adjusted 
for the two-for-one stock split effected in the form of a stock dividend on May 22, 1987). The provisions of 
these Plans are substantially similar to those of the Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan except that no further 
grants are permitted under these Plans. Mr. John B.M. Place, a former director of the Company, was 
similarly granted, during his term as director, two options to purchase 4,000 (of which 2,006 have lapsed) 
and 20,000 (of which 12,108 have lapsed) shares of the Company's Common Stock at $13.375 and 
$14.563, respectively, per share. 

Incentive Cash Bonus Plan 

The Company has an incentive cash bonus plan (the "Bonus Plan") in which selected individuals 
who have material roles in achieving certain corporate goals are eligible to participate. Awards under the 
Bonus Plan are made if certain goals are met with respect to revenue and pretax profit, or in cases of 
special individual contribution. Prior to fiscal 1986, only executive officers of the corporation were eligible 
to participate. No awards were made for fiscal years 1982 through 1985. For fiscal years 1986 and 1987, 
Messrs. Treybig, Marshall, Rynne, Peterson, and Laurich, all current executive officers as a group, and all 
employees (excluding current executive officers) were awarded an aggregate of $123,604, $92,478, 
$83,159, $77, 131 , $74,356, $1 ,264,653, and $4,827,874, respectively. Amounts awarded to current 
executive officers for fiscal 1987 are also included in the disclosure of management remuneration. 

1984 401(k) Investment Plan 

All non-union employees of the Company who are on its United States payroll, including directors 
who are employees of the Company, and the employees of certain participating subsidiaries, are eligible to 
participate in the Company's 1984 401(k) Investment Plan (the "Investment Plan"). The Investment 
Plan was amended and restated on November 7, 1985, to comply with the Tax Reform Act of 1984 and 
the Retirement Equity Act of 1984, and to make certain additional changes, including, but not limited to, 
an increase in maximum participant contributions from 10% to 12% of compensation. The amended and 
restated Plan was amended in January and September of 1986 to add a fourth investment fund and to 
provide for the crediting of interest to amounts distributed to terminated participants. The Plan was also 
amended, effective January 1, 1987, to comply with the Tax Reform Act of 1986 and, effective October 1, 
1987, to permit maximum participant contributions of 18% of compensation. 

Each participant may elect to contribute from 2% to 18% of his or her compensation, and the 
Company matches 25% of the first 6% of the employee's quarterly compensation contributed to the 
Investment Plan, subject to a maximum Company matching contribution of$I,200 per employee per plan 
year ending September 30. An employee's contributions are made by deferring that portion of his or her 
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compensation, thereby enabling such contributions to be made on a pretax basis. Effective for taxable 
years beginning January 1, 1987, only $7,000 may be contributed by a participant during a calendar year 
on a pretax basis. A participant is at all times fully vested in his or her contributions and becomes fully 
vested in Company contributions upon the last day of the fourth calendar quarter following the quarter for 
which such contributions were made. Contributions are held and invested by the Investment Plan trustee 
in four different funds. A participant may designate, within certain limitations, in which funds his or her 
accounts are to be invested. The Investment Plan permits participants to make hardship withdrawals and 
to borrow from their accounts at market rates under certain conditions. In general, the vested portion of a 
participant's accounts is distributed in a single-sum cash payment upon his or her termination of 
employment. 

Between October 1, 1984 and September 30, 1987, the Company made matching contributions under 
the Investment Plan for the accounts of Messrs. Marshall, Rynne, Peterson, and Laurich, all current 
executive officers as a group, and all employees (excluding current executive officers) in the aggregate 
amounts of $3,600, $3,600, $3,335, $3,600, $50,488, and $5,129,294, respectively. Amounts of Company 
contributions for current executive officers for fiscal 1987 are also included in the disclosure of 
management remuneration. 

Convertible Debenture Issuance 

On September 26, 1985, the Company issued a 9.5% Convertible Subordinated Debenture Due 
September 26, 1989, (the "Debenture") in the principal amount of $1,667,500 to Mr. Treybig. The 
Company may redeem the Debenture in whole or in part. The Debenture is convertible into shares of the 
Company's Common Stock at $8.338 per share, which was 115% of the closing sale price of the Common 
Stock on the date of issuance of the Debenture (as adjusted for the two-for-one stock split effected in the 
form ofa stock dividend on May 22,1987). The principal amount which may be converted at any time is 
limited to the greater of (i) the amount which has been called for redemption but not yet redeemed or (ii) 
25% of the aggregate principal amount commencing September 26, 1986, and an additional 25% each 
September 26 thereafter through 1989, unless Mr. Treybig is disabled or dies or a "change in control," as 
defined, occurs in which case the entire amount then outstanding is convertible. The Debenture may not 
be transferred by Mr. Treybig except upon his death. 

RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has reappointed the firm 
of Arthur Andersen & Co. as the Company's independent auditors for the 1988 fiscal year, subject to 
ratification by the stockholders. Representatives of Arthur Andersen & Co. are expected to be present at 
the Company's Annual Meeting. They will have an opportunity to make a statement, if they desire to do 
so, and will be available to respond to appropriate questions. 

The Board of Directors recommends a vote For ratification of the appointment of Arthur Andersen 
& Co. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES 

The Company's Board of Directors held six meetings during the 1987 fiscal year. All directors 
attended at least 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board and of the committees on which 
such directors serve. 

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed an Audit Committee, Nominating Committee, 
and Compensation/Option Committee of the Board. 

The current members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Morton Collins, Franklin P. Johnson, Jr., 
and Thomas I. Unterberg. The Audit Committee held eight meetings during the 1987 fiscal year. Its 
functions are to monitor the effectiveness of the audit effort, to supervise the Company's financial and 
accounting organization and financial reporting, and to select a firm of certified public accountants, whose 
duty it is to audit the books and accounts of the Company for the fiscal year for which they are appointed. 

The current members of the Nominating Committee are Messrs. Franklin P. Johnson, Jr., Andrew 
Knight, Thomas J. Perkins, Robert G. Stone, Jr., and Walter B. Wriston. The Nominating Committee 
held one meeting during the 1987 fiscal year. The Nominating Committee's function is to select nominees 
for election as directors. The Nominating Committee will consider nominees recommended by 
stockholders. Such recommendations should be submitted in writing to the Nominating Committee in care 
of the Secretary of the Company at its address set forth on the front page of this Proxy Statement. 

The current members of the Compensation/Option Committee are Messrs. Morton Collins, Thomas J. 
Perkins, and James G. Treybig. The Compensation/Option Committee held nine meetings during the 
1987 fiscal year. The Compensation/Option Committee's functions are to determine and supervise 
compensation to be paid to officers and directors of the Company and to supervise and manage the 
Company's Employee Stock Purchase Plan and stock option plans (except with respect to options granted 
to directors). 

BENEFICIAL OWNER 

As of November 13, 1987, The Equitable Life Assurance Society of the United States, 787-7th 
Avenue, New York, New York 10019, owned 5,577,613 shares (or 5.97%) of the Company's outstanding 
Common Stock. The Equitable Life Assurance Society of the United States has advised the Company that 
the shares are held by it and four of its subsidiaries. These entities have sole investment power with regard 
to 5,577,513 shares, shared investment power with regard to 100 shares, sole voting power with regard to 
3,174,013 shares, shared voting power with regard to 454,800 shares, and no voting power with regard to 
1,948,800 shares (as to which shares, the entities' clients have retained voting power). 

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS 

To be considered for presentation at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held in 1989, a 
stockholder proposal must be received at the offices of the Company, 19333 Vallco Parkway, Cupertino, 
California 95014, not later than August 21, 1988. 
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OTHER MATTERS 

The Board of Directors knows of no other business which will be presented at the Annual Meeting. If 
any other business is properly brought before the Annual Meeting, it is intended that proxies in the 
enclosed form will be voted in accordance with the judgment of the persons voting the proxies. 

Whether you intend to be present at the Annual Meeting or not, we urge you to return your signed 
proxy promptly. 

By order of the Board of Directors, 
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THOMAS J. KLITGAARD 

Secretary 
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Highlights 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30 1987 1986 1985 
Revenue $1,035,495,000 $767,793,000 $624,138,000 
Operating income $ 170,688,000 $105,978,000 $ 50,081,000 
Operating margin 16.5% 13.8% 8.0Q/o 
Net income $ 105,604,000 $ 63,766,000 $ 34,374,000 
Earnings per share $ 1.08 $ .72 $ .41 
Working capital $ 495,540,000 $384,419,000 $297,964,000 
Total assets $ 967,241,000 $705,025,000 $552,344,000 
Stockholders' investment $ 720,919,000 $534,680,000 $420,408,000 
Number of employees 7,007 5,719 

• • • • • 
Tandem Computers Incorporated, 
rounded 13 years ago, today ranks as 
a Fortune 500 company and employs 
over 7,000 people worldwide. It is a 
leading supplier or computer systems 
and networks ror on-line transaction 
processing. Tandem systems are widely 
used to run ATM and point-or-sale net­
works, stock exchanges, ractories, and 
other enterprises where hundreds 
or business transactions must be pro­
cessed each second and recorded 
instantly. 

Tandem provides the rully com­
patible ramily or NonStop systems that 

span the range or performance require­
ments ror on-line transaction process­
ing applications. Non top systems can 
run the same applications and can be 
networked with each other and with 
equipment rrom other vendors to pro­
vide a single computing resource ror 
an organization. The Company also 
orrers a UNIX\!! based system, as well as 
two lines or workstations. 

Tandem supports its customers 
rrom over 150 locations worldwide 
and manuractures its products in the 
United States, Mexico, and West 
Germany 

5,494 
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T 
his has been a year of 
tremendous achieve­
ment for Tandem. We 
reached a major mile-

stone by surpassing $1 billion in 
revenue for fiscal 1987, with strong 
earnings growth over last year. 

Our fiscal 1987 results reached 
record levels in both revenue and 
earnings. Compared with fiscal 
1986, revenue grew 35 percent to 
$1.035 billion, up from $768 mil­
lion, and earnings per share grew 
50 percent to $1.08, up from $.72. 

Worldwide, our business 
showed significant strength. U.S. 
sales improved markedly, up 27 
percent from fiscal 1986. Interna­
tional business grew 47 percent 
and now accounts for 43 percent 
of our revenue. 

In April 1987, Tandem Common 
Stock was traded for the first time 

on the New York Stock Exchange. 

base software that combines high 
productivity with high perfor­
mance. It significantly expands the 
markets for our products and gives 
us a competitive advantage. 

At the high end of our product 
offerings, we added six models to 
the NonStop VLX mainframe line. 
At the low end, we significantly 
strengthened our position to meet 
the growing demand for distributed 
processing and networking by 
extending our GUARDIAN soft­
ware-based product family with 
the introduction of the CMOS­
based NonStop CLX system. 

The LXN multiuser system, 
also introduced in 1987, is Tandem's 
first offering for users of U IX soft­
ware. It is an important product for 
us, one that will allow us to open 
new markets and develop addi­
tional distribution channels. 

To capture transactions gener­
Listing on the Exchange increases 
our visibility in international mar­
kets and allows our stock to be 
traded more widely. 

International Revenue as a 
Percent of Total 

ated on the desktop, we added 
new models to our 6AX worksta­
tion family; and, late in the year, 
we announced the PSX worksta­
tions, a new line of MS-DOS- and 
OS/ 2-based workstations designed 
around Intel 80286 and 80386 
microprocessors. 

43% 

Strategic New Products 
During the year, we announced 

a record number of hardware and 
software products. 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 To address the important area 

of workstation integration, we be-The NonStop SQL distributed 
relational database management 

system, based on the industry­
standard Structured Query Lan­
guage (SQL) interface, provides 
the industry's first relational data-

gan installing our MULTILAN local 
area network product at customer 
sites. MULTILAN allows customers 
to connect workstations to Tandem 
systems through nearly every type 



of local area network. 
Recognizing the need to inte­

grate and manage large networks 
of distributed systems and applica­
tions, we introduced the Distribut­
ed Systems Management software. 

Developing New Markets 

We made equity investments 
in companies whose strategies 
complement our own. Netlink, a 
leading-edge supplier of SNA in­
terfaces, strengthens our ability to 
integrate Tandem systems into 
SNA networks. Automated Moni-

Tandem continued to focus 
on strategic relationships with 
other companies to develop op­
portunities in new industries and 
to expand current markets. 

Earnings Per Share 
(amounts reflect a 2-for-1 stock split) 

toring and Control International, 
Inc. lAMCI), a joint venture with 
Union Pacific and SEL Canada, will 
allow us to seek new opportunities 
in the transportation industry. 

nos 

We w rked to strengthen rela­
tionships with more than 280 soft­
ware providers and value-added 
resellers (VARs) in Tandem's Alli­
ance program and, through agree­
ments with VARs, we opened new 

1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 

Shortly after the close of the 
fiscal year, we agreed to acquire 
Atalla Corporation, a leading sup­
plier of secure transaction systems. 
Atalla's market presence and exten­
sive experience in security systems 

(·,"cludes $.12 benefit from DISC tax reversal) 

distribution channels. 
Responding to the market 

opportunity for automation and in­
tegration in manufacturing, we 
announced the Tandem Integrated 
Manufacturing Environment 
(T. I.M.E.) strategy. We joined with 
three industry leaders, Electronic 
Data Systems ( EDS), Boeing 
Computer Services, and MSA 
Advanced Manufacturing Inc., to 
develop new software solutions 
for this market 

Also in 1987, we signed an 
agreement with a value-added 
res eller, Ultimate Corporation, 
which allows us to offer OLTP 
capabilities to the user base that 
has developed applications on the 
PICK operating system. 

complement our own position in 
financial and retail markets. 

Excellence in Service and Support 
During the year, we signifi­

cantly strengthened our service 
and support organizations. 
Emphasizing our commitment to 
quality service for customers, we 
added a vice president of Customer 
Engineering to our executive staff 
and introduced a number of new 
service and support options. 

To reduce service costs and 
enhance flexibility, we introduced 
our first user-serviceable systems, 
which diagnose faults and alert the 
computer operator. In the U.S., 
users will be able to order parts by 
phone and have them dispatched 
for overnight delivery. 



Outstanding Employee 
Productivity 

To ensure quality support for 
a growing customer base and to 
support our future growth, we 
made the first material increase 
in our employee population since 
1984, adding employees in sales, 
support, field administration, and 
research and development At the 
end of fiscal 1987, the number of 
employees worldwide reached 
7,007, compared to 5,719 at the 
close of fiscal 1986. 

Employee productivity is at 
an all-time high, with annual reve­
nue per employee reaching a 
record $163,000. People remain 
our most important asset, and we 
are investing in them through 
innovative educational and man­
agement development programs. 

We are proud of our results in 
fiscal 1987. This annual report pro­
vides a perspective of the past and 
the future of the Company. It in­
cludes statements from Tandem's 
original business plan. This plan 
is used at the Stanford Graduate 

School of Business as an example of 
a strategy successfully implemented. 

Our original business strategy 
has been the foundation for our 
success. The ongoing evolution and 
implementation of our long-term 
market and product strategies pro­
vide momentum for our goal of 
continued growth. 

The management and em­
ployees of Tandem have their 
sights set well beyond the first bil­
lion. We believe we have put the 
programs and products in place to 
help us achieve that goal. 

Sincerely, 

James G. Treybig 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Thomas J. Perkins 
Chairman of the Board 

ovember 13, 19 7 

James G. Treybig (left), President and 
Chief Executive Officer; Thomas J. Perkins, 
Chairman of the Board. 





The New York Stock Exchange 
on one of th e record-breaking 
volume days in October 1987. 

The Securities Industry Automation 
Corporation (SIAC) is charged with the 
monumental task of providing automa­
t ion support to the New York and 
American stock exchanges. 

SIAC uses Tandem systems to 
support almost every area of the secu­
rities industry, including order process­
ing, trading, and market data reporting 
for the New York Stock Exchange. 

In 1976, anticipating dramatic 
growth in stock trading volume and the 
need for a highly reliable computer 
system that could grow efficiently with 
it, SIAC looked to two-year-old Tandem 
Computers. 

At the time, typical daily trading 
volume on the New York Stock Exchange 
was 20 to 30 million shares. As predict­
ed by SIAC, this volume increased 
steadily over the next ten years. By the 
end of fiscal 1987, SIAC was using a 
network of 22 Tandem systems (more 
than 200 processors) to handle an 
average of 170 million shares daily. 

A critical test for the Tandem 
systems came on October 19 and 20, 
1987, when the 22 systems, intended to 
process up to 450 million shares daily, 
successfully handled over 600 million 
shares on successive days. 

As it did ten years ago, SIAC today 
forecasts sweeping changes in trading 
floor support systems, and it plans to 
work with Tandem to meet these new 
opportunities. 

• • • • • 
Around the world, 28 
securities and commodi­
ties exchanges and over 
40 brokerage firms use 
Tandem systems­
positioning the Company 
to grow as deregulation 
and competition drive the 
industry toward greater 
efficiency, 24-hour trading, 
and greatly increased 
transaction rates. 



n 1976, Tandem revolu­

tionized the computer 

industry by introducing 

a totally new parallel 

omputer archite ture designed specif­

ically for the on-line transaction pro­

ces ing ( LTP) marketplace. 

LTP is haracterized by the con­

tinual n d for instantaneous informa­

tion to upp rt vital aspects of business 

operations. LTP is the industry's most 

demanding nvironment because sys-

t m failure and loss of or damage to a 

u er' databa e can seriously disrupt 

bu ine op rations. 

In to k ex hanges, retail stores, 

fa torie, mmuni ations companies, 

airlin s, and other organizations, the 

number of transactions that must be 

pro d is burgeoning, creating an 

increasing demand for on-line transac­

tion pro essing systems that market 

analysts forecast will exceed 49 bil­

lion within the next five years. 

ustomers have come to trust 

and depend on Tandem products to 

in OLTP. At Tandem, technology 

leadership starts with a unique parallel 

computer architecture. 

• • • • • 
Tandem Sets the OLTP Standard 

We believe that Tandem sets the 

standard by which all other OLTP 

systems must be judged. Many users 

of on-line systems have found the 

fundamental elements of Tandem'S 

architecture-linear expandability, 

data integrity, fault tolerance, inherent 

networking, and high performance­

are requirements in the demanding 

OLTP environment. 

Tandem's flexible, parallel archi­

tecture has become a strategic com­

petitive advantage to many customers 

who have been first in their industries 

to deliver new revenue-generating 

services with OLTP systems. 

Because of their network founda­

tion, Tandem systems are well suited to 

meet the increasing demand for distrib­

uted computing and networking. There 

are Tandem systems for virtually any 

technologies, without sacrificing soft­

ware compatibility. This allows cus­

tomers to increase processing power 

while maintaining their investments in 

existing software applications. 

Improving the ratio of price to 

performance is a key part of Tandem's 

strategy. In April, Tandem addressed 

the requirement for cost-effective, 

low- end systems with the introduction 

of the NonStop CLX and LXN systems 

for smaller network nodes or 

remote locations. 

Equally important is the Com­

pany's emphasis on the development of 

software that makes distributed process­

ing easier and more cost-effective. 

• • • • • 
Distributed Database Management 

The cornerstone of Tandem's dis­

tributed processing strategy is an im­

portant new product, the NonStop SQL 

relational database management sys­

tem. We believe it provides a compel­

ling reason for customers to develop 

new applications on Tandem systems. 

run mainstream applications for one transaction processing need-from 

simple reason: Tandem systems provide small, stand-alone systems to those 

NonStop SQL software conforms 

to an emerging industry standard 

a competitive advantage. 

Many industry experts consider 

the Company a technology leader 

handling hundreds of transactions per for relational database management 

second in a single mainframe or across systems that provides significant 

networks of branch office systems. productivity improvements for appli-

Over the years, Tandem has en­

riched its product offerings by using 

higher performance, state-of-the-art 

cation developers. 

Before the introduction of 

NonStop SQL software, the industry 



Research & Development Expense 
($ in millions) 

1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 

lacked a relational database manage­

ment system that could provide the 

high performance necessary for OLTP. 

NonStop SQL provides a ratio of price 

to performance that is up to five times 

better than other SQL products running 

on the industry's largest mainframes. 

Tandem's NonStop SQL software is 

also the industry's first fully distributed 

relational database management sys­

tem. A single transaction can trans­

parently query or update information 

in multiple Tandem systems wherever 

they are located in the network. 

• • • • • 
Networking and Distributed 

Systems 

There is an emerging demand to 

link together workstations and dis­

persed systems to gain the numerous 

advantages of distributed computing. 

For customers wanting to bring 

the benefits of OLTP to the desktop, 

Tandem offers the MULTILAN prod­

ucts. With these products, users have 

the flexibility to choose virtually any 

loca l area network that uses standard 

NETBIOS protocols-extending 

Ta ndem system capabilities, such a 

fa ult to lera nce and data integrity, to 

personal computer appli ation . 

In addition, users must have tools 

to manage systems and networks. 

Tandem's Distributed y terns Man­

agement CD M) produ ts, announced 

in fisca l 19 7, meet this requirement. 

This fl exible software allows th man­

agement of systems, application ,and 

devices in a Tandem network to be 

centra lized, distributed, or both, de­

pending on the custom r's n ed . 0 M 

software tools increase operator pro­

ductivity by providing a single ie\i of 

the network. 

• • • • • 
Adding Value to Standards 

Tandem is committed to ad pting 

and making contributions to int r­

national and national standards uch a 

SQL, S A, the Ada language, IX, 

OSI , and local area network standards. 

tandards are importantto Tandem 

because they provide users with lower 

co ts and better connectivity, and will 

help them leverage their investments 

in other computer systems. 

• •••• 
Defining the Future of OLTP 

The future requi res innovation in 

technology, and Tandem is committed 

to ad an ing the tate of the art in its 

pr duct . The Company's strategic in­

vestments in its own VLSI circuit 

prototyp fabrication laboratory and 

omputer-aided de ign systems have 

pr due d the circuit designs for the 

, n top VLX y tern and controllers. 

U ing iii on compilation tech-

niqu \i e ha e been able to increase 

our ir uit d ign productivity to de­

elop pr du t more rapidly. In 19 7, 

" e announced the fir t result of our 

effort lh on top CLX sy tern. 

Thi 

Tandem' unique architectural advan­

tages to u er at mailer locations. 

Tandem' commitment to tech-

For example, in 19 7, we intro- nologi al excellence in hardware and 

duced on top QL software, Tandem sofu are combined with future prod-

Ada, a nd MULTlLA products. We also uct plan and a strategy to add value 

began shipping our new LXN multiuser to industry standards, provides the 

system that gives customers with stand- momentum to help us achieve our goal 

ard U IX applications access to Tandem to grow beyond the first billion. 

OLTP networks, adding a high degree 

of data integrity and system rel iability. 



Testing in November 1987 in 
Chicago of J.C. Penney's new 
Te/action home shopping 
system. 

J.e. Penney selected Tandem systems 
in 1985 to accomplish a major data 
processing project The $15 billion 
retailer enhanced its information re­
source to become its industry's leader 
in low-cost transactions. Using this 
transaction processing information 
resource, J.e. Penney provides high­
quality customer service. And, simul­
taneously, the company leverages its 
data processing investment by market­
ing its value-added network services. 

Initially, the company chose 
Tandem systems to integrate point-of­
sale credit authorization into its existing 
IBM SNA network. This move improved 
reliability and dramatically decreased 
average response time to within three 
seconds at the company's 70,000 point­
of-sale terminals. In winning the account, 
Tandem demonstrated a capability to 
deliver 50 percent more than the 100 
transactions per second required by 
J.e. Penney. 

In 1987, J.e. Penney announced 
a revolutionary interactive television 
home shopping service using Tandem 
NonStop computers. called Telaction, it 
brings the products of many retailers 
to cable television viewers. The first 
consumer-controlled home shopping 
system, it should be available in 60 
major cities over the next five years. 

• • • • • 
Faced with increasing 
competition, major re­
tailers look to Tandem 
systems to help them 
expand customer serv­
ices, reduce costs, and 
more efficiently man­
age their multistore 
operations. 





Manufacturing 16'\\0 

Communications 15'\\0 
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Other Financial 4'\\0 

eading businesses and Tandem Alliance Program 

government organiza- The Tandem Alliance program 

tions are demanding encourages the development of applica-

comprehensive solu- tion software solutions and new distri-

tions-proven, cost-effective combina- bution channels. It has established rela-

tions of computer hardware and appli- tionships with more than 280 software 

cation software that complement their providers and value-added resellers. 

long-term strategies. Business solutions The Tandem Alliance program 

are critical to the success of Tandem as provides sales, marketing, and techni-

well as of its customers. cal support to help ensure the success 

Tandem has aggressively estab- of its partners. 

Iished a broad range of strategic rela- The majority of Tandem Alliance 

tionships to offer customers quality members are independent application 

business solutions and to leverage our software houses that provide either off-

position in specific industries, geo- the-shelf or custom programs that run 

graphic markets, and technologies. on Tandem systems. They focus on in-

Tandem's strategic partnerships dustries identified by Tandem as high-

take several forms: equity investments, growth OLTP markets. 

joint ventures, acquisitions, and the Among Alliance members are 

highly successful Alliance program. some of the world's largest and most 

• • • • • 
Revenue by Industry 

(fiscal 1987) 

Government 

Wholesale & 
Retail Distribution 

Transportation 

Other 

Services 

7% 

6% 

3% 

1% 

18% 

respected software houses. They com­

mit development and marketing re­

sources to Tandem systems because 

Tandem's architecture enhances their 

own products and competitiveness. 

Some Alliance participants are 

Tandem customers who have devel­

oped sophisticated application soft­

ware for their own use and then have 



joined with Tandem to license their 

solutions to others. 

To increase the availability of 

Tandem systems and industry solutions 

for a wider spectrum of customers, the 

Alliance program has aggressively 

sought new channels of distribution 

through its value-added reseller pro­

gram. During 1987, revenue generated 

by value-added resellers doubled. 

In 1987, as part of Tandem's 

Alliance value-added reseller program, 

the Ultimate Corporation began mar­

keting Tandem systems packaged with 

software enabling them to run applica­

tions based on the PICK operating sys­

tem. Since PICK is an industry-standard 

operating system that runs an esti­

mated 75,000 applications, this repre­

sents an important market opportunity 

for Tandem. 

• • • • • 
Strategic New Ventures 

With the increasing sophistication 

of customer organizations and their 

OLTP application plans, Tandem fore­

sees a growing need by customers for 

solutions that are not currently avail­

able. Tandem is fulfilling that need with 

equity investments, joint ventures, and 

acquisitions to broaden its OLTP indus­

try offerings. 

During 1987, to bring the benefits 

of OLTP to the transportation industry, 

Tandem joined with SEL Canada and 

Union Pacific Railroad as stockholders 

in a new company, Automated Moni­

toring and Control International, Inc. 

CAMCI). AMCI will initially concen­

trate on developing an Advanced Train 

Control System CATCS) to enhance 

safety and significantly improve 

operating efficiency. 

• • • • • 
Leveraging Product Development 

To complement its own develop­

ment efforts, Tandem has made equity 

investments in companies whose tech­

nologies we believe can be leveraged 

for OLTP. 

In 1987, Tandem invested in et­

link, Inc., to strengthen further Tandem's 

position in providing products for inte­

gration with IBM's Systems etwork 

Architecture CS A). etlink's experi­

ence in providing solutions for the 

evolving S A communications en­

vironment complements and extends 

our own technical capabilities in A. 

Netlink and Tandem will jointly develop 

and market products that enhance the 

SNA-connectivity of Tandem systems 

with IBM systems. 

Shortly after the close of the fiscal 

year, Tandem agreed to acquire Atalla 

Corporation. Atalla provides secure 

system solutions in the areas of net­

work interchange, electronic payment, 

and computer security. These products 

complement Tandem's own capabilities 

in OLTP and will provide new product 

offerings for the financial and retail 

point-of-sale markets. 

• • ••• 
Meeting Worldwide Needs 

Tandem invests in selected com­

panies that offer software application 

design and support for key geographic 

markets. 

In 19 7, Tandem formed Twinac, a 

joint venture .. vith the VOLMAC group, 

a leading Dutch software company 

.. vith more than 2,000 employees. 

imilar to artecs (Tandem'S joint 

venture in Japan) , T .. vinac will help 

meet the growing demand for OLTP 

systems in the etherlands by provid­

ing project management and contract 

consulting services. 

Tandem will continue to develop 

these relationships and seek others that 

benefit customers as we work to move 

beyond the first billion. 



Girobank automated teller 
machines are located at post 
offices throughout England. 

In 1975, Applied Communications, 
Inc. (ACI), a start-up company with 
three employees, made a bold, strategic 
decision to entrust the future of its 
business to the entirely new computer 
architecture of another start-up 
company, called Tandem. ACI is now a 
leading provider of electronic delivery 
systems to the financial industry. 

To gain the competitive edge, 
ACI developed its software for auto­
mated teller machines (ATM) on Tandem 
systems. Its customers could depend 
on the high availability of their systems 
and the integrity of the data. And as 
customers' businesses grew, comput­
ing capacity could be expanded cost­
effectively to meet business needs. 

The strategy worked. ACI has 
won the largest share of the world's 
ATM networks, with over 250 installa­
tions in 34 countries. In 1986, ACI was 
acquired by U S WEST, Inc., the $8 bil­
lion telecommunications company with 
nine million customers in the 14 west­
ern states. 

Today, ACI, with 25 percent of 
its business in nonfinancial markets, 
is expanding its offerings in the retail, 
petroleum, and telecommunications 
markets- with a business strategy still 
based on Tandem systems. According 
to ACI, " It was the right strategy 12 
years ago, and it's the right strategy for 
the future!' 

• • • • • 
With installations at 
more than 300 banks 
worldwide, Tandem and 
its Alliance partners are 
poised to capitalize on 
the forces of deregula­
tion and competition 
that are driving the ex­
pansion of OLTP into 
new areas of banking. 



Businesspeople in Australia 
are using Telecom Australia's 
Te/ememo. 

Telecom Australia, the continent-wide 
telecommunications company serving all 
of Australia's businesses and 16 million 
people, began expanding its traditional 
revenue base in 1986 by introducing 
attractive new services that run on 
Tandem systems. Telecom chose the 
software and systems for these new 
services because they have been proven 
successful in other parts of the world 
by other Tandem customers. 

Telecom inaugurated its public elec­
tronic mail service, called Telememo, in 
1986, and plans to launch a public data­
base access service called iLink (for 
"intelligent link") in 1988. iUnk will pro­
vide users easy access to a variety of 
interactive databases. 

Both of these new services demon­
strate how Tandem customers often be­
come marketing "partners" with Tandem 
by offering other companies in their 
industry proven, proprietary packages 
that run on Tandem systems. Telememo 
is derived from the Telemail package, 
developed to run on Tandem systems 
by GTE Telenet and licensed to Telecom. 
iUnkwas originally developed, also on 
Tandem systems, as iNet by Bell Canada 
and licensed to Telecom. 

In preparation for a more deregu­
lated telecommunications environment 
in Australia, and to compete effectively 
against other private international net­
working organizations, Telecom has cre­
ated a separate division called Custom 
Link that is dedicated to pursuing other 
value-added-service opportunities. 

• • • • • 
A significant player in 
the dynamic telecom­
munications industry, 
Tandem presently has 
more than 70 customers 
worldwide and is antici­
pating an even bigger 
role as part of this indus­
try's exciting future. 



Sustained growth can be 
attained only through satisfied, 
successful customers. Tandem 
is dedicated to helping ensure 
the continued success of our 

customers by striving to 
provide the highest quality, 

most comprehensive service 
and support available in the 

industry. 
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ustomer satisfaction these needs. Just as Tandem's goal is to serviced more easily and quickly, the 

has played a major role set the standard for OLTP, it also seeks 

in Tandem achieving its . to set the industry standard for quality 
; 

first billion-dollar year. service and support. 

A fundamental reason why Tandem 

continues to rank high in customer 

satisfaction surveys is the Company's 

emphasis on excellence in customer 

service and support. 

Tandem systems are designed to 

meet the demanding requirements of 

on-line transaction processing. To 

many of our customers, this means that 

their systems must be running 24 hours 

a day. This high level of system avail­

ability not only requires computer sys­

tems designed to operate despite com­

ponent failures, but also a service and 

support team that can maintain and 

repair the systems while business 

operations continue. 

As Tandem installations grow in 

size and sophistication, so do the serv­

ice requirements. Tandem, in turn, con­

tinues to expand its offerings to meet 

• • • • • 
Quality Service Today 

Today, Tandem offers flexible 

service and support alternatives, from 

24-hour on-site service to telephone 

consultation. In addition, the Company 

provides project and program manage­

ment, network and application design 

and assistance, operations consulting, 

performance evaluation, and capacity 

planning. 

Tandem also offers classroom 

training at education centers and cus­

tomer sites around the world, and self­

paced computer-aided instruction for 

selected products. 

• • • • • 
Improved Serviceability by Design 

Tandem is continuing to empha­

size serviceability as a key engineering 

design goal for every new product 

customer's decision to install an in­

creased number of distributed Tandem 

systems is simplified. 

Perhaps even more important to 

customers implementing large-scale 

projects is Tandem's commitment to 

joint strategic planning. This joint plan­

ning helps Tandem customers meet 

their business objectives and reflects 

the Company's dedication to providing 

the highest level of customer support 

in the industry. 

• • ••• 
New Services in 1988 

The environment for computer 

users is growing more exciting every 

day, as new technologies and capabili­

ties emerge. This environment is also 

becoming more complex. Tandem'S 

goal is to make computing easier for 

its customers. 

For example, Tandem systems are 

typically connected to a wide variety of 

other vendors' devices. In 1988, the 

Technical innovation in product design Company plans to broaden its service 

supports Tandem's goal to offer a high offerings to include support of some of 

level of service and reduced service 

costs. And, because equipment can be 



Robotic welding of Saab auto­
mobiles in Sweden. 

In 1982, Saab Scania AB decided 
to introduce just-in-time manufacturing 
techniques for the production of its 
increasingly popular automobiles. To 
control its already highly automated 
plants, Saab selected Tandem computer 
systems because of its requirements 
for an on-line information resource that 
could grow easily and inexpensively to 
meettheanticipated increase in demand 
for its cars. Since then, Saab has steadi­
ly increased both production and its 
computer capacity. By 1989, it expects 
to produce 50 percent more cars than 
it did in the early 1980s. 

Saab's Tandem systems now 
control every phase of manufacturing 
at the company's two plants in Sweden. 
All cars are manufactured to advance 
customer orders on an assembly line 
that has been segmented into many 
small "minilines:' each with 20 to 30 
workers and its own quality control 
group. Part of the role of the Tandem 
systems is to direct parts assemblies 
from numerous off-site locations to 
each miniline just in time to build a 
specifiC car to the advance order. 

Saab's future goals are ambitious. 
A third, state-of-the-art plant is planned. 
In addition, the company intends to in­
tegrate the production systems with its 
robotic control systems. For greater 
efficiency, productivity, and employee 
satisfaction, it expects to develop a 
Tandem EXPAND network to link all 

• • • • • 
With more than 240 
manufacturers world­
wide using Tandem 
systems, the Company 
is well positioned to 
playa leading role in the 
challenging market for 
computer-integrated 
manufacturing. 



The foreign exchange trading 
room at First Chicago's Tokyo 
office. 

At a pivotal pOint for its business 
in 1978, First National Bank of Chicago 
developed new long-range strategies 
to meet the growing national and inter­
national requirements of its customers. 
To help accomplish its goals, the bank 
chose Tandem, with its critical fault­
tolerant technology, as a "strategic 
partner!' In turn, Tandem opened 
new overseas offices to support First 
Chicago, as well as to develop other 
international business. 

Today, First Chicago, with more 
than $44 billion in assets, is inaugurat­
ing new strategies to meet the sophisti­
cated needs of its corporate, middle 
market, and consumer banking custom­
ers. And First Chicago still considers 
Tandem a strategic partner. 

Extending its working relationship 
with Tandem, First Chicago is develop­
ing new applications and is upgrading 
its existing systems in global financial 
centers. In fiscal 1987, First Chicago 
awarded Tandem the largest computer 
order in First Chicago's history. 

For the past two years, First 
Chicago has named Tandem as its out­
standing data proceSSing supplier, citing 
"distinguished service and support!' 

• • • • • 
Distributed relational 
databases, flexible net­
working, and gateways 
offer all industries more 
efficient ways to handle 
information. In this area 
of tremendous potential 
growth, the Tandem 
architecture has distinct 
advantages. 



these key devices. Tandem also plans 

to expand its customized services for 

large users who want a single source 

of support. 

orne Tandem customers are plan­

ning to implement large networks by 

purchasing quantities of Tandem's 

lower-cost CLX, EXT, and LX systems 

and installing them in numerous geo­

graphically remote locations. To sup­

port these customers, Tandem plans to 

establish and staff additional service 

and support centers in 10 ations 

throughout the world. These centers 

will become the first points of contact 

for customers, either by telephone or 

other electroni connections, providing 

prompt system diagnosis. 

• • • • • 
Enhanced Support Programs 

The Company is enhancing its 

on-line Customer Information ervice, 

through which subscribing customers 

can keep abreast of a broad range of 

Tandem technical topics. Educational 

offerings also are being made available 

in more flexible formats and through 

new delivery systems, such as the 

Tandem Television Network. 

Tandem plans to open an ad­

vanced customer support facility in 

Cupertino, California, to provide serv­

ices to Tandem customers worldwide. 

The facility will house centers for 

expanded benchmark operations, ap­

plication software conversion, design 

assistance, and network assurance to 

test large network configurations prior 

to installation. 

Tandem'S High-Performance 

Research Center in Frankfurt, West 

Germany, also has been expanded to 

provide additional consulting capabili­

ties to Tandem's key customers and 

software houses around the world. As 

more customers move to distributed 

computing and networked environ­

ments, the high level of service and 

support Tandem provides will become 

even more important 

Customer satisfaction remains a 

cornerstone of our success. Tandem 

plans to continue investing in new serv­

ice and support offerings to achieve its 

goals beyond the first billion. 

Service and Support Personnel 

2519 
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andem is a recognized the employees themselves to our cus- PS MAIL software, a standard 

leader and innovator in tomers, who are the beneficiaries of Tandem product, operates over the 

employee relations, the experience and motivation of Company's worldwide network, 

making significant in- Tandem people. instantly linking more than 7,000 

vestments in its most important asset- The heart of Tandem's programs employees in 19 countries. 

Tandem employees. is communication. The Company be- In addition to communicating im-

"We develop people as well as lieves that employees who are in- portant business news, PS MAIL allows 

systems" exemplifies Tandem's attitude formed and encouraged to participate employees to have access to Tandem's 

toward and development of this stra- will be more productive and build a far technical specialists around the world, 

tegic resource. stronger company. History has proven efficiently leveraging our resources to 

Over the years, Tandem has im- Tandem right support customers. 

plemented numerous programs aimed 

at a single goal: attracting and retain­

ing outstanding employees. The bene­

fits of these programs extend beyond 

Annual Revenue Per Employee 
($ ,n thousands) 

163 

102 -1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 

The results of these programs are • • • • • 
impressive: an employee turnover rate Tandem Television Network 

well below the industry average; one The Company's use of television 

of the highest employee productivity as an employee communication 

levels in the nation; and a 1987 ranking medium began in 1982 with monthly 

of Tandem by Business Week magazine broadcasts. Originating from the 

as one of the 50 most competitive 

U.S. corporations. 

The Company invests in the latest 

communication technology. Tandem 

Cupertino headquarters, the first tele­

conferences reached 15 sites in the 

United States. 

Today, the Tandem Television Net-

goes beyond the usual employee news- work (TIN) is an award-winning 

letter to electronic mail, teleconfer- private broadcast network reaching 68 

encing, and incentive programs that 

facilitate communication across job 

functions and organizational and geo­

graphic boundaries. 

• • • • • 
Electronic Open Door 

Tandem has extended its tradi­

tional open door policy through the 

use of a private, worldwide electronic 

mail system. 

sites in North America. Several times 

each year, it broadcasts to European 

sites also. 

Originally designed to improve 

internal communication, TIN has be­

come a valuable corporate resource 



Tandem's Harald Sam mer, at 
left, with Dr. Andreas Reuter of 
the Univers ity of Stuttgart. 

One of the world's foremost academic 
experts in the field of transaction pro­
cessing is now pursuing practical, pro­
ductive research into high-performance 
parallel processing, largely due to the 
initiative of a Tandem employee who 
secured a grant from Tandem. 

Independent research under the 
direction of Dr. Andreas Reuter at the 
Department of Computer Science at 
the University of Stuttgart was ham­
pered by the lack of the ideal computer. 

In Frankfurt, Harald Sammer, 
director of Tandem's High-Performance 
Research Center, asked Tandem man­
agement to donate a system to the 
university. Working with the Corporate 
Contributions Committee, he won 
approval for the gift of a NonStop TXP 
system, valued at over $600,000. 

"The best system for our 
PROSPECT research program-which 
stands for Processor Organization Sup­
porting Parallel Execution of Complex 
Transactions-is the Tandem system 
with its inherent parallel processing 
capabilities and message-based oper­
ating system!' The PROSPECT team's 
objective is to develop a programming 
interface for parallel processing 
that is as simple as classical, sequential 
programming and that executes 
automatically. 

Tandem also provided training 
for a group of faculty members and 
graduate students, and maintained the 
system. The state government now pro­
vides funding for full-time researchers, 
and Sammer's staff supports them with 
consultation and exchange of ideas. 

In addition to its use in advanced 
research, the Tandem system is used 
to teach undergraduate students the 
basics of database, transaction pro­
cessing, and expert systems. 

• • • • • 
Tandem remains an 
exciting company by 
attracting quality individ­
uals who want demanding 
challenges in a creative, 
stimulating environment. 



extended to our customers. During 

1987, IT broadcast severallnterna­

tiona I Tandem Users' Group telecon­

ferences and the Tandem VISIONS 

series, which features noted authorities 

discussing future business, economic, 

and social trends. 

This year, Tandem began an 

exciting new venture, Educational Tele­

vision (ElV). Designed to deliver 

technical information to employees, 

customers, and business partners, ETV 

provides cost-effective, comprehensive 

education to a wide audience. 

• • • • • 
Rewarding Outstanding 

Performance 

Tandem offers a wide variety of 

benefit programs, developed to reward 

excellence in performance. 

Employee stock purchase and 

option programs, for instance, are 

designed to allow all employees to 

share financially in the success of 

the Company. Virtually all employees 

own or have options to purchase 

Tandem stock. 

In addition, several times each 

year, selected individuals are recog­

nized for exceptional achievement by 

nomination to Tandem Outstanding 

Performers (TOPS). TOPS winners 

come from all job functions, organiza­

tions, and locations. The winners are 

invited to attend an off-site meeting 

that provides an opportunity to 

exchange ideas and information with 

senior management. 

• • • • • 
Sabbatical Programs 

Another valued employee benefit 

is our sabbatical program. Tandem's 

program (available worldwide, except 

in countries where local customs allow 

extended annual vacations) grants an 

employee, on each fourth anniversary 

of employment, a six-week, fully paid 

leave-in addition to vacation time. 

In 1987, the scope of that program 

was expanded to include the Public 

Service Sabbatical, which reflects 

the Company's commitment to return 

some of the rewards of success to 

the community. 

Under the Public Service Sabbati­

cal program, employees volunteer to 

work with a charitable organization. 

Tandem grants the volunteer additional 

leave-time, as well as monetary sup­

port for travel and living expenses for 

the employee and immediate family. 

New benefit programs constantly 

are under development and introduc­

tion. Among those inaugurated during 

1987 are childcare referral and depend­

ent care assistance programs; a health 

and well ness program that provides 

on-site physical examinations as well 

as fitness and nutritional counseling; 

and financial planning seminars. 

Tandem's focus on hiring, develop­

ing, and retaining outstanding people­

along with continuing investments in 

programs to support those goals-will 

help the Company grow beyond the 

first billion. 



Martha Jennings took her 
Tandem Public ServiceSabba­
tical in rural Senegal. 

Village women of Senegal were among 
the first beneficiaries of Tandem's newly 
inaugurated Public Service Sabbatical 
program, which supports employees' 
desires to perform volunteer work. 

Martha Jennings, who joined 
Tandem in 1982 as a marketing support 
specialist, developed an interest in the 
role of women in Third World cultures 
during her years working at Tandem 
locations throughout Asia. 

When the time came for her 
Tandem sabbatical, Martha became one 
of the first participants in Tandem's 
Public Service Sabbatical program. This 
program enables employees to com­
bine public service with the regular six­
week, fully paid leave that employees 
earn every four years. Tandem extends 
the sabbatical and helps pay expenses. 

Martha chose to spend five 
weeks as a volunteer with the U.S. 
Agency for International Development, 
teaching rural Senegalese women in 
seven different villages how to make 
money from ongoing projects such as 
cattle raising. Her courses covered 
choosing a feasible project, marketing 
the product, and understanding credit 
systems. Drawings were used in the 
makeshift outdoor classrooms because 
the women were unable to read. 

Martha is now a project leader in 
the StrategiC Planning/New Ventures 
group at Tandem headquarters. 

• • • • • 
Tandem is as innovative 
in designing programs 
that encourage em­
ployee loyalty as it is in 
designing systems. 





Overview 
Tandem Computers seeks to provide leadership in the 
expanding market for on-line transaction processing 
(OLTP) systems and networks. The Company believes that 
its computer architecture has major advantages in satisfying 
the fundamental requirements for such systems and net­
works. Achieving its goal of leadership involves many fac­
tors, including strategic market positioning, a commitment 
to product development, customer satisfaction, and an 
organizational structure and philosophy that foster 
employee productivity and creativity. Additionally, Tandem 
believes it is important to maintain a strong financial posi­
tion to compete effectively in the rapidly growing OLTP 
marketplace. 

Financial Condition 
Throughout fiscal 1987, the Company strengthened its finan­
cial position. Cash and cash investments grew for the fifth 
consecutive year, from $240 million at September 30, 1986, 
to $317 million at September 30,1987. Contributing to the 
growth of the cash balance were income from operations, 
employee stock purchases, and improvements in asset 
management. In fiscal 1987, net income increased 66 per­
cent over the prior fiscal year, and cash flow from opera­
tions reached $159 million, compared with 138 million in 
fiscal 1986 and $91 million in fiscal 1985. 

The Company believes that attracting and retaining 
high-quality employees are key to success. Methods to 
achieve these objectives include employee stock option and 
stock purchase programs. These programs also serve as a 
source of funds for the Company. As a result of these pro­
grams, the Company received $81 million in fiscal 1987, 51 
million in fiscal 1986, and $11 million in fiscal 1985 in the 
form of employee stock purchases and related tax benefits. 

The Company continues its emphasis on asset manage­
ment. During fiscal 1987, accounts receivable grew at a rate 
lower than that of revenue. Accounts receivable days out­
standing improved to 80 days at year-end, compared with 
82 days at the end of fiscal 1986 and 86 days at the end of 
fiscal 1985. Inventories at fiscal year-end increased 28 
million over the fiscal 1986 year-end level. Although inven­
tory days increased slightly to 80 days in fiscal 1987 from 78 
days in fiscal 1986, current inventory management repre­
sents a substantial improvement over the 110 days recorded 
in fiscal 1985. The Company believes the current inventory 
level is appropriate. 

During fiscal 1987, the Company invested 161 million 
of cash in property, plant and equipment, and other assets, 
compared with $71 million and 67 million in each of the 
previous two fiscal years. The increased investment primar­
ily supported the Company's rapid growth. For example, the 
Company installed its newest computer systems in field 
offices, expanded systems to accommodate personnel 
growth, and invested in field-replaceable parts to support 
an expanding customer base. 

In addition, during the year, Tandem purchased two 
buildings in Cupertino, California. Previously, Tandem had 
not owned the buildings it occupied in its headquarters 
area. In fiscal 1987, the Company began implementing a 
program to create a permanent headquarters complex. This 
program includes projects to improve owned and leased 
buildings. In fiscal 19 ,the Company plans to purchase at 
least five additional buildings in the community, including 
some that it currently leases. The additional space will allow 
for expansion and for relocation of employees housed in 
other anta Clara County, California, locations. 

Tandem believes that demonstrated financial strength 
is important in order to compete effectively in high tech­
nology markets. Consequently, the Company considers it 
strategically important to maintain a sound ratio of current 
assets to current liabilities and a conservative capital struc­
ture. The current ratio at fiscal year-end remained strong at 
3.6:1, although it declined slightly from 3.9:1 at the end of 
the prior year. This was primarily the result of capital acqui­
sitions programs that invested cash in long-term assets. At 
the end of fiscal 19 7, the ratio of long-term debt and capital 
lease obligations remained at a very low 1.2 percent of total 
capital. Lines of credit totaled 65 million, all of which were 
unused. The equity base grew to 721 million in fiscal 19 7, 
from 535 million in fiscal 19 6. 

Results of Operations 
The following table summarizes the changes in selected 
operating indicators. The percentages on the left show the 
relationships of various income and expense items to reve­
nue. The percentages on the right measure the year-to-year 
increases or decreases. 



Percent of Revenue 

Product revenue 

ervice and other revenue 

100 Total revenue 

22 23 30 Cost of product 

13 11 13 ost of service and other 

35 37 43 Total cost of revenue 

10 11 12 Research and development 

Marketing, general and 
administrative 

Operating income 

Interest income, n t 

Amounts may not total due to rounding. 

Revenue 

Percent Increase 
( Decrease) 

29 35 

35 23 

29 (6) 

26 26 

35 27 

61 112 

67 36 

62 103 

56 131 

66 6 

50 76 

Tandem' revenue growth rate again increas d in fiscal 1987, 
as the Company expanded its position as a leading supplier 
of on-line transaction pro essing systems and networks. 
Revenue grew 35 percent to 1.035 billion in fiscal 19 7 over 
the 7 million posted in fis al 19 6. The fiscal 1986 reve-
nue growth rate was 23 percent. Tandem's revenue gains 
over the past two years resulted from increased shipments 
of hardware and software products to new and existing cus­
tomers and from an increased number of customers using 
its support and training services. 

Over the past two years, the Company introduced a 
number of new products, including systems, software, stor­
age products, and peripherals, which contributed to revenue 
growth. In particular, the on top VLX computer system, 
introduced in fiscal 19 6, and related products opened new 
high-end markets for the Company. Product revenue in fis­
cal 19 7 grew 36 percen~ partly due to continued customer 
acceptance of these products. ervice and other revenue in 
fisca119 7 grew 29 percent, somewhat slower than product 
revenue, in part because new technology lowered service 
costs to customers. 

Domestic business strengthened throughout the year, 
growing at 27 percent in fiscal 1987, compared with 11 per­
cent in fiscal 19 6. As in the prior fiscal year, international 
revenue growth exceeded domestic growth. Revenue from 
Europe grew 46 percent in fiscal 1987, somewhat slower 
than the prior fiscal year's rate of 52 percent. International 
business accelerated in non-European countries by 50 per-

cent in fiscal 1987, compared with 37 percent in fiscal 1986. 
International business continued to grow as a percent 

of revenue. Europe contributed 29 percent of fiscal 1987 
revenue, compared with 27 percent in fiscal 1986 and 22 
percent in fiscal 1985. Other international business contrib~ 
uted 14 percent of revenue in fiscal 1987 versus 13 percent tn 

fiscal 1986 and 11 percent in fiscal 1985. While the United 
States remained the largest contributor to revenue, with 57 
percent of the Company's business coming from domestic 
customers, its share was 60 percent in fiscal 1986 and 67 
percent in fiscal 1985. 

Operating Income 
Operating income increased sharply, reaching $171 million, 
or 16 percent of revenue, in fiscal 1987. This represents a 
significant improvement from the $106 million, or 14 percent 
of revenue, recorded in fis al1986 and the $50 million, or 8 
percent of revenue, recorded in fiscal 1985. The improve­
ment in operating margin is largely attributable to higher 
gross profit margins resulting from a favorable product mix 
and the Company's continued improvements in manufactur­
ing and service operations. 

Cost of Revenue 
The improvement in cost of revenue as a percentage of 
revenue is due to several factors. Tandem successfully con­
tinued its programs to increase the efficiency of its manu­
facturing and service operations. In addition, cost of product 
as a percentage of revenue declined over the past three 
years. The percentage improved because the Company sold 
a favorable mix of products, many of which incorporate 
new technologies that provide greater performance at lower 
cost. The improvement in cost of service and other as a per­
centage of revenue was partially attributable to dramatic 
improvements in reliability of peripheral subsystems, such 
as the XL8 disk subsystem. 

Cost of product increased 29 percent in fiscal 1987 over 
its fiscal 1986 level, primarily due to increases in volume. In 
fiscal 1986, cost of product declined 6 percent from the fis­
cal 1985 level, as manufacturing efficiencies offset volume­
related cost increases. The 26 percent increases in cost of 
service and other recorded in both fiscal 1987 and 1986 
were primarily attributable to growth in the installed base. 

Research and Development 
Research and development expenditures declined as a per­
centage of revenue over the past three years. This was par­
tially attributable to higher than anticipated revenue, as well 



as capitalization of certain software expenditures. Although 
declining as a percentage of revenue, research and develop­
ment expenditures increased over the past three years to 
support new product development efforts and programs to 
enhance existing products. Research and development activi­
ties focus on meeting the needs of customers who are im­
plementing on-line systems at single sites and in geographi­
cally distributed information processing networks. Among 
the products announced in fiscal 1987 that resulted from 
prior years' research and development spending were 
NonStop SQL software, the NonStop CLX computer system, 
and the Distributed Systems Management software. The 
Company expects to increase expenditures on research and 
development in fiscal 1988. 

Marketing, General and Administrative 
The Company's marketing strategy emphasizes direct sales 
to organizations that are implementing on-line transaction 
processing applications critical to their businesses. The 
Company believes that offering solutions to customers' 
business problems and providing a high level of service and 
support are essential to meeting the needs of the customer 
base. To do this, Tandem has built a direct selling and sup­
port organization in the United States and in international 
industrial markets. Direct sales activities are complemented 
by relationships established with third-party application soft­
ware developers, equipment remarketers, and distributors. 

Over the past three years, the Company introduced 
products that required expenditures to bring those products 
to market Despite this, in fiscal 1987, marketing, general 
and administrative expenditures as a percentage of revenue 
remained unchanged from the prior year, although they 
were slightly higher than in fiscal 1985. 

The level of marketing, general and administrative ex­
penditures has increased over the past three years as the 
Company continued to build its marketing organization, to 
train new and existing sales, service, and support personnel, 
and to develop marketing relationships with third parties in 
order to support the Company's growth. Tandem has also 
invested in joint ventures and taken equity positions in 
companies whose product, market, or geographic strengths 
support the Company's strategies. 

Net Income and Earnings Per Share 
The rate of change in net income has differed from that of 
operating income over the past three years because of the 
factors discussed above and because of changes in the 
Company's interest income and effective tax rate. In fiscal 
1987, net interest income was almost $6 million higher than 
in fiscal 1986, and $8 million higher than in fiscal 1985. et 
interest income increased primarily because of significantly 
higher balances of interest-earning investments. 

The effective tax rate in fiscal 1987 was 43 percent, 

compared with rates of 44 percent in fiscal 1986 and 39 per­
cent in fiscal 1985. The decline in the effective tax rate in fis­
cal 1987 versus 19 6 was primarily the result of lower 
federal statutory tax rates brought about by the passage of 
the Tax Reform Act of 1986, offset by the repeal of the 
investment tax credit The effective tax rate in fiscal 1986 
was higher than in fiscal 19 5 primarily because of higher 
levels of pretax income and a reduction of the research and 
development credit. Under the Tax Reform Act of 19 6, the 
Company anticipates a lower tax rate in fiscal 19 due to 
the lowering of statutory rates. 

Earnings per share in fiscal 19 7 were 1.0 ,compared 
with earnings per share in fiscal 19 6 of .72 and in fiscal 
19 5 of AI. (Earnings per share reflect a two-for-one stock 
split effected in the form of a stock dividend in the 1987 fis­
cal year.) In each of the last three fiscal years, the growth in 
earnings per share differed from that of net income because 
of a higher number of weighted average shares outstanding. 
Under the treasury stock method of calculating weighted 
average shares outstanding, higher stock prices result in a 
greater dilutive effect from outstanding stock options. Sales 
of stock to employees under the stock purchase plan and 
grants under option plans, combined with higher stock 
prices, resulted in increases in weighted average shares 
outstanding of 11 percent in fiscal 19 7, 6 percent in fiscal 
1986, and 1 percent in fiscal 19 5_ 

Personnel 
In fiscal 1987, to support growth experienced over the past 
three fiscal years, Tandem increased personnel by 23 per­
cent This compares with a 4 percent personnel increase in 
fiscal 19 6 and a 5 percent personnel increase in fiscal 19 5. 
While hiring occurred in all functional areas, the greatest 
percentage increases were in research and development 
and marketing, reflecting investments in areas the Company 
believes are critical to its success. 

Impact of Currency 
In fiscal 1987, the weakness of the U. . dollar against foreign 
currencies had a positive influence on revenue; however, 
the Company believes the impact was largely moderated by 
price reductions taken to maintain consistent pricing across 
international boundaries. This factor, combined with the 
negative effect of strengthening currencies on international 
expenditures, resulted in an overall impact that the Com­
pany believes was not significant to operating income. 

Effect of Inflation 
The effect of inflation on the Company's financial results has 
not been significant. 

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with 
the current period presentation. See footnote 2 to the financial statements. 



For the Five Years Ended eptember 30, 1987 

(In thousands except per share amounts) 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 

Revenue 1,035,495 $767,793 $624,138 $532,620 $418,282 

Cost of revenue 358,228 279,924 268,589 233,846 188,228 
Research and development 108,474 87,024 73,832 52,982 39,489 
Marketing, general 

and administrative 398,105 294,867 231,636 194,691 140,794 

Operating Income 170,688 105,978 50,081 51,101 49,771 
Interest income, net 14,223 8,504 6,269 5,183 730 
Provision for income taxes 

Current period 79,307 50,716 21,976 23,076 19,696 
Benefit of DI C tax reversal (9,700) 

et Income 105,604 $ 63,766 $ 34,374 $ 42,908 $ 30,805 

Earnings Per Share 1.08 $ .72 $ Al $ .52 .38 

Total assets 967,241 $705,025 $552,344 $501,873 $415,525 
Long term debt and capital 

lease obligations 9,013 $ 5,725 $ 11,765 $ 16,871 $ 23,922 
tockholders' investment 720,919 534,680 $420,408 $375,122 $310,993 

Certain prior period amounts have been re las ified to conform to the current period presentation. ee footnote 2 to the financial statement. 

hown above are some of the newer members of the Tandem product line. Clockwise, from left, are the 
on top EXT25 systems, the P X workstation, and the LXN system. 



For the Three Years Ended September 30, 1987 

(In thousands except per share amounts) 1987 1986 19 5 

Revenue 
Product revenue 861,042 632,277 523,413 
Service and other revenue 174,453 135,516 100,725 

Total revenue 1,035,495 767,793 624,13 

Costs and Expenses 
Cost of product revenue 226,804 175,239 1 5,565 
Cost of service and other revenue 131,424 104,6 5 3,024 
Research and development 108,474 7,024 73, 32 
Marketing, general and administrative 398,105 294, 67 231,636 

Total costs and expenses 864,807 574,057 

Operating Income 170,688 50,0 1 
Interest expense (1,588) (2,407) 
Interest income 15,811 ,676 

Income Before Income Taxes 184,911 114,4 2 56350 

Provision For Income Taxes 79,307 50,716 21,976 

Net Income 

Earnings Per Share .72 Al 

Weighted average shares outstanding ,402 3,530 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 

TA DEM COMPlITERS I CORPORATED A D UB IDIARIES 



Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash investments 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $8,378 in 1987 and $7,292 in 1986 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total current assets 

Property Plant and Equipment, at cost 
Land and buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Computer equipment and spares 
Lea ehold improvements 
Con truction in process 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

ccrued liabilities 
Accrued payroll and payroll related 
A crued va ation 

ccrued commissions to third parties 
Deferred income 
Income taxes 

ther 
Current portion of long term debt and capital lease obligations 

Total current liabilities 

Long Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations 

Deferred Income Taxes 

Stockholders' Investment 
Common stock .025 par value, authorized 200,000,000 shares, 

outstanding 93,160,054 in 1987 and 87,837,512 in 1986 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 

Total stockholders' investment 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these balance sheets. 

TA DEM COMPlITER I CORPORATED A D US IDIARIES 

1987 1986 

$317,461 $239,819 
254,758 197,658 

92,315 64,229 
22,776 17,505 

687,310 519,211 

54,336 38,652 
80,395 62,302 

199,901 137,388 
41,348 34,270 
21,821 9,513 

397,801 282,125 
( 145,000) (107,103) 

252,801 175,022 

27,130 10,792 

967,241 $705,025 

$ 78,714 $ 50,768 

27,925 21,290 
15,789 10,795 
13,008 4,996 
13,521 2,719 
10,989 21,670 
30,324 16,585 

1,500 5,969 

191,770 134,792 

9,013 5,725 

45,539 29,828 

2,329 2,196 
368,845 2 8,343 
349,745 244,141 

720,919 534,6 0 

967,241 $705,025 



For the Three Years Ended September 30,1987 

Additional 
Common Stock Paid-In Retained 

(In thousands) Shares Amount Capital Earnings Total 

Balance September 30, 1984 81,234 2,031 227,090 146,001 375,122 
Sale of common stock 

under stock option plans 704 17 3,866 3, 3 
Sale of common stock 

under stock purchase plan 836 21 6,173 6,194 
Tax benefit from employee 

transactions in common stock 35 35 
Net income 34,374 34,374 

Balance September 30, 1985 82,774 2,069 237,964 0,375 420,40 
Sale of common stock 

under stock option plans 4,286 107 39,199 39,306 
Sale of common stock 

under stock purchase plan 778 20 5,916 5,936 
Tax benefit from employee 

transactions in common stock 5,264 5,264 
Net income 63,766 63,766 

Balance September 30, 1986 87,838 2,196 28 ,343 244,141 534, ° Sale of common stock 
under stock option plans 4,859 121 51, 39 51,960 

Sale of common stock 
under stock purchase plan 463 12 7,613 7,625 

Tax benefit from employee 
transactions in common stock 21,050 21,050 

Net income 105,604 105,604 

Balance September 30, 1987 93,160 2,329 349,745 720,919 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statement. 

TA OEM COMPUTER I CORPORATED A 0 UB IDIARIES 



For the Three Years Ended eptember 30. 19 7 

( In thousand ) 1987 1986 1985 

Funds (Cash and cash investments) 
at beginning of period $239,819 $128,676 $106,862 

Funds Provided by Operations 
et income 105,604 63,766 34,374 

Item not requiring current outlay of funds 
Depreciation and amortization 52,025 43,242 35,616 
Deferred in orne taxes 15,7 11 (2,890) 12,296 

et book value of property, plant 
and equipment old or retired 14,868 8,742 13,810 

Funds provided by (u ed for) working capital items 
Increa e in accounts re eivable (57,100) (34,280) (17,036) 
Decrea e (increas ) in inventories (28,0 6) 14,733 13,413 

et change in prepaid exp nses and 
non-debt urrent liabilities 56,176 45,161 (1,795) 

Total provided by operations 159,19 13 ,474 90,678 

142,364 65,011 67,568 
1 ,646 5,860 511) 

Total inv ted to support operations 161,010 70,871 67,057 

Fund Provided by (Used for) Financing Activities 
Decrease in long term debt and 

capital lea e obligations, n t (1,181) (6,966) (12,719) 
Ie of common stock under employee 
stock option and sto k pur has plans 59,585 45,242 10,077 

Tax benefit from employee transa tions 
in common sto k 21,050 5,264 835 

Total provided by (used for) 
external financing activities 79,454 43,540 (1,807) 

et increase in cash and 
cash equivalents 77,642 111,143 21,814 

Funds ( Cash and cash investments) 
at end of period 317,461 $239,819 $128,676 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 

TA OEM COMPUTER I CORPORATED A D UB IDIARIES 



1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of Tandem Computers Incorporated and its 
wholly owned subsidiaries after elimination of intercom­
pany accounts and transactions. 

Revenue Recognition 
The Company generally recognizes revenue from equip­
ment sales at the time of shipment. Service and other 
revenue are recognized ratably over the contractual 
period or as the services are provided. 

Translation of Non-U.S. Currency Amounts 
Assets and liabilities of the Company's subsidiaries which 
are denominated in the local currency of the subsidiary 
are translated into U.S. dollars ( the functional curren y) 
at year-end exchange rates, except for inventories and 
property, plant and equipment, which are translated at 
approximate rates prevailing when the assets were 
acquired. Income and expense items are translated at 
average rates of exchange prevailing during the year, 
except that cost of revenue and depreciation are trans­
lated at historical rates. The Company enters into for­
ward exchange contracts to reduce the impact of foreign 
currency fluctuations on asset and liability positions of 
foreign subsidiaries. The net gains and losses arising from 
foreign currency transactions are generally not signifi­
cant and are included in income as incurred. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first­
out) or market and include materials, labor, and manu­
facturing overhead. The components of inventories as of 
September 30 were: 

(In thousands) 

Purchased parts and subassemblie 
Work-in-process 
Finished goods 

Total 

Income Taxes 

64,229 

The Company accounts for investment and research and 
development tax credits as a reduction of the provision 
for income taxes in the year in which the related credits 

are generated. In general, the Company's practice is to 
provide U.S. federal taxes on all undistributed interna­
tional earnings. 

Cash and Cash Investments 
Short-term cash investments are valued at cost, which 
approximates market, and principally include certificates 
of deposit, time deposits, treasury notes, preferred 
stocks, municipal notes, and commercial paper. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
ystems spares (original cost of 54,963,000 and 
34,785,000 at eptember 30,19 7 and 1986, respectively) 

are depreciated over a five-year period using an acceler­
ated depreciation method. All other property, plant and 
equipment are depreciated using the straight-line 
method. The estimated useful lives are: 

Buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Computer equipment 
Lea ehold improvement 

30 year 
5-10 years 
3-7 years 

Lea e term 

Included in the land and buildings and the construction 
in process balan es at eptember 30, 19 7 and 19 6 were 
approximately 26,743,000 and 26,575,000, respectively, 
of costs relating to land and land improvements on a 
parcel held for future development. 

Software Development Costs 
During fiscal 19 6, the Company adopted the Financial 
Accounting tandards Board tatement o. 6, which re­
quires the capitalization of ertain oftware development 
costs. The Company capitalizes osts as the development 
of products becomes "technologically feasible" and 
amortizes those costs as a charge to the income state­
ment when, and as, the particular products are shipped. 
However, in no event will the amortization be less than 
that which would be achieved by amortizing such co t 
on a three-year straight-line basis from the date of prod­
uct release. The amounts of unamortized sofu. ... are develop­
ment cost included in other assets at eptember 30, 19 7 
and 19 6 were ,419,000 and 2,9 2,000, respectively. 
The amounts amortized and charged to expense for 19 7 
and 19 6 were 1,090,000 and 190,000, respectively. 

Earnings Per Share 
Earnings per share have been computed based upon 
the weighted average number of common and common 
equivalent shares outstanding. Common equivalent shares 



re ult from the as umed exer ise of outstanding stock 
option and a convertible debentur that have a dilutive 
effect when applying the trea ury stock m thod. Fully 
diluted earnings p r hare are substantially the same as 
reported earning per hare. 

2. Reclassifications 
The current p riod in om statem nt has b n reformatt d 
to di tinguish U 0 t of pr du t rev nu "from "Cost of 
ervice and other revenu ." In addition, to onform to 

indu try trend in financial r porting, ertain items pr -
viou I la ified as mark ting, general and administra-
tive expen have b en r cla ifi d to ost of product 
revenue and r ar hand developm nt exp nse. imilar 
amount for 19 6 and 19 5 as 0 iat d with revenu and 
co ts and exp n have also b n r la sified in ord r 
to conform to th urrent peri d pr ntati n. ertain 
other prior p riod amounts have al 0 b n r las ified 
to conform to th current period pr s ntation. 

3. Leasing Program 
In fi al 1 6, th ompany nt r dint a vendor leasing 
program and as iated r marketing arrangement with a 
bank, \ hereby up to 15,0 0,000 of trade lease re eiv­
abl may b financed either through limit d r ours 
sales of the r eivabl or borrowings. In th vent of a 
default by a I e, r our e by th bank is limited to th 
collateralized computer equipm nt and th amount 
available, if any, in a limited r course po I established as 
a percentage of each as iated gr up of financed lease 
transactions. In addition, upon rep ss ssion, th Com­
pany may, at its option, repurchase the equipment from 
the bank at the greater of the bank's b ok or fair market 
value. Under the agreement, the ompany may also be 
required to remarket the omputer equipment on a "b st 
efforts" basis on the bank's behalf. All administration and 
collection of lease receivables are carried out by the bank. 
In fis al19 7, 7,462,000 was received as financing for 
lease receivables, of which 2,550,000 (see note 5) was 
received in the form of borrowings and $4,912,000 was 
received as a result of sales of such receivables. At 
eptember 30, 19 7, approximately 433,000 was ac­

crued as a reserve for recourse liabilities on the sales 
of lease receivables. 

4. Income Taxes 
The provision for income taxes included the following 
deferred (prepaid) items: 

( In thousands) 19 7 1986 1985 

40,235 26,037 $ 2,950 
4,750 (3,923) 4,610 

44,9 5 22, 114 7,560 

9,261 6,8 0 3,522 
3,171 9 423 

12,432 6,969 3,945 

21,6 6 12,005 
( 53) (1,534) 

10,47 1 
21,976 

our s of deferred (pr paid) taxes were as follows: 

for income tax reporting 10,300 

1,606 

( 10,227) 

( ,043) 

447 

2,04 

1985 

9,752 
(6, 117) 
2,5 6 

( 90) 

(2,632) 

3,499 

The provision for in om taxes diff rs from the amount 
obtained by applying the federal statutory income tax 
rat to in orne before taxes as follows: 

F d ral statut ry tax rate 43.0°0 
tat taxes, net of f deral 
incom tax benefit 3. 3.2 3.8 

Investm nt tax credits (2. 1) (2.6) 
Res ar h and development tax 

credi ts (2. 1) (0. ) (7.6) 
Tax xempt DI and F 

income (2.5) (2.0) (4.3) 
Other 0.7 3.7 

Effective Tax Rate 42.9°0 44.3QtI 39.0°6 

In fiscal 1986, the Company provided taxes pur­
suant to tax laws in effect on eptember 30, 1986. On 
October 22, 1986, the Tax Reform Act of 1986 was passed 



into law and, as expected, had an immaterial impact on 
the fiscal 1986 tax provision. The negative effects of the 
Tax Reform Act (repeal of investment tax credit, reduc­
tion of research and development tax credit, and certain 
changes in international provisions) were largely offset 
by the reduction in the federal statutory tax rate from 
46% to 43% in fiscal 1987. A scheduled reduction of the 
federal statutory tax rate to 34% in fiscal 1988, currently 
provided in the legislation, is expected to further reduce 
the Company's effective tax rate in the future. 

In September 1986, the Financial Accounting Stan­
dards Board issued an Exposure Draft, entitled "Account­
ing for Income Taxes.» The currently proposed changes, 
if adopted, are not expected to have a material impact on 
the Company's results of operations. 

5. Long Tenn Debt, Capital Lease Obligations, and 
Other Commitments 
Long term debt and capital lease obligations as of 
September 30 consist of the following: 

(In thousands) 

5.7°j) and 5.601) promissory notes payable 
to a bank in Japa nese yen, due ovember 
1989 and Decem ber 1989, respectively 

Installment notes payable to a bank 
through 1990, at a weighted average 
interest rate of 8.75%, colla teralized 
by lease receivables 

Co nvertible subordinated debenture 
payabl e to an officer of the Company, 
bearing interest a t 9.5% and due 

eptember 1989 
Industrial revenue bond, bearing 

interest at 12%, due July 1992 
Industrial revenue bo nd, bearing 

interest at 12.4°0, due July 1992 
and co llateralized by certai n 
equipment 

Obligations under capital leases, 
interest ranging from 6% to 19°j), net 
of imputed interest to taling 99 
and $749, in 1987 and 1986, 
respectively 

Less current portion 

Lo ng Term Debt and Capital Leases 

1987 

3,552 

2,44 1 

1,667 

1,000 

1,000 

853 

10,5 13 
1,500 

19 6 

3,292 

1,667 

1,000 

1,000 

4,735 

11 ,694 
5,969 

5,725 

The $1,667,500 convertible subordinated debenture is 
convertible into 200,000 shares of Common Stock at a 
price of $8.3375. The debenture becomes convertible as 
to 50,000 shares each year beginning in September 1986 

and is subject to conversion acceleration in the event of 
certain occurrences. 

Interest costs of $213,000, none, and $594,000 were 
capitalized during fiscal 1987, 1986, and 1985, respective­
ly, relating to construction projects in process during 
those fiscal years. 

The Company has entered into unsecured credit 
agreements totaling $65,000,000 with several banks for 
working-capital purposes. The agreements provide for 
revolving borrowings through March 1988, at which time 
outstanding amounts may be converted to term loans to 
be amortized through 1991. Domestic borrowings bear in­
terest at or below the banks' prime rates through March 
1988 and approximately 1/4% above these rates through 
1991. The Company is required to pay a commitment 
fee of 1/ 4% per annum. There were no compensating 
balances required, and there were no borrowings out­
standing at September 30, 1987, under any of these 
arrangements. 

Certain financial covenants and restrictions are in­
cluded in the loan agreements. The Company was in 
compliance with all such covenants and restrictions at 
September 30, 1987. 

The Company has guaranteed payment of loans 
made to officers and other key employees totaling 
913,000 at September 30, 1987, under a 2,000,000 bank 

line of credit. In addition, the Company has a 1,667,500 
note receivable from an officer, included in other assets, 
which matures in eptember 1989 and bears interest at 
an annual rate of 10%. 

The Company leases its headquarters, field offices, 
certain equipment, automobiles, and most of its operating 
facilities under operating lease agreements. The Company 
also has capital leases for certain equipment. Future 
minimum lease payments as of September 30, 19 7, are 
as follows: 

(In tho usands) 

Fiscal Year 

198 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
Thereafter 

Total minimum lease payments 

Lease Obligation 

Capital Operating 

757 47,720 
64 42,01 5 
64 34,1 9 
35 30,&19 
32 25,432 

76,71 3 

The cost of assets held under capitalized leases to taled 
$3,547,000 and 11,981,000 at September 30, 19 7 and 
1986, respectively, and are included in the machinery and 

-



equipment and omputer equipm nt and spares classifi­
cation in the finan ial tatem nts. Th a umulated de-
preciation a iat d with the e as ets t taled 3,254,000 
and • 4,0 ptember 30,19 7 and 19 6, 
r pectivel. 

Rent exp n w re 50 767,000 in 19 7, 3,092,000 
in 19 6. and 3 ,213,0 0 in 19 5. 

6. CapitaL Stock 

The Compan • auth riz d capital t k consi ts of 
2.400, har of pref rr d t k (of which 00,000 
have been d ignat d eries Parti ipating Pr ferr d , 
4.000.0 0 har f Junior omm n t k. and 
1 6. hare of ammon t k. t ptemb r 30, 
19 7.21, 5,7 har of omm n t k w re res rv d 
for future i uan e und r sto k opti n plans, th em­
ploye t k pur ha e plan and a onv rtibl subordi­
nated deb ntur . Th re wer no har s of pref rr d 
tock or Junior ammon to k outstanding at 
ept mb r 30, 1 7. 

to plit 
n April 27, 1 7, th B ard of Dir t rs d lar d a 

r. .. o-for-one t k plit of th ompany' ammon to k, 
effected in the form of a sto k divid nd. Th additional 
har were i u d n Jun 12, 19 7, to t kh Id rs of 

record on May 22, 19 7. A ordingly, th ammon to k, 
additional paid in capital, and all omm n shar and p r 
hare data in the financial statem nts have b n r troa -

tivel adju ted to r f1ect the split. 

Preferred tock Rights 
During 19 5, the mpany d lared a dividend of one 
preferred share purchase right for each then outstanding 
hare of Common to k. In addition, one right will be 

i ued with each share of Common to k issued by the 
Company before the date the rights be orne exercisable, 
are redeemed by the Company, or expire on May 17, 
19 . The rights will not be exercisable, or transferable 
apart from the Common tack, until 10 days after another 
per on or group of persons acquires 20% of the Common 

tack or commences, or announ es its intention to com­
mence, a tender or exchange offer for at least 30Qo of the 
Common tock. Each right entitles the holder to buy one 
one-hundredth of a share of a series of preferred stock of 
the Company, par value .10 per share, designated as 

eries A Participating Preferred tock, at an exercise 
price of 0.00. In certain circumstances, the right will 
entitle its holder to purchase a larger amount of pre­
ferred stock or stock in an acquiring company. 

Stock Option Plans 
The ompany has employ e stock option plans under 
whi h p rmanent employees may be granted options to 
purchas shares of Common tack generally at 100% of 
fair market value at th time of the grant. Options gen-
rally v st over a four-year period, become exercisable 

six months after the eff tive date, and expire no later 
than ten years after th eff tive date. At the discretion of 
th Bard of Dir tors, options granted under the stock 

pti n plan may qualify for Incentiv tack Option 
tr atm nt und r the E onomi R covery Tax Act of 1981. 

t pt mb r 30, 19 7, options for 5,015,355 shares were 
availabl for futur grant. 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
Und r th plan, th ompany may off r shares to em-
pi y es by two m th ds. Und r one method, eligibl em-
pi y mayel ct to purchas shares of Common to k 
at 5Qo f fair mark t valu as of the last trading day 
b f r, r the last trading day of, the participation period. 
Und r thi meth d, in fis al years end d eptember 30, 
19 7,19 6, and 19 5, mploy s purchased 463,000 shares 
f r aggr gate pr ce ds of 7,625,000; 77 ,000 shares for 
aggr gat pr e d of 5,936,000; and 36,000 shares for 
aggr gate pr eds of 6,194,000, resp tively. Und r a 

nd meth d, the ompany may grant to all empl yees 
th ption to purchas the same number of shar s of 

ammon to k at not I ss than 50b of fair market value 
at th grant date. As of eptember 30, 19 7, the Company 
has reserved 3,981, 48 shares of ommon tack for 
future issuan e under its employee stock pur hase plan. 

Informati n can erning the combin d option activ­
ity during the three fis al years ended eptember 30, 
19 7, under the stock option and employee stock pur­
chas plans is summarized as follows: 

19 7 19 6 19 5 

Aggregate 

Beginn ing of 
year 13,799 154,52 1 13, 67 146,900 12,4 5 137,071 

pt ions granted 4,5 16 11 0, 103 5,3 4 59,9 3,225 26,5 1 
ptions exercised 
( 2.62 to 37.00 
per sha re) (4, 59) (5 1,960) (4,2 6) (39,306) (704) (3, 3) 

Options 
can elled 

End of yea r 13, 132 154,52 1 13,867 

Options at yea r end 

Exercisable 11 ,503 11,360 12,6 11 
Vested 7,062 7,536 ,195 



Although all outstanding dilutive stock options and a 
convertible debenture are considered common stock 
equivalents in presenting earnings per share under 
the treasury stock method, the following table shows the 
maximum share dilution that would occur from assumed 
option exercises under existing options based upon vest­
ing in future years within specified price ranges. The 
Company has had a long-standing policy of encouraging 
all levels of employees to become stockholders through 
various stock option and purchase programs. This policy 
is based upon a belief that all stockholders will benefit 
from the higher productivity, lower turnover, and im­
proved customer satisfaction realized by providing em­
ployees with a personal stake in the Company's future 
success. 

Maximum number of existing options vested each fiscal year 
Exercise 1987 

Price Aggregate and 
Range Price Shares Prior 

( In thousands except price ranges) 

0-$10 $ 36,865 4,21 I 2,771 
10- 20 97,126 6,523 4,110 

$20- $30 31,536 1,079 1 
30- 40 42, 97 1,319 100 

$20 ,424 13,132 7,062 

1990 

37 
677 
270 
310 

1,294 

Common and Common Equivalent hares 
Outstanding Outstanding 

Fiscal 19 7 weighted average 
At eptember 30, 1987 

7. Contingencies 

hares Equivalents 

90,927 
93,160 

6,7 4 
6,119 

1991 

99 
I 0 
191 

470 

Total 

97,711 
99,279 

The Company; along with one former and two present 
principal officers, was named as a defendant in a class 
action complaint filed in the United States District Court 
for the orthern District of California on October 23, 
1984, purporting to state claims for alleged violations of 
federal securities laws and pendent state claims arising 
out of the Company's December 1982 restatement of 
revenue and earnings for fiscal 1982. The court dismissed 
the complaint as to the individual defendants in March 
1985 with leave to amend. [n September 19 5, the court 
granted the defendant's motion for summary judgment 
and dismissed the suit. The plaintiff filed a notice of 
appeal in October 1985. On June 3,1987, the Federal 
Court of Appeals for the inth Circuit reversed the [ower 
court's dismissal of the suit, reinstated claims against the 
individual defendants, and remanded the case for further 
proceedings. 0 provision has been made in the financial 
statements concerning possible liability because, in the 

opinion of management, it is unlikely that the ultimate 
disposition of the suit would have a material effect on the 
Company's financial position. 

In addition, there are various actions or claims which 
have been brought or asserted against the Company. 
Management does not consider them to be material to 
the Company's financial position. 

8. Geographic Segment Information 

The following table sets forth information about the 
Company's operations in different geographic regions for 
the three fiscal years ended September 30, 1987. 

( In thousands) 

Revenues 
United States-customers 
United States-interarea 
Europe-customers 
Europe-interarea 
Americas/ Pacific-customers 
Americas/ Pacific-interarea 

Eliminations 

Total revenue 

Pretax Income 
United tates 
Europe 
Americas/ Pacific 

Eliminations 

Total pretax income 

Identifiable As ets 
United tate 
Europe 
Americas/ Pacific 

Eliminations 

Total identifiable assets 

1987 

587,634 
249,034 
302,966 

22,3 3 
144,895 

10, 13 

146,503 
37,229 

7,726 

707,454 
213,6 
105,79 1 

1,026,933 
(59,692) 

463,705 
118,9 9 
207,670 
57,032 
96,41 

73,716 
39, 21 

1,007 

541,3 1 
131 , 53 
63,701 

417,460 
111,742 
136,307 
75,5 3 
70,371 

34,5 6 
15,496 
6,555 

436, 35 
101, 36 
47,3 6 

5 6,057 
(33,713) 

552,344 

[nterarea transfers are made at arm's-length prices, which 
include manufacturing profits attributable to each respec­
tive area's operations. Identifiable assets are those assets 
of the Company that are identified with the operations of 
the corresponding geographic area. United tates cus­
tomer revenue includes export sales of 12,390,000 in 
1987, 10,048,000 in 19 6, and 7,053,000 in 19 5. The 
Company operates primarily in one industry segment 
which includes the manufacture, servicing, and market­
ing of computer systems. 

... 



9. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data 
(In thousands except per share amounts) 

Quarters Ended Dec.31 March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 

Year ended eptember 30, 1987 

Revenue 
Product revenue $198,725 $202,010 $2 18,838 $24 1,469 

ervice and other revenue 39,3 10 40,358 45,140 49,645 

Total revenue 238,035 24 2,368 263,978 291 ,11 4 

Costs and Expenses 
Cost of product revenue 53,58 1 54,912 57,028 61,283 
Cost of service and 

other revenue 27, 37 30,Q6 1 36,164 37,362 
Re earch and development 24,3 15 25,867 27,416 30,876 
1arketing, general and 

administrative 6,76 1 96,235 102,346 11 2,763 

Total costs and expenses 192,494 207,075 222,954 24 2,2 4 

Operating Income 48,830 
Interest income, net 4,209 

Income Before Income Taxes 53,039 
22,593 

25,6 17 $ 30,446 

.26 $ .31 

140,293 $182,5 14 
ervice and other revenue 29,76 38,038 

Total revenue 170,061 220,552 

Co ts a nd Expenses 
Co tofproductrevenue 43,310 41,500 43,43 1 46,99 
Co t of service and other 

revenue 22, 21 24,754 26,924 30,186 
Research and development 19, 47 21,2 7 22,337 23,553 
. 1arketing, general and 

administrative 

Total co ts and expenses 

Operating Income 19,315 
Interest income, net 1,673 

Income Before Income Taxes 

10. Merger of Subsidiary Subsequent to Year End 
(unaudited) 

On ovember 12, 1987, the Company and one of its 
wholly owned subsidiaries entered into an agreement 
with Atalla Corporation (Atalla) which will result, sub­
ject to approval by Atalla's shareholders, in Atalla be­
coming a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The 
agreement provides for the exchange of Atalla common 
stock into Tandem Common tock. Atalla provides secure 
system solutions in the areas of network interchange, 
electronic payment, and computer security. The merger 
transaction will be accounted for as a pooling of interests. 

Auditors'Report 

To Tandem Computers Incorporated: 

We have examined the consolidated balance sheets of 
Tandem Computers Incorporated (a Delaware corpora­
tion) and subsidiaries as of September 30, 1987 and 1986, 
and the related consolidated statements of income, stock­
holders' investment, and changes in financial position for 
each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 
1987. Our examinations were made in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly, 
included such tests of the accounting records and such 
other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly the financial position of Tandem 
Computers Incorporated and subsidiaries as of Septem­
ber 30, 1987 and 1986, and the results of their operations 
and the changes in their financial position for each of the 
three years in the period ended September 30, 1987, in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting prin­
ciples applied on a consistent basis. 

San Jose, California Arthur Andersen & Co. 
October 20, 1987 

Tandem Stock Price 
Fiscal Quarter High Low 

1987 4th Quarter 33 1/ 4 26 1/ 2 
3rd Quarter 367/ 307/ 
2nd Quarter 37 1/ 4 171/2 
1st Quarter 193/ 163/ 4 

19 6 4th Quarter 195/ 8 14 
3rd Quarter 163/ 4 11 3/ 8 
2nd Quarter 13 1/ 10 
1st Quarter 11 7/ 8 65/ 

19 5 4th Quarter 9 1/ 7 
3rd Quarter 11 7/ 75/ 8 
2nd Quarter 14 1/ 4 91/4 
1st Quarter 97/ 8 71/2 

Through April 6, 1987, Tandem Computers Incorporated 
was traded via the ASOAQ ational Market System 
under the trading symbol T OM. On April 7, 1987, the 
Company's Common tock began trading via the ew 
York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol TOM. All 
quotations shown represent the high and low closing sale 
prices as reported in the Wall Street Journal. The Compa­
ny has not declared or paid any cash dividends on its 
Common Stock and has no plans to do so in the foresee­
able future. 
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THE ON-LINE ENTERPRISE 
• • • • • 

Today, more than ever before, organizations need a 
competitive edge. Whether managing people, inventory, 
or the bottom line, improving productivity and meeting 
customer needs are no longer merely sound business 
practices - they are necessary for survival. 

Nowhere are the requirements more demanding, 
the pace of change faster, or the competitive advantages 
greater than in the area of on-line computer systems. 

The market Tandem helped pioneer, on-line trans­
action processing, has been both a force for change and 
a tool with which to manage it 

The environment of the 1990s will demand a dra­
matic shift in thinking. Business must be more global. 
Decisions must be made faster. Entire organizations 
must be brought on-line to weld together the power of 
enterprise-wide resources. 

We believe that no company is better prepared or 
more dedicated than Tandem to bringing to reality the 
emerging phenomenon we call the on-line enterprise. 



To Our Stockholders: 

1988 was an important, strategic year for 
Tandem - a year in which we continued to 
strengthen our foundation for the future. Among 
our accomplishments were several mergers that 
will enable us to serve our customers better and 
to maintain our leadership position as we meet 
the needs of the developing on-line enterprise. 

Revenue growth of 26 percent in fiscal 1988 
over the prior year was good, considering the 
weak market for large systems in the United 
States. Revenue reached $1.3 billion in fiscal 
1988, up from $1.0 billion a year earlier. 

Although we achieved record revenue in 
fiscal 1988, earnings were affected by our invest­
ments in mergers, the resolution of a class-action 
lawsuit, revenue below our plan due to softness 
in the U. S. market for computers, and some 
product delays which were resolved during the 
year. Earnings per share were $.96, compared 
with $1.07 in fiscal 1987. 

International operations performed es­
pecially well during fiscal 1988, accounting for 
50 percent of our annual revenue. In the fourth 
quarter, our U. S. business became more robust 
as well. 

THE NEW TANDEM 

Today Tandem is more than just one 
company dedicated to on-line transaction 
processing (OL1P). Although OLTP remains 
at the heart of Tandem, we are now a family of 
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ReueTUle 
(In Billions) 

companies focused on the evolution of OLTP to 
the on-line enterprise. 

Most significant to this change was our 
merger with Un germann-Bass, Inc., a leader in 
open, enterprise-wide networks. 

Tandem and Ungermann-Bass merged not 
only because our product lines are complemen­
tary, but also because our strategies match very 
well. We are both committed to standards in net­
working. We both sell primarily to the largest 
corporations, and we focus on similar industries. 
We are both entrepreneurial Silicon Valley com­
panies that believe in the importance of high 
growth. 

Since the completion of the merger in June, 
each company has opened the door to new 
opportunities for the other. 

Two other mergers were completed in fiscal 
1988 that sharpen our focus on serving the 
enterprise. 

As OLTP networks increase in size and 
scope, data security becomes more complex and 
critical. To strengthen Tandem's leadership in this 
area, we merged with a leader in secure transac­
tion systems, Atalla Corporation. Atalla currently 
focuses on the finance and retail industries, but 
its expertise will help enhance security offerings 
for Tandem's entire product line. 

We also merged with Integrated Technology, 
Inc., renamed Tandem Telecommunications 
Systems, Inc. (TTSI). TTSI is developing 
advanced products for the telecommunications 
industry, where new services and applications 
are being sought aggressively. 



We are excited to welcome the people of 
Ungermann-Bass, Atalla, and TTSI to Tandem. 
They have dynamic, positive cultures of their 
own. We look forward to working together to 
create an even more successful Tandem. 

Open communication has been instrumental 
to the success of integrating our new companies. 
Tandem television programs help create under­
standing among our groups. Electronic mail is 
used to communicate joint sales opportunities. 
And people from all of our new groups have the 
opportunity to meet other Tandem employees at 
our symposiums for outstanding performers and 
at our educational seminars. 

STRENGTH FROM PEOPLE 

The mergers and our shift to a broader 
market view led Tandem to reorganize into five 
operating groups. Our goal is to maintain the 
entrepreneurial spirit of the merged companies 
and our operating groups, while incorporating 
the processes and procedures that underlie the 
strength of a large company. 

One operating group develops and 
manufactures our OLTP systems and networks. 
Another markets these products. Un germann­
Bass remains an independent group, pursuing 

TANDEM SUPPORTS THE ENRICHMENT 

OF LIFE IN MANY COMMUNITIES 

WHERE IT OPERATES. IN FISCAL 1988, 
THE CoMPANY SPONSORED THE FIRST 

FAR EAST TOUR IN 30 YEARS BY SAN 

FRANCISCO BALLET, AMERICA'S 

OLDEST PROFESSIONAL BALLET 

COMPANY: 

S.\. 1 FR \: 'CISCO B.\LlEr 
. E.\STTOlR (X; I'2I- '\()\.I(U<)Si 

The fifth group provides Tandem's highly regard­
ed worldwide customer service and support 

We strongly believe that Tandem's outstand­
ing employee programs bond this organization 
together. In fact, our employee turnover rate in 
1988 was just above eight percent-far superior 
to the industry average. Tandem has been very 
successful in attracting and retaining top-flight 
people. 

While adding more than 1,500 outstanding 
people through our mergers and select hiring in 
1988, we also expanded our Board of Directors 
and initiated an International Advisory Board. 

The new members of our Board of Direc­
tors are Jack E Bennett, a senior vice president 
and director of Exxon Corporation, and Ralph K 
Ungermann, president and chief executive officer 
of Ungermann-Bass. Dr. Martin M. (John) Atalla, 
founder of Atalla Corporation, is a new advisor 
to the Board of Directors. These members pro­
vide insight in the strategic areas of international 
and economic issues, enterprise networking, and 
security, respectively. 

The International Advisory Board will further 
our international success by giving us a greater 
understanding of the special needs of markets 
worldwide. 

its complementary activities. The Tandem Com­
panies Group manages Atalla and TTSI, our equity 
investments, and our Micro Products Division. 

MOVING THE ENTERPRISE ON-LINE 

More and more computing functions of 
major enterprises are moving on-line. Tandem is 

Inlernational Revenue as a 
Percenl of Total 

1984 1985 1986 1981 1988 

a leader in meeting the requirements of this emerg­
ing environment The products we delivered in 
1988 will help customers make this transition. 

The record number of new customers who 
turned to Tandem for solutions in the last two 
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TANDEM'S PuBLIC SERVICE SABBATICAL 

PROGRAM SUPPORTS VOLUNTEER WORK 

BY EMPLOYEES. PARTICIPANT ROSEMARIE 

HALL WORKED FOR SIX WEEKS IN FISCAL 

1988 FOR THE CALIFORNIA MARINE 

MAMMAL CENTER, A PRIVATE, NON­

PROFIT GROUP THAT RESCUES, REHABILI­

TATES, AND RELEASES DISTRESSED 

MARINE MAMMALS. 

quarters of 1988 is indicative of the increasing 
strength of our product line. 

Customers are looking for a wide range of 
capabilities. They want the flexibility to put their 
computing power where it is needed -whether 
in a large central site, at multiple remote locations, 
or on desktops. And they want the ability to tie 
all their data together with a fully distributed 
database. 

The NonStop CLX system, which became 
fully available in the fourth quarter, showed its 
potential. More than half of our new customers 
in the last quarter purchased CLX systems. 

The CLX system is designed for remote 
sites and for distributed applications, where 
price/performance, ease of use, and ease of 
maintenance are particularly critical. When it is 
coupled with NonStop SQL software, our rela­
tional database management system, customers 
have a powerful solution for their distributed 
applications. 

Our computer-room system, the NonStop 
VLX, continued to be well-received in fiscal 1988. 
Enhancements are making this flagship product 
even more powerful. Expanded memory modules 
and ultra high-capacity disk storage facilities tar­
get the demand for cost-effective processing of 
large numbers of transactions. 

Earnings Per Slwre 
('Includes $.12 benefit from DISC tax reversel) 
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The proliferation of workstations and 
personal computers is a phenomenon that we 
saw accelerate in 1988. We believe in future years 
this trend will enhance Tandem's growth. Tandem 
systems can be the critical connection to bring 
this desktop power into the on-line enterprise. As 
database servers, our systems can capture and 
process the millions of transactions created on 
the desktops of large organizations. 

To help make this possible, we are working 
with the leaders of emerging standards in per­
sonal computers - Apple Computer, Inc., and 
Microsoft Corporation - as well as with providers 
of leading personal computer database tools and 
application-generation tools. 

Reduced instruction set computing (R1SC) 
is now recognized as an important technology 
for advanced system architectures. Tandem is 
working closely with MIPS Computer Systems, 
Inc., a leader in this technology, to apply R1SC to 
future UNIX® systems from Tandem. This relation­
ship was further strengthened when Jim Treybig 
was elected to the MIPS board of directors. 

ENTERPRISE-WIDE NETWORKS 

To integrate the many elements of the 
on-line enterprise, customers need the ability to 
connect to a variety of standard networks. 

Tandem has strong offerings for SNA 
connectivity. Along with our own development 
projects in SNA, our investment in Netlink, Inc., 
is helping us maintain this leadership position. 
This partnership already has led to new SNA 
product offerings and joint sales. 

Ungermann-Bass's leadership in open, 
enterprise-wide networking, combined with 
Tandem's leadership in providing the funda­
mentals of OLTP, will be key to taking entire 
enterprises on-line. 



During 1988, Ungermann-Bass introduced 
its Access/One network delivery system, which 
exceeded sales projections in its first two quarters 
of general availability. The Access/One product 
sets new standards with the most advanced com­
bination of networking and wiring capabilities in 
the industry. 

We also have made important investments 
to address products for public networks. We 
believe that TTSI and a new partnership with 
AT&T will help put Tandem at the forefront of 
Integrated Services Digital Network (ISDN) 
technology, which combines voice, data, and 
other information on a single telephone line. 
This emerging technology is expected to have a 
major impact on the telecommunications indus­
try worldwide well into the next century. 

LEADERSlllP IN SOLUTIONS 

We are also excited about the directions of 
our markets. New OLTP applications are con­
stantly being created that make our customers 
more productive and more competitive. 

Major software houses and system inte­
grators are joining us in providing solutions. For 
example, this year we welcomed NYNEX Infor­
mation Solutions Group, Inc., into our Alliance 
program. 

We are pleased to be working with firms 
such as Electronic Data Systems, Boeing Com­
puter Services, and MSA Advanced Manufac­
turing, Inc., in connection with OLTP systems for 
manufacturing. These three are codevelopers of 
T.I.M.E., the Tandem Integrated Manufacturing 
Environment, which provides an architecture to 
integrate various manufacturing applications. 

We plan to apply this concept to other Tandem 
markets moving toward the on-line enterprise. 

LOOKING FORWARD 

We are excited about our future. The chal­
lenge going forward is to reach our potential. We 
must remain cautious about the U.S. marketplace 
and currency movement and the impact they 
can have. But, as this report will show, we 
believe that strategic actions taken in 1988 make 
Tandem better equipped than ever to compete 
and grow. 

Sincerely, 

James G. Treybig 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Thomas J. Perkins 
Chairman of the Board 

December 1, 1988 

JAMES G. ThEYBIG (RIGHT). 

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF ExECUTIVE 

OFFICER; THO~AS J. PERKINS. 

CHAIRMAN OF THE BoARD 
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••• • 
Quality is important in every 
aspect of Tandem products­
from the OLTP advantages they 
offer on-line enterprises to their 
reliability, serviceability, and 
overoll design. 

Because of this attention to 
design, several Tandem products 
received prestigious awards in 
fiscal 1988. West Gennany's 
Hannover Faire presented its 
Good Industrial Design award 
to the NonStop CLX system, V80 
disk storage facility, and PSX 
workstation-all three of which 
were first delivered to Tandem 
customers in fiscal 1988. Japan's 
Ministry of International Trade 
and Industry (MIT I} gave its 
Good Design Prize for Foreign 
Products to the high-perfonn­
ance NonStop VLX system. 

Pictured, from left to right, 
are the V80 disk storage facility, 
NonStop VLX and NonStop CLX 
systems, and PSX workstation. 
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POWERFUL SYSTEMS AND 
DATABASE PRODUCTS 

TANDEM OLTP SYSTEMS 
AND DATABASES 
OFFER FUNDAMENTAL 
ADVANTAGES FOR THE 
ON-UNE ENTERPRISE. 

• • • • • 
O rganizations are recognizing 
the advantages of instant access to 
accurate, up-to-date information. 
Entire businesses and government 
groups are moving to on-line trans­
action processing (Oop) systems 
to ensure their competitiveness in 
a changing world. 

Meanwhile, computing envi­
ronments are changing dramati­
cally. Gone are the days when a 
massive central computer could 
answer the varying needs of a 
growing organization. Companies 
today need to harness the power of 
many different systems, from large 
to small, including numerous per­
sonal computers valued for their 
inexpensive power and ease of use. 

The proliferation of different 
systems and resulting isolation of 
information present a new chal­
lenge to computer vendors. How 
can systems and data be united to 
extend the advantages of on~line 

systems throughout organizations 
without creating data processing 
chaos? And, how can the pro­
ductivity bonuses of resources such 



THE FOREIGN OFFICE OF THE GERMAN FEDERAL REPUBLIC IS INSTALLING TANDEM NONSTOP CLX SYSTEMS AT WORLDWIDE LOCATIONS . 

• Ii. Volume shipments 
of Tandem's well­
received, entry-level 

NonStop CLX systems began 
during fiscal 1988. 

A large order came from 
The Foreign Office of the 
German Federal Republic, 
which began to implement 
a far-reaching program to 
streamline communications 
between Bonn and its 
embassies and consulates 
worldwide. 

As many as 80 Siemens desk­
top computers at each facility 
will be linked via a local 
area network and Tandem's 
MUL17LAN product to each 
of the distributed-processing 
CLX systems, replacing type­
writers and integrating isolated 
word processors. 

Three CLX systems were 
installed at Bonn during the 
year, including one in the 

foreign minister's private 
office. Three more systems 
were installed in New York, 
including one at the German 
representation to the United 
Nations. And shipments began 
to other locations worldwide, 
a process that will continue at 
an accelerated rate during 
1989 and beyond. 

Key considerations of The 
Foreign Office in selecting CLX 
systems included the ease of 

use, self-maintainability, and 
tolerance of power fluctuations 
and failures. 



In 1988, FORTUNE magazine 
named Tandem's distributed 
database management tech­
nologyamong the '700 Products 
That America Makes Best:' 

Tandem's NonStop SOL 
distributed relational database 
management system combines 
the productivity of the SOL stan­
dard with high perfonnance for 
OLTP. At the same time, NonStop 
SOL software incorporotes 
Tandem OLTP fundamentals. 

••• 
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as personal computers and local 
area networks ClANs) be added to 
OLTP systems? 

The answers lie in an emerg­
ing kind of computing environment 
Tandem calls the on-line enterprise. 
Here, the potential synergy between 
on-line systems and other powerful 
computing resources throughout 
the enterprise becomes reality. 

We believe the product 
strengths and market experience of 
an OLTP pioneer such as Tandem 
are required to lead the way to the 
on-line enterprise. In fiscal 1988, 
Tandem took strategic actions to 
position itself better to address 
these emerging needs. 

• • • • • 
OLTP LEADERSHIP 
For over a decade, Tandem has pro­
vided OLTP solutions to customers. 
In OLTP applications, transactions 
must be handled and data updated 
instantly-so that the most current 
state of the business is always accu­
rately reflected. 

OLTP systems are central to 
the minute-by-minute operations 
of businesses. Understanding this, 
Tandem offers a rich combination 
of fundamental system advantages 
that protects applications, data, 

ReutlTC!r & OeoeIopment Spending 
(In Millions) $173 

a capltallzed Softwllre 
Development Costa 

and customers' competitive posi­
tions. These fundamentals include 
fault tolerance, data integrity, 
linear expandability, superior 
price/performance, distributed 
data, networking, and security. 

These combined strengths 
become even more valuable in 
the on-line enterprise because 
so many systems and applications 
depend on each other. 

From the high-end NonStop 
VLX system to the mid-range 
NonStop CLX system to NonStop 
SQL relational database software, 
Tandem products address the re­
quirements of the on-line enterprise. 

• • • • • 
DISTRIBUfED POWER 
THROUGHOUT TIlE ENTERPRISE 
For locations far from headquarters 
resources, users need systems that 
are cost-effective and easy to install 
and maintain, yet ensure availabil­
ity and protect the integrity of data. 

The NonStop CLX system, 
first delivered in fiscal 1988, fills this 
vital role in the on-line enterprise. 
Designed to work in the office envi­
ronment, this system is ideal for 
regional centers or branch offices. 

The CLX system combines 
superior price/performance with 
all of the other OLTP fundamentals 
of NonStop systems. It offers fault 
tolerance and expandability, and is 



- ''''fl., 

~ Jf~. 
... ".111 

PACIFIC O BEll 

ENHANCED CUSTOMER SERVICE IS THE PRIMARY OBJECTIVE OF AN IMPORTANT NEW APPLICATION AT PACIFIC BELL IN CALIFORNIA. 

Since becoming a 
Tandem customer in 
1981, Padfic Bell has 

used Tandem systems in a 
number of projects. 

In 1987, Padfic Bell began 
developing a major project 
intended to assist its 5,000 cus­
tomer service representatives, 
who handle some 80,000 re­
quests daily at the company's 
48 California business offices. 

The project is based on a 
network of Tandem NonStop 

VLX and CLX systems and 
PSX workstations, as well as 
local area networks (LANs) 
from Tandem subsidiary 
Ungermann-Bass, Inc. 
(Ungermann-Bass also 
provides Padfic Bell with 
LAN products for many other 
applications throughout the 
company.) 

Scheduled to begin imple­
mentation in late 1988, the 
project will allow customer 
service representatives to use 

the advanced presentation 
capabilities of desktop work­
stations to access and display 
data simultaneously from sev­
eral different customer service 
programs. 

Later phases of the project 
are planned to refine and en­
hance the presentation further: 
And, elsewhere within Padfic 
Bel~ other applications are 
under development on Tandem 

_~ systems. 
c,\s,co. C4 Padfic Bell is a subsidiary 
~ p M ~. of Padfic Telesis Group, one of 

=1 the seven Us. Regional Bell 
11 NO~ i;; Holding Companies. Padfic 

oS' IS B 10 Telesis has more than 70,000 
employees and annual reve­
nue of more than $9 billion 
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BANK OF TOKYO HEADQUARTERS IN JAPAN IS CONNECTED TO MORE THAN 250 LOCATIONS WORLDWIDE BY A NE1WORK OF TANDEM VLX SYSTEMS. 

ft>""~ J Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. 
(BOT), Japan's fore­
most international 

financial institution, began in 
1986 to build what is today, 
according to BOT, the world's 
largest international banking 
network. 

Over 250 BOT and subsid­
iary locations worldwide are 
tied together through four 
nodes of Tandem VLX systems 

in Tokyo, New York, London, 
and Hong Kong-the latter 
coming on-line during 1988. 
Operating around the clock, 
the network handles an 

average of 40,000 foreign 
exchange transactions daily, 
in addition to administrative 
communications. 

Through its foreign ex­
change, capital market, and 
international corporate finance 
activities, BOT plays an impor­
tant role in the international 
development of the Japanese 
economy. In the coming year 
and beyond, BOT plans to ex­
pand its Tandem network in 

Europe and the United States 
to keep pace with the global 
expansion of Japanese 
businesses. 

Anticipated business growth 
and the ability of Tandem 
systems to expand in small in­
crements were key considera­
tions in the bank's selection of 
a Tandem network. 

BOT has assets of more 
than $160 billion. 



easily added to a network of other 
NonStop systems. 

The CLX system is designed 
for ease of service. Nearly all com­
ponent failures are user-serviceable. 
Should a component fail, the 
computer itself can automatically 
report the failure to a Tandem 
support center. 

• • • • • 
fDGH-PERFORMANCE 
COMPlITER-ROOM SYSTEMS 
Headquarters sites in the on-line 
enterprise require powerful sys­
tems that can handle very high 
transaction volumes with excellent 
response times and can store vast 
amounts of data cost-effectively. 

Designed for the computer­
room, the high-performance 
NonStop VLX system is capable of 
handling many hundreds of trans­
actions per second. 

With its new VLX Large 
Memory modules, introduced short­
ly after the fiscal year ended, the 
VLX system can store large amounts 
of information in main memory, 
where data can be directly accessed 
by application programs to speed 
processing further. 

The new XL80 disk storage 
facility, first delivered to customers 
in fiscal 1988, increases the VLX 
system's already powerful ability to 
handle the growing databases of 
on-line enterprises. This product 
stores large amounts of data in a 
small floor area -preserving costly 
computer-room space-and offers 
low-cost-per-megabyte storage. 

• • • • • 

ENTERPRISE DATABASE 
ARCHITECTURE 
Information is the lifeblood of a 
successful enterprise. As organiza­
tions move on-line, OLTP databases 
are increasingly becoming the 
main repositories of information: 
the corporate databases of record. 

In the on-line enterprise, data­
bases must satisfy a wide range of 
demands. High performance is 
essential to keep pace with ever­
increasing transaction volumes. 
Databases must be distributed 
throughout a network so that infor­
mation is stored close to where 
it is used most often, yet must be 
available to the entire network 
And to make programmers more 
productive, databases need the 
emerging industry standard Struc­
tured Query Language CSQL). 

Tandem's commitment to 
implementing standards -while 
adding value to them-is reflected 

In the on-line enterprise, per­
fonnance is more essential than 
ever. Advanced memory and 
storage products are key contribu­
tors to transaction-processing 
perfonnance 

In 1988, Tandem invested in 
Anamartic Limited of Cambridge, 
England Anamartic is 
developing a new class of high­
perfonnance storage subsys­
tems that combines Anamartic's 
own proprietary whole-wafer 
integrotion architecture with 
state-of-the-art semiconductor 
technology. 

.++ • 
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Building on a strategy of 
integrating powerful desktop 
devices with on-line transaction 
processing networks, Tandem 
entered into an agreement in 
fiscal 1988 with Apple Computer, 
Inc., under which Tandem will 
sell, support, and service Apple 
Macintosh computers for its 
OLTP customers. Tandem will 
alsa develop products to link 
the Macintosh computer with 
Tandem systems. 

PicturedareJamesG. Treybig, 
Tandem President and CEO (on 
left), and John Sculley, Apple 
Chainnan and CEO, with a 
Tandem NonStop CLX system; 
and (bottom photograph) an 
Apple Macintosh IIx computer. 

+ .. + 
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in the Company's NonStop SQL 
software, the industry's first fully 
distributed relational database 
management system. 

Generally available to custom­
ers in fiscal 1988, NonStop SQL soft­
ware combines the productivity of 
SQL with high OLTP performance. 
At the same time, because NonStop 
SQL software runs on Tandem 
NonStop systems, it benefits from 
fundamental OLTP strengths. 

We believe Tandem database 
technology offers customers an 
important strategic advantage 
in the new environment of the 
on-line enterprise. 

• • • • • 
PRODUCfIVE APPUCATION 
ENVIRONMENTS 
The on-line enterprise will require 
a single, open computing environ­
ment for a variety of application 
types. Some OLTP applications will 
continue to use terminals to capture 
transactions. Others will provide 
database services to connected 
personal computers. In other appli­
cations, personal computers and 
host systems will share processing 
tasks. Tandem is leveraging its dec­
ade of experience with OLTP data­
base technology and its NonStop 
SQL software to meet these needs. 

To make application program­
ming more productive, Tandem 
plans to market application­
development and decision-support 
tools from well-known third-party 
vendors. Because these tools are 

common throughout the industry, 
they will allow programmers to 
create Tandem applications faster 
and more easily. 

• • • • • 
MANAGING COMPLEX 
RESOURCES 
The trend toward increasingly 
distributed networks of systems, 
data, and applications means users 
must be equipped to manage these 
complex resources efficiently. 

Tandem's Distributed Systems 
Management (DSM) software, first 
delivered to customers in fiscal 1988, 
manages resources throughout a 
network of Tandem systems, includ­
ing remote systems, applications, 
and communications facilities. 

DSM software gives users the 
freedom to consolidate or decen­
tralize the management and control 
of systems, applications, and net­
works according to business needs. 
Its architecture will support future 
capabilities to automate critical 
applications such as problem man­
agement and tracking. 

• • • • • 
POWERFUL ANSWERS FOR TIlE 
ON-UNE ENTERPRISE 
Systems and databases that meet 
the diverse needs of organizations 
are all-important to today's-and 
tomorrow's-computing environ­
ments. Tandem strives to add value 
to these core elements to give our 
customers solutions that provide a 
competitive edge. 

When connected through 
enterprise networks, these systems, 
databases, and management tools 
become the foundation for serving 
the on-line enterprise. 

1 



FOR GREATER PRODUcrrVl1Y, PROGRAMMERS AT MICROSOIT'S CAMPUS·LIKE HEADQUARTERS NEAR SEATTLE SHARE RESOURCES OVER AN UNGERMANN·BASS, INC, NEtWORK. 

Microsoft Corporation, 
the world's largest pro­
ducer of microcompu­

ter software, has used Net/One 
products from Ungennann­
Bass, Inc., since 1985. The firm's 
growing corporate network in­
cludes one of the largest local 
area networks (LANs) in the 
United States. 

Microsoft's network is crucial 

_"-__ 
Indian Art USA 15c 

to the productivity of hundreds to share critical source code 
of programmers at the firm's and other resources, Microsoft 
sprawling facilities in the is consistently able to meet re-
Seattle area. Using the network lease dates of new products. 

The network also handles 
some one million electronic 
mail messages each month. 

With a total of 4,200 nodes, 
the network links domestic 
sales offices and international 
subsidiaries. By the end of 
1988, over 1,()()() of these nodes 
were connected to the net­
work by Access/One systems. 
The Access/One system is 
Ungennann-Bass's new offer­
ing that allows the use of 
conventional twisted-pair 
telephone wiring for network 

connections, providing supe­
rior flexibility and broad 
connectivity to a wide variety 
of devices. 

Microsoft, which is expand­
ing its marketing activities 
worldwide, had Ungennann­
Bass networks at 16 locations 
at the end of 1988. Net/One 
products are slated for instal­
lation at 11 new locations 
during 1989. 



In a major move to position 
itself for the future, US Sprint, 
the Kansas City based provider 
of state-of-the-art telecommu­
nications services, has installed 
the first nationwide all-digital 
fiber-optic network. 

As a second important step, 
US Sprint has deployed Signal­
ling System 7, the system that 
supports inter-LATA intelligent 
network features and services. 
These services include enhanced 
BOO-number translation, calling­
card validation, and virtual pri­
vate networks. 

High-transaction-rate Data 
Control Points for the network 
are provided by Tandem 
Telecommunications Systems, 
Inc (TTSI), and run on 
Tandem NonStop VLX systems. 

14 

••• • 

CONNECTING THE 
ENTERPRISE 

STRATEGIC MOVES 
IN 1988 BUILD 
A FOUNDATION 
FOR LEADERSHIP IN 
ENTERPRISE 
NETWORKING. 

• • • • • 
I n the on-line enterprise, computing 
is strategically tied to networking. 
As more databases move on-line, 
more users demand immediate 
access to this always-current infor­
mation. To provide this access, 
on-line systems must allow differ­
ent systems to connect to on-line 
resources through LANs and 
through the support of major 
networking standards. 

Because the success of an 
organization can depend on the 
success of its on-line applications, 
enterprise networks also require 
fast response time, availability, data 
integrity, and security. 

Tandem has long been a leader 
in providing networks with funda­
mental OLTP advantages. In fiscal 
1988, strategic mergers, new rela­
tionships, and new products further 
strengthened the Company's capa­
bilities in enterprise networks, 

workstation integration, support of 
standards, and security. We believe 
these moves position Tandem to 
serve the networking needs of the 
on-line enterprise. 

• • • • • 
UNGERMANN-BASS, INC.­
A LEADER IN ENTERPRISE 
NETWORKING 
Today, processing power is moving 
to computers on users' desktops. 
These systems need to access and 
share data with others and with 
corporate resources. 

Such developments mean that 
vendors who want to meet the re­
quirements of customers in the 1990s 
need to offer complete networking 
capabilities that link LAN-based 
systems with other organizational 
resources. 

To address this key market 
need, Tandem joined with an indus­
try leader: Ungermann-Bass, Inc. 

Through enterprise networks, 
Ungermann-Bass products connect 
workstations and other intelligent 
devices to each other and to a 
variety of resources, including file 
servers and host systems from dif­
ferent vendors. 

Ungermann-Bass is committed 
to supporting open networking stan­
dards. An example of Ungermann­
Bass's approach to standards is the 
Access/One network delivery 
system, introduced in fiscal 1988. 

: 



The Access/One system gives 
network planners and end users a 
common architectural platform for 
distributing network services to per­
sonal computers and workstations 
over ordinary telephone wiring. 

This system integrates personal­
computer LANs into enterprise net­
works. It works in environments of 
mixed systems from a variety of 
vendors and supports both industry 
networking standards and interna­
tional standards. The Access/One 
system also includes features for 
high network availability and mod­
ular growth, and powerful tools for 
network management and control. 

Tandem and Ungermann-Bass 
are cooperating in product develop­
ment and jointly calling on major 
customers-and generating signif­
icant opportunities for both compa­
nies. We believe that Tandem and 
Ungermann-Bass can grow together 
by meeting market needs for OLlP 
systems and enterprise networks. 

• • • • • 
LINKING WORKSTATIONS AND 
TANDEM SYSTEMS 
Since before its merger with 
Ungermann-Bass, the Company's 
strategy has been to allow worksta­
tions to access the OLlP benefits of 
Tandem systems. Customers can 
then use personal computers for 
what they do best-provide sophis­
ticated, user-friendly interfaces­
while Tandem OLlP systems 

Tandem and Ungennann-Bass 
merged not only because our 
product lines are complementary, 
but also because our strategies 
match well. We are committed 
ta standards in networking, sell 
primarily to the largest corpo­
rations, and focus on similar 
industries. 

••• • 
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Security praducts from Atalla 
Corporation, a wholly owned 
Tandem subsidiary, have helped 
reduce operating expenses and 
increase customer satisfaction 
at San Francisco based Wells 
Fargo Bank since 1983. 

The bank uses the Atalla 
Card Activation and PIN Selec­
tion System (CAPS), in conjunc­
tion with a Tandem NonStop 
VLX system. The CAPS product 
allows the bank's customers ta 
choose their own debit and 
credit card personal identifica­
tion numbers (PINs) with security 
and ease 

Wells Fargo has an active 
card base well beyond the 
banking industry average The 
use of customer-selected PINs 
has contributed to this success 
because customers can remem­
ber them more easily than 
bank-generated PINs. 

As part of its froud preven­
tion program, Wells Fargo alsa 
uses Atalla Security Modules 
attached to Tandem VLX sys­
tems to verify encrypted PINs 
from the bank's 1,200 ATMs. 

16 
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process transactions and manage 
on-line data. 

Tandem's MULTILAN products 
are examples of this strategy. They 
allow a wide variety of standard 
LANs to connect to Tandem sys­
tems. This capability lets customers 
implement cooperative processing, 
whereby personal computers and 
Tandem systems share application 
tasks. 

In fiscal 1988, we began work­
ing with Microsoft Corporation to 
extend similar support to OS/ 2 
based personal computers. 

Tandem is committed to sup­
porting a wide variety of personal 
computers and workstations, 
including workstations running the 
UNlX~ operating system and Apple 
Macintosh computers. 

Reflecting this commitment, in 
1988 we entered into a value-added 
reseller agreement with Apple 
Computer, Inc., under which Tandem 
will sell, support, and service 
Macintosh computers as part of 
Tandem OLTP systems. Tandem, 
Ungermann-Bass, and Apple are 
developing new products to con­
nect Macintosh computers and 
Tandem systems. 

• • • • • 
STANDARDS FOR WIDE-AREA 
NETWORKS 
Networking standards are increas­
ingly important to our customers. 
Not just LAN and workstation stan­
dards, but also other networking 
standards are key. 

An international networking 
standard independent of any single 
vendor, Open Systems Interconnec­
tion (osI) is important to Tandem's 



future. Customers can today 
implement OSI applications using 
capabilities Tandem provides, and 
work is underway to strengthen our 
offerings for this standard. 

Another important standard is 
IBM's Systems Network Architecture 
(SNA). Tandem already provides 
a wide range of SNA connectivity 
solutions. 

Tandem strengthened its 
SNA offerings in fiscal 1988. The 
Company delivered software that 
supports LU6.2, a strategic SNA 
protocol. In addition, Tandem be­
came a reseller of the SNA_ Hub 
product from Netlink, Inc., in which 
Tandem has an equity investment 
This product lets devices in an SNA 
network access the benefits of 
OLTP applications running on 
Tandem systems. 

The Company is working to 
provide more ways for users to add 
Tandem systems to SNA networks. 
Our goal is to add the value of 
Tandem OLTP fundamentals while 
protecting customers' existing net­
work investments. 

• • • • • 
OLTP BENEFITS FOR TELECOM­
MUMCATIONS NETWORKS 
Around the world, telecommunica­
tions networks are being upgraded 
to enable telephone companies to 
provide new services, improve 
service quality, and lower operating 
costs. Key to these changes are 
international networking standards 

that will allow computers to connect SECURITY: THE NEW IMPERATIVE 
to telecommunications networks to As networks grow, more users 
provide services, including ones require access. Inevitably, data 
based on on-line applications. security becomes increasingly 

Two important actions in fiscal crucial. 
1988 reflect Tandem's commitment In fiscal 1988, Tandem merged 
to becoming a leader in this exciting with Atalla Corporation, a supplier 
new arena. of secure transaction systems to 

Tandem merged with Inte- financial and retail industries 
grated Technology, Inc. Renamed worldwide. 
Tandem Telecommunications Tandem and Atalla are 
Systems, Inc. (TTSI), this wholly jointly marketing secure financial 
owned subsidiary is developing and retail payment systems. Shortly 
products that we believe will allow after the end of the fiscal year, 
Tandem systems to provide a variety Atalla announced that its Card 
of services and applications within Activation and PIN Selection 
telecommunications networks. System (CAPS) will now run on 

We also signed a cooperative Tandem NonStop systems. 
agreement with AT&T to develop Atalla plans to continue to 
Integrated Services Digital Network develop its expertise in security 
(ISDN) applications for OLTP and to apply its knowledge to 
ISDN is an international standard OLTP networks. 
for combining transmission of 
voice, data, and other information 
over a single phone line. 

Making Tandem equipment 
compatible with specific AT&T 
equipment will enable telephone 
companies and many Tandem 
system users to offer new OLTP­
based services. 

• • • • • 

19a.t-1987 r •• t,ted 10 Include AtaU. 
1988 1!"Cludes Alalia, nSI. and Ungennenn-e. .. 

• • • • • 
PREPARING FOR THE 
FUTURE OF OLTP 
Strategic moves in fiscal 1988 
expanded Tandem's capabilities in 
enterprise networking, workstation 
integration, support of networking 
standards, telecommunications, 
and security. 

Combined with Tandem's 
OLTP product strengths in systems 
and database, we believe the past 
year's achievements enhance our 
ability to serve the needs of the 
on-line enterprise. 
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T.I.M'£-the Tandem Integrated 
Manufacturing Environment-is 
designed to enhance productivi­
ty and quality by linking islands 
of automation in engineering, 
planning, and production. 

Maybe/line Cosmetics will 
implement Tl.M.E factory con­
trol systems with software from 
MSA Advanced Manufacturing, 
Inc., at its BOO,OOO-square-foot 
plant in North Uttle Rock, 
Arkansas. This massive plant 
produces and distributes all 
Maybe/line cosmetics sold in the 
United States. 

Maybe/line is part of the 
Consumer Operations Division 
of Schering-Plough Corp., with 
headquarte~mMemphi~ 

Tennessee. 
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LEADERSHIP IN SOLUTIONS 

MARKET 
UNDERSTANDING 
AND INNOVATIVE 
SOLUTIONS 
MAKE TANDEM 
A LEADER IN OLTP. 

• • • • • 
O n-line transaction processing is 
a dynamic marketplace-one of 
the fastest growing in commercial 
data processing. InfoCorp, a lead­
ing market research firm, estimates 
worldwide OLTP revenue will 
nearly double by 1993. 

Businesses faced with in­
creased competition, government 
regulation, and changing economic 
conditions look to on-line systems 
for solutions that enhance service, 
quality, profitability, and account­
ability. 

OLTP systems have trans­
formed the way many organiza­
tions conduct business. Users have 
strengthened competitiveness 
through increased efficiency and 
through completely new services­
automated teller machines, 
automated gasoline pumps, and 
computerized home shopping. 

We believe Tandem's under­
standing of this complex market 
and our advanced approach to 



An ambitious program 
• will make electronic 

....... _.;...0-, funds transfer (EFT) 
available at retail points of 
sale (POS) throughout the 
United Kingdom during 1989. 

Of the 14 participants of 
EftPos U.K Ltd-which include 
the U.K's largest banks and 
building societies, and the 
major bank credit card consor­
tium-12 have installed or 
ordered Tandem systems in 

A BARCLAYCARD HOLDER MAKES A PURCHASE AT loNDON'S FAMED FORTNUM & MASON DEPARTMENT STORE. 

preparation for the program's 
inauguration. The inaugural 
service will act as a proving 
ground in advance of roll-out 
of the full national service. 
Many of the banks have begun 
independent EFT/POS services, 
which will later link to the 
national service. These inde­
pendent services are already 
supporting approximately 
15,000 EFT/POS terminals. 

Some of these institutions 
are converting their automated 

teller machines to run on 
Tandem systems as well. 

In the U.K, most retail pur­
chases are made by cash or 
check. Major financial institu­
tions have joined EftPos u.K. 
Ltd, whose board includes a 
representative of The Bank of 
England, in a concerted effort 
to reduce check-clearing 
paperwork by creating paper­
less customer transactions. 



Westinghouse Elec­
tronic Systems Croup 
(ESC), which pro­

duces commerdal and military 
radar systems, uses a network 
of Tandem systems for shop­
floor contro~ factory data col­
lection, and quality assurance. 
The network provides access 

WESTINGHOUSE ELECJ"RONIC SYSTEMS GROUP IS EXPANDING ITS NE'TWORK OF TANDEM SYSTEMS. 

to distributed applications and 
data for more than 4,000 users 
at ESC's l.6-million-square­
foot facility near Baltimore, 
Maryland 

ESC plans to expand the 
network of NonStop VLX and 
TXP systems in 1989 to link 
others of its 26 locations 
worldwide and to implement 
an application under devel-

opment called Westinghouse 
Integrated Systems for Engi­
neering (WISE). 

Using the Tandem NonStop 
SQL relational database 
management system, WISE 
will enhance productivity by 
linking engineering and shop­
floor data and automating 
engineering functions for the 
complete life cycles of 
products. 



application solutions are key 
reasons for continued leadership as 
the Company grows to support the 
on-line enterprise. 

• • • • • 
SERVING LEADING ORGANIZATIONS 
WITH OLTP SYSTEMS 
Today, Tandem systems are helping 
customers maintain leadership in 
their respective markets. 

Tandem systems enable cor­
porations, consumers, and financial 
institutions to transfer vast amounts 
of money electronically-and safely. 
Many banks connect AlMs and 
point-of-sale terminals to Tandem 
systems, providing customer serv­
ices 24 hours each day, every day. 

Tandem systems help run 33 
stock exchanges around the world 
and prepare trade orders in 70 
brokerage firms. Large retailers use 
Tandem systems to approve credit 
requests, ensure adequate mer­
chandise distribution, and retrieve 
store sales data electronically. 

More than 300 manufacturers 
in the automotive, aerospace, elec­
tronics, pharmaceutical, and chemi­
cal industries, for example, use 
Tandem systems for applications 
that include shop-floor control, 
work-in-process tracking, collec­
tion and analysis of quality-control 
data, and inventory management 

Telecommunications provid­
ers worldwide use Tandem systems 
for applications such as service 
order entry and customer billing, 
and for value-added services such 
as electronic mail, information 
gateways, and videotex. 

As more organizations realize 
the competitive advantages OLTP 
systems offer, opportunities to 
apply this technology multiply. Cus­
tomers find new applications, new 
services, and new ways to stream­
line the computer-based functions 
that support the enterprise. 

To maintain a market leader­
ship position, Tandem strives to an­
ticipate such changes in the market 
and to lead the way with solutions. 

• • • • • 
NEW ON-LINE SERVICES 
Important changes in the telecom­
munications industry make it an 
exciting market for OLTP systems. 
Regulatory changes around the 
world are providing telecommunica· 
tions companies with opportunities 
to offer new, revenue-generating 
services. 

Many emerging telecommuni­
cations services are transaction­
oriented. These services require 
continuous system availability and 
high performance-strong features 
of Tandem NonStop systems. An­
other Tandem system advantage is 
the ability to start an on-line system 
small, then expand it in steps as the 
service grows. 

• • • • • 
ELECTROMC DELIVERY SYSTEMS 
OLTP users are discovering that 
there are many significant advan­
tages to the electronic delivery of 
consumer services. 

Retailers, for example, can 
implement electronic systems for 
debit cards, check authorization, 
and check clearing. The tedious job 
of sorting paper credit -card slips 

Under a strategy of joining with 
partners to address emerging 
market needs, Tandem agreed 
with AT« T in 1988 ta develop 
interfaces between Tandem sys­
tems and AT« rs 5ESS~ central 
office switch for Integrated 
Services Digital Network 
(ISDN) applications. 

ISDN, an international net­
working standard for combining 
transmission of voice, data, and 
other information over a single 
phone line, is key to providing 
many new services. 

Making Tandem equipment 
compatible with AT&: T equip­
ment through the use of ISDN 
will help telephone companies 
and others offer new OLTP 
services to the marketplace 

••• • 
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1988 Produd Revenue -by Industry 

Services 
Other 

Health Care 

Banking 

Brokerage a 
Securities 

Other Finanel.1 ..... _--'-_--"'-

Transportation 4% 

Wholesale a 7% 
Retail Distribution 

Govemment 7% 

~----,jt-- Communicetions12% 

Menufacturing 13% 

Does not Include revenue of Atalla, nsf. or Ungennann-8ass. 
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can be eliminated, and the entire 
process handled electronically. 
These applications improve check­
out service and save labor, while 
providing immediate on-line access 
to current sales and inventory data. 

• • • • • 
INTEGRATING APPliCATIONS 
A variety of organizations want to 
link existing automated functions 
into enterprise-wide, on-line net­
works. The goal is to create a 
single, cohesive application envi­
ronment for greater efficiency, 
improved decision making, and 
better customer service. 

An example is found in the 
manufacturing industry, where 
users want to integrate islands of 
automation in engineering, busi­
ness management, and factory­
floor operation. 

To address these needs, 
Tandem developed T.I.M.E., the 
Tandem Integrated Manufacturing 
Environment, in cooperation with 
major development partners Elec­
tronic Data Systems Corporation, 
MSA Advanced Manufacturing, Inc., 
and Boeing Computer Services. 
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T.I.M.E. helps protect custom­
ers' investments in systems by pro­
viding open specifications that 
allow software developers to create 
compatible products and to incor­
porate future applications as they 
are developed. 

Tandem is working to develop 
application architectures similar to 
T.I.M.E. for other industries. 

• • • • • 
THE TANDEM ALLIANCE PROGRAM 
As business and government organ­
izations seek to implement new 
services and streamline operations, 
they require comprehensive solu­
tions involving computer hardware 
and application software. 

Tandem has addressed this 
need with the Tandem Alliance, a 
program that encourages the devel­
opment of application software for 
Tandem systems. The program 
includes more than 260 software 
providers, value-added resellers, 
and other third parties. 

Most Tandem Alliance mem­
bers are independent software 
houses providing off-the-shelf or 
custom software programs. Among 
the Alliance members are some 
of the world's largest and most 
respected software houses. 

Tandem customers who have 
developed application software for 
their own use may also join the 
Alliance program to license their 
solutions to others. 

In addition, this program 
supports system integrators who 
provide numerous essential serv­
ices-from initial planning to final 
installation -including integrating 
Tandem systems with custom 
software and hardware from 
other vendors. 

In fiscal 1988, NYNEX Informa­
tion Solutions Group, Inc., a subsidi­
ary of NYNEX Corporation, joined 
the Tandem Alliance. NYNEX Infor­
mation Solutions Group will assist 
Tandem users with large-scale 
integration projects in the telecom­
munications and financial services 
industries. 

The Tandem Alliance program 
contributes to Tandem's market 
leadership by providing key busi­
ness solutions in a wide range of 
major industries. 

• • • • • 
Tandem's market understand­

ing and innovative solutions have 
helped make the Company a leader 
in OLTP. We believe that these 
strengths, plus Tandem's powerful 
systems, database products, and 
networks to connect the enterprise, 
will help the Company maintain a 
leadership position as it serves the 
evolving on-line enterprise. 



Daiei Group, Japan's 
largest retailer, is un­

--=;'~\ dertaking a massive 
program to replace existing 
computer systems with an on­
line, distributed data network 
that the firm believes will be 
the biggest in Japan's dynamic 
and competitive retail industry. 

The network began opera­
tions during 1988 with two 
NonStop VLX systems, with a 
total of 24 processors divided 
between Tokyo and Osaka. 
Today, it links 3,000 Daiei-

affiliated convenience stores 
for processing orders and 
collecting point-of-sale 
(POS) data. 

In addition, the Tandem 
network connects more than 
10,000 POS terminals at 
several hundred general mer­
chandise stores, discount and 
department stores, offices, and 
distribution centers. More than 
3,500 vendors are tied into 
the network. 

Daiei chose Tandem sys­
tems because the firm needed 

the flexibility to grow its net­
work and distribute data as 
its business needs require. The 
rapidly growing company 

expects to have 7,000 outlets 
within five years. To support 
this expansion, NonStop VLX 
nodes are planned for five 
other major cities over the 
next few years. 

The company also wanted 
an integrated networking 
capability that could reduce 
its dependence on centralized 
host computers while protect­
ing its investment in current 
systems. 

Daiei had sales in its most 
recent year of over $11 billion. 



.++ • 
Tandem offers systems with 
an impressive combination of 
proven OLTP fundamentals: fault 
toleronce, data integrity, linear 
expandability, distributed data, 
networking, superior price/ 
perfonnance, and security. 

The Company is building on 
these fundamentals-plus its 
12 years of experience serving 
OLTP custamers-to meet the 
developing needs of the on-line 
enterprise 
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DEDICATED TO CUSTOMER 
SATISFACTION 

CUSTOMER 
SATISFACTION IS OUR 
ULTIMATE GOAL. 

• • • • • 
S ystems and databases, enterprise 
networks, and application solutions 
are essential to the on-line enter­
prise. We believe that Tandem is 
meeting these requirements through 
superior products and strategic 
relationships that complement our 
strengths. 

Our ultimate goal is customer 
satisfaction. Tandem customers 
must know that our products will 
meet expectations from the time 
they are installed Two ways in 
which we ensure customer satisfac­
tion are through performance meas­
urement and through customer 
support and service. 

• • • • • 



ENSURING SUPERIOR 
PERFORMANCE 
Critical on-line applications demand 
superior system performance to 
keep customers ahead of their com­
petition. That performance must also 
increase as the business grows. 

We believe that Tandem sys­
tems offer the best combination of 
performance and OLTP functional­
ity in the industry. Our development 
efforts and strategic partnerships 
are aimed at maintaining this 
competitive advantage. 

To maximize their investments 
in OLTP systems, customers need 
effective tools for comparing the 
performance of different vendors' 
systems. As a result, Tandem 
supports efforts to develop useful 
performance benchmarks. 

An example is the so-called 
DebitCredit benchmark This 
benchmark is embraced by many 
consulting, research, and auditing 
firms as a measure of transaction­
processing performance. 

Key to the value of the Debit­
Credit benchmark is that it not only 
measures performance, but also 
specifies that vendors incorporate 
many functions critical to on-line 
transaction-processing applications. 

The DebitCredit benchmark is 
useful, but, like most benchmark 
specifications, it leaves many im­
plementation details up to the 
vendor, which can greatly influence 
the outcome of testing. 

Tandem is looking at ways in 
which the value of benchmarks as 

measures of transaction-processing 
performance may be enhanced for 
the benefit of customers. 

• • • • • 
CUSTOMER BENCHMARKS 
A tool such as the DebitCredit 
benchmark provides one measure 
of transaction-processing perform­
ance. Tandem customers also want 
to know what kind of performance 
they will achieve running their own 
applications. 

So that customers can test 
actual applications on Tandem sys­
tems, the Company maintains state­
of-the-art benchmark centers in 

New AcrolUll$ 

Does not Include new .ccount. of ""alla TTSL 
Of Ungermann-8au 

The most reliable benchmarks 
are those perfonned for specific 
customer applications. In Cuper­
tino, California, Tandem's Bench­
mam Center (pictured above) 
gives customers and Tandem 
Alliance portners a state-of­
the-art environment for testing 
software applications. 

The center uses Tandem sys­
tems with a total of 64 proces­
sors, ronging from the powerful 
NonStop VLX system to the 
NonStop CLX system. 

.+. • 
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Cupertino, California, and Frankfurt, 
West Germany. Here, customer 
applications can be run on large 
Tandem systems updating massive 
on-line databases. 

• • • • • 
EXPERIENCED SERVICE AND 
SUPPORT TEAMS 
The most important key to customer 
satisfaction is high-quality service 
and support. Tandem is dedicated 
to excellence in comprehensive, 
state-of-the-art service and support. 

Tandem's large internal com­
puter network, in addition to help­
ing run the Company's business, 
links thousands of experienced 
Tandem support specialists allover 
the world -ready to help customers 
with installation, hardware mainte­
nance, and software support. 

In this on-line environment, 
Tandem customer engineers and 
systems analysts exchange ideas on 
how best to serve customers. They 
maintain a knowledge base on the 
network of service-related prob­
lems and solutions from around 
the world. 
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Flexible support plans give 
Tandem customers a range of op­
tions. Customers can select that all 
services be delivered by Tandem or 
can choose to assume responsibil­
ity for part of the maintenance 
themselves. 

When a customer has a sup­
port problem, a call may be placed 
to the local or regional Tandem 
office or directly to one of the 
Tandem National Support Centers 
in Canada, Denmark, France, 
Japan, Sweden, the United King­
dom, the United States, and West 
Germany. 

We continue to search for new 
ways to enhance communication 
between Tandem and our custom­
ers. For example, shortly after the 
close of fiscal 1988, Tandem and the 
International Tandem Users' Group 
jointly announced the creation of 
a worldwide information network 
for sharing technical information 
among the Company and its 
customers. 

Through these support offer­
ings and others, Tandem customers 
receive reliable service for all the 
components of their Tandem sys­
tems -whether mainframes, distrib­
uted systems, database software, 
workstations, or entire enterprise 
networks. 

• • • • • 

POISED TO WIN 
Tandem is moving forward to serve 
the evolving needs of the OLTP 
market. We believe the strong 
foundation built while successfully 
serving OLTP customers since 1976 
strengthens our position and pro­
vides momentum. 

Tandem products offer funda­
mental advantages that many other 
vendors are just beginning to ad­
dress. In fiscal 1988, the delivery 
of important new products, the 
establishment of strategic relation­
ships, and the addition of a record 
number of new customers served 
to maintain Tandem's leadership. 

We believe these advances 
mean that Tandem is now-more 
than ever-poised to win and 
grow by meeting the needs of the 
on-line enterprise. 



TELEI{l;RS AG IN ZURICH IS A UNIQUE FINANCIAL SERVICES ORGANIZATION THAT SELLS ITS PRODUCTS INTERNATIONALLY USING A LARGE TANDEM NE1WORK. 

Telekurs AG,jointly 
owned by Switzer­
land's 350 banks, is 

a unique and rapidly growing 
financial services organization 
with worldwide activities. A 
Tandem customer since 1983, 
Telekurs operates a distributed 
data network of 24 NonStop 
systems (at the close of 1988) 
with over 130 processors. 

Telekurs'Tandem network 
gathers, processes, and distrib­
utes information on intema-

tional securities, commodities, Furthermore, it handles all 
and foreign exchange for the funds transfers for the Swiss 
Swiss banks and other financial banks, including those related 
organizations globally. Its on- to check clearing, the nation­
line database, with details on wide ATM network, EFT/POS 
more than 230,000 securities system (electronic funds trans-
from some 100 exchanges, fer at point of sale), and 
is claimed to be the most EUROCARD/MasterCard. 
comprehensive of its kind During 1988, Telekurs began 
in the world expanding its domestic four-

In addition, the high-volume node Tandem network inter-
network processes and up- nationally with new locations 
dates all transactions on the in London, Frankfurt, and the 
five Swiss stock exchanges. New York area. The company, 

which is growing 30 percent 
annually, intends to extend the 
network to additionalloca­
tions in Europe, Asia, and the 
United States. 



Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Overview 
In fiscal 1988, Tandem Computers Incorporated took major 
steps to enhance its leadership position in providing sys­
tems and networks for on-line transaction processing 
(OLTP) and to meet the needs of the developing on-line 
enterprise. During the year, Tandem merged with Atalla 
Corporation, a leading vendor of secure transaction sys­
tems; acquired Ungermann-Bass, Inc. (Ungermann-Bass), 
a leader in open enterprise networks for multivendor 
environments; and acquired Tandem Telecommunications 
Systems, Inc. (TfSI), formerly Integrated Technology, Inc., 
a developer of computer products and services for the tele­
communications industry. The Company believes the new 
business combination will lead to increased market oppor­
tunities and enable it to bring important competitive prod­
ucts to market in a shorter time than previously possible. 

During the year, Tandem experienced some of the 
benefits of those increased opportunities as Ungermann-Bass 
contributed to the Company's revenue growth. However, 
despite tight operating management practices, operating 
income declined because of a product mix shift, increased 
research and development spending partially as a result of 
the acquisitions, and the amortization of cost in excess of 
net assets acquired. The acquired companies (Ungermann­
Bass and TTSI) are not included in results of operations 
from prior years, so these and other growth rates and ratios 
are affected as discussed below. 

The Company believes achieving its goal of market 
leadership involves many factors, including strategic posi­
tioning, a commitment to product development, partner­
ships with companies that have complementary strengths, 
customer satisfaction, and an organizational structure and 
philosophy that foster employee productivity and creativity. 
Additionally, Tandem believes it is important to maintain a 
strong financial position to compete effectively in the rapidly 
growing OLTP marketplace. The bold moves and financial 
choices the Company made throughout the year reflect 
these priorities. 

All references to the years 1988, 1987, and 1986 through­
out this section represent the Company's fiscal year ended 
September 30. 
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Total Assets 
(In Billions) 

Results of Operations 
The following table summarizes the changes in selected 
operating indicators. The percentages on the left show the 
relationships of income and expense items to total revenue. 
The percentages on the right measure the year-to-year 
changes. 

Percent of Revenue Percent Increase 
(Decrease) 

1988 1987 1986 1988 1987 

82.l 83.2 82.4 Product revenue 24 36 
17.9 16.8 17.6 Service and other revenue 34 28 

100.0 100.0 100.0 Total revenue 26 35 

23.6 22.l 22.9 Cost of product revenue 34 30 
Cost of service and other 

13.5 12.6 13.5 revenue 35 26 

37.l 34.7 36.4 Total cost of revenue 34 28 
12.9 lOA 11.3 Research and development 55 24 

Marketing, general, and 
38.8 38.6 38.5 administrative 26 35 
11.2 16.3 13.8 Operating income (14) 59 

Net other income 
(.1) 1.3 1.1 (expense) NM 69 

ILl 17.6 14.9 Income before income taxes (21) 60 
3.9 7.6 6.6 Provision for income taxes (36) 55 
7.2 10.0 8.3 Net income (10) 64 

Earnings per share (10) 49 

Prior period amounts have been restated to reflect the merger with 
Atalla Corporation, which occurred during 1988, and was accounted 
for as a pooling of interests. 

Current period amounts include the consolidation of results of TIS I 
from January 8, 1988, and of Ungermann-Bass from March 18,1988, 
the dates Tandem assumed effective control of each company. 

Revenue 
Revenue in 1988 was 26 percent higher than in the previous 
year. Revenue reached $1.3 billion in 1988, compared with 
$1.0 billion posted in 1987 and $778 million recorded in 
1986. Tandem's revenue gains over the past two years re­
sulted from increased shipments of hardware and software 
products to new and existing customers and from an in­
creased number of customers using its support and training 
services. Revenue from Ungermann-Bass is included in the 
consolidated results since March 18, 1988, the date when 
Tandem assumed effective control of the company. Its reve­
nue contributed to revenue growth in 1988. 

The revenue growth rate was lower in 1988 than in the 
prior year, primarily because of reduced domestic demand 
experienced by the Company and in the computer industry 
as a whole. Domestic revenue growth for 1988, including 



the contribution made by Ungermann-Bass, was 11 percent, 
compared with the strong domestic performance of 27 
percent growth a year earlier. 

As in the prior year, international revenue grew faster 
than domestic revenue in 1988. European operations main­
tained the 46 percent growth rate achieved in the prior year. 
Revenue growth in non-European countries remained high 
at 43 percent, although less than the very strong 50 percent 
growth posted in 1987. Ungermann-Bass contributed to the 
growth in international revenue, though less significantly 
than to domestic revenue. 

Strong international performance, coupled with the less 
robust domestic environment, brought the contribution from 
international business to 50 percent of the Company's 1988 
revenue, compared with 43 percent in 1987 and 39 percent 
in 1986. Europe contributed 34 percent of 1988 revenue, com­
pared with 29 percent in 1987 and 27 percent in 1986. Other 
international business grew to 16 percent of 1988 revenue, 
compared with 14 percent in 1987 and 12 percent in 1986. 

Over the past three years, the Company has introduced a 
number of systems, software, storage products, and periph­
eral products that have contributed to revenue growth. 
These products include the NonStop VLX computer system, 
introduced in 1986; NonStop SQL software, introduced in 
1987; the NonStop CLX computer system, first sold in 1988; 
and related products. These products opened new markets 
for the Company. The addition of Ungermann-Bass's open, 
enterprise-wide networking products to the Company's 
product line also contributed to revenue growth in 1988. 

Despite continued customer acceptance of the Com­
pany's products, product revenue growth slowed to 24 per­
cent in 1988 from the 36 percent recorded in the prior year. 
This was primarily the result of lower domestic demand. 

The growth rate of service and other revenue increased 
to 34 percent, compared with the 28 percent achieved a 
year earlier. The Company believes the growth in service 
and other revenue in 1988 reflects the increase in the size of 
its customer base resulting from the strong product growth 
achieved in the prior year. 

Operating Income 
Operating income in 1988 was $147 million, or 11 percent 
of revenue; compared with $170 million, or 16 percent of 
revenue, reached in 1987; and $107 million, or 14 percent of 
revenue, recorded in 1986. Operating margin decreased as 
a percentage of revenue in 1988, compared with the prior 
two years, primarily as the result of higher cost of revenue, 
additional research and development spending, and the 
amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired related 

to the acquisitions of Ungermann-Bass and 'ITSI. The im­
provement in operating income from 1986 to 1987 was 
largely attributable to higher gross profit margins resulting 
from a favorable product mix: and the Company's improve­
ments in manufacturing and service operations. 

Cost of revenue as a percentage of revenue increased 
in 1988, compared with a decrease recorded in 1987. The 
improvement in 1987 was primarily the result of ongoing 
programs to increase the efficiency of manufacturing and 
service operations. Cost of product revenue as a percentage 
of revenue also improved in 1987, in part because the 
Company sold a favorable mix: of products, many of which 
incorporated new technologies that provided greater 
performance at lower cost. In 1988, however, the costs of 
product revenue and service and other revenue each in­
creased as a percentage of revenue, leading to an increase 
in total cost of revenue as a percentage of revenue. This 
was primarily the result of the acquisition of Ungermann­
Bass, which has lower product and service margins than 
Tandem's historic business. In addition, product upgrade 
programs, a product-mix shift toward the Company's PSX 
workstations and NonStop CLX computer systems, and an 
increase in discounts granted to customers contributed 
to the increase in the Company's product costs as a per­
centage of revenue. 

Cost of product revenue grew 34 percent in 1988 over 
its 1987 level, compared with a 30 percent increase recorded 
in the prior year. In both cases, this was due primarily to in­
creases in volume; however, in 1988, product cost grew faster 
than product revenue for the reasons stated above. The 
growth in the cost of service and other revenue in 1988 and 
1987 was attributable primarily to growth in the installed 
base. The acquired companies contributed to increases in 
costs of both product and service revenue in 1988. 

Research and development expenses increased as a per­
centage of revenue in 1988 from the prior year level. This 
compares with the decrease recorded in 1987, which was 
partially attributable to higher-than-anticipated revenue, as 
well as capitalization of certain software development costs. 
In 1988, the increase in research and development expenses 
as a percentage of revenue was attributable primarily to 
lower-than-anticipated revenue growth and the acquisition 
of 'ITS!. In addition, the Company capitalized less software 
development cost in 1988 than in the prior year. 

Research and development activities focus on meet­
ing the needs of customers who are implementing on-line 
systems for single sites or for geographically distributed 
information processing networks. The level of research and 
development expenses increased over the past three years 
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to support new product development efforts and programs 
to enhance existing products. Among the products that 
resulted from prior years' research and development spend­
ing were the XLBO disk subsystem, which began shipping in 
1988, and NonStop SQL software, the NonStop CLX com­
puter system, and the V80 disk subsystem, which became 
generally available during the year. 

The acquisitions of Ungermann-Bass and TfSI, a 
development organization, also contributed to the growth 
in research and development expenses. The Company ex­
peets to support new product development with increased 
research and development spending, although the Company 
expects the expenses as a percentage of revenue to decline. 

The Company's marketing strategy emphasizes direct 
sales to organizations that are implementing OLTP applica­
tions critical to their businesses. The Company believes that 
providing a high level of service and support and offering 
solutions to customers' business problems are essential 
to meeting the needs of the customer base. Consequently, 
Tandem has built a direct sales and support organization in 
the United States and international industrial markets. Rela­
tionships established with third-party application software 
developers, equipment remarketers, and distributors com­
plement direct sales activities. 

Although marketing, general, and administrative 
expenses as a percentage of revenue have remained stable 
over the past three years, the level of spending has increased 
as the Company has continued to build its marketing organi­
zation, to train new and existing sales, service, and support 
personnel, and to develop marketing relationships with 
third parties to support the Company's growth. In addition 
to the acquisitions of Ungermann-Bass and TfSI, Tandem 
has invested in joint ventures and taken equity positions in 
companies whose product, market, or geographic strengths 
support its strategies. These factors have all contributed to 
the growth in marketing, general, and administrative 
expenses. Although the 1988 marketing, general, and adminis­
trative expenses include the amortization of cost in excess 
of net assets acquired from the acquisitions, the Company's 
continued tight management of spending levels has 
enabled it to match the growth in marketing, general, and 
administrative expenses with revenue growth in both 1987 
and 1988. 

Net Income and Earnings Per Share 
Net income in 1988 was $94.5 million, compared with 
$105.2 million in 1987 and $64.3 million in 1986. In addition 
to factors discussed above, changes in net income over the 
past three years were the result of changes in the Company's 
net other income or expense and its effective tax rate. 

In 1987, net interest income was approximately 
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$6 million higher than in 1986. Interest income in 1987 in­
creased primarily because of significantly higher balances 
of interest-earning investments. However, in 1988, the 
Company expended a large portion of its cash balance to 
purchase tendered shares and the outstanding debt of 
Ungermann-Bass; the Company also incurred interest 
expense in connection with borrowings related to the 
Ungermann-Bass acquisition and the assumption of mort­
gages on real estate purchased during the year. As a result, 
net interest income during 1988 was approximately $7 mil­
lion lower than in the prior year. In addition, in 1988, the 
Company settled a class action lawsuit that resulted in a 
pretax charge of $9.4 million. 

The effective tax rate in 1988 was 35 percent, compared 
with rates of 43 percent in 1987 and 44 percent in 1986. The 
effective tax rate in 1988 would have been lower except for 
the amortization of cost in excess of net assets acquired 
resulting from the Ungermann-Bass acquisition, which is 
not tax-deductible. The decline in the effective tax rate was 
primarily the result of lower federal statutory tax rates 
brought about by the passage of the Tax Reform Act of 
1986. The Company elected not to implement Financial Ac­
counting Standards Board Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 96, "Accounting for Income Taxes," in 1988 
and believes adoption will not have a material effect on the 
Company's financial statements. 

Earnings per share in 1988 were $.96 per share, com­
pared with $1.07 per share earned in 1987 and $.72 per 
share in 1986. In 1988, the decline in earnings per share 
matched the decline in net income. However, in 1987, the 
growth in earnings per share, compared with the prior year, 
differed from that of net income because of a higher 
number of weighted average shares outstanding. Sales of 
stock to employees under the stock purchase plan, grants 
under option plans, and changes in stock prices resulted in 
increases in weighted average shares outstanding of less 
than one percent in 1988, and of 10 percent in 1987. 

Personnel 

During the year, the number of employees increased by 
1,547, bringing the total number of employees at year-end to 
8,624. More than two-thirds of the increase was the result of 
the acquisitions of Ungermann-Bass and TfSI. Other hiring 
occurred in areas the Company believes are critical to its 
success, with the greatest percentage increases in research 
and development, marketing, and service. 

Impact of Currency and Inflation 

In 1988, the weakness of the U.S. dollar against foreign 
currencies had a positive influence on revenue; however, 
the impact on operating income was largely moderated by 



price reductions taken to maintain consistent pricing across 
international boundaries, combined with the negative effect 
of strengthening currencies on international expenses. 

The effect of inflation on the Company's financial 
results has not been significant 

Financial Condition 
The Company's financial position remains strong. Total 
assets at year-end increased to $1.3 billion, compared with 
$973 million in 1987 and $710 million in 1986. The 1988 in­
crease was due to the Ungermann-Bass acquisition and 
favorable operating results during the year. The equity base 
grew to $857 million from $724 million and $538 million in 
1987 and 1986, respectively. Cash and equivalents declined 
during the year, and the Company's debt and short-term 
borrowing increased as the Company invested in the acqui­
sitions of Ungermann-Bass and TTSI and acquired more 
property, plant, and equipment The balance of cash and 
equivalents stood at $125 million at September 30, 1988, 
compared with $318 million at September 30, 1987, and 
$240 million at September 30, 1986. 

Funds to support the Company's operations have his­
torically been generated internally from operations and 
improvements in asset management These sources of 
funds have traditionally been supplemented by employee 
stock purchases. In 1988, cash flow from operations was 
$123 million, compared with $153 million in 1987 and $134 
million in 1986. 

During 1988, Tandem invested $270 million in cash, net 
of cash acquired, in the acquisitions of Ungermann-Bass 
and TfSI, and $216 million in additional property, plant, 
and equipment The cost of these investments includes the 
acquired debt There were no significant business acquisi­
tions prior to 1988. Property, plant, and equipment invest­
ments were $143 million in 1987 and $65 million in 1986. 
The increased investment primarily supported the Company's 
growth. Property, plant, and equipment investments in 1988 
included the purchase of six buildings in the Company's 
headquarters area in Cupertino, California, and a building 

near London for the Company's headquarters in the United 
Kingdom. Tandem purchased two buildings in 1987 in 
Cupertino. Prior to 1987, Tandem did not own the build­
ings it occupied in its headquarters area. The Company 
previously leased most of the buildings it has purchased. 
The additional space will allow for expansion and for 
relocation of employees housed in other Santa Clara 
County, California, locations. 

In 1988, the Company borrowed to support its investment 
activity. In connection with acquisitions and real estate pur­
chases, Tandem's borrowings at year-end were $148 million, 
compared with $11 million at the end of 1987. 

Tandem believes it is strategically important to maintain 
a conservative capital structure and a sound ratio of current 
assets to current liabilities in order to demonstrate its finan­
cial strength and to compete effectively in high-technology 
markets. As a result of the level of investment activity in 
1988, the Company's current ratio decreased and its long­
term obligations to capital ratio increased. The current ratio 
at year-end 1988 was 1.8:1, compared with 3.6:1 and 3.8:1 at 
the end of 1987 and 1986, respectively. Nineteen percent of 
the Company's current assets are cash and equivalents; the 
Company believes the current ratio is sound. The Company 
plans to repay a portion of the short-term borrowings dur­
ing fiscal 1989, which would improve the current ratio. 
Long-term obligations as a percent of capital at the end of 
1988 were 6.4 percent, compared with 1.2 percent at the end 
of 1987 and 1.1 percent at the end of 1986. 

The Company has various alternatives to meet future 
capital needs, including funds generated from future opera­
tions, continued stock issuances under employee stock pur­
chase and option plans, and a new $200 million multiple­
option financing facility. The new facility replaces a former 
$65 million credit line and was unused at year-end. 

Inventory management improved over the prior year, 
as inventory days declined to 78 days at the end of fiscal 
1988, compared with 87 days recorded in 1987 and 76 days 
in 1986. Accounts receivable days at year-end were 85, com­
pared with 80 and 82 at the end of 1987 and 1986, respectively. 
The increase in receivable days was partially attributable 
to the acquisition of Ungermann-Bass. Ungermann-Bass 
has historically had higher average receivable days 
than Tandem. 

The Company believes that attracting and retaining 
high-quality employees are keys to success. Methods to 
achieve these objectives include employee stock option 
and stock purchase programs, which also provide funds for 
the Company. As a result of these programs, the Company 
received $33 million in 1988, $81 million in 1987, and $51 
million in 1986 from employee stock purchases and related 
tax benefits. 
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Selected Financial Data 

For the years ended September 30 

(In thousands except 
1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 per share amounts) 

Revenue $1,314,721 $1,047,532 $778,014 $635,983 $540,514 

Cost of revenue 487,791 363,730 283,227 273,516 236,416 
Research and development 169,356 109,504 88,202 75,357 54,144 
Marketing, general, and 

administrative 510,313 403,859 299,572 238,152 199,709 

Operating income 147,261 170,439 107,013 48,958 50,245 
Net interest income 7,477 14,207 8,399 6,178 5,289 
Settlement of litigation (9,375) 
Provision for income taxes 

Current year (50,878) (79,417) (51,154) (21,554) (22,876) 
DISC tax reversal 9,700 

Net income $ 94,485 $ 105,229 $ 64,258 $ 33,582 $ 42,358 

Earnings per share $ .96 $ 1.07 $ .72 $ .40 $ .51 

Total assets $1,318,377 $ 973,040 $710,024 $559,244 $507,935 
Long-term obligations $ 58,197 $ 9,055 $ 5,795 $ 11,884 $ 17,072 
Stockholders' investment $ 856,861 $ 723,855 $537,978 $423,214 $378,715 

See the Business Combinations note to the consolidated financial statements for a description of significant transactions affecting the 198 data. 

Members of Tandem's Executive Committee, reporting to James G. Treybig, president and chief executive officer, are, from left to right: 
Ralph K Ungermann, senior vice president, Ungermann-Bass Group; Donald E. Fowler, senior vice president, Tandem Companies Group; 
Gerald L. Peterson, senior vice president, Tandem Sales and Marketing Group; Robert C MaTShal~ senior vice president and chief oper­
ating officer; Stephen C Schmid~ senior vice president, Tandem Systems Group; and Thomas J. Klitgaard, senior vice president, general 
counsel and secretary. Not pictured: Gerald D. Held, vice president, strategy and corporate development; and David J Rynne, senior vice 
president and chief financial officer. 
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

For the years ended September 30 

(In thousands except per share amounts) 1988 1987 1986 

Revenue 
Product revenue $1,079,563 $ 872,003 $640,993 
Service and other revenue 235,158 175,529 137,021 

Total revenue 1,314,721 1,047,532 778,014 

Costs and expenses 
Cost of product revenue 309,896 231,659 178,300 
Cost of service and other revenue 177,895 132,071 104,927 
Research and development 169,356 109,504 88,202 
Marketing, general, and administrative 510,313 403,859 299,572 

Total costs and expenses 1,167,460 877,093 671,001 

Operating income 147,261 170,439 107,013 
Interest income 15,560 15,811 10,483 
Interest expense (8,083) (1,604) (2,084) 
Settlement of litigation (9,375) 

Income before income taxes 145,363 184,646 115,412 

Provision for income taxes 50,878 79,417 51,154 

Net income $ 94,485 $ 105,229 $ 64,258 

Earnings per share $ .96 $ 1.07 $ .72 

Weighted average shares outstanding 98,683 98,424 89,096 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

September 30, 1988 and 1987 

(In thousands except share amounts) 

Assets 

Current assets 
Cash and equivalents 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $9,491 in 1988 and $8,394 in 1987 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total current assets 

Property, plant, and equipment, at cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net property, plant, and equipment 

Cost in excess of net assets acquired, net of amortization of $6,248 
Other assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and stockholders' investment 

Current liabilities 
Notes payable 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 

Accrued payroll 
Accrued vacation 
Accrued commissions 
Deferred income 
Income taxes 
Other 

Current maturities of long-term obligations 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term obligations 

Deferred income taxes 

Stockholders' investment 
Common stock $.025 par value, authorized 200,000,000 shares, outstanding 

96,108,000 in 1988 and 93,849,000 in 1987 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated translation adjustments 

Total stockholders' investment 

Total liabilities and stockholders' investment 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 

1988 1987 

$ 124,599 $318,271 
355,635 256,296 
129,426 94,846 
34,103 22,891 

643,763 692,304 

633,159 399,350 
(214,638) (146,118) 

418,521 253,232 

205,128 
50,965 27,504 

$1,31 ,377 973,040 

80,971 
91,935 79,489 

35,136 28,140 
17,450 15,847 
14,757 13,793 
29,479 13,928 
25,412 10,728 
60, 36 31,129 
9,322 1,537 

365,298 194,591 

58,197 9,055 

38,021 45,539 

2,403 2,346 
403,241 370,142 
445,852 351,367 

5,365 

856,861 723,855 

$1,318,377 $973,040 
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Invesbnent 

For the years ended September 30 

Additional Accumulated Total 
Common Stock Paid-In Retained Translation Stockholders' 

( In thousands) Shares Amount Capital Earnings Adjustments Investment 

Balances, September 30, 1985 83,451 $2,086 $239,248 $181,880 $ $423,214 
Sale of Common Stock under stock 

plans, including tax benefits 5,064 127 50,379 50,506 
et income 64,258 64,258 

Balances, September 30, 1986 88,515 2,213 289,627 246,138 537,978 
Sale of Common Stock under stock 

plans, including tax benefits 5,334 133 80,515 80,648 
et income 105,229 105,229 

Balances, September 30, 1987 93,849 2,346 370,142 351,367 723,855 
Effect of redesignating 

functional currency 10,191 10,191 

Balances, October 1,1987 93,849 2,346 370,142 351 ,367 10,191 734,046 
Sale of Common Stock under stock 

plans, including tax benefits 2,259 57 33,099 33,156 
Translation adjustments (4,826) (4,826) 

et income 94,485 94,485 

Balances, September 30, 1988 96,108 $2,403 $403,241 $445,852 $ 5,365 $856,861 

The accompanyi ng notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended September 30 

(In thousands) 1988 1987 1986 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net income $ 94,485 $105,229 $ 64,258 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

from operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 85,971 52,501 43,366 
Deferred income taxes (11,831) 8,582 (4,003) 
Loss on property, plant, and 

equipment sales 1,820 1,068 246 
Foreign currency hedging losses 3,172 11,064 4,108 
Translation adjustments 3,775 2,767 
Changes in: 

Accounts receivable (60,993) (48,591) (26,966) 
Inventories (12,728) (29,084) 15,296 
Lease receivables (13,337) (2,252) 
Prepaid expenses and non-debt current liabilities 36,292 50,435 34,814 

Net cash from operating activities 122,851 152,727 133,886 

Cash flows used in investing activities 
Payments for UB and ITI, net of cash acquired (240,503) 
Investment in property, plant, and equipment (185,108) (142,552) (65,169) 
Proceeds from property, plant, 

and equipment sales 12,046 13,800 7,144 
Increase in other assets (6,093) (16,550) ( 4,681) 
Foreign currency hedging activity (6,447) (13,227) ( 4,085) 

Net cash used in investing activities (426,105) (158,529) (66,791 ) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Borrowings 88,518 2,701 3,420 
Repayments (11,061) (4,147) (13,094) 
Issuance of Common Stock under stock plans, 

including tax benefits 33,156 80,648 50,506 

Net cash provided by financing activities 110,613 79,202 40,832 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on 
cash and equivalents (1,031) 4,562 3,343 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents $(193,672) $ 77,962 111 ,270 

Supplementary cash flow information-
cash paid during the year for: 

Income taxes $ 39,077 $ 54,291 23,017 
Interest $ 7,328 $ 2,746 $ 2,561 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of Tandem Computers Incorporated and its 
subsidiaries after the elimination of intercompany 
accounts and transactions. 

Revenue recognition 
The Company generally recognizes revenue from 
equipment sales at the time of shipment. Service and 
other revenue are recognized ratably over the con­
tractual period or as the services are provided. 

Translation of non-U.S. currency amounts 
As a result of growth and other changes relating to 
business conducted internationally, on October 1, 1987, 
the Company redesignated the functional currency of 
its foreign subsidiaries to the local currencies of the 
countries in which they operate. The most significant 
impact is that inventory and long-term assets, for periods 
after October 1, 1987, have been translated at year-end 
rather than historical exchange rates. Using the prior 
method, cost of revenue and depreciation expense were 
translated using historical rates in effect when the related 
assets were acquired. All revenues and expenses are now 
translated at average rates of exchange during the year. 
The effect of this change on 1988 income was insignificant. 
In addition, all ongoing adjustments resulting from the 
process of translating each subsidiary's financial state­
ments into U. S. dollars have been accumulated and 
recorded within a separate component of stockholders' 
investment. For years prior to 1988, such adjustments 
were included in net income. 

The Company enters into forward exchange and 
option contracts to reduce the impact of foreign currency 
fluctuations on monetary asset and liability positions of 
foreign subsidiaries. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, 
first-out) or market. The components of inventories at 
September 30 were: 

(In thousands) 1988 1987 
Purchased parts and subassemblies $ 68,71 8 $54,521 
Work-in-process 25,894 16,567 
Finished goods 34,814 23,758 
Total $129,426 $94,846 

Income taxes 
The Company accounts for research and development 
and investment tax credits as a reduction of the provision 
for income taxes in the year in which the credits are gen­
erated. In general, the Company's practice is to provide 
U. S. federal taxes on undistributed international earnings. 

Cash and equivalents 
In November 1987, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued Statement No. 95, "Statement of Cash 
Flows~ The Company adopted the provisions of the 
Statement in its fiscal 1988 financial statements and 
restated previously reported statements of changes in 
financial position for fiscal 1987 and 1986. Short-term 
cash investments are valued at cost, which approximates 
market; have maturity dates not exceeding ninety days; 
and generally consist of certificates of deposit, time 
deposits, treasury notes, money market preferred stocks, 
municipal notes, and commercial paper. 

Property, plant, and equipment 
Property, plant, and equipment is stated at cost. Depreci­
ation and amortization are computed using the straight­
line method over estimated useful lives, as follows: 
buildings, 30 years; computer equipment, 3-7 years; 
leasehold improvements, 1-7 years ( the lease term). 
System spares are depreciated using the double-declining 
balance method over five years. Property, plant, and 
equipment balances at September 30 were as follows: 

(In thousands) 

Land and buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Computer equipment 
System spares 
Leasehold improvements 
Construction in progress 

Total 

1988 
$193,940 

113,133 
206,076 
65,022 
39,939 
15,049 

$633,159 

1987 
$ 54,336 

81,866 
144,938 
54,963 
41,426 
21,82 1 

$399,350 

Included in the land and buildings and the construction 
in progress balances at September 30, 1988 and 1987, 
were approximately $27 million of costs relating to land 
and land improvements on a parcel located in San Jose, 
California, held for future development. 

During fiscal 1988, the Company purchased land and 
six buildings for its headquarters in Cupertino, California, 
for $85.5 million. The purchases were financed using 
$54.8 million in cash and the assumption of mortgages 
totaling $30.7 million. The Company also purchased land 
and a building for $16.7 million near London for its 
U. K. headquarters. 
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Cost in excess of net assets acquired 
The excess acquisition cost over the fair value of net 
assets of businesses acquired is being amortized using 
the straight-line method over estimated lives ranging 
from 10 to 20 years. 

Software development costs 
The Company capitalizes software development costs as 
the resulting products become "technologically feasible" 
and amortizes those costs when, and as, the products are 
shipped. At a minimum, the amortization must be that 
which would result using a three-year straight-line method 
from the date of product release. The amounts of un­
amortized software development costs included in other 
assets at September 3D, 1988 and 1987, were 12.2 million 
and $8.7 million, respectively. The amortization expense 
for 1988 and 1987 was $5.2 million and 1.3 million, 
respectively. 

Earnings per share 
Earnings per share have been computed based upon 
the weighted average number of common and common 
equivalent shares outstanding. Common equivalent 
shares result from the assumed exercise of outstanding 
stock options and a convertible debenture, which have a 
dilutive effect when applying the treasury stock method. 
Fully diluted earnings per share are substantially the 
same as reported earnings per share. 

Leasing Program 

The Company has a vendor leasing program whereby 
trade lease receivables may be financed by a financial 
institution either through limited recourse sales of the 
receivables or through direct borrowings. In the event of 
a default by a lessee, recourse by the financial institution 
is limited to the collateralized computer equipment and 
a recourse amount, if any, from either a limited recourse 
pool established as a percentage of each associated group 
of financed lease transactions or limited recourse speci­
fied in the individual transaction agreement. The Company 
may also be required to remarket the computer equip­
ment on a "best efforts" basis on behalf of the financial 
institution. Collection of the lease receivables is per­
formed by the financial institution. In fiscal 19 and 19 7, 
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the following amounts were received under the leasing 
program: 

(I n thousands) 

ales of lease receivables 
Borrowings 

Total financing 

19 8 
25,9 15 
14,147 
40,Q62 

1987 
$4,912 
2,550 
7,462 

At eptember 3D, 1988 and 1987, reserves for recourse 
liabilities on sales of lease receivables were approxi­
mately 1.7 million and .4 million, respectively. 

Business Combinations 

Atalla Corporation (Atalla) merger 
Atalla provides secure system solutions in the areas of 
network interchange, electronic payment, and computer 
security. On ovember 24, 1987, Atalla became a wholly 
owned subsidiary of the Company. The merger involved 
the exchange of 6 9,363 of the Company's shares for all 
of the outstanding shares of Atalla. The transaction has 
been accounted for as a pooling of interests and the 
consolidated financial statements have been restated for 
periods prior to the combination. The effects of the re­
statement were insignificant. 

Integrated Technology, Inc. (ITI) acquisition 
ITI is a telecommunications company that specializes in 
software development for intelligent telephone networks. 
In a series of transactions during the year, the Company 
acquired IT!. In May 19 , ITI became Tandem Telecom­
munications ystems, Inc. (IT I). 

The Company has paid approximately 5.9 million 
in cash, issued a five-year note for 6.1 million, and as­
sumed ITl's obligations, resulting in cost in excess of net 
assets acquired of 16.2 million, which is being amortized 
on a straight-line basis over ten years. 

Ungermann-Bass, Inc. (UB) acquisition 
UB designs, manufactures, markets, and services open 
enterprise-wide data communications systems for large 
organizations worldwide. The Company acquired UB for 
an estimated 27l.4 million, which includes 21 million of 
UB debentures. ubsequent to the acquisition, an addi­
tional 6.2 million of debentures were acquired. For 
accounting purposes, March 18, 1988, was established as 
the effective date of the acquisition. Accordingly, the 
Company's consolidated financial statements include the 
results of UB's operations from that date forward. 



The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase 
and, accordingly, the net assets acquired have been 
recorded at their estimated fair values at the date of ac­
quisition. A summary of what was acquired, including 
the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net 
assets acquired, follows: 

(In thousands) 

Current assets 
Cost in excess of net assets acquired 
Other assets 

Total assets 

Current liabilities 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total acquisition cost 

$103,432 
194,722 
35,190 

333,344 

44,500 
17,451 

61,95 1 

$271 ,393 

The cost in excess of net assets acquired is being 
amortized on a straight-line basis over 20 years. 

The follOwing unaudited pro forma financial in­
formatio n shows the results of operations as if the UB 
acquisi tion had occurred at the beginning of fiscal 1987 
at the purchase price established in March 1988. The 
information does not include the effects of TTS[ because 
its impact on the pro forma results is immaterial. 

The results are not necessarily indicative of what 
would have occurred during the periods presented had 
the acquisition actually been made on October 1, 1986, 
or of future operations of the combined companies. The 
pro forma results include a reduction of interest income, 
and where necessary, an increase in interest expense 
for the cost of funds that would have been used in the 
assumed purchase at the beginning of each respective 
period. The pro forma information includes the straight­
line amortization of the cost in excess of net assets 
acqui red. et income and earnings in fiscal 1988 include 
an after-tax charge of $6.1 million, or approximately $.06 
per share related to the settlement of litigation. 

(In thousands 
except per share amounts) 

Revenues 
et income 

Earnings per share 

Pro Forma (Unaudited) 
For the year ended 

September 30 

1988 1987 

$1,372,000 $1,185,000 
$ 94,900 $ 90,100 
$ .96 $ .92 

Settlement of Litigation 

On May 12,1988, the U.S. District Court for the Northern 
District of California entered the final order of judgment 
providing for the settlement of a 1984 securities class 
action lawsuit arising from the Company's December 
1982 restatement of revenue and earnings for fiscal 1982. 
In light of the ongoing costs of providing the Company's 
defense, and without any admission or presumption of 
liability, the Company elected to contribute $9.4 million 
to a settlement fund of $16.5 million. The Company's 
insurance carrier contributed $7.1 million. 

Income Taxes 

The provision for income taxes included the following 
deferred (prepaid) items: 

(In thousands) 1988 1987 1986 

Federa l: 
Current $ 21,220 $40,669 $26,492 
Deferred (prepaid) (8,253) 4,402 ( 4,039) 

12,967 45,071 22,453 

State: 
Current 10, 195 9,362 6,979 
Deferred (prepaid) (917) 3,094 89 

9,278 12,456 7,068 

Foreign: 
Current 31,294 20, 04 21,686 
Deferred (prepaid ) (2,66 1) 1,086 (53) 

28,633 21,890 21,633 

Total provision $ 50,878 $79,4 17 $5 1,154 

Sources of deferred (prepaid) taxes were as follows: 

(In thousands) 

Inventory reserves 
Installment sale method 

fo r income tax reporting 
Accelerated depreciation 
Effect of intercompany 

profit eliminations 
Other (including expenses 

recognized for financia l 
statements, but not for 
income tax reporting) 

Total deferred (prepaid) 

1988 

$(3,668) 

( 1,700) 
440 

(2,681) 

( 4,222) 

(11,831) 

19 7 

$(2,574) 

10,300 
1,606 

(10,227) 

9,477 

$ ,582 

$ 

1986 

(205) 

(8,043) 
447 

2,048 

1,750 

( 4,003) 
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The provision for income taxes differs from the amount 
obtained by applying the federal statutory income tax 
rate to income before income taxes, as follows: 

1988 
Federal statutory tax rate 34.0% 
State taxes, net of federal 

income tax benefit 4.2 
Investment tax credits 
Research and development 

tax credits (3.8) 
Tax exempt DISC and FSC 

income (2.9) 
Amortization of cost in excess 

of net assets acquired 1.5 
Other 2.0 
Effective tax rate 35.0% 

1987 
43.0% 

3.8 

(2.1 ) 

(2.5) 

.8 
43.0% 

1986 
46.0% 

3.2 
(2.1) 

(.8) 

(2.0) 

44.3% 

Largely as a result of the reduction in the federal tax 
rate by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, the effective tax rate 
decreased from 44.3 percent in 1986 to 43 percent in 
1987, and to 35 percent in 1988. The 3 percent reduction 
in the federal rate between 1986 and 1987 was partially 
offset by the elimination of the investment tax credit. 

[n December 1987, the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) 0.96, "Accounting for 
Income Taxes; which, under a current proposal, the 
Company would not be required to adopt until fiscal 
1991. Earlier adoption has not been elected by Manage­
ment, pending resolution of certain implementation issues. 
However, the adoption of SFAS No. 96 is not expected 
to have a material impact on the Company's financial 
statements. 

Notes Payable 

Short-term notes payable at September 30, 1988, consist 
of notes and bankers' acceptances of approximately 
$74.5 million at a weighted average interest rate of 8.5 
percent, and borrowings under uncommitted foreign 
credit lines of approximately $6.5 million at a weighted 
average rate of 8.2 percent. 
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Long-tenn Obligations 

Long-term obligations at September 30 consist of the 
following: 

(In thousands) 

Mortgages (9.3 -14.5%) (I) 
Installment notes due through 1993, 

collateralized by lease 
receivables (10.6%) (2) 

Industrial revenue and development 
bonds due 1991 to 1996 
(7.5- 12.4%) (3) 

Term note, variable interest, due 
May 1993 (4) 

otes payable in Japanese yen, payable 
1989 through 1993 (5.7Qo) (2) 

Convertible subordinated debenture, 
payable to an officer in eptember 
1989 (9.5QiJ) (5) 

6.875% convertible subordinated 
debentures, due March 2011 (6) 

Capital lease obligations due 
1989-1992 (5-15QlI) 

Total obligations 
Less current portion 

Long-term obligations 

1988 
$29,998 

14,524 

7, 63 

6,085 

4,606 

1,667 

1,564 

1,212 
67,519 
(9,322) 
5 ,197 

1987 
$ -

2,441 

2,000 

3,552 

1,667 

932 
10,592 
(1,537) 
9,055 

(I) Payable monthly; maturing 1990 to 2001; weighted average interest 
rate at eptember 30, 19 ,was 11.9%. The mortgages are secured 
by certain land and buildings with a cost of 6 .3 million. 

(2) Weighted average interest rate at eptember 30, 19 . 
(3) Weighted average interest rate at eptember 30, 19 ,was .7%. 
(4) Interest rate at eptember 30, 19 ,was 6.3%. 
(5) The debenture may be converted into a total of 200,000 shares of 

Common tock (50,000 shares per year, beginning eptember 30, 
19 6) at a price of .3375, subject to acceleration in certain events. 

(6) Convertible into 33.34 per 1,000 of principal amounl 

Principal repayments required in the next five fiscal 
years are as follows (in millions) : 9.3 (1989), 23.2 
(1990), $5.2 (1991), $6.0 (1992) and 9.2 (1993). 

Interest costs related to construction in progress of 
$1.6 million and $.2 million were capitalized in 1988 and 
1987. 0 interest was capitalized in 19 6. 

In September, 1988, the Company entered into a 
five-year mUltiple-option financing facility with 12 banks. 
The facility agreement provides for U. S. dollar and 
multicurrency advances. Borrowings under the agree­
ment carry interest based on one of the following: the 
agent bank's prime rate, an average of the banks' certifi­
cate of deposit rates, or the London Interbank Offered 
Rate ( LIBOR). The facility agreement also provides for 
the establishment of an uncommitted note placement 
facility, whereby the Company may request the banks to 
bid for the subscription of notes. Borrowings under the 
various options are allowed up to an aggregate amount 
of $200 million. 
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The Company pays an annual facility fee of $.4 
million for the commitment, and there are no compensat­
ing balance requirements. The agreement also contains 
certain financial covenants and restrictions with which 
the Company was in compliance at September 30, 1988. 

The Company has guaranteed payment of loans 
made to officers totaling $1.9 million at September 30, 
1988, under a $5 million bank line of credit. In addition, 
the Company has a $1.7 million note receivable from 
an officer, bearing interest at 10 percent, and maturing in 
September 1989 included in other assets. 

The Company leases its field offices, certain equip­
ment, automobiles, and some of its operating facilities 
under operating lease agreements. The Company also 
has capital leases for certain equipment. Future minimum 
lease payments, as of September 30, 1988, are as follows: 

(In thousands) 

Fiscal 
Year 

19 9 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
Thereafter 

Total minimum lease payments 

Lease Obligations 

Capital 

$ 659 
475 

66 
28 
2 

$1,230 

Operating 

$ 52,518 
45,048 
36,401 
28,746 
15,863 
71,741 

$250,317 

The cost of assets held under capitalized leases totaled 
6.5 million and $3.7 million at September 30, 1988 and 

1987, respectively. The accumulated depreciation associ­
ated with these assets totaled $5.4 million and $3.3 
million at September 30, 1988 and 1987, respectively. 

Rent expenses were $53.4 million in 1988, $51.1 
million in 1987, and $43.2 million in 1986. 

Capital Stock 

The Company's authorized capital stock consists of 
2.4 million shares of preferred stock, of which 800,000 
shares are designated as Series A Participating Preferred 

tack; 4 million shares of Junior Common Stock; and 196 
million shares of Common Stock. At September 30, 1988, 
29.1 million shares of Common Stock were reserved for 
future issuance under stock option plans, the employee 
stock purchase plan, and a convertible subordinated 
debenture. There were no shares of preferred stock 
or Junior Common Stock outstanding at September 
30,1988. 

Stock rights 
On June 17, 1988, the Company amended and restated its 
rights plan ( Plan), originally adopted in 1985. The Plan is 

intended to protect stockholders from unfair takeover 
practices. Under the Plan, each share of Common Stock 
carries one right to obtain additional stock or other prop­
erty with equivalent value on terms provided in the Plan. 
The rights will not be exercisable, or transferable apart 
from the Common Stock, until another person or group 
of persons (subject to certain exceptions) acquires at 
least 20 percent of the Common Stock or commences, or 
announces its intention to commence, a tender offer for 
at least 30 percent of the Common Stock. 

The rights are redeemable by the Board of Directors 
or upon vote of the stockholders for $.05, or property 
with an equivalent value, per right and expire on 
June 17, 1998. 

Employee Benefits 

Stock option plans 
The Company has employee stock option plans under 
which employees and nonemployee directors may be 
granted options to purchase shares of Common Stock 
generally at fair market value at the time of the grant. 
[n general, options become exercisable six months after 
the effective date, vest over four years, and expire no 
more than ten years after the effective date. At the discre­
tion of the Board of Directors, options granted under the 
stock option plans may qualify for incentive stock option 
treatment under the Economic Recovery Tax Act of 1981. 
At September 30, 1988, options for 1.2 million shares 
were available for future grant. 

Employee stock purchase plan 
Under the plan, the Company may offer shares to 
employees in two ways. Under one method, eligible em­
ployees may elect to purchase shares of Common Stock 
at 85 percent of fair market value as of the last trading 
day before, or the last trading day of the quarter. Under 
this method, in 1988, 1987, and 1986, employees purchased 
610,000 shares for aggregate proceeds of $11.2 million, 
463,000 shares for aggregate proceeds of $7.6 million, 
and 778,000 shares for aggregate proceeds of $5.9 mil­
lion, respectively. Under a second method, the Company 
may grant to all employees the option to purchase the 
same number of shares of Common Stock at not less than 
85 percent of fair market value at the grant date. As of 
September 30, 1988, the Company has reserved 10.7 
million shares of Common Stock for future issuance 
under its employee stock purchase plan. 
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Information concerning the combined option activ­
ity during the fiscal years ended September 30, under 
the stock option and the option portion of the employee 
stock purchase plan, follows: 

1988 1987 1986 

Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate 
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price 

(In millions except per share amounts) 

Beginning of 
year 13.2 $208.9 13.8 $154.8 13.9 $147.2 

Options granted 6.1 100.4 4.6 110.3 5.4 60.0 
Options exercised 

($2.62 to $37.00 
per share) (1.6) (18.5) (4.9) (52.0) (4 .3) (39.3) 

Options cancelled (.7) (12.9) (.3) (4.2) (1.2) (13.1) 

End of year 17.0 $277.9 13.2 $208.9 13.8 $154.8 

Options vested at 
year-end 7.3 7.1 7.6 

Although all outstanding dilutive stock options and a 
convertible debenture are considered common stock 
equivalents in presenting earnings per share under the 
treasury stock method, the following table shows the 
maximum share dilution that would occur from assumed 
option exercises under existing options, based upon vest­
ing in future years within specified price ranges. The 
Company has a long-standing policy of encouraging all 
levels of employees to become stockholders through 
various stock option and purchase programs. This policy 
is based on a belief that all stockholders benefit from 
higher productivity, lower turnover, and improved cus­
tomer satisfaction realized by providing employees with 
a personal stake in the Company's success. 

Maximum number of existing options vested each fiscal year 
Exercise 
Price 1988 
Range and prior 1989 1990 1991 1992 

(In thousands except price range amounts) 

$0-$10 2,844 688 47 
$10-$20 3,702 3,501 1,734 1,115 683 
$20-$30 325 351 350 259 27 
$30 -$40 384 371 363 234 

Total 
Shares 

3,579 
10,735 

1,312 
1,352 

7,255 4,911 2,494 1,60 710 16,97 

Common and common equivalent shares 

Outstanding Outstanding 
Shares Equivalents 

Fiscal 1988 weighted average 94,976 3,707 
At September 30,19 8 96,10 2,070 
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Aggregate 
Price 

31,4 6 
166,890 
36,161 
43,39 

277,935 

Total 

98,6 3 
98,178 

Commitments and Contingencies 

In fiscal 1988, the Company entered into a partnership for 
the development of an office building in Cupertino, Cali­
fornia, and is committed to fund 50 percent of the proj­
ect's estimated cost of approximately $14 million over 
the next two years. 

Various actions and claims have been brought or 
asserted against the Company. Management does not 
consider them to be material to the Company's financial 
position. 

Geographic Segment Infonnation 

The following table sets forth information about the 
Company's operations in different geographic regions for 
the fiscal years ended September 30. 

(In thousands) 

Revenues 
United tates-customers 
United States-interarea 
Europe-customers 
Europe-interarea 
Americas/ Pacific-

customers 
Americas/ Pacific­

interarea 

Eliminations 

Total revenue 

Pretax income 
United tates 
Europe 
Americas/ Pacific 

Eliminations 

Total pretax income 

Identifiable assets 
United tates 
Europe 
Americas/ Pacific 

Eliminations 

Total identifiable assets 

19 

664,45 
302,601 
442,735 

16, 23 

207,52 

7,30 

1,641,453 
(326,732) 

1,314,721 

79,521 
64,310 
10,575 

154,406 
(9,043) 

145,363 

95,062 
319,413 
164,7 2 

1,379,257 
(60, 0) 

1,31 ,377 

19 7 

599,671 
249,034 
302,966 

22,3 3 

144, 95 

10, 13 

1,329,762 
(2 2,230) 

1,047,532 

146,23 
37,229 

7,726 

191,193 
(6,547) 

1 4,646 

713,253 
213,6 
105,791 

1,032,732 
(59,692) 

973,040 

19 6 

473,926 
II ,9 9 
207,670 

57,032 

96,41 

954,035 
(176,021) 

77 ,014 

74,646 
39, 21 

1,007 

115,474 
(62) 

115,412 

546,3 0 
131, 53 
63,701 

741,934 
(31,910) 

710,024 



Intercompany transfers are made at arm's-length prices. 
Identifiable assets are those assets of the Company that 
are identified with the operations of the corresponding 
geographic area. United States customer revenue 
includes export sales of $20.3 million in 1988, $12.4 
million in 1987, and $10 million in 1986. The Company 
operates primarily in one industry segment, which in­
cludes the manufacturing, servicing, and marketing of 
computer systems and networks. 

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

(In thousands except per share amounts) 

Fiscal 1988 
Quarters Ended Dec. 31 March 31 

Total revenue $282,282 $309,449 
Gross margin $180,026 $199,547 
Income before 

income taxes $ 37,019 $ 36,452 
et income $ 23,693 $ 23,330 

Earnings per share $ .24 $ .24 

Fiscal 1987 
Quarters Ended Dec. 31 March 31 

Total revenue $240,240 $245,695 
Gross margin $157,868 $159,134 
Income before 

income taxes $ 48,343 $ 38,649 
et income $ 27,074 $ 22,465 

Earnings per share $ .29 $ .23 

Tandem Stock Price 

Fiscal Quarter 

19 4th Quarter 
3rd Quarter 
2nd Quarter 
1st Quarter 

19 7 4th Quarter 
3rd Quarter 
2nd Quarter 
1st Quarter 

June 30 

$338,993 
$214,248 

$ 26,232 
$ 17,286 
$ .18 

June 30 

$267,824 
$172,885 

$ 45,490 
$ 25,884 
$ .26 

High 

20 7/s 
20 5/s 
28 1/4 
36 3/s 

33 1/4 
36 7/s 
371/4 
19 3/s 

Sept. 30 

$383,997 
$233,109 

$ 45,660 
$ 30,176 
$ .3 1 

Sept. 30 

$293,773 
$193,915 

$ 52,164 
$ 29,806 
$ .30 

Low 

12 1/2 
16 '/2 
J71/2 
19 7/s 

26'/2 
307/s 
17 '/2 
16 3/4 

Tandem Computers Incorporated is traded on the New 
York, Midwest, and Pacific Stock Exchanges under the 
trading symbol TOM. All quotations shown represent the 
high and low closing sale prices. The Company has not 
declared or paid any cash dividends on its Common 
Stock and has no plans to do so in the foreseeable future. 

Auditors'Report 

To Tandem Computers Incorporated: 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of 
Tandem Computers Incorporated (a Delaware corpora­
tion) and subsidiaries as of September 30, 1988 and 1987, 
and the related consolidated statements of income, stock­
holders' investment, and cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended September 30, 1988. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin­
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Tandem Computers Incorporated and subsidi­
aries as of September 30, 1988 and 1987, and the results of 
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended September 30, 1988, in con­
formity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

San Jose, California Arthur Andersen & Co. 
October 24, 1988 
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~TANDEM 1989 ANNUAL REPORT 

It was a landmark year for Tandem. 

While our industry faced challenges, 

Tandem prospered. 

With solid financial performance. 

With innovative new products that deliver distinct 

competitive advantages. 

With new customer relationships in strategic markets. 

With continuing investments in growth markets and 

cutting-edge technologies. 

All driven by a powerful vision for winning in 

the 1990s. 













For the years ended September 30 

(Dollars in thousands 
except per share amounts) 

Revenues 
Operating income 
Operating margin 

et income 
Earnings per share 

Working capital 
Total assets 
Stockholders' investment 

umber of employees 

Tandem Computers Incorporated, 
a FORTUNE 500 company, is a 
leading supplier of online com­
puter systems and enterprise 
networks. 

Around the world, banks, 
manufacturers, telecommunica­
tions companies, retailers, and 
other enterprises use Tandem 
systems in applications where a 
high volume of business transac­
tions must be processed each 
second and recorded instantly. 

The Tandem NonStop 
system family spans the range 

Highlights 

1989 1988 1987 

$1,632,522 $1,314,72 1 $1 ,047,532 
$ 184,327 $ 147,261 $ 170,439 

11.3% 11.2% 16.3% 
$ 118,316 $ 94,485 $ 105,229 
$ 1.17 $ .96 $ 1.07 

$ 421,746 $ 278,465 $ 497,713 
$1 ,6 18,788 $1,318,377 $ 973,040 
$ 989, 118 $ 

9,548 

of performance requirements 
for online processing. NonStop 
systems can be connected in 
networks with each other and with 
equipment from other vendors 
to provide a single computing 
resource for an organization. 
Tandem also offers a system 
based on the industry-standard 
UNIX" operating system. 

Through its wholly owned 
subsidiaries Ungermann-Bass, 
Inc., and Atalla Corporation, 
Tandem provides additional 
products for open, enterprise 

856,861 $ 723,855 

8,624 7,077 

networking and security appli­
cations, respectively. Tandem's 
wholly owned subsidiary Tandem 
Telecommunications Systems, Inc. 
(TISI), is developing intelligent 
networking products for the 
telecommunications industry. 

Founded in 1974, Tandem 
employs more than 9,500 people. 
The Company and its subsidi­
aries manufacture products in 
the United States, West Germany, 
and Mexico, and support cus­
tomers from more than 150 
locations worldwide. 
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To OUf Stockholders: 

Tandem performed well in 1989, finishing the year in a 

strong position to win and grow in the 1990s. Our success 

was based on the strength of our products, our organization, 

and key competitive wins. With a view to the future, we 

invested in strategically important technologies and markets. 

In addition, we initiated a series of exciting product 

introductions, which will continue into 1990. The most sig­

nificant set of new offerings in our history, these products 

are based on our vision of enterprises using online systems 

and open networks throughout every facet of operation. 

At the heart of Tandem's strategy for success are com­

mitments to pursue high-growth markets, to offer products 

that make fundamental contributions to these markets, and 

to establish partnerships that help us offer complete solu­

tions to business problems. 

Marketing and sales success 

Our marketing and sales people worldwide did an excellent 

job in 1989, helping to bring revenues to $1.6 billion, a 

24 percent gain over our 1988 revenues. et income grew 

25 percent to $118.3 million. Earnings per share were $1.1 7, 

compared with $.96 per share in 1988. Revenue and profit 

growth were especially favorable when compared with the 

industry as a whole. 

'!\t the heart of Tandem s strategy 
for success are commitments to pursue 

high-growth markets, to offer products that 
make fundamental contributions to 

these markets, and to establish partnerships 
that help us offer complete solutions 

to business problems. " 



Sales in the United States strengthened, especially 

during the second half of the year. International business 

was strong, particularly in the Pacific Rim countries. Invest­

ment in the development of Japanese markets showed 

results-our subsidiary exceeded $100 million in yearly 

revenue, capping three years of growth averaging 

87 percent per year. 

Our 1989 performance reflects a highly successful 

merger with Ungermann-Bass, Inc. Ungermann-Bass 

achieved solid revenue growth and margin improvement, 

with continued strong demand for the innovative 

Access/ One network delivery system. In addition, Tandem 

and Ungermann-Bass won a number of accounts together, 

demonstrating the strength of this partnership. 

Sales of Tandem's midrange onStop CLX systems 

were strong. CLX systems were primarily responsible for 

our large number of new customers in 1989, and for several 

large orders for distributed systems. Sales of our onStop 

VLX entry-level mainframe reached record levels, even as 

we prepared to announce the powerful on Stop Cyclone 

mainframe system. 

Strengthening database position 

One of the most exciting successes in 1989 was the 

increased strength of our competitive database position, as 

reflected in many strategic orders. After a rigorous competi­

tive test, or benchmark, the California Department of Motor 

Vehicles (DMV) selected Tandem systems over IBM systems 

to manage one of the largest online databases in the world. 

The DMV will use Tandem's onStop SQL database man­

agement software to handle its driver licensing, vehicle 

registration, and occupational licensing database. Other 

large database orders were placed by McKesson Corpo­

ration and the Southern California region of the Kaiser 

Permanente Medical Care Program. 

Tandem was chosen in large part because of our 

on Stop SQL software, with capabilities unique in the 

industry. Our Benchmark Center in Cupertino, California, 

Billions 

$1.8 

51.5 

51.2 

$.9 

$.6 

$.3 

$1.20 

$1.00 

$.80 

$.60 

$.40 

$.20 

REVENUES 

1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

r--..... ./ 
/ ---

L 
/' 

1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 

Sef'Jices12% Communications tt% 

'-___ ~~:::=--_ _1 Govemment 8% 

TransportatlOfl3% 

1989 PftOOUCT REVENUES BY INOUSTRY 
Does not include revenues of Atalla. TTSI. Of Ungermann-8ass. 
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enabled us to implement competitive benchmarks and 

provide both customers and third-party software vendors 

with an environment for testing application programs on 

Tandem systems. 

Investment in product vision 

We invested heavily in our product vision for the next 

decade, as reflected in product introductions during 1989 

and 1990. 

During 1989, we announced the second release of our 

high-performance onStop SQL software, which now ex­

ploits the power of Tandem's parallel architecture to process 

batch and query workloads, as well as online transaction 

processing (OLTP) workloads. We also strengthened our 

NonStop CLX family with shipment of the more powerful 

and expandable CLX 700 series. 

We introduced a number of products that use major 

networking standards to help link separate computing sys­

tems into powerful enterprise resources. For example, we 

began shipping S AX/CDF (Cross-Domain Facility) soft­

ware, which enables Tandem systems to be hosts in IBM 

S A (System etwork Architecture) networks. 

Our subsidiary Tandem Telecommunications Systems, 

Inc. (TTSIl, is planning to introduce new products that pro­

vide intelligent networking services in telephone company 

Millions R&D EXPENSES 
$240 

$200 

$160 

$120 

sao 

140 

1989 

networks. We believe these products address exciting oppor­

tunities in a dynamic growth market. 

In addition, we made major product introductions after 

the year's close, including the onStop Cyclone system, the 

industry's most powerful online mainframe; the Integrity S2 

"We invested heavily in 
our product vision for the next decade, 

as reflected in product 
introductions during 1989 and 1990. /I 

system, which brings fundamental Tandem strengths to the 

fast-growing market for U IX systems; and an array of prod­

ucts from Ungermann-Bass, for open, enterprise networking. 

New strategic partnerships 

Because partnerships enable Tandem to offer customers 

new technologies and total business solutions faster; we 

established a number of strategic relationships in 1989. 

In an important step toward providing easy, open 

access to information stored in onStop SQL databases, 

we established several agreements with leading vendors 

of industry-standard application development tools. These 

vendors include Information Builders, Inc.; Ingres Corpora­

tion; Micro Decisionware, Inc.; Online Solutions, Inc.; 

Oracle Corporation; and Sybase, Inc. 

We entered into an agreement with Logica Data 

Architects Inc. for the development of a Tandem system 

software product supporting X.400, an international standard 

for exchanging information among different computer 

systems. Another agreement, with Merit Systems, is for 

the development of MAP 3.0, a communications standard 

designed for use in factory environments. 

We continued to offer industry-specific application 

architectures in conjunction with third-party software pro­

viders. A number of customers, for instance, selected our 



TI.M.E. (Tandem Integrated Manufacturing Environment) 

architecture. Also, Tandem contracted with DMR Croup, 

Inc., of Canada, to develop software to improve com­

munication between the critical business functions of 

financial institutions. 

New partnerships with major system integrators were 

established to help customers implement business solutions. 

The companies involved include Westinghouse Electric 

Corporation's Electronic Systems Croup, and Volt Delta 

Resources Incorporated, a veteran provider of solutions for 

the telecommunications industry. 

Looking forward to the new decade 

Fiscal 1989 was a good year for Tandem, and we're looking 

forward to the start of a new decade. We expect 1990 to be 

an exciting year-one in which we introduce significant new 

products that will make unique market contributions and offer 

our customers competitive advantages in their industries. 

This annual report is dedicated to the people of 

Tandem who create these products, and to our customers­

current and future-who will benefit from using them. 

Sincerely, 

James C. Treybig 

President and Chief Executive Officer 

Thomas J. Perkins 

Chairman of the Board 

December 12, 1989 

Thomas J. Perkins James G. Treybig 
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• 
NEW SYSTEMS DEMONSTRATE 

TANDEM'S ADVANTAGES 
FOR ONLINE PROCESSING IN 

THE 19905. 

• 

Far more powerful than any previous 
Tandem system, the new NonStop 

Cyclone system is capable of managing 
the most demanding workload 

of mixed OLTP, batch, and query 
processing -allowing customers 

to put entire enterprises 
online. 

Growth Through Contribution: 
Systems 

A look into the future suggests major changes in com­

puting. Today, many business applications are going online 

because of the competitive advantage afforded by accurate, 

timely, and always-available information. Powerful tech­

nologies of the 1980s - personal computers, workstations, 

networks that connect different kinds of systems, and easy­

to-use relational database systems-are being combined 

with online systems to help organizations use information 

for maximum competitive advantage . 

With these changes, new demands are emerging. 

Centralized systems must be powerful enough to handle the 

heavier networking and database management loads that 

result from expanding online applications and a more com­

plex computing environment They must be able to integrate 

traditionally separate tasks such as online and batch pre­

cessing into unified corporate functions to provide more 

efficient and cost-effective operations. 

At the same time, workgroups and branch offices 

increasingly need distributed systems that can handle local 

data and services for networks of desktop devices, while 

accessing and updating corporate data. And, as information 

resources become online assets, the fundamental Tandem 

system benefits of high availability, data integrity, price/ 

performance, and expandability are becoming more 

important. 

We believe that new products from Tandem help 

extend these benefits to the systems, databases, and net­

works of tomorrow's online enterprises-and thus offer 

customers advantages no other company's products can. 

NonStop Cyclone system­
a mainframe for the 1990s 

In 1976, Tandem's original on Stop system, with its Guardian 

operating system software, brought unique contributions to 

the online transaction processing (OLTP) market. It was the 



first commercial computer architecture designed to with­

stand failures (that is, to provide fault tolerance), so critical 

online business applications and data could be available 

24 hours a day. It was also the first to harness the power of 

parallelism - multiple independent processors that handle 

separate parts of a task - to provide both excellent price/ 

performance and modular expandability. Its ability to handle 

growing online applications could be increased just by 

adding processors, without software changes. 

The on Stop system architecture has proved a power­

ful platform for supporting technological advances that 

enhance functionality and price/pe rformance. With new 

The first customer test site for Tandem 's NonStop Cyclone mainframe was 
the Securities Industry Automation Corporation (SlAG), jointly owned by the 
New York and American stock exchanges. A Tandem customer since 1976, 
SlAG has the largest single installation of Tandem systems in the United 
States. Albert Bocchetti, SlAG vice president: "Within two years, we will 
have the capacity to handle five times the current average daily volume 
of the New York Stock Exchange. Strategically, Cyclone can play an impor­
tant role as our platform of the future:' 

Jon Sjostedt, a senior member of 
the Cyclone development team : 

"Cyclone systems lead the industry with 
their extensive use of fiber optiCS. 

Rber optics greatly simplify cabling 
schemes, are much less bulky 

than copper cables, and give improved 
performance over greater distances:' 

9 
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products being introduced, Tandem is further leveraging this 

architecture to meet the emerging demands of new infor­

mation processing environments. 

In October 1989, Tandem introduced the NonStop 

Cyclone system. Greatly extending the performance range 

of NonStop systems, the Cyclone system is optimized for 

the heavy workloads that result when online systems support 

increasingly large networks, massive databases, and mixed 

workloads of OLTp, batch, and query processing. We believe 

that the NonStop Cyclone system is a new kind of main­

frame computer system, uniquely suited to the demands 

of information processing in the 1990s. 

With Tandem's integral onStop SQL database soft­

ware, the Cyclone system can process online applications 

simultaneously with batch and decision-support queries, 

using a single copy of the database. And it offers these bene­

fits in conjunction with the traditional Tandem system 

strengths of high availability and expandability. 

The Cyclone system is compatible with other onStop 

systems, protecting investments in software programs by 

enabling customers to move applications to Cyclone 

NonStop Cyclone is one of the 
first commercial computer systems to 

implement advanced superscalar 
architecture (processors execute up to 

two instructions per clock cycle, 
instead of one) for higher performance. 

Nomura Securities, the world's largest brokerage firm and a major user of 
Tandem NonStop Vl.X systems, introduced a revolutionary system in 1988 
for home trading of securities. Based on the Nintendo Famicom game 
terminal owned by 14 mill ion Japanese households, the easy-to-use system 
had some 200,000 subscribers by the end of 1989. fts usage has grown, 
Nomura has expanded its network of Vl.X systems. The company plans to 
add other services to the network, including home banking, home shopping, 
and travel reservations. 

"Tandem has established itself as the 
leader in high-end transaction 

. " processmg. 

lohn C. Levinson 
Goldman, Sachs &- Co. 
-October 20, 1989 



systems without reprogramming. Customer investments in 

NonStop VLX systems, now the entry-point systems for 

Tandem's mainframe line, enjoy added protection, because a 

Cyclone system can actually incorporate VLX processors. 

With its power, versatility, and other fundamental 

strengths, the NonStop Cyclone system helps broaden 

Tandem's market significantly, beyond OLTP to batch and 

query processing. Combined with other Tandem products 

for distributed processing, database management, and 

enterprise networking, Cyclone systems offer customers 

a compelling altemative to traditional mainframe systems. 

NonStop CLX-distributed power 
for online enterprises 

Large mainframes and corporate databases meet an organi­

zation's need to manage key data centrally. Branch offices, 

departments, and workgroups require local control of data 

for faster response time and lower communications costs. 

Tandem's onStop CLX systems are a family of 

expandable midrange computers that offer the best price/ 

performance in their class. Based on the same NonStop 

architecture, they can be linked in networks with any com­

bination of other onStop systems, to distribute processing 

power and data anywhere. 

Because CLX systems can run the same software as 

other onstop systems, customers can distribute applications. 

This compatibility gives enterprises a graceful, nondisruptive 

way to move growing online applications from a single CLX 

system to larger onStop systems and networks. 

In 1989, Tandem added four high-performance systems 

to the on Stop CLX family, demonstrating the Company's 

Bill Stenzel, program manager 
for the development of the CLX 700 

systems: "NonStop CLX 700 
systems employ next-generation 
CMOS technology for increased 

performance. USing a set of tools that 
lets us move designs to the latest 

CMOS processes - with a minimum of 
development effort - helped us 
to have an enhanced product in 

production very Quickly." 

Tandem's NonStop CLX systems offer 
wide expandability, excellent price I 

performance, and software compatibility 
with other NonStop systems. 

"Tandem had the foresight in the 19705 
to design computers employing 

technology of the 19905." 

Steven Milunovich 
The First Boston Corporation 

- August 29, 1989 

II 
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commitment to this strategic product. The new CLX 700 

series, which was well received by customers, extends system 

performance through design innovations that use advanced 

semiconductor technologies. The onstop CLX family now 

offers broad expandability: A customer can start with a 

single-processor CLX 610 system and grow economically 

to a powerful eight-processor CLX 780 system. 

We believe that on Stop CLX, VLX, and Cyclone 

systems give customers the performance range, online func­

tionality, and distributed capabilities required to meet the 

demands of information processing in the coming decade. 

Because of the advantages they offer for distributed processing, 
NonStop CLX systems are slated for all major branches of the 720-branch 
Banco Nacional de Mexico (Banamex), Mexico's largest bank. Mario 
Quijada, the bank's systems director: "Quality service to Banamex cus­
tomers requires quality tools. Consequently, Tandem systems have become 
strategically essential over the past ten years to our technological infra­
structure and to the operation of our ATM network, which is the largest 
in Mexico:' 

NonStop CLX 700 systems are 
designed for continuous processing and 
easy servicing. A customer can replace 

any major component without tools 
and without shutting down the 
system -so critical business 

applications are not interrupted. 



• 
NEW CAPABILITIES STRENGTHEN 

TANDEM'S OFFERINGS 
IN DATABASE SYSTEMS. 

• 

In 1989, Tandem enhanced its leadership 
in high-performance relational 

database management with Release 2 
of its NonStop Sal database system 

software. 

"Tandem has cracked the code on selling 
into the heartland of large OLTP 

applications, where database 
management, transaction processing 
performance, and other mainframe 

attributes are the key purchase criteria." 

C hristopher W. Mines 
Cowen & Company 

- August 9, 1989 

Growth Through Contribution: 
Database and Storage 

D uring 1989, Tandem introduced new database features 

that extend the company's market reach beyond OLTP to 

include the breadth of processing tasks in large organiza­

tions. The Company also established new partnerships to 

allow some of the industry's most popular tools for appli­

cation development to run with Tandem's NonStop SQL 

database systems. Together with continuing investments in 

new technologies for cost-effective data storage, these steps 

put Tandem in a strong position to provide database and 

storage systems for tomorrow's online enterprises. 

NonStop SQL, Release 2-extending 
the power of parallelism 

Introduced in 1989, the second generation of Tandem's 

NonStop SQL database software extends the power of 

parallelism inherent in Tandem's multiprocessor systems 

beyond OLTP to include batch and query processing 

applications. (Batch jobs are regularly scheduled tasks, such 

as payroll processing or billing, that usually run sequentially 

until complete. Queries are batch-like jobs that tend to be 

smaller and unscheduled, such as when a manufacturer 

wants to generate an up-to-the-minute list of customers who 

have ordered a certain part.) The result is that customers 

can consolidate more kinds of processing with their online 

resources-helping to control costs and streamline opera­

tions by eliminating multiple databases - while benefiting 

from the high performance, availability, and expandability of 

Tandem systems. Other important features in NonStop SQL 

software, Release 2, provide online manageability, including 

the ability to reorganize data files and move or add file 

partitions while processing continues. 

First announced in 1987, Tandem's NonStop SQL 

software illustrates the Company's strategy to implement 

the standards that customers want, while adding distinct 

advantages for OLTP. An implementation of the industry­

standard SQL (Structured Query Language) data language 

13 
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Three contributors to Tandem 
database development -Franco Putzolu, 

Jerry Held, and Jim Gray (left to 
right)-were recognized in 1989 by the 
Association for Computing Machines 

for their pioneering roles in 
relational database technology. 

and relational database model, on Stop SQL software was 

the first SQL product in the industry to provide both the 

high performance needed for transaction processing and 

fully transparent data distribution. Users can read, write, and 

update data anywhere in a network of Tandem on Stop 

systems without having to know where the data resides. And 

NonStop SQL software offers features to protect databases 

against possible damage from failures during transactions 

that take place within a single system, or that span multiple 

systems over a network. 

We believe that onStop SQL software, Release 2, 

offers our customers unmatched capabilities: It provides a 

single database for OLTp, batch, and query processing, with 

high performance, productivity, and distributed data -in 

addition to the fundamental Tandem system strengths of 

high availability, data integrity, and expandability. 

Powerful tools for application 
development 

Tandem established relationships with several independent 

software providers in 1989 to support its strategy of pro­

viding users with a comprehensive choice of application 

Anamartic Ltd., in which Tandem 
is an investor, recently unveiled a storage 

device based on whole-wafer 
integration technology. Tandem plans 

to use this technology in the 
future to enhance reliability 

and performance. 

development tools. Agreements were made with the 

following companies: 

• Information Builders, Inc. -To develop and market 

FOCUS, Information Builders' fourth-generation language 

database tools, for use with onStop SQL software and 

Tandem's Enscribe databases. 

• Ingres Corporation - To develop and market Ingres's data­

base tools for use with onStop SQL software. 

• Micro Decisionware, Inc. -To market jointly Micro 

Decisionware's PC/ SQL-Link as a tool to allow personal 

computers to use and format information stored in 

on Stop SQL databases. 

• Online Solutions, Inc. -To market jointly Online 

Solutions' Cullinet expert-systems application development 

tools for onStop SQL software. 

• Oracle Corporation-To develop and market Oracle's 

database tools with on Stop SQL software. 



• Sybase, Inc. -To license the right to develop an 

Ashton-Tate/Microsoft SQL Server gateway to NonStop 

SQL software, providing Tandem customers with a wide 

choice of SQL Server tools. 

These agreements will allow Tandem to offer its customers 

some of the most popular development tools on the market 

today. Combined with those already offered by Tandem­

and by the independent software vendors in the Tandem 

Alliance program -these tools will provide powerful ways 

to build new database applications or move existing appli­

cations to Tandem systems. 

Leading-edge storage technologies 

As enterprises expand their databases, there will be a need 

for ever-greater storage capacity at lower cost. Tandem is 

exploring two promising technological developments to 

answer this need. 

In 1989, Tandem entered into a licensing agreement with 

Array Technology Corporation to develop disk subsystems 

based on redundant arrays of inexpensive disks. This exciting 

technology offers extremely high data availability at low cost 

for large online databases. 

In addition, Tandem's investment in Anamartic Ltd. 

yielded results in October 1989, when Tandem became the 

first company to receive Anamartic's new device based on 

whole-wafer storage technology. Offering data access up to 

100 times faster than the access time of disk drives, whole­

wafer storage presents new opportunities for increasing 

reliability and performance, while reducing the size and cost 

of storage devices. 

To achieve higher productivity from its complex database systems, 
Miele & Cie. GmbH & Co.- a 'Nest German company whose name is 
synonymous throughout Europe with quality home appliances-became 
the first European user of Tandem's NonStop SOL relational database soft­
ware. Bernd Respondek (inset), data processing manager, reports on 
Miele's success at Bielefeld, one of its seven production facilities: "'Ne are 
developing new applications quicker. And, because we are getting more 
detailed information more rapidly, we are able to manage a larger number 
of parts with the same number of people. NonStop SOL software is our 
standard for the future:' 

Tandem's data storage devices offer 
special features for fault tolerance, 

excellent price/performance, 
economical growth, and easy 

maintenance. In 1989, Japan's Ministry 
of International Trade and Industry 
(MITI ) gave its prestigious Good 

Design Prize for Foreign Products to 
Tandem's Xl80 disk storage facility. 

15 
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• 
TANDEM AND UNGERMANN-BASS 

ENHANCE CAPABILITIES FOR 
ENTERPRISE NETWORKING. 

• 

We believe that Ungermann-Bass's 
Access/One system is the first truly 

manageable network delivery system for 
enterprise applications. 

Brad Noblet, a main architect of 
the Access /One system: "The challenge 
of the Access /One system was to have a 

wide variety of industry-standard 
devices communicate over ordinary 

telephone wire reliably and concurrently 
with one another. We were excited 
to be able to achieve this -while 
maintaining performance and 

integrating network management 
at all levels:' 

Growth Through Contribution: 
Networking 

O pen, standards-based networks are essential to 

combining varied systems and databases into unified enter­

prise resources. Such networks let customers choose the 

technology solutions best suited to specific applications­

while helping to protect investments in existing equipment 

and applications. 

To strengthen its position in networking, Tandem 

merged in 1988 with Ungermann-Bass, Inc., of Santa Oara, 

California, a leader in enterprise networking for more than a 

decade. In 1989, Tandem and Ungermann-Bass brought new 

products to market that support major networking 

standards, thus enhancing both companies' positions in 

enterprise networking. 

Complete, open, and flexible 
enterprise networks 

Ungermann-Bass is committed to providing customers 

with complete, open, and flexible networks that can link 

most major devices-from personal computers to main­

frames. Ungermann-Bass's et/ One system, for example, 

interconnects information processing devices from alliead­

ing vendors and permits the addition of devices as they are 

needed. Its Universal Workstation software lets workstations 

running either the MS-DOS or the OS/2 operating system 

communicate with a variety of other systems anywhere in 

an enterprise. 

The Access/ One network delivery system, a single unit 

able to fit into a telephone closet, uses ordinary unshielded 

twisted-pair telephone wire to connect local users. We believe 

that the Access/ One system is the first truly manageable 

network delivery system to integrate both local area net­

work (LA ) and wide area network (WA ) applications 

into a single platform. 

Ungermann-Bass offers its customers choices of media, 

ranging from twisted-pair phone wire to fiber-optic wiring. 

In 1989, Ungermann-Bass installed the first fully operational 

Fiber Distributed Data Interface (FOOl) network, at Microsoft 

Corporation's world headquarters in Redmond, Washington. 

Microsoft's Ungermann-Bass network received the Enterprise 



Network Excellence: Global User Award sponsored by 

the NetWorid '89 conference and the trade publication 

Network World. 

In October 1989, Ungermann-Bass introduced an array 

of products based on the Access / One system to help cus­

tomers implement critical business applications more easily. 

Some of the products make it easier to connect departmen­

tal users, including users of Apple Computer's LocalTalk 

networks. Others provide new tools to integrate LAN and 

WAN applications, and to manage networks effectively­

down to the individual workstation. 

Leadership in distributed OLTP 
and multivendor networking 

To give users maximum flexibility in integrating Tandem 

OLTP solutions into enterprise networks, Tandem is com­

mitted to developing and marketing products that adhere to 

networking standards, making it easy to integrate systems 

from other vendors with Tandem systems. 

Expand networking software is the foundation for 

Tandem's strengths in distributed processing. Expand soft­

ware gives users a single view of distributed applications and 

data anywhere in the network, relieving programmers of 

the need to know where files and applications are located. 

In 1989, Tandem introduced its Expand / LAN software, 

which lets industry-standard Ethernet LANs act as part 

of Expand networks. 

In 1989, Tandem announced additional new products 

and partnerships to enhance communications between 

Tandem systems and other systems that use major network­

ing standards. These products support standards including 

Open Systems Interconnection (OSI), an official international 

standard, and Transmission Control Protocol / Internet Proto­

col (TCP/ IP), a widely accepted standard that lets Tandem 

systems integrate all major workstation environments. 

A variety of Tandem products can link Tandem systems 

with IBM System Network Architecture (SNA) environ­

ments. One such product announced in 1989, SNAX/ CDF 

Margo Holen, section manager for 
communications software development: 

"SNAX/CDF software lets a Tandem 
system act as a host in an IBM 

SNA network, so customers can access 
Tandem OLTP applications from 

devices linked to other SNA hosts. 
A small team of people created 

SNAX/CDF software-with long hours, 
lots of excitement, and the belief that 

this capability is important 
to our customers~' 

In 1989, Tandem introduced products 
to enhance our customers' ability 

to link different vendors' systems with 
Tandem NonStop systems. 

"Recent software announcements at 
Tandem are strategically important and 
highlight the company 5 growing role 

as a provider of multivendor; 
global networks." 

Thomas T. Rooney 
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation 

- July 31 , 1989 
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software, enables Tandem systems to act as hosts in SNA 

networks, so customers can develop applications on a 

Tandem system and access them through devices attached 

to an SNA host. 

Security for online resources 

As more critical data is transmitted over enterprise 

networks, demand for network security increases. Atalla 

Corporation, a Tandem subsidiary since ovember 1987, 

is the industry leader in hardware-based network security 

solutions using encryption technology. Atalla has security 

systems installed in more than 1,500 financial institutions 

and retail enterprises worldwide. 

To provide data security for high-volume ATM, 

electronic funds transfer, and personal computer wire 

transfer applications running on Tandem onStop systems, 

Atalla introduced the A-5000 High-Performance Security 

Module in 1989. 

The Access/One system from Ungermann-Bass is a key element in a 
network at the huge E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co. research and develop­
ment complex in Wilmington, Delaware. One of the largest campus-wide 
networks in the eastern United States, it has 8,500 users -up from 2,500 
three years ago -and supports a wide variety of host computers, terminals, 
and personal computers. Network manager, Hank Stocklosa (inset): "No 
matter what it is, we can connect it with the Access /One system, using 
existing telephone cables. The Access/One system is helping us achieve the 
ability to move quickly and inexpensively toward our vision of distributed 
computer power on every desktop:' 



Intelligent networking for 
telephone companies 

Telephone companies are increasingly using computer 

technology to provide more efficient network operations 

and faster delivery of such new services as calling-card vali­

dation and 8oo-numbers. Because these "intelligent net­

working" applications are based on online database systems 

(called service control points, or SCPs), the high availability, 

data integrity, and expandability of Tandem systems can 

offer competitive advantages. 

Tandem Telecommunications Systems, Inc. (TISI), a 

wholly owned subsidiary since 1988, was the first company 

to implement successfully an SCP in a major interexchange 

carrier's network using Signaling System 7, an international 

standard for intelligent networking. In 1989, TISI made pro­

gress in the development of intelligent networking products 

that run on Tandem systems and, shortly after the year 

ended, released an enhanced version of its SCP product 

Used by the vast majority of travel agents in Scandinavia, the SMART travel 
reservation system switched to a network based entirely on Tandem 
NonStop VLX host systems and distributed CLX systems in 1988. Partly 
owned by the Scandinavian Airline System (SAS) and representing 
AMADEUS in Scandinavia, SMART gives travel agents access to the reser­
vation systems of airlines, tour operators, auto rental agencies, railroads, 
hotels, and ferry lines-from a Single computer terminal. Hakan Alvgren 
(inset), SMART systems manager: "Excellent connectivity, distributed pro­
cessing with fault tolerance, and ease of adding new functionality for travel 
agents are critical requirements of SMART. Tandem is the only company 
I know offering all three." 
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• 
THE INTEGRITY S2 SYSTEM 

BRINGS TANDEM STRENGTHS 
TO UNIX SYSTEMS. 

• 

The Integrity S2 system brings 
Tandem advantages to systems 
based on the industry-standard 

UNIX operating system. We believe 
that the Integrity S2 system sets 

the standard for UNIX system 
reliability and performance, 

innovative UNIX operating system 
extensions, and serviceability. 

" ... The Company has positioned itself in 
high-growth markets, with superior existing 

products and a very aggressive future 
product rollout for 1990. II 

John C. Dean and Lucianne Paimer 
Salomon Brothers Inc. 
-December 7, 1989 

Growth Through Contribution: 
UNIX Systems 

h roUghout its system, database, and networking product 

lines, Tandem is committed to offering products that make 

unique contributions to its market-and thereby offer 

customers competitive advantages. 

Tandem has the same strategy as it begins imple­

menting standards for open systems: to add fundamental 

competitive advantages while adhering to industry specifi­

cations, so customers receive the maximum benefits of 

interconnectivity and application portability. 

In recent years, the U IX operating system has made 

inroads in many business and government organizations 

worldwide. As a standard operating system, U IX lets users 

take advantage of available software packages for specific 

applications. Because many organizations prefer U IX 

systems for certain applications, Tandem has made a signifi­

cant investment in U IX system research and development. 

Innovative new UNIX computer 

In early 1990, Tandem will introduce the Integrity 52 

system -an innovative computer that extends Tandem 

strengths to the rapidly expanding market for U IX systems. 

We believe that the Integrity 52 system is the kind of U IX 

system customers expect from Tandem. 

The Integrity 52 system combines fault-tolerant 

hardware and an enhanced-but fully compliant-U IX 

operating system, to deliver the high performance and 

availability required for critical, standards-based applications. 

For high availability, the Integrity 52 system offers hard­

ware fault tolerance, dual-ported input/output controllers, 

data integrity, mirrored disks, and protection against power 

failure. And the Integrity 52 system extends fault tolerance 

to an industry-standard VMEbus I/O subsystem for the first 

time. on5top-UX software, Tandem's implementation of 
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the UNIX operating system standard, uses innovative exten­

sions to maximize reliability while fully complying with 

AT&T UNIX System V, Release 3. 

An industry-standard 32-bit MIPS R2000 RISC (reduced 

instruction set computing) microprocessor provides excellent 

price/performance for the Integrity 52 system-making it the 

industry's first fault-tolerant RISe-based system. 

Connectivity and serviceability 

Because of its support for many industry-standard proto­

cols, the Integrity 52 system can be integrated into local and 

wide area networks to access Tandem NonStop systems 

or other vendors' systems. To build relational databases, 

users can choose from several leading products, including 

I FORMIX, ORACLE, and INGRES. 

Online serviceability reduces both downtime and 

cost of ownership of the Integrity 52 system. The system can 

be installed and serviced by a user without the use of any 

special tools, and any major component can be replaced 

while processing continues. In addition, the Integrity 52 

system can operate in an office environment, without a 

raised floor or special air conditioning. 

We believe that the Integrity 52 system is one of 

the best-tested and most reliable UNIX computers ever 

developed. Initial orders for the Integrity 52 system were 

received in the first quarter of fiscal 1990. 

Doug Jewett, a developer of the 
Integrity S2 system : "Every technical 

innovation was in support of one 
goal-creating a fault-tolerant hardware 

platform that runs standard UN IX 
software. Because the Integrity S2 

hardware was designed synergistically 
with the operating system-and not 
retrofitted to run UN IX software-we 

were able to start with nearly a clean 
slate and build a system that met 

our goal:' 

Using replicated components and 
data paths, the Integrity S2 system 

prevents a single point of failure from 
interrupting processing. If a CPU failure 

is detected, for example, the 
Integrity S2 system can take the CPU 

module offline, notify the system 
operator, and report the failure to a 

Tandem support center. 
(Pictured: Integrity S2 system 
operations console display.) 
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Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Overview 

Tandem believes achieving success involves many factors, 
including strategic positioning, a commitment to product 
development, partnerships with companies that have 
complementary strengths, customer satisfaction, and an 
organizational structure and philosophy that foster employee 
productivity and creativity. Additionally, Tandem believes it 
is important to maintain a strong financial position to com­
pete effectively in the growing online transaction processing 
(OLTP) marketplace. 

In 1989 and 1988, the Company took major steps to 
enhance its leadership position in providing systems and 
networks for OLTP and to meet the needs of the developing 
online enterprise. During 1989 and shortly after the close of 
the year; the Company introduced significant hardware sys­
tems and software products. 

In 1988, Tandem merged with Atalla Corporation, 
a leading vendor of secure transaction systems; acquired 
Ungermann-Bass, Inc., a leader in open, enterprise networks 
for multivendor environments; and acquired Integrated 
Technology, Inc., which later became Tandem Telecom­
munications Systems, Inc. (TIS]), a developer of computer 
products and services for the telecommunications industry. 
The Company believes that its investments in research and 
development and its business combinations in 1989 and 
1988 will lead to increased market opportunities and an 
enhanced competitive position. 

Operating results 

The Company acquired Ungermann-Bass on March 18, 
1988, and assumed effective control of TIS I, a development 
organization, on January 8, 1988. Their results have been 
included from those dates forward and have affected the 
Company's operating results. The acquisitions were cash 
purchases and therefore reduced the Company's balance 
of interest-earning investments. The Company now absorbs 
the amortization of costs in excess of net assets acquired in 
the business combinations. In addition, it continues to incur 
development expenses at TISI. These negative effects had 
less of an impact in 1989 than in 1988, as they were offset 
in part by the inclusion of Ungermann-8ass's favorable oper­
ating results, which improved in 1989. Ungermann-Bass 
contributed significantly to the Company's revenue growth 
in both 1989 and 1988. 

Results for 1989 include a full year of operations of 
the acquired companies, but 1988 includes only a partial 
year. The acquired companies were not included at all in 
1987 Therefore, year-to-year results are not comparable 
in this regard. 

The following table summarizes the changes in 
selected operating statistics. The percentages in the left 
three columns show the relationships of income and ex­
pense items to total revenues. The percentages in the right 
columns measure the year-to-year changes. 

Percent of Revenues Percent Increase 
(Decrease) 

1989 1988 1987 1989 1988 

83.0 82.1 83 .2 Product revenues 26 24 
17.0 17.9 16.8 Service and other revenues 18 34 

100.0 100.0 100.0 Total revenues 24 26 

2S.3 23.6 22 .1 Cost of product revenues 34 34 
Cost of service and 

11.8 13 .5 12.6 other revenues 8 35 

37.1 37.1 34.7 Total cost of revenues 24 34 
12.5 12.9 10.4 Research and development 20 55 

Marketing, general, and 
39.1 38.8 38.6 administrative 25 26 

11.3 I 1.2 16.3 Operating income 25 (J 4) 

.1 (.1) 1.3 Net other income (expense) NM NM 

I 1.4 I I. I 17.6 Income before income taxes 28 (21) 

4.2 3.9 7.6 Provision for income taxes 34 (36) 

7.2 7.2 10.0 Net income 25 (10) 

Earnings per share 22 (J 0) 

NM: Not meaningful 

All references to the years 1989, 1988, and 1987 represent 
the Company's fiscal years ended September 30. 

Revenues 

Revenues in 1989 were 24 percent higher than in the 
previous year. Revenues reached $1.6 billion in 1989, com­
pared with $1.3 billion in 1988 and $1.0 billion in 1987 
Tandem's revenue gains over the past two years resulted 
from the addition of Ungermann-Bass, from increased ship­
ments of hardware and software products to new and exist­
ing customers, and from a greater number of customers 
using its support and training services. 

Over the past three years, the Company introduced 
several computer systems as well as a number of software, 
storage, and peripheral products that contributed to product 
revenue growth in 1989. These products include NonStop 
SQL relational database management software, introduced 
in 1987; the V80 and XL80 disk subsystems, first shipped 
in 1988; and the NonStop CLX midrange computer sys­
tem, first sold in 1988, and enhanced for improved price! 
performance in 1989. In addition, unit shipments of the 
Company's NonStop VLX mainframe computer system, in­
troduced in 1986, grew significantly in 1989 despite market 
awareness that a new mainframe system was scheduled 
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for introduction in early 1990. The Company's open, enter­
prise networking products, particularly Ungermann-Bass's 
Access/One product line, also contributed to revenue 
growth during the year. 

Although growth in product revenues increased in 
1989, the rate of growth of total revenues was lower in 1989 
than in 1988 because service and other revenues grew at a 
slower rate in 1989 than in the previous year. The Company 
believes service revenue growth tends to lag product reve­
nue growth. The trend toward increasing product reliability 
and serviceability, and the fact that maintenance revenue 
per product is not proportional to the sales revenue per 
product are also reflected in the relatively slower rate of 
growth of service and other revenues experienced in 1989. 

In 1989, as in 1988, international business represented 
50 percent of the Company's revenues. International revenues 
were 43 percent of revenues in 1987. Europe contributed 
32 percent of revenues in 1989, compared with 34 percent 
in 1988 and 29 percent in 1987. Business in the Interconti­
nental Division (comprising all non-US., non-European 
operations) grew to 18 percent of revenues in 1989, com­
pared with 16 percent in 1988 and 14 percent in 1987. 

Revenues from domestic computer systems improved 
substantially in 1989, and were the principal contributor to 
total domestic revenue growth of 23 percent. This compares 
with an II percent domestic gain recorded a year earlier. 
International revenues grew 25 percent over the previous 
year. This compares with 45 percent growth achieved in 
1988. European operations grew 20 percent, compared 
with 46 percent recorded in 1988. The revenue growth rate 
slowed in Europe as a result of lessening demand, particu­
larly in the second quarter of 1989. Revenue growth in 
the Intercontinental Division remained high at 37 percent, 
although lower than the very strong 43 percent posted in 
the previous year. The decrease in the international growth 
rate was caused in part by the strengthening of the US. 
dollar against foreign currencies, compared with a weak­
ening US. dollar in 1988. 

Operating income 

Operating income in 1989 grew to $184.3 million, a 
25 percent increase over the $147.3 million reached in 1988. 
In 1987, operating income was $170.4 million. Operating 
income as a percentage of revenues was substantially the 
same in 1989 and 1988. In 1988, operating income declined 
as a percentage of revenues compared with 1987, primarily 
as the result of higher cost of revenues, additional research 
and development spending, and the amortization of costs in 
excess of net assets acquired related to the acquisitions of 
Ungermann-Bass and ITS!. 

Total cost of revenues as a percentage of revenues 
was flat between 1989 and 1988, although in 1989 the cost 
of product revenues as a percentage of revenues increased, 
and the cost of service and other revenues as a percentage 
of revenues decreased, compared with the previous year. 
The costs of both product revenues and service and other 
revenues increased as percentages of revenues in 1988 
over 1987 levels. 

The cost of product revenues grew at the same rate in 
1989 as in 1988, but increased as a percentage of revenues. 
The higher cost of product revenues as a percentage of reve­
nues reflects the fact that Ungermann-Bass was included 
for a full year in 1989 as contrasted with a half year in 1988. 
The acquisition was also a factor in the increase in cost of 
product revenues as a percentage of revenues in 1988 com­
pared with 1987. In 1988, product upgrade programs, a 
product mix shift toward the Company's PSX workstations 
and onStop CLX computer systems, and an increase in 
customer discounts also contributed to the increase in the 
Company's product costs as a percentage of revenues. 

Cost of service and other revenues improved in 1989 
and, as a result, was lower as a percentage of revenues than 
in 1988. This was primarily due to improvements in mix and 
the efficiency of Ungermann-Bass's service operations. In 
addition, a higher volume of business, productivity gains, 
and more sophisticated product reliability features had a 
positive effect on the cost of service and other revenues 
in 1989. Significant revenue growth of Ungermann-Bass's 
service operations also contributed to the improvements. 
Historically, Ungermann-Bass has had lower service margins 
than Tandem's traditional operations. The result was an 
increase in the cost of service and other revenues as a 
percentage of revenues in 1988 compared with 1987. 

The Company's research and development expenses 
grew at a slower rate and were lower as a percentage of rev­
enues in 1989 than in the previous year. This was primarily 
due to certain development projects reaching the point where 
capitalization is appropriate, leading to a higher level of cap­
italization of software development costs than in 1988. The 
acquired companies contributed to the growth of research 
and development spending in 1988. That factor, coupled 
with 1987 revenues exceeding the Company's budget, re­
sulted in an increase in research and development spending 
as a percentage of revenues in 1988. 

Research and development activities focus on meet­
ing the needs of customers who are implementing online 
systems for single sites or for geographically distributed 
information processing networks. Research and development 
expenses increased over the past three years to support new 
and existing product development efforts. Among the prod­
ucts that resulted from this research and development 
spending were the XL80 and V80 disk subsystems; the 

onStop CLX 600 and 700 series computer systems; 
onStop SQL software, including a significantly enhanced 



second release announced in 1989; the new NonStop 
Cyclone mainframe computer system and enhancements 
to the Access/ One product line, both announced just after 
the close of the year; and the Company's UNIX operating 
system product, to be announced in 1990. 

The acquisitions of Ungermann-Bass and ITSI, a 
development organization, also contributed to the increase 
in research and development expenses over the past two 
years. The Company expects to continue to support new 
product development with increased research and devel­
opment spending. 

Tandem's marketing strategy emphasizes direct sales 
to organizations that are implementing OLTP applications 
critical to their businesses. The Company believes that provid­
ing a high level of service and support, and offering solutions 
to customers' business problems are essential to meeting the 
needs of the customer base. Consequently, Tandem has built 
a direct sales and support organization in the United States 
and major international markets. To complement direct sales 
activities, relationships have been established with third­
party application software developers, equipment remarket­
ers, and distributors. The Company believes the market for 
its new U IX operating system product, to be announced in 
1990, will be augmented by these relationships, and intends 
to increase the use of alternate marketing channels. 

Marketing, general, and administrative expenses grew 
slightly less rapidly in 1989 than in 1988. The level of spend­
ing has increased as the Company has continued to build its 
marketing organization; to train new and existing sales, 
service, and support personnel; and to develop marketing 
relationships with third parties to support the Company's 
growth. The increases were also partially attributable to the 
amortization of costs in excess of net assets acquired and 
other costs related to the Company's investments. In addition 
to the acquisitions of Ungermann-Bass and ITSf, Tandem 
has invested in joint ventures and taken equity positions in 
companies whose product, market, or geographic strengths 
support its strategies. These factors have all contributed to 
the growth in marketing, general, and administrative ex­
penses, which have increased slightly as a percentage of 
revenues over the past three years. 

Net income and earnings per share 

et income in 1989 was $118.3 million, compared with 
$94.5 million in 1988 and $105 .2 rnillion in 1987. In addi­
tion to the factors discussed above, changes in net income 
over the past three years were the result of changes in the 
Company's net other income or expense and its effective 
tax rate . Net other income in 1989 was $2.0 million, com­
pared with an expense of $1 .9 million in 1988. et interest 
income declined $5.5 million between 1988 and 1989, 
and $6.7 million between 1987 and 1988. These declines 
were the result of a combination of lower interest-earning 

investments and higher levels of borrowing to finance 
the Company's activities in 1988 and 1989. In 1988, the 
Company settled a class action lawsuit that resulted in a 
pretax charge of $9.4 million. 

The effective tax rate in 1989 was 36.5 percent, 
compared with 35.0 percent in 1988 and 43.0 percent in 
1987. The increase in tax rate from 1988 to 1989 was pri­
marily the result of the change in the mix of profitability of 
the Company's foreign subsidiaries; the amortization of 
costs in excess of net assets acquired in the Ungermann-Bass 
acquisition, which is not tax deductible; and an increase 
in worldwide pretax income. The decline in the effective 
tax rate between 1988 and 1987 was primarily the result 
of lower federal statutory tax rates brought about by the 
passage of the Tax Reform Act of 1986. The Company 
has deferred adoption of Financial Accounting Standards 
Board Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96, 
"Accounting for Income Taxes;' in 1989 and believes that 
adoption will not have a material effect on the Company's 
financial statements. 

Earnings per share grew to $1.17 per share in 1989 
from $.96 in 1988 and $1.07 in 1987. The growth in earnings 
per share was less than that of net income in 1989 because 
of a higher level of weighted average shares outstanding. The 
Company's Common Stock outstanding increased during 
the year due to the sale of stock to employees under the 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, exercises under option plans, 
and the issuance of stock to the Employee Stock Ownership 
Plan (ESOP). Weighted average shares outstanding increased 
due to these factors and to additional common stock equiv­
alents resulting from higher stock prices. These increases, 
lessened by the acquisition of treasury stock, resulted in a 
3 percent increase in weighted average shares outstanding 
in 1989, compared with less than I percent in 1988 and 
10 percent in 1987. 

In July 1989, the Company issued 2.8 million shares 
of Common Stock to the ESOP. Beginning in 1990, compen­
sation expense in the total amount of $50 million will be 
recognized in increasing annual amounts over the next four­
to five-year period as shares are transferred into employee 
accounts. This will increase the Company's costs in future 
years, as it intends to make contributions to the ESOP equal 
to 1.5 percent of compensation. 

Personnel 

During the year, the number of employees increased by 
924, bringing the total at year-end to 9,548. The Company 
hired primarily in areas it believes are critical to its success, 
with the largest increases in personnel in the field marketing 
and research and development organizations. 

The Company believes that attracting and retaining 
high-quality employees are keys to success. Methods to 
achieve these objectives include employee stock option and 
purchase programs that also provide funds for the Company. 
In 1989, the Company established a leveraged ESOP for 
U. S. employees as a first step toward a comprehensive 
Company-funded retirement arrangement. 
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Impact of currency and inflation 

In 1989, the comparative strength of the U. S. dollar against 
foreign currencies had a negative influence on revenues. and 
pretax earnings. By contrast, in 1988 and 1987 the.relat1Ve 
weakness of the U. S. dollar against foreign currencies had 
a positive influence on revenues; however, the impact.on 
operating income in those years was moderated by pr~ce 
reductions taken to maintain consistent pricing across mter­
national boundaries, combined with the negative effect of 
strengthening currencies on international expenses. 

The effect of inflation on the Company's financial 
results has not been significant. 

Finandal condition 
The Company's financial position remains strong. Total 
assets at year-end increased to $1.6 billion, compared with 
$1.3 billion in 1988 and $973 million in 1987. The equity 
base grew to $989 million in 1989, from $857 million 
in 1988 and $724 million in 1987. Cash and equivalents 
grew $72 million during the year to reach $197 million 
at September 30, 1989, compared with $125 million and 
$318 million at the end of 1988 and 1987, respectively. Cash 
generated from operations, additional borrowings, and s~le 
of Common Stock to employees contributed to cash dunng 
1989. These additions to cash were partially offset by invest­
ments in property, plant, and equipment, and other assets; 
and a $27 million open-market purchase of shares of the 
Company's Common Stock. 

Funds to support the Company's operations have his­
torically been generated internally. In 1989, cash flow from 
operations was $199 million, compared with $116 million 
in 1988 and $140 million in 1987. This source of funds has 
traditionally been supplemented by employee stock pur­
chases through employee stock option and stock purchase 
programs. As a result of these programs and related tax 
benefits, the Company received $47 million in 1989. The 
Company received $33 million from employee stock pur­
chases and related tax benefits in 1988, and $81 million in 1987. 

In 1989 Tandem invested $136 million in property, 
plant, and e~uipment. This compares with $185 million 
and $143 million invested in 1988 and 1987, respectively. 
In 1988, Tandem invested $241 million in the acquisitions 
of Ungermann-Bass and TIS!. There were no significant 
business acquisitions prior to 1988. 

Property, plant, and equipment investments in 1988 
and 1987 included the purchase of buildings in the Com­
pany's headquarters area in Cupertino, California, and ~ 
building near London for the Company's headquarters In 

the United Kingdom. Prior to 1987, Tandem did not own the 
buildings it occupied in its headquarters area. The Company 
previously leased most of the buildings it has purchased. The 
Company did not purchase any buildings in 1989; however, 
after the close of the year, the Company entered into an 
agreement to purchase certain real property totaling 
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86 acres, including seven buildings and a retail shopping 
complex near its Cupertino headquarters. Some of thos~ 
buildings are currently leased by the Company. The. addi­
tional space will allow for expansion and for relocatton of 
employees currently located in other Santa C!ara ~ounty, 
California, facilities . This $116 million transactton will be 
funded with cash. 

In 1989 in conjunction with establishing a leveraged 
ESOP and is~uing 2.8 million shares of Common Stock in 
exchange for a note from the ESOp, the Co~pany bo.rrowed 
$50 million in a related loan agreement. This transactton 
contributed to the Company's 1989 year-end balance of 
borrowings of$165 million, compared with $148 million at 
the end of 1988 and $11 million at the end of 1987. In 1989, 
the Company also borrowed in specific situations to support 
certain transactions and repaid certain borrowings as a resul t 
of positive cash flow. In 1988, borrowings increased to 
support the Company's investment activities. . 

Inventory management improved over the pnor year, 
as inventory days declined to 77 days at the end of the year, 
compared with 78 days and 87 days at the end of 1988 and 
1987, respectively. Accounts receivable days at year~end 

were 84, compared with 85 in 1988. Accounts receivable 
days in 1988 increased over the 1987 level of 80 days p~r­

tially because of the acquisition of Ungermann-~ss, which 
has historically had higher average accounts receivable days 
than Tandem. 

Tandem believes it is strategically important to maintain 
a conservative capital structure and a sound ratio of current 
assets to current liabilities in order to demonstrate its finan­
cial strength and to compete effectively in high-technology 
markets. The current ratio at year-end 1989 remained rela­
tively stable at 2.0 : I, compared with 1.8: I at the end of 1988. 
The Company believes its current ratio is sound. 

At September 30, 1989, Tandem had excellent 
liquidity; 23 percent of the Company's current assets were 
cash and equivalents. Long-term obligations as a percentage 
of capital at the end of 1989 rose to 9.7 percent, primarily 
because of activities involved in establishing the leveraged 
ESOP. As a result of the Company's level of investment 
activity in 1988, the current ratio decreased in that year 
from 3.6: I in 1987, and long-term obligations to capital 
increased to 6.4 percent from 1.2 percent at the end of 1987. 

The Company has various alternatives to meet future 
capital needs, including funds generated from future oper­
ations, short-term borrowings, continued stock issuances 
under employee stock purchase and option plans, and 
an unused $200 million mUltiple-option financing facility. 
Tandem believes that its current lines of credi~ anticipated 
cash generated from operations, and continued issuance~ 
of stock under employee plans will be sufficient to fund Its 
growth for the next year. 



Selected Financial Data 

For the yea rs e nded September 30 

( In thousands except 
1989 1988 1987 1986 1985 per share amounts) 

Revenues $1 ,632,522 $1,314,721 $1 ,047,532 $778,014 $635,983 

Cost of revenues 606,408 487,791 363,730 283,227 273,516 
Research and development 203,520 169,356 109,504 88,202 75,357 
Marketing, general, and administrative 638,267 510,313 403,859 299,572 238, 152 

Operating income 184,327 147,261 170,439 107,013 48,958 
Net interest income 1,998 7,477 14,207 8,399 6, 178 
Settlement of li tigation (9,375) 
Provision for income taxes (68,009) (50,878) (79,41 7) (51 , 154) (21 ,554) 

Net income $ 118,316 $ 94,485 $ 105,229 $ 64,258 $ 33,582 

Earnings per share $ 1.1 7 $ .96 $ 1.07 $ .72 $ .40 

Total assets $1 ,6 18,788 $1 ,318,377 $ 973,040 $710,024 $559,244 
Long-term obligations $ 106,643 $ 58, 197 $ 9,055 $ 5,795 $ 11 ,884 
Stockholders' investment $ 989, 118 $ 856,86 1 $ 723,855 $53 7,978 $423,2 14 

See the Business Combinations note to the consolidated financial statements for a description of significant transactions affecting the data from 1988 forward. 

TANDEM COMPUTERS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES 
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

For the years ended September 30 

(In thousands except per share amounts ) 1989 1988 1987 

Revenues 
Product revenues $1,354,852 $1 ,079,563 $ 872,(X)3 
Service and other revenues 277,670 235,158 175,529 

Total revenues 1,632,522 1,314,721 1,047,532 

Costs and expenses 
Cost of product revenues 414,089 309,896 231 ,659 
Cost of service and other revenues 192,319 177,895 132,071 
Research and development 203,520 169,356 109,504 
Marketing, general, and administrative 638,267 510,313 403,859 

Total costs and expenses 1,448, 195 1, 167,460 877,093 

Operating income 184,327 147,261 170,439 
Interest income 11,357 15,560 15,811 
Interest expense (9,359) (8,083) (1,604) 
Settlement of litigation (9,375) 

Income before income taxes 186,325 145,363 184,646 

Provision for income taxes 68,009 50,878 79,417 

Net income $ 118,316 $ 94,485 $ 105,229 

Earnings per share $ 1.17 $ .96 $ 1.07 

Weighted average shares outstanding 101 ,386 98,683 98,424 

See accom panying notes. 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

At September 30 

(In thousands) 

Current assets 
Cash and equivalents 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of 

$11,599 in 1989 and $9,491 in 1988 
Inventories 
Prepaid income taxes 
Prepaid expenses and other 

Total current assets 

Property, plant, and equipment, at cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

et property, plant, and equipment 

Cost in excess of net assets acquired, 

Assets 

net of accumulated amortization of $18,422 in 1989 and $6,248 in 1988 

Other assets 

Total assets 

Current liabilities 
otes payable 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 

Accrued salaries and related items 
Accrued commissions to third parties 
Deferred income 
Income taxes 
Other 

Liabilities and stockholders' investment 

Current maturities of long-term obligations 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term obligations 

Deferred income taxes 

Commitments and contingencies 

Stockholders' investment 
Common stock $.025 par value, authorized 400,000 shares in 1989 and 

200,000 shares in 1988, outstanding 102,064 in 1989 and 96,108 in 1988 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated translation adjustments 
Treasury stock, at cost 
Deferred compensation 

Total stockholders' investment 

Total liabilities and stockholders' investment 

See accompanying notes. 

TANDEM COMPUTERS INCO RPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES 

1989 

$ 197,174 

419,440 
144,176 
77,759 
24,602 

863,151 

735,499 
(288,117) 

447,382 

203,438 

104,817 

$1,618,788 

$ 19,857 
106,263 

66,864 
22, 199 
38,832 
53,198 
95,466 
38,726 

441 ,405 

106,643 

81,622 

2,552 
500, 155 
564, 168 

(820) 
(26,937) 
(50,000) 

989, 118 

$1 ,618,788 

1988 

$ 124,599 

355,635 
129,426 

4,288 
29,815 

643,763 

633,159 
(214,638) 

418,521 

205,128 

50,965 

$1,318,377 

$ 80,971 
91 ,935 

52,586 
14,757 
29,479 
25,412 
60,836 

9,322 

365,298 

58,197 

38,021 

2,403 
403,241 
445,852 

5,365 

856,861 

$1 ,318,377 
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Investment 

For the years ended September 30 

Additional Accumulated Total 
Common Stock Paid-In Retained Translation Treasury Deferred Stockholders' 

(In thousands) Shares Amount Capital Earnings Adjustments Stock Compensation Investment 

Balances, 
September 30, 1986 88,515 $2,213 $289,627 $246, 138 $ $ $ - $537,978 

Sale of Common Stock 
under stock plans, 
including tax benefits 5,334 133 80,515 80,648 

Net income 105,229 105,229 

Balances, 
September 30, 1987 93,849 2,346 370, 142 351,367 723,855 

Effect of redesignating 
functional currency 10, 191 10, 191 

Balances, 
October I, 1987 93,849 2,346 370, 142 351 ,367 10, 191 734,046 

Sale of Common Stock 
under stock plans, 
including tax benefits 2,259 57 33,099 33, 156 

Translation adjustments (4,826) (4,826) 
Net income 94,485 94,485 

Balances, 
September 30, 1988 96, 108 2,403 403,241 445,852 5,365 856,861 

Sale of Common Stock 
under stock plans, 
including tax benefits 3, 149 79 46,984 47,063 

Acquisition of 
treasury stock (26,937) (26,93 7) 

Issuance of Common 
Stock to ESOP 2,807 70 49,930 (50,000) 

Translation adjustments (6, 185) (6, 185) 
Net income 118,316 118,316 

Balances, 
September 30, 1989 102,064 $2,552 $500, 155 $564, 168 $ (820) $(26,937) $(50,000) $989, 118 

See accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended September 30 

(In thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
et income 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from 
operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income taxes 
Loss on dispositions of property, plant, and equipment 
Translation adjustments 
Changes in: 

Accounts receivable 
Inventories 
Lease receivables 
Prepaid expenses and non-debt current liabilities 

et cash from operating activities 

Cash flows used in investing activities 
Payments for UB and ITI, net of cash acquired 
Investment in property, plant, and equipment 
Proceeds from dispositions of property, plant, and equipment 
Increase in other assets 

et cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Borrowings 
Repayments 
Deferred compensation related to ESOP 
Purchase of treasury stock 
Issuance of Common Stock under stock plans, including tax benefits 

et cash provided by financing activities 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and equivalents 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and equivalents at end of year 

Supplementary cash flow information -
cash paid during the year for : 

Income taxes 
Interest 

See accompanying notes. 

1989 

$ 118,316 

112,683 
(24,534) 

1,763 

(64,855) 
( 17,289) 
(22,582) 
95,571 

199,073 

( 135,957) 
9,694 

(37,736) 

( 163,999) 

119,163 
( 101,932) 

(50,000) 
(26,937) 
97,063 

37,357 

144 

72,575 
124,599 

$ 197, 174 

$ 49,814 
$ 9,340 

TANDEM COMPlJI'ERS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES 

1988 

$ 94,485 

85,971 
( 11,831) 

1,820 

(60,993) 
( 12,728) 
( 13,337) 
33,017 

116,404 

(240,503) 
( 185, 108) 

12,046 
(6,093) 

(419,658) 

88,518 
(11,061) 

33, 156 

110,613 

( 1,031) 

( 193,672) 
318,271 

$ 124,599 

$ 39,077 
$ 7,328 

1987 

$ 105,229 

52,501 
8,582 
1,068 
3,775 

(48,591) 
(29,084) 

(2,252) 
48,272 

139,500 

( 142,552) 
13,800 

( 16,550) 

( 145,302) 

2,701 
(4,147) 

80,648 

79,202 

4,562 

77,962 
240,309 

$ 318,271 

$ 54,291 
$ 2,746 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

Consolidated financial statements 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts 
of Tandem Computers Incorporated and its subsidiaries (the 
Company) after the elimination of intercompany accounts 
and transactions. 

Revenue recognition 
The Company generally recognizes revenue from equip­
ment sales at the time of shipment. Service and other reve­
nues are recognized ratably over the contractual period or 
as the services are provided. 

Translation of non-u' S. currency amounts 
The Company's non-U.S. subsidiaries use as their functional 
currency the local currencies of the countries in which they 
operate. Their assets and liabilities are translated into US. 
dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet 
date. Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates 
of exchange prevailing during the period. In addition, all 
ongoing adjustments resulting from the process of translat­
ing each subsidiary's financial statements into US. dollars 
have been accumulated and recorded within a separate 
component of stockholders' investment. Foreign currency 
transaction gains and losses are not material and are 
included in the determination of net income. 

The preceding policy became effective October I, 
1987, the date on which the Company redesignated the 
functional currency of non-U S. subsidiaries from the U.S. 
dollar to the local currency. The effect of the change on 
1988 income was insignificant. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, 
first-out) or market. The components of inventories at 
September 30 were: 

(In thousands) 

Purchased parts and subassemblies 
Work-in -process 
Finished goods 

Total 

1989 

$ 73,514 
31 ,324 
39,338 

$144, 176 

1988 

$ 68,718 
25,894 
34,814 

$129,426 

Income taxes 
The Company accounts for research and development 
credits as a reduction of the provision for income taxes in 
the year in which the credits are generated. In general, the 
Company's practice is to provide US. federal taxes on undis­
tributed international earnings. 

Cash and equivalents 
Short-term cash investments are valued at cost, which 
approximates market; have maturity dates not exceeding 
90 days; and generally consist of certificates of deposit, time 
deposits, treasury notes, money market preferred stocks, 
municipal notes, and commercial paper. 

Property, plant, and equipment 
Property, plant, and equipment is stated at cost. Deprecia­
tion and amortization are computed using the straight-line 
method over estimated useful lives, as follows: buildings, 
30 years; machinery and equipment, and computer equip­
ment, 3 to 7 years; system spares, 5 years; and leasehold 
improvements, I to 7 years (the lease term l. 

Cost in excess of net assets acquired 
The excess acquisition cost over the fair value of net assets 
of businesses acquired is being amortized using the straight­
line method over estimated lives ranging from 10 to 20 
years. Amortization expense for 1989 and from acquisition 
dates in 1988 was $12.2 million and $6.2 million, respectively. 

Software development costs 
The Company capitalizes software development costs as 
the resulting products become Ntechnologically feasibleH and 
amortizes those costs when, and as, the products are shipped. 
At a minimum, the amortization is that which would result 
from using a three-year straight-line method from the date 
of product release. The amounts of unamortized software 
development costs included in other assets at September 30, 
1989 and 1988, were $24.9 million and $12.2 million, respec­
tively. The amortization expense for 1989, 1988, and 1987 
was $6.2 million, $5.2 million, and $1.3 million, respectively. 
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Earnings per share 
Earnings per share are based on the weighted average num­
ber of common and common equivalent shares outstanding. 
Common equivalent shares result from the assumed exercise 
of outstanding stock options, which have a dilutive effect 
when applying the treasury stock method, and a convertible 
debenture. Fully diluted earnings per share are substantially 
the same as reported eamings per share. 

Reclassifications 
Certain 1988 and 1987 amounts have been reclassified to 
conform to the current year presentation. 

Property, plant, and equipment 

Property, plant, and equipment balances at September 30 
were as follows : 

(In thousands) 1989 1988 

Land and buildings $ 199,924 $ 193,940 
Machinery and equipment 131 , 131 113, 133 
Computer equ ipment 259,801 206,076 
System spares 68,058 65,022 
Leasehold improvements 49,289 39,939 
Construction in progress 27,296 15,049 

Total $ 735,499 $633 , 159 

Included in the land and buildings and construction in 
progress balances at September 30, 1989 and 1988, were 
approximately $27 million of costs relating to land and land 
improvements on a parcel located in San Jose, California, 
held for future development. 

During 1988, the Company purchased land and six 
buildings for its headquarters in Cupertino, California, for 
$85.5 million. The purchases were financed using $54.8 
million in cash and the assumption of mortgages totaling 
$30.7 million. The Company also purchased land and a build­
ing for $16.7 million near London for its UK headquarters. 

The Company leases certain equipment, automobiles, 
and some of its operating facilities and offices under oper­
ati ng lease agreements. Future minimum lease payments as 
of September 30, 1989, are as follows (in millions): $63 .0 
(1990), $53 .6 (1991), $41.8 (1992), $25.8 (I 993}, $18.0 
<I 994}, and $84.4 (1995 and thereafter>. Rent expense 
was $63.2 million, $53.4 million, and $51.1 million in 1989, 
1988, and 1987, respectively. 

Interest costs related to construction in progress of 
$1.8 million, $1.6 million, and $.2 million were capitalized 
in 1989, 1988, and 1987, respectively. 

On October 18, 1989, the Company entered into 
an agreement in principle to acquire IS parcels of im­
proved and unimproved real properties near its Cupertino 
headquarters for $115.8 million. The properties total ap­
proximately 86 acres, including seven buildings and a retail 
shopping complex. The Company expects to fund the 
acquisition with cash. In addition to acquiring the properties, 
the Company received certain rights to acquire other prop­
erties in Cupertino, totaling approximately 20 acres. 

Leasing program 

The Company has a vendor leasing program whereby lease 
receivables may be financed by financial institutions either 
through limited recourse sales of the receivables or through 
direct borrowings. In the event of a default by a lessee, 
recourse by the financial institutions is limited to the collater­
alized computer equipment and a recourse amount, if any, 
from either a limited recourse pool established as a percen­
tage of each associated group of financed lease transactions 
or limited recourse specified in the individual transaction 
agreement. The Company may also be required to remarket 
the computer equipment on a "best efforts" basis on behalf 
of the financial institutions. Collection of the lease receiv­
ables is performed by the financial institutions. In 1989, 
1988, and 1987, the following amounts were received under 
the leasing program: 

(In thousands) 1989 1988 1987 

Sales of lease receivables $27,652 $25,9 15 $4,912 
Borrowings 30,243 14, 147 2,550 

Total finan cing $ 57,895 $40,062 $7,462 

At September 30, 1989 and 1988, reserves for recourse 
liabilities on sales of lease receivables were approximately 
$3.3 million and $1. 7 million, respectively. 
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Business combinations 

In 1988, Atalla Corporation became a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Company. The merger, accounted for as a 
pooling-of-interests, involved the exchange of 689,363 of the 
Company's shares for all of the outstanding shares of Atalla. 

In 1988, the Company acquired Integrated Technology, 
Inc. (ITO, and Ungermann-Bass, Inc. The acquisitions were 
accounted for as purchases and, accordingly, the net assets 
acquired have been recorded at their estimated fair values at 
the date of their respective acquisitions. The Company's 
consolidated financial statements include the results of their 
operations from those dates forward . 

The Company acquired ITI for approximately 
$5.9 million in cash, issuance of a five-year note for $6.1 mil­
lion, and the assumption of IT!' s net obligations. This result­
ed in costs in excess of net assets acquired of $16.2 million, 
which is being amortized on a straight-line basis over ten 
years. In May 1988, ITI became Tandem Telecommunica­
tions Systems, Inc. (TTSD. 

The Company acquired Ungermann-Bass for 
$271.4 million in cash, which included $21 million for a 
portion of its outstanding debentures. During 1989, the 
assessment of the fair values of the assets purchased and 
liabilities assumed was finalized, and the cost in excess of 
net assets acquired at the date of acquisition was determined 
to be $205.7 million, which is being amortized on a straight­
line basis over 20 years. 

Unaudited pro forma consolidated financial informa­
tion for 1988, as if the Ungermann-Bass acquisition had 
occurred at the beginning of 1988 at the purchase price estab­
lished in March 1988, is as follows : revenues, $1 ,372 million; 
net income, $94.4 million; and earnings per share, $.96. The 
effects ofTTSI were immaterial. The pro forma results are 
not necessarily indicative of what would have occurred had 
the acquisitions actually been made on October I, 1987, or 
of future operations of the combined companies. 

Settlement of litigation 

In 1988, the Company settled a 1984 class action lawsuit 
arising from its December 1982 restatement of revenues 
and earnings for fiscal 1982. Without any admission or pre­
sumption of liability, the Company elected to contribute 
$9.4 million to a settlement fund of$16.5 million. The 
Company's insurance carrier contributed $7. 1 million. 

Income taxes 

The provision for income taxes included the following: 

(In thousands) 1989 1988 1987 

Federal: 
Current $ 30,321 $21 ,220 $40,669 
Deferred (prepaid) (16,929) (8,253) 4,402 

13,392 12,967 45,071 

State: 
Current 13, 165 10, 195 9,362 
Deferred (prepaid) (1,985) (917) 3,094 

11 , 180 9,278 12,456 

Foreign : 
Current 49,057 31 ,294 20,804 
Deferred (prepaid) (5,620> (2,661) 1,086 

43,437 28,633 21 ,890 

Total provision $68,009 $50,878 $79,417 

Sources of deferred (prepaid ) taxes were as follows: 

(In thousands) 1989 1988 1987 

Inventory reserves $ (2,005) $ <3,668) $ (2,574) 
Installment sale method for 

income tax reporting (8,669) (1,700) 10,300 
Accelerated depreciation (1,393 ) 440 1,606 
Effect of intercompany 

profit eliminations (7,070> (2,681) (10,227) 
Operating leases for 

income tax reporting 7,037 5,361 1,622 
Deferred income (4,272) (1 ,037) 
Capitalized software 4, 160 (212) (598) 
Unrealized exchange gains 

<losses) (3,448) 55 1,135 
Other (8,874) (8,389) 7,318 

Total deferred (prepaid) $(24,534) $(11,831) $ 8,582 
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The provision for income taxes differed from the amount 
obtained by applying the federal statutory income tax rate 
to income before income taxes, as follows: 

1989 

Federal statutory tax rate 34.0% 
State taxes, net of federal 

income tax benefit 4.0 
Research and development 

tax credits <3 .5) 
Tax exempt FSC income <3.4) 
Amortization of cost in 

excess of net assets 
acquired 2.0 

Other 3.4 

Effective tax rate 36.5% 

1988 

34.0% 

4.2 

(3.8) 
(2.9) 

1.5 
2.0 

35.0% 

1987 

43.0% 

3.8 

(2.1) 
(2.5) 

.8 

43 .0% 

The effective tax rate decreased from 43 percent in 1987 to 
35 percent in 1988 largely as a result of the reduction in the 
federal tax rate by the Tax Reform Act of 1986. 

In December 1987, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) 0.96, "Accounting for Income Taxes," 
which, under a current proposal, the Company is not 
required to adopt until fiscal 1993. Adoption has been 
deferred by Management, pending resolution of certain 
implementation issues. However, the adoption of SFAS 96 is 
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's 
financial statements. 

Notes payable 

Short-term notes payable consist of notes, bankers' accep­
tances, and borrowings under uncommitted foreign credit 
lines at weighted average interest rates of 6.7 and 8.5 percent 
at September 30, 1989 and 1988, respectively. 

Long-term obligations 

Long-term obligations at September 30 consist of the 
following: 

(In thousands) 1989 

$49.9 million credit agreement (I) $ 49,930 $ 
Installment notes due through 1994, collat-

eralized by lease receivables (1 1.6%) (2) 36,9 18 
Mortgages (9.3 - 14.5%) (3) 29,066 
Japanese yen notes payable, due 1990-

1993 (5.4%) (2) 14,833 
Industrial revenue and development bonds 

due 1991 to 1996 (7.4 - 12.4% ) (4) 6,204 
Term note, principal and variable interest, 

due May 1993 (5) 6,466 
6.875% subordinated debentu res, 

due March 2011 1,493 
Capital lease obligations due 1990- 1993 

(5 - 15%) 459 
Convertible subordinated debenture, 

payable to an officer in September 
1989 (9.5%) (6) 

Total obligations 145,369 
Less current portion <38,726) 

Long-term obligations $ 106,643 $ 

1988 

14,524 
29,998 

4,606 

7,863 

6,085 

1,564 

1,212 

1,667 

67,519 
(9,322) 

58, 197 

(I) Entered into in connection with the formation of the ESOP, this 
agreement provides for variable interest and repayments . At the 
bank's option, all borrowings are to be repaid in July 1996. If 
extended, the loan balance amortizes through July 2001. Interest 
rate at September 30,1989, was 9.5%. 

(2) Weighted average interest rate at September 30, 1989. 
(3) Payable monthly; maturing 1990 to 2001 ; weighted average 

interest rate at September 30, 1989 and 1988, was 11 .9%. The 
mortgages are secured by certain land and buildings, with a cost 
of $68.3 million. 

(4) Weighted average interest rate at September 30, 1989, was 8.5%. 
(5) Interest rate at September 30, 1989, was 8.6%. 
(6) On September 26, 1989, the debenture was converted into 

200,000 shares of Common Stock, at a price of $8.33 75 per share. 

Principal repayments required in the next five fiscal years 
are as follows (in millions): $38.7 (1990), $12.8 (1991), $15.0 
(1992), $13. 1 (1993), and $3.4 (1994). 

In September 1988, the Company entered into a five­
year multiple option financing faci lity (facility agreement) 
with 12 banks. The facility agreement provides for U.S. 
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dollar and multicurrency advances. Borrowings under the 
agreement carry interest based on one of the following: the 
agent bank's prime rate, an average of the banks' certificate 
of deposit rates, or the London Interbank Offered Rate 
(UBOR). The facility agreement also provides for the 
establishment of an uncommitted note placement facility, 
whereby the Company may request the banks to bid for the 
subscription of notes. Borrowings under the various options 
are allowed up to an aggregate amount of $200 million. 
The Company pays an annual facility fee of $.3 million for 
the commitment, and there are no compensating balance 
requirements. The agreement also contains certain financial 
covenants and restrictions with which the Company was in 
compliance at September 30, 1989. There were no borrow­
ings under the facility agreement in either 1989 or 1988. 

The Company has guaranteed payment of loans made 
to officers totaling $ 1.7 million at September 30, 1989, and 
$1 .9 million at September 30, 1988, under bank credit lines 
aggregating $5 million. In September 1989, the Company 
collected a $1.7 million note receivable from an officer, 
which had been included in other current assets at 
September 30, 1988. 

Capital stoch 

The Company's authorized capital stock consists of 
2.4 million shares of preferred stock, of which 800,000 
shares are designated as Series A Participating Preferred 
Stock; 4 million shares of Junior Common Stock; and 
396 million shares of Common Stock. No shares of pre­
ferred stock or Junior Common Stock have been issued. At 
September 30, 1989, 40.8 million shares of Common Stock 
were reserved for future issuance under stock option plans 
and the employee stock purchase plan. 

Treasury stock 
In July 1989, concurrently with the formation of the Tandem 
Computers Incorporated Employee Stock Ownership Plan 
(ESOP), the Company began the reacquisition of its Com­
mon Stock on the open market. Such shares are carried 

at cost and will be used to satisfy requirements under 
employee stock plans. At September 30, 1989, 1.3 million 
shares had been repurchased, at an aggregate cost of 
$26.9 million. 

Stock rights 
In 1988, the Company amended and restated its rights plan 
(plan), originally adopted in 1985. The Plan is intended to 
protect stockholders from unfair takeover practices. Under 
the Plan, each share of Common Stock carries one right to 
obtain additional stock or other property with equivalent 
value, on terms provided in the Plan. The rights will not 
be exercisable, or transferable apart from the Common 
Stock, until another person or group of persons (subject 
to certain exceptions) acquires at least 20 percent of the 
Common Stock or commences, or announces its intention 
to commence, a tender offer for at least 30 percent of 
the Common Stock. 

The rights are redeemable by the Board of Directors or 
upon vote of the stockholders for $.05 per right, or property 
with an equivalent value, and expire on June 17, 1998. 

Employee benefits 

Employee stock ownership plan 
On July 18, 1989, the Company adopted the ESOP for 
eligible U. S. employees. In exchange for a $49.9 million 
note from the ESOP Trustee and an initial cash contribution 
of $.1 million, the Company issued 2,807,018 shares of 
Common Stock to the ESOP at a price of $17.8125 per 
share. The note requires quarterly payment of interest at 
9.3 75% and is secured by unallocated shares held by the 
ESOP trustee. Principal repayments are variable, at the 
Company's option, but must aggregate $5 million by 
July 15, 1996, and the total borrowing must be repaid by 
July 15, 2001. Company contributions to the ESOP will be 
used to repay the loan to the Company. Beginning in fiscal 
1990, as the loan is repaid, Common Stock will be allocated 
to ESOP participants based on the proportion of the loan 
repayment to total principal and interest payments required 
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over the remaining loan term. Shares allocated under the 
ESOP vest over periods of up to one year, depending on the 
participant's length of service. Currently, the Company in­
tends to make contributions to the ESOP such that the 
shares allocated to participants have a cost value of at least 
1.5 percent, but a market value limited to a maximum of 
5 percent, of the participants' eligible compensation. 

Deferred compensation equal to the initial amount 
loaned to the ESOP by the Company was recorded as a 
reduction of stockholders' investment. This amount will be 
recognized as expense in future periods, proportionately 
with share allocations by the ESOP. 

The Company also made an additional contribution 
to allow the ESOP Trustee to purchase 38,500 shares of 
Common Stock for immediate allocation to participants' 
accounts, which resulted in compensation expense of 
$.7 million being recognized in 1989. 

Stock option plans 
The Company has employee stock option plans under 
which qualified individuals may be granted options to 
purchase shares of Common Stock, generally at fair market 
value at the time of the grant. In general, options become 
exercisable six months after the effective date, vest over four 
years, and expire no more than ten years after the effective 
date. At the discretion of the Board of Directors, options 
granted under the stock option plans may qualify as incen­
tive stock options under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 
At September 30, 1989, options for 14.0 million shares were 
available for future grant. 

Employee stock purchase plan 
Under the plan, the Company may offer shares to employ­
ees in two ways. Under the first method, eligible employees 
may elect to purchase shares of Common Stock at the 
lower of 85 percent of fair market value as of the last trading 
day before or as of the last trading day of the quarter. Under 
this method, in 1989, 1988, and 1987, employees purchased 
969,000 shares for aggregate proceeds of $13 million, 
610,000 shares for aggregate proceeds of $11.2 million, 
and 463,000 shares for aggregate proceeds of $7.6 million, 
respectively. Under the second method, the Company may 

grant to all employees the option to purchase an identical 
number of shares of Common Stock at not less than 85 per­
cent of fair market value at the grant date. At September 30, 
1989, the Company had reserved 9.9 million shares of 
Common Stock for future issuance under its employee 
stock purchase plan. 

Stock option activity 
Information concerning the combined option activity 
during the years ended September 30, under the stock 
option plans and the option portion of the employee stock 
purchase plan, follows: 

1989 

Aggregate 
Shares Price 

(In millions except per share amounts) 

Beginning of year 17.0 $277.9 
Options granted 5.4 98.1 
Options exercised 

($2.62 to $37.00 
per share) ( 1.9) (21.9) 

Options cancelled (3.6) (94.2) 

End of year 16.9 $259.9 

Options vested at 
year end 9.6 

1988 1987 

Aggregate Aggregate 
Shares Price Shares Price 

13.2 $208.9 13.8 $154.8 
6.1 100.4 4.6 110.3 

(1 .6) (18.5) (4.9) (52.0) 
<.7) (12.9) <.)) (4.2) 

17.0 $277.9 13.2 $208.9 

7 .3 7 .1 

Included in the 1989 activity is the cancellation and regrant 
of 2.6 million shares in December 1988, at an exercise price 
equal to the fair market value on the date of the regrant. 
The regrant did not affect the vested status of the shares. 

The Company has a long-standing policy of encourag­
ing all levels of employees to become stockholders through 
various stock programs. This policy is based on a belief 
that all stockholders benefit from the higher productivity, 
lower turnover, and improved customer satisfaction realized 
by providing employees with a personal stake in the 
Company's success. 
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Although stock options may be exercised before they 
are fully vested and the effect of all dilutive stock options is 
considered in the determination of earnings per share, the 
following table shows the maximum number of shares that 
would be issued based on the number of options vesting in 
each futu re year. 

Maximum number of existing options vesting each fiscal year 
Exercise 
Price 1989 Total 
Range and prio r 1990 199 1 1992 1993 Shares 

(In thousands except price range amounts) 

$0-$10 2,736 53 6 6 3 2,804 
$10-$20 6,842 3,070 2,252 1,297 326 13,787 
$20-$30 62 67 54 47 36 266 

9,640 3, 190 2,312 l,3 50 365 16,857 

Common and common equivalent shares 
Outstanding Outstanding 

Fiscal 1989 weighted average 
At September 30, 1989 

Option loan program 

Shares Equivalents 

97,978 3,408 
100,750 5,634 

Aggregate 
Price 

$ 24,944 
228,772 

6,165 
$259,881 

Total 

101,386 
106,384 

O n July I 7, 1989, the Board of Directors approved the 
Tandem Computers Incorporated Option Loan Program 
(O ption Loan Program) to enable employees to exercise 
certain outstanding options. Under the Option Loan Pro­
gram, the Company can issue full recourse loans that are 
secured by a pledge of the Company's Common Stock. 
Loan agreements entered into between the Company and 
participants provide that in the event of a change in control 
of the Company (as defined), principal and interest will be 
forgiven over a four-year period. 0 loans were outstanding 
at September 30, 1989. 

Commitments and contingendes 

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims that 
arise in the normal course of its business. In the opinion of 
Management, these proceedings will not have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position or overall trends in 
the results of operations of the Company. 

See the Property, Plant, and Equipment note for a dis­
cussion of the Company's operating lease commitments. 

Geographic segment information 

The Company operates in three geographic regions : the 
United States, Europe, and Intercontinental. Intercontinental 
includes operations outside of the United States and Europe, 
principally Canada, the Pacific Rim, and Latin America. 

The following table sets forth information about the 
Company's operations in these different geographic regions 
for the years ended September 30. 

(In thousands) 1989 1988 1987 

Revenues 
United States-customers $ 817,210 $ 664,458 $ 599,671 
United States-interarea 390,723 302,601 249,034 
Europe-customers 530,024 442,735 302,966 
Europe-interarea 16,560 16,823 22,383 
Intercontinental-

customers 285,288 207,528 144,895 
Intercontinental-

interarea 9,019 7,308 10,813 

2,048,824 1,641 ,453 1,329,762 
Eliminations (416,302) <326,732) (282,230) 

Total revenues $1 ,632,522 $1,314,72 1 $1 ,047,532 

Pretax income 
United States $ 124,207 $ 79,521 $ 146,238 
Europe 54,858 64,310 37,229 
Intercontinental 20,673 10,575 7,726 

199,738 154,406 191 , 193 
Eliminations (J3 ,413) (9,043) (6,547) 

Total pretax income $ 186,325 $ 145,363 $ 184,646 

Identifiable assets 
United States $1 ,212,884 $ 895,062 $ 713,253 
Europe 306,744 319,413 213,688 
Intercontinental 177, 182 164,782 105,791 

1,696,810 1,379,257 1,032,732 
Eliminations (78,022) (60,880> (59,692) 

Total identifiable assets $1 ,618,788 $1,318,377 $ 973,040 

Intercompany transfers are made at arm's-length prices. 
Identifiable assets are those assets of the Company that 
are identified with the operations of the corresponding 
geographic area. United States customer revenues include 
export sales of $30.6 million in 1989, $20.3 mill ion in 1988, 
and $12.4 million in 1987. The Company operates primarily 
in one industry segment, which includes the manufacturing, 
servicing, and marketing of computer systems and networks. 

TA DEM COMPUTERS I CORPORATED A D SUBSIDIARIES 



I 

Quarterly financial data (unaudited) 
(In thousands except per share amounts) 

Fiscal 1989 
Quarters Ended Dec. 31 March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 

Total revenues $392,285 $363,388 $420,687 $456, 162 
Gross margin $246,958 $228,417 $266,132 $284,607 
Income before 

income taxes $ 49,285 $ 26,546 $ 48,439 $ 62,055 
et income $ 31,295 $ 16,858 $ 30,759 $ 39,404 

Earnings per share $ .32 $ . 17 $ .3 1 $ .38 
Market stock price 

range High $ 17.38 $ 20.25 $ 19.38 $ 23.63 
Low $ 13.75 $ 16.63 $ 14.88 $ 16.88 

Fiscal 1988 
Quarters Ended Dec. 31 March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 

Total revenues $282,282 $309,449 $338,993 $383,997 
Gross margin $180,026 $199,547 $214,248 $233,109 
Income before 

income taxes $ 37,019 $ 36,452 $ 26,232 $ 45,660 
et income $ 23,693 $ 23,330 $ 17,286 $ 30, 176 

Earnings per share $ .24 $ .24 $ .18 $ .3 1 
Market stock price 

range High $ 36.38 $ 28.25 $ 20.63 $ 20.88 
Low $ 19.88 $ 17.50 $ 16.50 $ 12.50 

Tandem Computers Incorporated Common Stock is traded 
on the ew York, Midwest, and Pacific Stock Exchanges 
under the trading symbol TDM. All quotations shown rep­
resent the high and low closing sale prices. The Company 
has not declared or paid any cash dividends on its Common 
Stock and has no plans to do so in the foreseeable future. 

Report of Ernst & Young, 
independent auditors 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tandem 
Computers Incorporated 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Tandem 
Computers Incorporated and subsidiaries at September 30, 
1989, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
stockholders ' investment, and cash flows for the year then 
ended. These consolidated financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsi­
bility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audit. The consolidated financial statements of 
Tandem Computers Incorporated and subsidiaries for the 
years ended September 30, 1988 and 1987, were audited 
by other auditors, whose report dated October 24, 1988, 
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur­
ance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the 1989 financial statements referred 
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consoli­
dated financial position of Tandem Computers Incorporated 
and subsidiaries at September 30, 1989, and consolidated 
results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended, 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

San Jose, California 
October 25, 1989 
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United Kingdom 

Sir Leslie Froggatl, 
Australia 

Fred rick T White, 
Canada 

Corporate Officers 

lames G. Treybig, 
President and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Robert C. Marshall, 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Operating Officer 

Martin M. Atalla, 
Vice President 

lack w. Chapman, 
Vice President - Sales 

Donald E. Fowler, 
Senior Vice President and 
General Manager­
Tandem Companies Group 

Robert G. Gargus, 
Vice President and 
Corporate Controller 

Gerald D. Held, 
Vice President - Strategy and 
Corporate Development 

Thomas I. Kl itgaard, 
Senior Vice President, 
General Counsel and Secretary 

Lawrence A. Laurich, 
Vice President - Systems 
Development and Manufacturing 

Gerald L. Peterson, 
Senior Vice President and 
General Manager-Tandem Sales 
and Marketing Group 

David I. Rynne, 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

Stephen C. Schmidt, 
Senior Vice President and General 
Manager - Tandem Systems Group 

Gerd Stoecker, 
Vice President and Treasurer 

Ralph K. Ungermann, 
Senior Vice President­
Ungermann -Bass Group 

Group Officers 

Barry Ariko, 
Vice President - U. S. Sales 
and Marketing 

Randall P. Baker, 
Vice President - Customer Support 

Michael K. Bateman, 
Vice President - ew Business and 
Distributor Marketing 

Ilene Birkwood, 
Vice President - Corporate Quality 

Susan I. Cook, 
Vice President - Human Resources 

George M. Eckert, 
Vice President 

lohn M. Elkins, 
Vice President - Customer Service 

Roberta Henderson, 
Vice President - OLTP Software 
Development 

Robert E Hoogstraten, 
Vice President and Managing 
Director- European Division 

Robert T lolls, 
Vice President - Product Marketing 

lohn Kane, 
Vice President - Marketing Strategy 

Larry W. McGraw, 
Vice President and General 
Manager-Tandem Source Company 

Michael C. Moore, 
Vice President and Managing 
Director-Intercontinental Division 

Raymond E. Peverell, 
Vice President-
Industry/Alliance Marketing 

lohn Sims, 
Vice President - Corporate 
Materials and Manufacturing MIS 

A10is I. Strnad, 
Vice President - Management 
Information Services 

Bruce Taylor, 
Vice President­
Manufacturing Operations 

E Steven Weick, 
Vice President - Services and 
Communications Products 

Barry E. Young, 
Vice President and General 
Manager- Micro Products Division 

Atalla Corporation Officers 

W. Dale Hopkins, 
Vice President - Engineering, 
and Acting General Manager 

Bud Michael, 
Vice President - Sales 

Steve A. Olson, 
Vice President - Marketing 

Frank S. Pied ad, 
Vice President - Field Support 

Tandem Telecommunications 
Systems, Inc., Officers 

Chris Erickson, 
President and General Manager 

Kelley Stalder, 
Vice President 

Ronald E. Staub, 
Vice President - Marketing, 
Treasurer and Secretary 

Mark Lanning, 
Vice President - System Engineering 

Un germann-Bass, Inc., Officers 

Ralph K. Ungermann, 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

K. William Sickler, 
Senior Vice President 

lack L. Acosta, 
Vice President-Finance 
and Customer Satisfaction, 
and Chief Financial Officer 

lohn M. Davidson, 
Vice President - Research 

Michael S. Gardner, 
Vice President - Marketing and Sales 

Gregory T Hopkins, 
Vice President - Engineering 

William Hubbard, 
Vice President - Manufacturing 
and Product Engineering 

Seiji Uehara, 
President - UBKK and Vice President­
Far East Operations 

Auditors 

Ernst & Young, 
San lose, California 

Registrar and Transfer Agent 

Bank of America .T. & S A. 
San Francisco, California 

Form 10-K 

A copy of the Company"s Report on 
Form 10- K for the 1989 fiscal year, as 
filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, is available on written 
request. Please direct your request to : 

Manager of Investor Relations 
Tandem Computers Incorporated 
19333 Valleo Parkway 
Cupertino, California 95014 -2599 

Annual Meeting 

The annual meeting of stockholders 
will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Wednes­
day, February 21, 1990, at 
10435 orth Tantau Avenue, 
Cupertino, California. 

Corporate Headquarters 

19333 Valleo Parkway 
Cupertino, California 95014 -2599 
(408) 725-6000 

For additional free literature about 
Tandem, call 800-482-6336 In the 
United States or 800-345 -8636 in 
Canada 
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O RACLE is a trademark of Oracle Corporation. + PC/SQL-Link is a registered trademark of Micro Decisionware, Inc. + Sybase is a registered trademark of Sybase, Inc . + 
U IX is a registered trademark of AT&T in the United States and other countries. 



TANDEM COMPUTERS 
INCORPORATED 

Domestic 
Sales Offices 

ARIZONA 
Phoenix 
Tucson 

CALIFORNIA 
Culver City 
Los Angeles 
Oakland 
Sacramento 
San Diego 
San Francisco 
Santa Ana 
Santa Clara 

COLORADO 
Englewood (Denver) 

CO ECTICUT 
Farmington (Hartford) 

orwalk 

FLORIDA 
Jacksonville 
Miami 
Tampa 

GEORGIA 
Atlanta 

HAWAII 
Honolulu 

ILLI 015 
Chicago 
Itasca 

DIA A 
Indianapolis 

IOWA 
Cedar Rapids 
Des Moines 

KA SAS 
Overland Park 
(Kansas City) 

KENruCKY 
Louisville 

MARYLA D 
Linthicum (Baltimore) 

MASSACHUSETTS 
ewton (Boston) 

MICHIGA 
orthville (Detroit) 

MI ESOTA 
Edina (Minneapolis) 

MISSOURI 
Creve Coeur (St. Lou is) 

EBRASKA 
Omaha 

EVADA 
Las Vegas 

NEW JERSEY 
Cherry Hill 
Hasbrouck Heights 

EWMEXICO 
Albuquerque 

NEW YORK 
Albany 
Fairport <Rochester) 
Jericho 

ew York City 

ORTH CAROLI A 
Charlotte 
Raleigh 

OHIO 
Cincinnati 
Cleveland 
Columbus 
Miamisburg (Dayton) 

OKLAHOMA 
Oklahoma City 
Tulsa 

OREGO 
Lake Oswego (Portland) 
Salem 

PE SYLVA IA 
Allentown 
King of Prussia 
Pittsburgh 

TE ESSEE 
Memphis 

TEXAS 
Austin 
Dallas / Fort Worth 
Houston 

UTAH 
Salt Lake City 

VIRGI IA 
Reston 
Richmond 

WASHI GTO 
Kirkland (Seattle) 
Olympia 

WISCO SI 
Brookfield (Milwaukee) 

C I989 Tandem Computers Incorporated 

Inte rnational 
Subsidiaries 

AUSTRALIA 

Tandem Computers Ply. Ltd. 
Adelaide 
Canberra 
Melbourne 
Milton (Brisbane) 
Perth 
Sydney 
Tasmania 

Australian OnLine Systems 
Ply. Ltd. 

Melbourne 

AUSTRIA 

Tandem Computers Ges.m.b.H. 
Vienna 

BELGIUM 

Tandem Computers S.A I N. V 
Zaventem (Brussels) 

CA ADA 

Tandem Computers 
Canada Limited 

Edmonton 
Markham 
Missessauga 
Montreal 
Ottawa 
Scarborough 
Toronto 
Vancouver 

DENMARK 

Tandem Computers AIS 
Glostrup (Copenhagen) 

FRA CE 

Tandem Computers S.A 
Paris 
Strasbourg 

HO G KO G 

Tandem Computers 
(Hong Kong) Limited 

Hong Kong 

ITALY 

Tandem Computers Italia S.p.A 
Milan 
Rome 

JAPA 

Tandem Computers lapan, Limited 
agoya 

Osaka 
Tokyo 

THE ETHERLA OS 

Tandem Camputers Europe, Inc. 
Amstelveen 
(European Headquarters) 

Tandem Computers B. V 
Hoofddorp (Amsterdam) 

NEW ZEALAND 

Tandem Computers Ply. Ltd. 
Auckland 
Wellington 

ORWAY 

Tandem Computers (Norway) AI S 
Hovik (Oslo) 

SINGAPORE 

Tandem Computers 
Intemationallncorporated 

Si ngapore 

SPAIN 

Tandem Computers Iberica, .5. A 
Barcelona 
Madrid 

SWEDEN 

Tandem Computers AB 
Kista (Stockholm) 

SWITZERLAND 

Tandem Computers AG 
Schlieren (Zu rich) 

UNITED KINGDOM 

Tandem Computers Limited 
Birmingham 
Glasgow 
High Wycombe 
Leeds 
London 
Rochdale 
Uxbridge 
(U.K. Headquarters) 

WESTGERMA Y 

Tandem Computers GmbH 
Bonn 
Dortmund 
Frankfurt 
Hamburg 
Hilden (Duesseldorf) 

eufahrn (Munich) 
Stuttgart 

Inte rnat ional 
Distributors 

Argentina 
Chile 
Colombia 
Finland 
Greece 
Israel 
Malaysia 
Mexico 
Middle East 
Peru 
Philippines 
South Korea 
Taiwan 
Thailand 
Venezuela 

Commissio n Agent 

India 

UNGERMANN-BASS, INC. 

Domestic Sales Offices 

Atlanta, Georgia 
Boston, Massachusetts 
Chicago, Illinois 
Dallas, Texas 
Denver, Colorado 
Detro it, Michigan 
Houston, Texas 
Los Angeles, Californ ia 
New York, ew York 
Newport Beach, California 
Orlando, Florida 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
San Jose, California 
Seattle, Washington 
SI. Louis, Missouri 
Washington, D.C. 

International 
Subsidiaries 

Ungermann-Bass,S.A. 
Brussels, Belgium 

Ungermann-Bass, GmbH 
Frankfurt, West Germany 

Ungermann-Bass, .5.A. 
Paris, France 

Ungermann-Bass K.K. 
Osaka, Japan 
Tokyo, Japan 

Ungermann -Bass, Ltd. 
Camberley, England, U.K. 
Maidenhead, England, U.K . 

Lantec Ungermann-Bass, A.S. 
Kongsberg, Norway 

Ungermann-Bass, A.B. 
Solna, Sweden 

Ungermann-Bass, Ltd. 
Pointe Claire, Quebec, Canada 
Willowdale, Ontario, Canada 

Ungermann- Bass 
Distributors 

Belgium 
Denmark 
Finland 
Hong Kong 
Israel 
Italy 
Kuwait 
Malaysia 
The etherlands 
Portugal 
Saudi Arabia 
Singapore 
South Korea 
Spain 
Switzerland 
Taiwan 

ATALLA CORPORATION 

San Jose, California 

TANDEM 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
SYSTEMS, INC. 

Plano, Texas 



200352 


